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CORPORATE PROFILE

SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED
is one of the most sizable integrated coking coal corporations in
CENTRAL-WESTERN CHINA.

Taking Shanxi Province as its major investment base, it is principally
engaged in MINING OF COKING COAL, PRODUCTION AND SALES
OF RAW AND CLEAN COKING COAL.

The Group has three premium operating coking coal mines and
three coal preparation plants.
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MAIN OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE FEXKEE

THE MAIN OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE
GROUP AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 IS AS FOLLOWS:
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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MBERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—HLEE
Percentage
(HK$'000) 2022 2023 2024 change
(F&7T) T ZEZ=F ZE-_NFE BHEIL#E(L
Revenue Wz 8,214,719 5,891,068 5,057,000 -14%
Gross profit EF 5,289,594 3,466,028 2,588,314 -25%
Gross profit margin Esy P 64% 59% 51% -14%
Profit for the year FEEHRF 3,308,155 2,300,938 1,814,975 21%
Profit attributable to owners of AAQGEAA(EAEAL
the Company (“Owners”) JFE (55 A 2,715,374 1,889,247 1,494,066 21%
EBITDA' EBITDA' 5,414,715 3,924,133 3,088,616 -21%
Basic earnings per Share =Y YNEI i e YN
(HK cents) (L) 53.75 37.554 30.12 -20%
Dividend per Share (HK cents) B D RIS (B 43.0 28.0 30.0 +7%
— Interim (HK cents) - FEICED) 15.0 10.0 9.0
— Final (Proposed) (HK cents) — RERGEZ) GBI 28.0 18.0 21.0
As at 31 December
R+=—RA=+—H
Percentage
(HK$'000) 2022 2023 2024 change
(F#7T) === —E-=F ZE_NFE BEO®EE
Total assets BEMAE 23,463,484 22,491,544 22,948,823 +2%
of which: Heh o
Cash and cash equivalents and  IRE&RELZED R
time deposits with original [R1F AR A
maturity over three months =@ Az FEHFR 6,013,623 7,944,731 9,181,322 +16%
Unpledged bills receivables I E N E S 1,222,313 87,762 15,340 -83%
Total liabilities afEsE (4,786,265) (4,021,026) (4,047,566) +1%
of which: Hep o
Total borrowings BB - - = -
Total equity M ARE 18,677,219 18,470,518 18,901,257 +2%
of which: Erpo
Equity attributable to Owners WA ANELER 16,768,677 16,281,846 16,480,074 +1%
Equity per Share attributable to  # A A SR A &A% &S
Owners (HK$) (BT 3.32 3.30 3.24 2%
Current ratio (times)? FEENH =R ( ﬁ) 3.23 3.97 4.25 +7%
Gearing ratio? ERBELE - - -
Notes: iok=3
1. EBITDA is defined as profit before income tax plus finance costs, share 1. EBITDAZE & BT 15 %4 B 58 ) 0 B #E AR AR -
of loss of an associate, impairment loss on an associate, depreciation FE () — e Bt *Q} ajég B NBIRERER 3T
and amortisation. e -

Current ratio is computed from total current assets divided by total
current liabilities.

Gearing ratio is computed from total borrowings divided by total
equity.

Restated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issues for the bonus element due to the rights issue
completed on 13 November 2024.

2. RPLXURDEELERADABLETE -
3. BARELXNUERELERESAETE
4. BRER-_Z_ME+-A+=RAxiHBRmEL

HYALFI B () 75 3h 2 37T BB B A 19 B4k 38
EMmEH -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued) gy SESE)

PROFIT & LOSS SUMMARY EXRE
Revenue Gross profit
W g EF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
5, 289 594

10,000,000 @ 6,000,000
8,000,000 . 5,000,000
o 289,068 v14% (3.466,028] 028
891, .
(5.057,000) 4,000,000 $25%
6,000,000 .

2, 588 314
3,000,000
4,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000 1,000,000
0 0
2022 2023 2024 2022 2023 2024
Profit for the year Profit attributable to Owners

FERF BB ABAEET
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2,715,374
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2024 2022 2023 2024
HEALTHY FINANCIAL POSITION BEIBRR
Net assets Gearing ratio & current ratio
EEFE EXREEBLERERRHLEE
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000 %
FHT -m -m Current ratio
20,000,000 50 TR 4
s 4.25
PR P
15,000,000 131'2 397 3
. o
3.0 3.23
10,000,000 25 2
20
15
5,000,000 10 Gearing ratio 1
' HEREFEEE
0.5 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0 0.0 @ @ @ 0
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OPERATING MINES

XINGWU COAL MINE

e 6 km south of Liulin County and the mining right area
extended over 11.6 sq. km and spans 4.5 km east to west and
4.5 km north to south

e  Operation commenced in 1968

e Annual approved raw coking coal production capacity: 1.75
million tonnes

e  Operate a coal preparation plant with annual designed input
processing capacity of 1.2 million tonnes (put into operation
in October 2002)

e Mainly production of hard coking coal, change to mainly
production of semi-hand coking coal since 2024

EEP AR

5] 2 A T
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OPERATING MINES (continued)

JINJJAZHUANG COAL MINE

e 14 km south of Liulin County and the mining right area
extended over 6.08 sq. km and spans 6.8 km east to west and
3.4 km north to south

e  Operation commenced in 1996

e Annual approved raw coking coal production capacity: 1.75
million tonnes

e  Operate a coal preparation plant with annual designed input
processing capacity of 3.0 million tonnes (put into operation

in June 2009)

e Mainly production of semi-hard coking coal

oy

E 2 R @)

URUIMEARTI14RE  HEERGHD
6.08FF N NE  BFMAE6.8AE ' it
3.4 E

R—NANANFRIBEE
PEFRERAERT - 17580

R — R E A RS B3008 MR 7 B RR (A
—ETAFNARE)
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OPERATING MINES (continued)

ZHAIYADI COAL MINE

e 16 km southwest of Liulin County and the mining right area
extended over 13.9 sq. km and spans 5.5 km east to west and
5.0 km north to south

e  Operation commenced in 1988

e Annual approved raw coking coal production capacity: 1.75
million tonnes

e  Operate a coal preparation plant with annual designed input
processing capacity of 2.1 million tonnes (put into operation

in the 4th quarter of 2010)

e Mainly production of semi-hard coking coal

ZEPZIEE®

EERERE

o [IAUIMGZATREI6AR » HIEMER LM
#9139 FRE - REMEESSAE » @it
FHIE5.0R B

o R—ANNFRHIBEE
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o R —FEEAVEE A2108 M 2 k&R (R
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OPERATING MINES (continued) SiE 2 HIE @)

COAL CHARACTERISTICS R

e Located within the Lishi-Liulin mining area of Hedong e
coalfield, one of China’s key reserve areas for high-quality
hard coking coal.

e Regarded as “panda coal” because of its scarcity and high °
economic value.

e The Group’'s coking coal is of particularly good quality due e
to its high calorific value and caking index with low ash and
sulfur content characteristics that are highly desirable for
coke and steel making.

Major Clean Coking Coal Average

R TREBZEEIER  ZRAHEE
ERERZIERFERE Z— -

HRERBEMSEBEERE  WESRRHE
B o
AEEZERERESRELER ML

Ky RRHE REEE E2FFESE
AR A E R R i -

Basic  Specification

Quality Characteristic FERERFIEERE HE 2
Moisture (%) KD (%) Ad 0.31-0.41
Ash (%) K5 (%) D 7.9-9.61
Sulfur Total (%) BERE(%) D 1.18-2.20
Volatile Matter (%) BEYEE(%) Daf 17.14-19.94
Fixed Carbon (%) & 7% (%) Ad 70-75
Calorific Value (Kcal./kg) BHRE(TR/FT7=) Grv.d  7,425-7,490
Caking Index (G) FhEEEEU(G) 68-85

Source: Internal laboratory testing results.

BRHR  AMEREANAER -
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OPERATING MINES (continued)

RESOURCES AND RESERVES

) 7)) Y

EEPZEE@®

GRER

Operating Mines

EER R
Xingwu Jinjiazhuang Zhaiyadi Total
& ERHE RER i
Resources and Reserves ERERRE
In-Place Resources as of (2 EEFE+-_A=1—H 63.23 64.18 78.34 205.75
31 December 2007 (Mt) ZEWERE(BEM)
Recoverable Reserves as of HE-_ZZ+E+-R=1—H
31 December 2007 (Mt) JAEREE(BEME)
— Proven reserves -BERE 11.11 20.78 13.32 45.21
- Probable reserves -BAR#E 35.23 23.02 38.89 97.14
Total proven and probable recoverable  HZ-ZEZE+HF+_F=1— E 46.34 43.80 52.21 142.35
reserves as of 31 December 2007 (Mt) ~ Z#BEREAGES(BEHE)
Less: Total raw coking coal output in B ZEENEEZZTC (28.55) (24.35) (35.54) (88.44)
2008 to 2024 (Mt) ZE%}WEE( BEm)
In-Place Resources as of HZ-_E-ME+-A=t+-AH 34.68 39.83 42.80 117.31
31 December 2024 (Mt) (Note) ZEHERE(BEMW) ()
Recoverable Reserves as of BE-_E_ME+-A=+-—H 17.79 19.45 16.67 53.91
31 December 2024 (Mt) (Note) ZARHE(FEM) ()

Note: Resources and reserves have taken into account the coal reserves
of the Operating Mines prepared by John T. Boyd Company, an
independent mining and geological consultant, as of 31 December
2007, in accordance with the JORC Code, after deduction of the
total raw coking coal output for the period from 1 January 2008 to
31 December 2024.

s

BREMEFENR —RBYUFEREERLD
BTEARRBIORCEERFHEHZ-_ZTZT £
F+-_A=+—HAILEEP I EBENRFERE
R-EZENF-—A—BE-Z_M&F+_A
=t+t—HHEMNREEREEME -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present to you
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2024
and to report on the Group’s performance in 2024 as well as its
outlook for 2025.

In 2024, the Chinese economy experienced a phased recovery
amid complex and evolving challenges. Although export trade
saw marginal improvement, the compounded impact of structural
contradictions and cyclical pressures continued to significantly
influenced economic operations. The reshaping of global supply
chains, coupled with rising geopolitical tensions and trade barriers,
constrained China’s export growth potential. Domestically, the
manufacturing sector faced the dual pressures of technological
iteration and production capacity optimisation during its
transformation and upgrading. Meanwhile, the prolonged
adjustment in the real estate market continued to experience
balance sheet contraction, while fluctuations in the international
energy market further increased the complexity of macroeconomic
control. The combined effect of these factors not only limited the
pace of the current economic recovery but also posed profound
challenges to achieving high-quality economic development.

The Chinese government has implemented a series of measures
to stabilise growth and promote high-quality economic
development. In terms of fiscal policy, a proactive fiscal policy
was adopted, optimising the government expenditure structure
and strengthening support for residents and small-to-medium
enterprises. On the monetary policy front, a moderately loose
stance was maintained to ensure reasonable and ample market
liquidity, utilising tools such as reserve requirement ratio cuts and
interest rate reductions employed to meet the financing needs
of the real economy. Concurrently, efforts were made to boost
growth in manufacturing and infrastructure investments. Notably,
manufacturing investment rebounded significantly, becoming a
key engine of investment growth, while infrastructure investment
maintained a steady upward trend, providing strong support for
high-quality economic development. The implementation of these
policies laid a solid foundation for China’s steady economic growth
in 2024, effectively boosting market confidence and ultimately
enabling the country to achieve its gross domestic product
(“GDP") growth target of 5.0%.

ITRHRESE

B EARR

RERRESERNZURRREAEEHE
T_NE+_AZ+—BUEFEZER I @
ENBRRERAEBME_T_NFEMELER
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ERWEREIDEERR  MERERMS KD
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ENERNBETEFNNEENLBEEHOHN
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FREBARIRT —RIEBIEREBAESLCE
EREERE AVERBXIE BHEEGRH
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PNENTRAIE TEBBRKRIE - R
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REBRERED  ACFEemERERRE
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CEEREBREREEE T TREER - AR
THHEDL  BRNEEBRME(IGDP])REKER
5.0%MERBEIZ -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Under this macroeconomic environment, the domestic steel
industry faced new development patterns and challenges.
From the perspective of demand structure, steel demand in the
traditional construction industry showed a clear downward trend,
while the proportion of steel used in manufacturing steadily
increased from approximately 42% in 2020 to about 50% in
2024. Affected by factors such as weak overall domestic demand,
the deepened implementation of production capacity reduction
and replacement policies, and the accelerated transition to
green and low-carbon development, China’s crude steel output
in 2024 reached 1.005 billion tonnes, marking a 1.7% year-on-
year decline, while pig iron production fell to 852 million tonnes,
down 2.3% from the previous year. Steel prices also continued
their downward trend. On the other hand, China’s steel exports
amounted to 111 million tonnes in 2024, reflecting a 22.7%
year-on-year increase; though export prices declined by 19.4%.
As a result, the overall profit margins of steel enterprises were
significantly compressed, with the industry’s average profit margin
dropping below 1%. The weakening downstream demand and
declining profitability also had a ripple effect on the upstream
coking coal industry. In 2024, structural mismatches in supply
and demand emerged in the coking coal market, leading to price
fluctuations and a continued downward trend throughout the
year.

Faced the severe situation of the macroeconomic environment
and a declining coking coal market, the Group has consistently
adhered to achieving budget targets as the guiding principle,
resolutely implemented the established development strategy, and
comprehensively promoted key measures such as improving quality
and efficiency, reducing staff and enhancing productivity, and
increasing output and efficiency, ensuring the smooth realisation
of various operating targets. Through the collective efforts of
the entire Group, the lower seam project of Xingwu Coal Mine
successfully passed safety acceptance and commenced operations
in mid-2024. Since then, all three of the Group’s operating
mines have transitioned to lower seam production. Due to the
conversion between upper and lower seam coal and the joint
trial production at Xingwu Coal Mine in the first half of the year,
production volume in the first half was impacted, resulting in the
Group achieving raw coking coal output of 4.96 million tonnes for
the whole year, down 6% from the previous year. The output of
clean coking coal reached 3.16 million tonnes, slightly down 3%
from the prior year, while the sales volume of clean coking coal
increased by about 1% to 3.13 million tonnes. Affected by market
conditions and declining coal quality, the average realised selling

BEHMBELEREEERLE 13
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

price (including VAT) of the Group’s primary product, clean coking
coal was decreasing by 14% to RMB1,666/tonnes, For the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s sales revenue amounted
to HK$5.06 billion, a decrease of 14% year-on-year primarily due
to falling coal prices. The gross profit margin was 51%, down 8
percentage points from 2023. The Group's net profit was HK$1.81
billion, with net profit attributable to shareholders amounted to
HK$1.49 billion, a decrease of 21% from the previous year. The
Group's financial position remains sound, with ample capital,
laying a solid foundation for the future development.

In 2025, the global macroeconomic environment is marked
by turbulence and rapid changes, with a once-in-a-century
transformation accelerating and the external environment growing
increasingly complex and challenging. The external environment
is likely to become even more complex and severe. With changes
in U.S. policies, breakthroughs in Al profoundly influencing the
global political and economic landscape, rising in tariff and trade
barriers, along with additional high tariffs imposed by multiple
countries on Chinese export products, including steel products, the
international trade situation has become increasingly tense.

According to the latest government work report, in 2025, China
will implement a more proactive fiscal policy, planning to issue
1.3 trillion yuan in ultra-long-term special treasury bonds, 500
billion yuan in special treasury bonds, and arrange 4.4 trillion
yuan in local government special bonds. Once these funds are
allocated and translate into actual expenditures, they are expected
to effectively stimulate demand for infrastructure investment. The
GDP growth target for 2025 is set at around 5%, maintaining
confidence in stable growth and providing fundamental support
for coal demand. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has also
raised its latest forecast for China’s economic growth by 0.1
percentage points.

From an industry perspective, it is expected that the
accommodative fiscal policy will boost downstream demand, and
the steel industry is likely to maintain stable operations under the
dual support of a stabilised real estate and construction sector and
the steady improvement of the manufacturing sector. Regarding
the coking coal market, domestic supply is currently relatively
sufficient, with limited room for production growth. Although
the long-term supply of high-quality coking coal remains tight,
downstream industries generally adopt a strategy of purchasing
on demand, with a strong wait-and-see sentiment in the market.
Based on the above, the Group maintains a cautious outlook on
coking coal price trend for the year.

FEREE@E

FEFKRESI% R-_E-_=—F [ E8EAHD
o REBEEMEE181EBET  HABBR
REFMEAI149EBIT AR EFTHR21% °
REBRNMBRIGKERR E27 A%
EARKEEE T RIFER -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

In 2025, all three operating coal mines of our Group have
entered a stable production stage. We will always prioritise safe
production, accurately seize market opportunities under the
premise of ensuring safety and strive to improve operational
efficiency. At the same time, the Group will continue to
advance efforts to improve quality and efficiency, accelerate
the construction of intelligent coal mines, closely monitor
the development of Al technology both domestically and
internationally, and explore innovative application scenarios in coal
mine production and operations, using technology to empower
and drive industrial upgrading.
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| hereby express my heartfelt appreciation to the management
team and all employees for their dedication to the Group as well
as to our shareholders for their unwavering care and support to
the Group. The Board of Directors proposes a 2024 final dividend
of 21 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share, sharing the Group’s
operating achievements over the past year with our shareholders.
We will continuously strive to create long-term and stable value
returns for our shareholders, society, and all employees!
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The key operational data of our three premium operating coking
coal mines in Liulin County, Shanxi Province (Xingwu Coal Mine,
Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine and Zhaiyadi Coal Mine, collectively
referred to as the “Three Mines”) for the year under review
together with that of the same period of 2023 (the “Last Year” or
“2023 FY") is summarised as follows:

EIEE Rl
BT
E¥ qE1)

AEEURILBAENIRFZE =EEENELER
e (BLEEIRTR - SCHERBMEEEKRE - 58
(R DEENEFEEREBE_T_=FF
HIEFEIXZTE_=FE)NTELEL
FHREMT :

For the year ended

31 December Change
BE+-A=1+-HALEE 24
Quantity/
Unit 2024 2023 Amount  Percentage
By ZBZNE —T--F HE ¢HE BA
Production volume: EE
Raw coking coal R Mt 4.96 5.25 -0.29 -6%
BEm
Clean coking coal TEEE Mt 3.16 3.25 -0.09 -3%
BEm
Sales volume: HE -
Clean coking coal EEE Mt 3.13 3.10 +0.03 +1%
BEE
Average realised selling price FHEHEE
(inclusive of VAT): (EEEFH)
Clean coking coal EEE RMB/tonne 1,666 1,932 -266 -14%
AR /W
Note: No sales of raw coking coal for the 2024 FY (2023 FY: nil). Me  —T_NEELEREEBEE(ZZT_=F
B ) o
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group produced HE-_Z_MNE+_-_A=+—HILFE  AK&E

approximately 4.96 million tonnes (“Mt”) (2023 FY: approximately
5.25 Mt) of raw coking coal, representing a year-on-year (“YoY")
decrease of 6% and also produced approximately 3.16 Mt (2023
FY: approximately 3.25 Mt) of clean coking coal, representing a
YoY decrease of 3%.

During the year under review, the Three Mines operated smoothly
under planned. As disclosed in the annual report 2023 of the
Company, the Xingwu Coal Mine, was transiting production
from the upper coal seam to the lower coal seam in the first half
of 2024. During this transition period, Xingwu Coal Mine has
temporarily suspended production in the first quarter of 2024 until
resumed normal production by mid of July 2024. Accordingly, the
reduction of raw coking coal production volume from Xingwu Coal
Mine led to a decline in the production volume of raw and clean
coking coal for the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

During the year under review, although the change of qualities of
coal had a negative impact to the Group, by effectively blending
and washing various qualities of self-produced raw coking coal
through the enhancement of technology and equipment, the
recovery rate of clean coking coal had improved. Thereby, the
reduction rate on production volume of clean coking coal was
lower than that of raw coking coal.

Together with the change of clean coking coal inventory level
as at 31 December 2024, the sales volume of clean coking coal
increased by 1% YoY for the year under review. The clean coking
coal inventory level is mainly goods in transit as at 31 December
2024. For the 2024 FY and the 2023 FY, both sales of clean coking
coal accounted for 100% of the Group's revenue. This is in line
with the Group’s long-term strategy to concentrate on clean
coking coal sales.

The Group has taken proactive measures to mitigate the impact
of coal price fluctuations and change of coal qualities. The sales
volume of low-sulfur clean coking coal significantly dropped by
95% YoY due to the fact from Xingwu Coal Mine as disclosed
above. In terms of its sales volume, sales of low-sulfur and
medium-high sulfur clean coking coal accounted for 1% and
99% (2023 FY: 28% and 72%) of the total clean coking coal
sales volume respectively for the year ended 31 December 2024.
Together with the drop in average benchmark market selling
prices of clean coking coal by approximately 10% YoY for the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Group's average realised selling
price (inclusive of value added tax “VAT") of clean coking coal
decreased by 14% YoY to Renminbi (“RMB") 1,666/tonne when
compared with that of the Last Year (2023 FY: RMB1,932/tonne).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") 5,057
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$834 million
or 14% YoY as compared with that of approximately HK$5,891
million for the Last Year. The decrease in revenue was mainly
driven by the decrease in average realised selling prices of clean
coking coal by 14% YoY, together with the negative effect of
the depreciation in average exchange rate of RMB to HK$ by
approximately 1.2% YoY on the revenue, net off the positive
effect on the slightly rise in sales volume of clean coking coal by
approximately 1% YoY for the year under review.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total revenue to the
top five customers accounted for approximately 62% (2023 FY:
67%) of the Group’s revenue. Of which, the total revenue to the
largest customer, Shougang Group Co. Ltd., together with its
subsidiaries, accounted for approximately 40% (2023 FY: 43%) of
the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, gross profit margin was
51% while 59% for the Last Year. Gross profit decreased by
approximately HK$878 million or 25% YoY. The decrease in
gross profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue by
approximately 14% YoY for the 2024 FY as explained above.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded a net
profit of approximately HK$1,815 million and profit attributable
to the owners of the Company (the “Owners”) of approximately
HK$1,494 million, both representing a decrease of approximately
21% YoY. During the year under review, the decrease in the
Group’s net profit by approximately 21% YoY is mainly due to
the decrease in gross profit by approximately HK$878 million or
25% YoY. In addition, as a result of the drop in coal market prices,
income from sales of coal related by-products also decreased by
approximately HK$31 million or 32% YoY. On the other hand, as a
result of the effective cash management, the interest income was
increased by approximately HK$13 million or 7% YoY; the drop
in sales proportion by train and sea, the selling and distribution
expenses decreased by approximately HK$105 million YoY; and
the reduction in net foreign exchange loss of approximately
HK$108 million YoY as a result of the depreciation of the exchange
rate from RMB to HK$ has narrowed YoY, during the year under
review. Eventually, the Group recorded net profit of approximately
HK$1,815 million, decreased by approximately 21% YoY, during
the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

During the year under review, basic earnings per share was
HK30.12 cents (2023 FY: HK37.55 cents (restated)), representing
a decrease of approximately 20% YoY which was in line with the
decrease in profit attributable to the Owner by approximately 21%
YoY.

The Group recorded EBITDA of approximately HK$3,089 million
(2023 FY: approximately HK$3,924 million) and generated a
positive cash flow of approximately HK$2,370 million (2023 FY:
approximately HK$4,543 million) from our operating activities
during the year under review.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group continues to maintain a
healthy financial position and has free bank balances and cash
of approximately HK$9,181 million (As at 31 December 2023:
approximately HK$7,945 million). During the year under review,
the Group has paid total cash dividend of approximately HK$1,396
million (2023 FY: approximately HK$2,031 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Cost of Sales

During the year under review, cost of sales was approximately
HK$2,469 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$44 million or 2% YoY, as compared with that of approximately
HK$2,425 million for the Last Year. The increase in cost of sales
was mainly due to (i) the increase in sales volume of clean coking
coal by 1% YoY; and (ii) the increase in unit production costs
(including the uncontrollable resources tax rate had been increased
from 6.5% to 9% on its selling prices of coking coal resulted in
increase cost of approximately HK$92 million), as disclosed below
during the year under review.

The unit production costs are summarised as follows:
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For the year ended

31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEFE

Unit: RMB/tonne
B AR,

Change
21

2024 2023 Amount Percentage

—E_NE —T-o=fF k] Bt

Production cost of raw coking coal RERAEEKAKN 429 401 +28 +7%

Less: Depreciation and amortisation Mt ? Jg : HT € K 6 g+ (88) (109) -21 -19%

Cash production cost of raw coking coal IR & [R B 4 E R A 341 292 +49 +17%

Less: Uncontrollable costs Note2 JE o AN AT I A AR A2 (88) (76) +12 +16%

Total CEl 253 216 +37 +17%

Processing cost for clean coking coal BEENTIE 47 47 - -

of which, depreciation Hi & (8) (8) - -
Note 1: Included one-off depreciation on remaining residue value of 7' ZZE-=FERENEERERE L BEERE -

property, plant and machinery (mainly mining structures) for
upper coal seam of Zhaiyadi Coal Mine and Xingwu Coal Mine in
2023FY.

Note 2: Included resources tax and levies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Cost of Sales (continued)

Included in cost of sales, amortisation of mining rights was
approximately HK$229 million for the year ended 31 December
2024, representing a decrease of approximately HK$12 million or
5% YoY, as compared with that of approximately HK$241 million
for the Last Year. The decrease in amortisation of mining rights
was mainly due to the decrease in actual usage volume of raw
coking coal for sales and the depreciation in average exchange
rate of RMB to HK$ by approximately 1.2% during the year under
review.

The increase in unit production cost of raw coking coal by 7% YoY
was mainly due to the (i) drop in production volume of raw coking
coal by 6% YoVY; (ii) since April 2024, the uncontrollable resources
tax rate had been increased from 6.5% to 9% on its selling prices
of coking coal, with an additional increase of RMB17/tonne YoY;
(iii) the temporary increase in materials costs due to the transition
of coal seam; (iv) the increase in staff costs in accordance with
market trend; (v) increase costs due to the implementation of
certain environmental policies; and (vi) the increase in electricity
charge due to the rise in basic electricity fee and increase electricity
usage due to upgrade safety standard during the year under
review.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the reasons above, gross profit was approximately
HK$2,588 million for the year ended 31 December 2024,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$878 million or 25%
YoY as compared with that of approximately HK$3,466 million
for the Last Year. Gross profit margin was 51% for the year under
review and 59% for the Last Year.

Interest Income

During the year under review, interest income was approximately
HK$187 million, representing an increase of approximately HK$13
million or 7% YoY as compared with approximately HK$174
million for the Last Year. The increase in interest income was the
result of the effective cash management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Other Income and Gains, Net

During the year under review, other income and gains, net
recorded a net gain of approximately HK$95 million, representing
a significant increase of approximately HK$87 million YoY as
compared with a net gain of approximately HK$8 million for the
Last Year. Excluding the impact of net foreign exchange loss of
approximately HK$3 million (2023 FY: approximately HK$111
million) during the year under review, other income and gains,
net was decreased by approximately HK$21 million or 18% YoY,
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in income from sales
of coal related by-products by approximately HK$31 million or
32% YoY as a result of the drop in market prices of coal and drop
in sales volume of coal related by-products during the year under
review.

The Group recorded foreign exchange differences when certain
financial assets which are denominated in RMB translated into HK$
at closing rate on reporting date. During the year under review,
the Group recorded a decrease in net foreign exchange loss of
approximately HK$108 million as a result of the depreciation of
the exchange rate for RMB to HK$ has narrowed YoY, during the
year under review. Depreciation in RMB to HK$ exchange rate
was approximately 0.9% as at reporting date on 31 December
2024 when compared with that as at 31 December 2023 while
depreciation in RMB to HK$ exchange rate was approximately
2.7% as at reporting date on 31 December 2023 when compared
with that as at 31 December 2022.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the year under review, selling and distribution expenses
were approximately HK$110 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$105 million or 49% YoY as compared with
that of approximately HK$215 million for the Last Year. Selling
and distribution expenses mainly included logistic costs such as
the trucking fees for short distance by train and freight costs by
trucks and sea for sales of clean coking coal, of which are usually
re-charged to customers. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in proportion of sales by train and sea together with cost
efficiency measures during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
General and Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, general and administrative expenses
were approximately HK$209 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$8 million or 4% YoY as compared with
approximately HK$201 million for the Last Year. The increase in
general and administrative expenses was mainly due to increase in
professional fees regarding of the potential coal mine projects.

Other Operating Expenses

During the year under review, other operating expenses were
approximately HK$13 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$3 million or 30% YoY as compared with
approximately HK$10 million for the Last Year.

Impairment Loss on an Associate

As the long term unprofitable associate started the liquidation
procedures during the year under review and it is expected that
the recoverable amount may be lower than the carrying amount
of interest in the associate at the end of 2024, an impairment loss
of approximately HK$10 million was recognised. The liquidation
of the associate did not have any material impact on the financial
performance and financial position of the Group in the future.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, finance costs were approximately
HK$1.7 million (2023 FY: approximately HK$2.9 million), which
was solely interest expense on lease liabilities recognised under
HKFRS 16.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Income Tax Expense

During the year under review, income tax expense amounted to
approximately HK$711 million (2023 FY: approximately HK$918
million). Income tax expense mainly includes the enterprise income
tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% for the Group’s major PRC
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC (“major PRC Subsidiaries”)
and the provision of withholding tax of 5% on the dividend to be
declared from the major PRC Subsidiaries in accordance with the
relevant tax regulations in the PRC. The income tax expense was
decreased in line with decrease in profits during the year under
review.

Owner’s Attributable Profit

By reasons of the foregoing, the profit attributable to the Owner
during the year under review was approximately HK$ 1,494 million,
a decrease of approximately HK$395 million or 21% YoY, while
approximately HK$1,889 million for the Last Year.

Material Investments and Acquisitions

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had no
material investments and acquisitions.

Material Disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had no
material disposals.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2024, save for disclosed below, none of the
Group's assets was charged or subject to any encumbrance.

As at 31 December 2024, bank deposits of approximately HK$478
million were used for securing bills facilities. As at 31 December
2024, bills facilities of approximately HK$475 million has been
utilised.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, there were no guarantees given by the
Group and the Group has no material contingent liabilities.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no borrowings. Thus,
the gearing ratio of the Group was 0% (As at 31 December 2023:
0%).

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

As at 31 December 2024, other than assets and liabilities
denominated in RMB and Australian Dollars (“AUD"), the Group
had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations.
As at 31 December 2024, RMB and AUD exchange rate were
depreciated by approximately 0.9% and approximately 9.6%
respectively, when compared to that as at 31 December 2023. As
the net assets value of the PRC business operations denominated
in RMB represented approximately 79% of the Group’s net assets
value as at 31 December 2024, the depreciation in RMB also
led to an exchange loss of approximately HK$168 million (other
than the foreign exchange difference recognised in profit or loss
stated above) recognised in the other comprehensive income
upon re-translation of its net assets in the financial statements
of coal business operations in the PRC for the year ended 31
December 2024. Besides, the aggregate carrying amount of
assets denominated in AUD represented only approximately 1%
of the Group’s net assets value as at 31 December 2024. Thus,
such fluctuation in AUD exchange rate is not expected to have
any material impact on the financial position of the Group. The
above exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates did not have any
material impact on the financial position of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's current ratio (total current
assets divided by total current liabilities) was approximately 4.25
times and the Group’s cash and bank deposits amounted to
approximately HK$10,118 million, of which approximately HK$478
million was deposited to secure bills facilities of approximately
HK$475 million and approximately HK$459 million was restricted
bank deposits for land reclamation and mine environmental
restoration fund. The Group continued to maintain a healthy rich
net cash balance.

The Group has total bills receivables amounting to approximately
HK$18 million (of which approximately HK$3 million represented
endorsed bills receivables) as at 31 December 2024. The free
bills receivables were readily convertible into cash, but would
be subject to finance cost upon conversion before the maturity.
Taking into account for the free bills receivables of approximately
HK$15 million, the Group's free cash resources would have
approximately HK$9,196 million as at 31 December 2024 (As at 31
December 2023: approximately HK$8,032 million).

Capital Structure

Total equity and borrowings are classified as capital of the Group.
As at 31 December 2024, the share capital of the Company was
approximately HK$15,582 million, represented approximately
5,091 million shares in number. During the year under review,
the Company completed rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) on the
basis of one (1) rights share (“Rights Share(s)”) for every thirty
(30) existing shares at the subscription price of HK$2.60 per Rights
Share. Upon the completion of the Rights Issue, the Company
issued 164,227,928 new shares and increased capital of the
Company by approximately HK$426 million. The Group had no
borrowings as at 31 December 2024.

Rights Issue and Use of Proceeds

Details of the Rights Issue are referred to the announcement of
the Company dated 23 September 2024 and 12 November 2024
respectively and the prospectus of the Company dated 22 October
2024 (the "Prospectus”) in relation to the Rights Issue. Capitalised
terms used herein shall have the same meanings as those defined
in the Prospectus.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Rights Issue and Use of Proceeds (continued)

On 23 September 2024, the Company proposed to conduct the
Rights Issue on the basis of one (1) rights share for every thirty
(30) existing shares held on the record date of 22 October 2024 at
the subscription price of HK$2.60 per Rights Share, to raise gross
proceed up to approximately HK$427 million before expenses by
way of issuing up to 164,227,928 Rights Shares. On 13 November
2024, the Rights Issue was completed and 164,227,928 Rights
Shares were issued. The net proceeds of approximately HK$426
million were raised from the Rights Issue.

The purpose of the Rights Issue is to (i) increase the liquidity of and
facilitate trading in the shares, thus realising the Group’s inherent
values; (ii) provide general working capital to the Company and
in turn improve liquidity of the Group’s financial position; and (iii)
provide additional capital reserve to prepare for future investment
opportunities.

As the average trading volume for the year ended 31 December
2024 was 11% higher than that of the year ended 31 December
2023, the liquidity of the trading in the shares has been improved.
Given that the current ratio as at 31 December 2024 was 7%
higher than that as at 31 December 2023 and the Group's free
cash resources also increased by 15% over the same period.
Thus, the proceeds remained reserve for future investment
opportunities, of which approximately HK$53 million will be used
for the development of trading business. As at both the reporting
date (i.e. 31 December 2024) and the date of this report (i.e. 27
March 2025), the proceeds have not been utilised.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 4,121 PRC and Hong
Kong employees. The remuneration packages of the employees
are subject to annual review. The Group provides mandatory
and voluntary provident fund schemes for its employees in Hong
Kong and the state-sponsored retirement plan for its employees
in the PRC. The Group also provides training to employees in the
PRC. During the year under review, no share option was granted
or exercised. As at 31 December 2024, no share option was
outstanding.

BENMBELEREEERLE 27

-

=
pa ikt

pui)

)@ i[:
2
T

B e e (48)
HBRRGMAEIRIEz AE (&)

R-IZE-MEAR-+=H  KAREHER
EHREH(ZE_mFEFTA-+-H)EEE
=+ COREBEARMHERE —)RERRDZE
EUREEERERLMD2.60B TETEHE
FEREITRZ164,227, N8B HBRB N EE R
ZRA27TREB T (HIBRAZA) c RZTEZWF
+—A+=H " ERMHK - WE1T164,227,928
R AR 1 o TS FIEF N B4.268E
5T e

PERLEY B #9243 (1) 38 A0 A {0 B9 B 1 3 (R L R
5 EMERAEENANEEE : ()AARQA
RE-—R2EESAIREBESAKEHR BN
EOREME ¢ R(iNIRHBINEARE - RIEER
KIRE WG EIF M -

MREBE_Z_ME+_A=1+—RHBILEEXN
FHRGERBE T _=F+_-_A=1+—H
IEFEEMNITI%  BOXZHREMERFTH
E EREE-_Z-_NF+_AZ=Z+—HHR
FHER - E-_=F+_A=1+—HE7% " 8
AEENERBESERNMERBEMIS% - AT
LA AT RENREBIEARRIEER SR
B HABH53008 B TR ERREEFER -
HEFERB ZZE-WF+_A=+—H0) &
ABREHER(B-_E-_R&E=A=-++A) -
BLETS R IE M AEA o

=]

NZE-_WE+-_A=+—80 x&EEEH
AN 2P BEAMTEBEE  EENHEHFE
EFETR AKEAEBEERMEERGE
MEREERATESTE  WAPRRNDESIRM
B A RN EENREHIGRIKRGE - AR
MHEANEERHENIE - REEFEA
WEAMBRERSESRTE RS ZWGF
+ZA=+—8 ' WEEAEBRERITE -



28 SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2024

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

SAFETY PRODUCTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

The Group has always been paying great attention to production
safety and environmental protection while achieving stable
coal production. Thus, the Group makes great efforts in
promoting safety management and strengthening measures for
environmental protection, aiming to build itself into a safety-
oriented and environmentally-friendly enterprise. The Group has
complied with the relevant environmental protection rules and
regulations. The Group fulfilled our responsibilities of energy
saving, emission reduction and environmental protection by strictly
managing production procedures, eliminating discharge of waste
water and waste gas and controlling vegetation damage, etc.
in material aspects. All coal mines of the Group have obtained
necessary permission and approval from the relevant Chinese
regulators.

The Company has been rated as Grade A in the “2024 Hong Kong
Stock Exchange Listed Companies Energy Sector ESG Performance
TOP 10" by Sino Securities Index, and ranked the sixth on the list.

For the year under review, Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine have been
awarded the level | workplace safety standard issued by the
National Mine Safety Administration, Xingwu Coal Mine and
Zhaiyadi Coal Mine have been awarded the level Il workplace
safety standard issued by the Shanxi Provincial Emergency
Management Department, and their coal processing plants
obtained level | workplace safety standard issued by the Provincial
Energy Bureau.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

For the year under review, all coal mines of the Group, except for
the mining transition from upper to lower coal seam of Xingwu
Coal Mine as mentioned above, operated smoothly as planned and
have good safety record. Xingwu Coal Mine successfully obtained
the lower seam of coal safety production permit on 10 July 2024
and resumed normal production in mid-July.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Group’s
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. During
the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, the Group have complied with the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group's principal business activities are engaged in coking coal
mining, production and sales of coking coal products in the PRC.
As the Group’s coking coal products are mainly used for refining
of coke which is the second largest raw materials for steel, our
major customers are steel manufacturers. The Group exposed to a
variety of key risks including financial risks (including market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk), market price risk and operational
risks. Details of the aforesaid financial risks and risk mitigation
measures are elaborated in note 4 “Financial Risk Management” to
the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

The market price of coking coal is highly depended on the demand
of the downstream steel industry and the supply of coking coal. In
2024 FY, the supply side of the coking coal market showed a loose
situation, and the demand side remained relatively weak for a long
time especially in the second half of 2024. A low inventory strategy
had adopted. In the face of loose supply, weak demand, and
speculative demand on the fundamentals of pessimistic market
sentiment, the coking coal market fluctuated and weakened, and
coal prices continued to fall to the lowest in the recent four years.
If coal prices were dropping, the Group’s financial performance
would continue to be negatively affected.

Operational risks include the estimation of remaining coal reserves,
the renewal of mining rights and the mining works. The lives of our
coal mines are highly depended on the estimated remaining coal
reserves and the possibility to renew the mining rights. Engineering
estimates of the Group's coal reserves involved subjective
judgements by engineers that the inherent inaccuracy of technical
estimation exists. If the past estimates change significantly, the
lives of our coal mines would be shorter. In addition, the remaining
license period of the mining rights held by the Group range from
around 8 to 18 years which are shorter than the estimated useful
lives of the coal mine estimated by the Group. If the Group is
unable to renew the license of the mining rights from the relevant
authority continuously, the respective mine may need to be closed
down. Nevertheless, according to our past experiences and with
our competent management team, we have renewed our mining
rights at minimal charges in the past years. Mining works would
become difficult and the environmental standards would be
increased, resulting in rise in mining costs in the future.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers, suppliers and
shareholders. Employees are regarded as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. Details of employees are disclosed
above under “Employees”.

Customers

The Group's principal customers are steel manufacturers. For
the year ended 31 December 2024, the total revenue to the
top five customers accounted for approximately 62% (2023FY:
67%) of the Group’s revenue, of which the total revenue to the
largest customer, Shougang Group Co. Ltd., together with its
subsidiaries, accounted for approximately 40% (2023FY: 43%) of
the Group’s revenue. The Group have maintained a long and good
co-operation relationship with these top five customers. Also, the
competent sales team established by the Group is capable to utilise
various means to strengthen the communications between the
customers and the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
(continued)

Suppliers

The Group’s principal suppliers are material vendors and
contractors. The Group will continue to derive cost effectiveness
by tendering, negotiating, improving the purchase system and
developing new suppliers. In the meantime, various means
have been established to maintain the quality of material and
construction.

Shareholders

Shougang Group Co. Ltd., together with its subsidiaries, is the
largest customer of the Group. To maximise shareholders’ interest
is one of the corporate goals of the Group. The Group will
continue to enhance production management, cost control and
strive to increase our production capability, resources and reserves
through acquisitions to improve the Group’s profitability in order
to create better value for our shareholders.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2024, the global economy trudged forward amid multiple
challenges. Geopolitical conflicts, inflationary pressures, and
frequent adjustments to monetary policies by major economies
are all intertwined, making the global economic situation more
complex, increasing uncertainty, and significantly dampening
investment and consumer confidence. Amid this complex domestic
and international economic environment, China’s economy
demonstrated strong resilience. The government pursued
strategies such as expanding domestic demand and fostering
new quality productive forces and implemented an active fiscal
policy. As a result, fixed asset investment (excluding price factors)
grew by 4.8% YoY, with manufacturing investment posting
a notable 9.2% increase, signaling a positive trend toward
industrial upgrading. Facing dual pressures of domestic structural
transformation and weak external demand, Gross Domestic
Product (“GDP") growth exhibited a phased pattern of “high at
the start, low in the middle, and rising toward the end”. Thanks
to macroeconomic regulation and ongoing structural reforms, the
annual economic growth ultimately reached the expected target
of 5%, achieving the goal of steady progress while laying a solid
foundation for the economy’s long-term, stable, and healthy
development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

However, the real estate market remained under significant
pressure. Affected by the tightening financing environment, real
estate development investment declined by 10.6% YoY, with
floor space of buildings newly started shrinking by 23%, leading
to a noticeable weakening in steel demand. Notably, the steel
industry mitigated some of this domestic demand shortfall by
actively expanding into overseas markets, achieving a 22.7% YoY
export growth, providing critical support for the industry’s stable
operation.

Due to the sluggish steel demand, steel companies adopted a
widespread low-inventory strategy, which triggered a ripple effect
on the upstream coking coal sector. Early in the year, tightened
safety regulations led to a structural contraction in domestic
coking coal supply. However, as regulatory policies were gradually
implemented, production began to stabilise and recover in the
second half of the year. On the import front, China’s coking coal
imports increased by 20% in 2024, reaching 120 million tonnes.
Among these, Mongolia and Russia maintained their positions
as primary import sources, while Australian coal imports surged
following the lifting of restrictions. Amid shifting supply and
demand dynamics, coking coal prices, particularly in the latter half
of the year, showed a volatile downward trend.

In 2025, China has set a 5% GDP growth target, underscoring
the central government’'s commitment to maintaining steady
economic progress. To support this goal, the government plans to
expand the scale of local government special treasury bonds to 4.4
trillion yuan, focusing on infrastructure construction, land reserve
accumulation, the acquisition of existing commercial housing
stock, and resolving local government arrears to businesses. These
targeted measures are expected to provide robust support for the
steel industry. Nevertheless, the global economic environment
continues to faces severe challenges. Rising global protectionism
and escalating tariff barriers have intensified uncertainty in the
world economy, with market caution further suppressing end-user
demand. In particular, tariff policies targeting the steel industry
in various countries are likely to further depress overall demand.
The International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) has warned that
these structural issues could lead to reduced investment, lower
market efficiency, and even supply chain disruptions. Against
this backdrop, the steel industry faces increasing pressure to cut
production, with upstream coking coal industry also experiencing
related impacts.

-

=
7 (4

Bt

pui

)@ i
o
T

RREE(HE)

R BHEMBSBEIARABEKR - T@HER
EHEYE 2FREMWERATRERL TB
10.6% ' TA T EER D 23% « ##7F KAAFE
EF - BREEINE  MBTERABSKRMANR
BN BEEO22.7%MBEHIER - £—
TRELEHETRANSRKTENESN - BT
FIRETRHETEERE -

RWMEFRERTE  MECEERRIVEE
FELRE SHENERTEELTEHER
& FY) XREEEMRTE  BARARKMH
EHIREBMEWE  BEEEBRELEE -
THEFEERBRYOAA - EOTE —F
THFEEHEEOERERMK - E1.280 o
Hep  XHEREREBERS T ZEORRD
7 MEANMERREESHRERHDERT IR
RER - HARFTHRREEET  EREBLHEE
TH+E2REETTES -

—E-hF BB T5%GDPIEEREZ
PRPRENBEREEERRRENERESR -
BEYEBEE—BE  BNFESMTBNEIEE
FREBEAZ448EB T SHRMERIE
BR L TERREWEBIRCHF
FENHE RS ERREEL o Lt $E8E
BEAMBETERBEENIZE - R - 2ERE
ERIBINAERERBIE - 2EEEETRRE -
AHRESARETFMEZME 7T HRALEEHT
BElE MEBEBEEFENHRIETER &
FIESEFTHMETEETROBREBCE - B
—TEBHITEBRBE R -BEREBESHERE
(MIMFE/R - EREBETE I REERIRE R
W ISR TR EEg e MEEEE - &£
EST  WMETERERNMA - EHEE
BITELBERESTE -



—E _JFFR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

Domestic coking coal supply is expected to remain stable, with
import volume projected to grow, albeit with limited room for
expansion, resulting in modest overall supply increases. Given
that demand recovery will take time, the market’s supply-demand
balance is unlikely to improve rapidly, and coal prices are expected
to continue fluctuating at low level.

The Xingwu Coal Mine, a subsidiary of the Group, successfully
completed the construction and acceptance of its lower coal
seam project in mid-2024 and obtained a safety production
permit. Through scientific planning, the Company minimised
production fluctuations and swiftly restored normal production
rhythm. Regarding safety production, the Company will continue
strengthening mining operation standards and rigorously enforce
the safety production responsibility system. Positioned within
the new phase of economic transformation and high-quality
development, the Group will deepen the following strategic
initiatives: advancing technological upgrades and improvements,
accelerating the digital management and automated production
processes to comprehensively enhance production management
and safety capabilities; strengthening the construction of the
Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG") framework;
and expediting the smart transformation of the Group’s three
coal mines, striving to achieve breakthroughs in smart mine
construction.

Currently, the Group’s production operations and financial
status remain stable, with ample cash flow. Looking ahead, the
Company will closely monitor macroeconomic trends and industry
developments, dynamically optimise its business strategies, and
continuously improve its corporate governance system to solidify
and enhance the core competitiveness. The Group is committed to
delivering greater returns to shareholders, employees, and society
by consistently creating exceptional value.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

The report details the corporate social responsibility ideas and
practices and the progress made by Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited (the “Company” or “Shougang Resources”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) in the
economic, social and environmental aspects. It truly reflects
the Group’s proactive performance of its economic, social and
environmental responsibilities for comprehensive, coordinated
and sustainable development. The report is designed to allow
shareholders, investors (including potential investors) and
stakeholders to have a more comprehensive and profound
understanding of the work done in the environment, social and
governance (“ESG") areas of the Group.

e Reporting Period

The reporting period is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024, with part of the content not in the period.

e Scope of the Report

The report mainly covers the operations of the Group’s major
subsidiaries in Liulin County, Shanxi Province, including
Xingwu Coal Mine, Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine and Zhaiyadi Coal
Mine, which are engaged in the operation of three premium
coking coal mines and the associated coal preparation plants
for the production of raw and clean coking coal.

e Data Source

All data is mainly sourced from official documents, statistical
and financial reports of the Group, as well as the ESG
information collected from the Group's statistics, summaries
and verifications. The report is available in Chinese version
and English version. If there is any conflict or inconsistency
between the two versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.
Unless otherwise stated, the currency used is the Chinese
Yuan (“yuan”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

ABOUT THE REPORT (continued)

References

The report is prepared based on the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Code” (“ESG Reporting Code")
in Appendix C2 of the Main Board and GEM Listing Rules
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). It also refers to the GRI standards (GRI standards
version 2021) issued by the Global Sustainability Standard
Board (“GSSB”).

Terms

For ease of expression and readability, Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited is referred to as “the Group” or
“we" in this report.

Availability

You can browse the report and dynamic information
about sustainable development activities of the
Group from the “Results Report” Module in the
“Investor Relations” section on the homepage
of the Company’s website (website address:
https://www.shougang-resources.com.hk/s/ir_reports.php)

BOARD ESG STATEMENT

The Group is committed to sustainable development,
embedding Environmental, Social, and Governance
(ESG) principles into every stage of its strategic planning,
operations, and decision-making. We take active steps
to meet social responsibilities, protect the environment,
strengthen corporate governance, and foster harmonious
coexistence between the Company, society, and the
environment. Our goal is to contribute meaningfully to
sustainable economic progress.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

BOARD ESG STATEMENT (continued)

To put our ESG commitments into action, we have built
a structured management system with clear roles and
responsibilities at all levels. The Board, as the highest
decision-making body for the Group’s ESG issues, formulates
and oversees the implementation of ESG strategies.
Through the Audit Committee, it reviews ESG reports,
evaluates stakeholder feedback, and approves material
issue assessments regularly. Based on the committee’s
recommendations, the Board finalizes the annual ESG report.
The Audit Committee, as the main ESG monitoring unit,
formulates ESG management policies, assessing, prioritizing
and identifying key ESG risks that could impact the business.
The ESG management team ensures policies and strategies set
by the Board and Audit Committee are effectively carried out.
They regularly report on ESG progress to the Board and Audit
Committee to ensure alignment with our broader corporate
objectives.

The Group attaches great significance to environmental
protection. We actively implement energy-saving and
emission-reduction measures, promote the development
of green mining practices, and strictly adhere to national
environmental regulations to ensure all emissions meet the
required standards. By embracing technological innovation
and optimizing management processes, we continually work
to improve resource efficiency and reduce our environmental
footprint. Guided by the belief of “giving back to society
and building harmony together,” we actively engage in
public welfare initiatives, support community growth,
and contribute to rural revitalization. We also prioritize
the protection of employee rights, ensuring a safe and
healthy workplace, strengthening professional development
through training, and encouraging the shared growth of
both employees and the Company. We uphold lawful and
compliant business operations, enhancing our governance
structure to ensure that the General Meeting of Shareholders,
the Board, the Audit Committee, and management perform
their roles effectively and collaboratively. We strictly comply
with information disclosure regulations to safeguard the right
to information of shareholders and stakeholders.

The report details the progress and outcomes of the Group's
ESG initiatives in 2024 systematically. After review and
approval by the Audit Committee on 20 March, 2025, it was
subsequently approved by the Board on 27 March 2025. The
report is now officially released and publicly available.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT

The Group upholds the philosophy of sustainable
development and continues to strengthen its ESG governance
framework to enhance strategic planning in environmental,
social, and governance areas. Through regular engagement
with stakeholders, we assess key ESG issues and identify
potential risks to ensure our ESG principles are effectively
put into practice. In addition, we actively embrace our
social responsibilities, prioritize open communication with
stakeholders, and remain mindful of how our operations
affect local communities and the environment. Our goal is to
foster shared progress, creating value for both the Company
and society.

2.1 ESG MANAGEMENT

The Group adheres to ESG policies, guidelines,
and standards applicable to its listed location. We
are committed to continuously enhancing our ESG
governance and advancing sustainable development
goals and strategies to support the Group's sustainable
development.

The Group has established a top-down ESG governance
structure, led by the Board. As the highest decision-
making body, the Board is responsible for setting
the Group’s ESG strategy and making final decisions,
assuming full accountability for outcomes. Supporting
the Board, the Audit Committee acts as the ESG
oversight unit. It formulates ESG management policies,
identifies key ESG issues and related risks, and assesses
their impact on the Group’s operations. The Audit
Committee reviews the Group’s ESG performance, tracks
progress toward ESG objectives, and reports its findings
to the Board. In addition, it also reviews and approves
the annual ESG report of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT (continued)

2.1 ESG MANAGEMENT (continued)

At the management level, the ESG management group
coordinates the implementation of ESG initiatives in line
with strategies set by the Board and Audit Committee.
This group identifies potential ESG risks, regularly reports
updates and annual ESG performance outcomes, and
provides the Group's annual ESG performance and the
annual ESG report to the Board and Audit Committee.

At the executive level, the ESG working group ensures
ESG strategies are integrated into daily operations.
Comprising ESG representatives from various
departments, the working group promotes ESG
initiatives, collects and analyzes ESG data, and gathers
feedback. This information is then shared with the ESG
management group to ensure continuous progress and
alignment with the Group’s ESG objectives.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RiE ?iﬁ&
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BB E A

2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 2. IRERREE(E)

MANAGEMENT (continued)

2.2 Stakeholders Engagement 2.2 FlsmEEH S 6
The Group recognizes the important role stakeholders RAEEBRAMNAEBAREERESHN
play in our business operations and places a strong EE2YE REEREMNSHEERN
emphasis on open and effective communication. We BN HERLBEREE RER
constantly improve the communication mechanisms and RiE - UBERRFZEREBNRE
channels to ensure timely responses to feedback and EHE KEE - EBEFP -BI - fftE
suggestions from stakeholders, including government E ket RABFNEEE T ERM
bodies, regulatory agencies, investors, customers, ER -BMEIFNEZRE T EHAEE
employees, suppliers, and community organizations. We MWEIE - BREANEEETBTINE
value the expectations of our stakeholders and identify K ZRE

issues of materiality to their concerns.

Stakeholders Expectations and Demands Communication Channel
MBS B xR BERE
Investor Addressing climate change General meeting of shareholders
KREE & R E L RERE
Technological innovation Notice
BT glEh NE
Roadshow
BROR
Reception
AEERF
Employees Employee care Labor Union
8T ETHE Ig
Employee rights Performance appraisal system and
BTIRER meeting
Employee development BHEZSEEG R
BI¥R
Workplace safety
ZRHEE

Occupational health

Bk
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
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2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT (continued)

2.2 Stakeholders Engagement (Continued)

Annual Report 2024
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2. IRERREE(E)

2.2 MHMERAGT 2 E(HE)

Stakeholders Expectations and Demands Communication Channel
Mz AHEE S BiEEE BERE
Government Emissions management Government work conference
BT PR E B B TEER
Addressing climate change Information report
FEE RS L o G I
Ecological protection
HREIRE
Energy use
CEYGRESE
Stable supply
BE e
Anti-corruption
[RIE1E Bk
Customer Product quality Product report
LSS EmEE EmlE
Business ethics Regular visits
[EESEE EHIERD
Stable supply
BEHIE
Supplier Supplier management Annual bidding announcement
e HERER FEAEAS
Fair competition Special project bidding announcement
NFFHEF EREBEEREAS
Technological innovation Special technical meeting
Es L=l EEREE
Community organization Public charity Village visits
otk N IR

Community engagements

HEES
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT (continued)

2.3 Materiality Assessment

The Group regularly reviews and updates material
issues to ensure a clear and timely understanding of
stakeholder concerns, expectations, and needs. In 2024,
we conducted an internal assessment of ESG issues,
focusing on two key dimensions: ‘their materiality to
stakeholders’ and “their impact on the Group.’ Based on
this assessment, we identified the material issue matrix
and corresponding major issues, which were submitted
to the Board for review and approval. Following the
Board's approval, the Group confirmed the material issue
matrix and identified the fifteen important issues for the
year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT (continued)
2.3 Materiality Assessment (continued)

Issues Materiality

BEEEMREE

BiE 2K
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2. IKERREE(RA)
2.3 EEMTME(E)

Issues

B

Most important issues
SIEE DN

Moderately important issues

hEEAMEE

Generally important issues

—REXNMEZEE

Workplace safety
TRHEE

Emissions management
B R
Occupational health

BiiEm

Product quality
EmEE
Anti-corruption
RS

Employee care

BIME

Business ethics

[HESEE

Stable supply

BEHE

Employee rights

BT HEs

Addressing climate change
FESTRIRE L

Ecological protection

A REfRE

Technological innovation
Esip=lE

Energy use

RETR{E A

Employee development
BT#E

Public charity

HEnm
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2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT (continued)

2.4 Response to ESG Reporting Principles
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2.4

Materiality: The Group strictly complies with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Code issued by the Stock Exchange. Taking into
account capital market concerns regarding the
Group's sustainable development, we engage with
stakeholders through various channels. We also conduct
benchmarking analyses of ESG issues disclosed by
companies within the same industry to help identify and
select ESG issues relevant to the Group.

Quantitative: The Group regularly collects data on key
performance indicators related to both environmental
and social areas, following the guidelines outlined in the
ESG Reporting Code. These statistics are summarized
and disclosed at the end of each year. The methods and
standards used for calculating ESG data are detailed in
the relevant sections of this report.

Consistent: The report maintains the same scope of
disclosure compared to previous ESG reports, using the
same statistical and disclosure methods. However, some
disclosure categories have been refined in alignment
with the ESG Reporting Code. For comparative data,
please refer to the relevant sections of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE

The Group continuously improves its corporate governance
structure by continuously improving compliance
management, enhancing risk controls, and refining strategies
for risk prevention and response. These efforts provide a
strong foundation for the Company’s long-term stability. At
the same time, we uphold ethical business practices, actively
combat monopolistic behavior and unfair competition,
and take a firm stance against all forms of corruption and
bribery. Our goal is to foster a clean, transparent corporate
environment built on integrity.

3.1 Risk Management

The Group prioritizes risk prevention and management
and has established a comprehensive risk management
system. We continuously refine risk identification,
assessment, and response mechanisms, and enhance
our risk resilience to ensure the stable operation of our
business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE g2k
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued) 3. EHREZ(E)
3.1 Risk Management (continued) 3.1 ERER(E)
3.1.1 Risk Management System 1 EBEEEER
We continue to strengthen risk management T P9 A~ hn 6§%fﬂ[ﬂﬁm£¥ ' %
framework by clearly defining responsibilities EEEEETEINM L6 3F
and reinforcing accountability. We have P9~ ESEELPS f:LL— EREOREY )
established a “three-in-one” compliance EEMAHBEE  UBRBEHN T
management structure, which consists of the TEHE - HEBEREZENRR
primary compliance management department, = E 8 AR A R b B IR
general management departments, - BEKNEENER AEE&W
and supervisory departments. Through ERES P AE XA MR EHIET -

a coordinated and interactive working
mechanism, we advance our “three lines of
defense + three levels'” risk management
system to ensure that our risk management
and internal control systems operate
effectively.

1st Line of e The primary compliance management department is responsible for taking the first-line responsibility for
Defense: Risk compliance management within its business scope.
Management ° EEAf,QEfEIijBFE]EEﬁ%ﬁglﬁ\]m/\fﬁﬁfigﬁﬁﬁ—iff °
Function e |dentify and evaluate potential risks and implement targeted measures to address them properly.
— B R o BBIEAEIERR - BRE A R R o

i &b i X L X L X .
R EER A e Continuously evaluate the effectiveness of adopted measures and optimize strategies to minimize risk impact.

o FHERTEFTEREUEERRR - TEMEEL GRS 2K - WRERRNZE -

ZDr:f’el;::ee' ?;;sk e Supervise the development of risk management procedures to ensure they are appropriate and effective in practice.

Monitoring o AREZEREEEFRNAIEN - URRENTBENGRIE

Function *  Promote the timely and accurate delivery of risk management information to ensure it is fully shared and utilized
B ERS across the Group.

BB EEERE AL o RERBREIREEERN RFIEFERYE - REBBERERARABEIFTH EZMFA

3rd Line of

Defense: e Conduct independent and objective evaluations of the risk management system to assess its effectiveness to
Independent ensure that it operates as intended, providing strong protection for the Group's stability and long-term success.

ﬁﬂﬁﬁe o HERETEZRGHSBENGRIETEY - TENE - R HLANEREIBER - AR RNIER
= wm e IBSRMHERE RS o
B BRERAL

Picture: Management Functions and Measures of the “Three Lines of Defense”
Risk Management Structure
TZEhRIRBREERENEIEBE MEE

i “Three levels” refer to the decision-making level, management level, 1 [ZEERIFEAKE - EEERAITE -
and execution level.
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.1 Risk Management (continued)

3.1.1 Risk Management System (continued)

Building on the “three lines of defense” framework,
the Group has developed a “three-levels”
risk management system with clearly defined
responsibilities to strengthen resilience against
potential risks. The Board sets risk assessment
criteria based on the Company’s risk appetite
and tolerance, ensuring that all relevant entities,
divisions, operating units, and subsidiaries are well-
informed. In line with the Board'’s risk assessment
criteria, each entity within the Group identifies,
evaluates, and addresses potential risks when
developing and executing its annual operational
plans. Depending on the nature of the risk,
responses may include acceptance, avoidance,
transfer, or control to effectively mitigate its impact.

Table: Risk Management System
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BRELRER

* BEREEER

Risk Management Level

Major Responsibilities

REEEER FTERE
The Board > Oversees the Group's risk management system,
EEg establishes overall risk assessment criteria, and

ensures its effectiveness.
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3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)
3.1 Risk Management (continued)

3.1.1 Risk Management System (continued)
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3.1 B RMERE(E)

BMIEBREEEZR(F)

Table: Risk Management System (continued) x® EREEBER(E)

Risk Management Level

Major Responsibilities

B\ B i 3 AR TERE
The Board > Communicates business plan objectives to entities,
BEEg divisions, and subsidiaries, helping them identify

and respond to potential risks through acceptance,
avoidance, transfer, or control, to ensure the
system operates effectively to minimize risks that
could impact the Group’s business activities.
mASEHEE - "*B %i’““ ToE M A Rl E
FRELEHREANBER  HTE E$$ = K HEE R R
iﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂl%ﬂ%ﬁ)ﬁhm B - EEE - B
- RERE R B IR G %E’Jﬁxﬁl ﬁﬁ PR EAE @
U REEKEETHNTE

The Audit Committee
EREEE

> Monitors, evaluates, and reviews risk management
findings from management and the Internal Audit
Department.
HEREMABEFBERAREEBENFETER
ETERE  SHEMEZ -

> Regularly reports the audit results to the Board to
ensure risk management measures are effectively
implemented.
THREFEERESAR  RERREEE B
BUFARERT -

The Management
EERE

> Continuously monitors the design and execution
of risk management procedures to ensure the risk
management measures are properly implemented.
HEREBEFORTEHATETEEERE - #R
[\ B B IR HE B R A R E B




48

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3.

OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)
3.1 Risk Management (continued)

3.1.2 Risk Assessment and Response

To better identify, evaluate, and manage potential
risks, the Group has established a sustainable risk
assessment system. This system analyzes risks based
on two key dimensions: impact and possibility.
Meanwhile, we have implemented a closed-loop
risk management process that covers risk collection,
identification, assessment, monitoring, and early
warning, ensuring strong and effective risk control.

In 2024, the Group conducted a risk assessment
across 12 departments using a business objectives
risk assessment form to systematically identify,
evaluate, and address potential risks that could
affect our strategic goals. Based on these findings,
we developed response strategies to mitigate
operational risks. As of the end of the reporting
period, we have identified the following major risks
and developed targeted countermeasures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RIR

GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.1 Risk Management (continued)

3.1.2 Risk Assessment and Response (continued)

Table: Risk Identification and Response

Risk category Annual

Risk identification

3. ARE
3.1 Bk EE (&)

ERELEREEMBRAT 49

CHER

EaWmE @

% (&)

N2 EEBFFIEREL (F)
xR R R EY

Risk response approach

ERER strategic g4l ERELF N

objective

FERBER
Safety risk Complete Mechanical injury, lifting injury, falls Improve the system to standardize measures and
ZEER elimination of ~ from height, asphyxiation and poisoning ~ manage equipment in accordance with relevant

serious injuries
and effective
prevention of
minor injuries
BEHBEES
- B IEE
GEHEE
Fulfillment of
production safety
standards
ZERHEREL
ZIAE

by toxic and hazardous gases, hazardous

chemical-induced fires and explosions,

fires caused by electrical shock and

leakage, etc.

EREE BESE BR%E S

BERBERTE - BlLmAMRSE -

ERBERBENE

Imperfections in the regulations

and specifications, substandard

site conditions in the dynamic

implementation process, and the

operating environment limited due to

design.

REHE  REFTTE

%Emﬂ&$ﬁ$ F
RREFRR

& 25y
o ERRE

standards to prevent accidents from the source
TEHERBEN  RREFREETREE
B ARREHBEHEL

Strengthen training and guidance
MmeEEHHE S

Enhance safety supervision during operation
BIERBREZEEE

Conduct monthly safety risk identification

and evaluation and self-inspection for safety

compliance
FRART-RZ2RABRHEENE  R2EEE
BaE

Carry out safety hazard inspection and
rectification once every ten days
BTRET—ARE2BEHERE
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3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued) 3. EHREZ(E)
3.1 Risk Management (continued) 3.1 EBERE(E)

3.1.2 Risk Assessment and Response (continued)

Table: Risk Identification and Response
(continued)

N2 EEBFFEREL (F)

* AR REYH(E)

Risk response approach

EREHLR

Risk category Annual Risk identification

BEEER strategic A
objective
FERBER

Environmental ~ Zero violation Inadequate domestic wastewater

risk of environment  treatment facilities and violations of

RERR protection environment protection regulations
regulations and  resulting from the failure to strictly
compliance follow the EIA regulations to manage in-
with policy production coal mines.

requirements EEAKERRBETITE - REBIER
ERRR(TE RIUAEAEREGERRERME
B HERRE

Strengthen the operation management of mine
water and domestic sewage treatment plants
to ensure stable operation of environmental
protection facilities

MRBEHK - ERTKBRERETER « #
RERZEEBRT

Attach great importance to the disposal of solid
waste and govern in production coal mines

in accordance with environmental protection
requirements

REERERMNEELE RRERENLE
Ensure capital investment in environmental
protection

RERRESRA



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.1 Risk Management (continued)

—E_MEFR

3.1.2 Risk Assessment and Response (continued)

Table: Risk Identification and Response

(continued)

B
Bh

ERELEREEERAT 51

gegR
& @

3. /\%ﬁr\ﬁé(nﬁ)

3 1 H EEkkEE(nﬁ)

3.1.2 EERTFIEREL (4E)

* AR REYH(E)

Risk category Annual Risk identification Risk response approach
ERRER strategic [ R Bl EREL TN
objective
EERKERZ
Financial risk ~ Capital Uncertainties in the process of project Complete the project application and approval
B R expenditure application, approval, implementation,  procedures as early as possible after the project
completed on and assessment which affect the has been identified
time completion time and thus the normal BEEEGREFTREEMNYE  BHFE
BARMTHIBE  turnover of funds Ensure that project implementation funds and
BB HEVIE  HFi Bi - Z12B1EPH  personnel are in place on time and in full,
THTRZYETHER  #MFYEE  and that safety and technical measures during
¢ TERAE construction are strictly implemented
REEEERE S  ABRBEHEIN - RE
mIARTHEERMERREEE
Arrange for dedicated personnel to follow up
and supervise each task and control the process
to ensure that all tasks are completed on time
tlgfﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁmﬁ*ﬂ CRIEEE - BR
RIBEBNERE T
Develop a strict assessment method and
conduct strict assessments on the sub-tasks of
each part, so that the reward and punishment
are clear
HERBNEGAN BRI HEEKET
BRER - HEEHSH
Time risk Completion of ~ Impact on the completion of the mining ~ Report uncontrollable policies and factors to
B B B the relocation of  plan the management for decision and seek policy

Technology risk
RiftER

villagers

SR RSB

B

95% intact rate

of electrical

and mechanical

equipment
ERETHE

#95%

FERE BTN

Long hours, high intensity, and wet
conditions as a burden on mechanical
and electrical equipment leading to
equipment failure

B aEARBRRETHRE
FBEEBEVRERRENE

support from the government
HARENEE  RRESRERERRUSK
BRHR X H5

Strengthen daily inspection and check and
conduct planned maintenance and inspect the
maintenance work
R EHERS -
BRETE

firat B R RE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)
3.2 Compliance Management

The Group complies with relevant laws and regulations,
and continuously optimizes its internal management. We
actively foster a culture of compliance and strengthen
employees’ awareness, ensuring a strong foundation for
the Group's long-term development.

3.2.1 Compliance System Construction

In 2024, the Group developed and issued
several key documents, such as the Compliance
System Construction and Implementation
Program, Compliance Management Status
Report, and Shanxi Fushan Compliance Risk List.
These documents clearly define the roles and
responsibilities of management at all levels in
compliance-related activities. Building on our
existing systems, we introduced compliance
enhancements in bidding management, signed
the Bidding Agency Agreement, improved the
bidding system information, and launched a public
bidding platform. At the same time, in accordance
with the new Company Law and other relevant
requirements, we revised the Articles of Association
and the Rules of Procedure for the Board to
enhance regulatory compliance. To further reinforce
accountability, all employees were required to sign
a compliance commitment letter.

3.2.2 Compliance Culture

To enhance employees’ understanding of corporate
legal and compliance standards, we provide training
on laws, internal controls, and compliance culture,
to further strengthen their compliance awareness
and capabilities.

)
SRR )

HER
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.2 Compliance Management (continued)

3.2.2 Compliance Culture (continued)
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BRHRE®@®
3. EREZ(E)

3.2 Q%E%IE(IIE)

32288 X1 (&)

Table: 2024 Compliance Culture Training R ZCE_NFEESHEXILEB
Programs 23

Time Content Object Number

% 5| B FIRE EHIH A RPN

March 2024 Compliance and Specialized departments and mine 57
Confidentiality Law management personnel

—ZT_NF=A BRREE EERIPIRBEREEAR

March 2024 Regulation on Department managers and above 30
Work Safety

—ZE_MF=A B E D BPIKERIAEAE

April 2024 Compliance Management Department managers and above 30
System Training

—E-NFIHA BREERRE BPIEIELIAEAE

May 2024 Promotion of Specialized departments and mine 128
the Civil Code management personnel

—ZT-NFREA RZHEE HEMPINEREIEAR

August 2024 Compliance System Department managers and above 30
Development

ZETMENA BB RERMEE BPIKERIAEAE

October 2024 Compliance Policy Specialized departments and mine 180
Training management personnel

—ZE_WFE+A B RHEE HEAFIRBBHREEASR

December 2024 Promotion of the Department managers and above 30

“EOME+ A

Constitution

BLER

MPIEEMIAEAE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RIE 2K
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) SRR E @
3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued) 3. EHREZ(E)
3.2 Compliance Management (continued) 3.2 68 EH (#&)
3.2.2 Compliance Culture (continued) 32288 IE(E)
Case: “Civil Code Promotion Month” =Bl (REHR)EER

In May 2024, the Group held its fourth Civil Code —Z P4 HA » NEESEH TENERE
Promotion Month campaign, featuring a range HEEA /5% - HFIFRE THRZE - 25
of interactive and informative activities, including Z¥HEEEH @ BIEEREEER - RIE
distributing educational materials, providing on-site 3555 « 42 4% EE R 2RI E B S A2 B AR
consultation services, and offering face-to-face legal HEFX @ Eed(RZEZH)EE I ZHNE LE
advisory sessions led by legal experts. The initiative LAREBR 2 EAMER 27 8 TR ARE
aimed to strengthen employees’ understanding of & - #H8)ANEENFEBTERE -

the Civil Code, raise public awareness, and improve

legal literacy, promoting the Group’s harmonious

and stable development.

Picture: On-site Lecture on Civil Code Picture: Legal Awareness
Awareness and Training Promotional Poster

F RIFRE EIRIIRGEE c BREEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)
3.2 Compliance Management (continued)

3.2.2 Compliance Culture (continued)
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3.2 68 EH (#&)

32288 XL (&)

Case: Compliance Management System
Development

In April 2024, the Group launched a group-wide
initiative to build a comprehensive compliance
management system, ensuring full integration
across all levels of the organization. To drive this
effort, we established a specialized leadership
team and a dedicated working group to oversee
the compliance framework’s development. A kick-
off meeting was held to introduce the initiative,
followed by the release of the Implementation Plan
for the Comprehensive Compliance Management
System of Shanxi Fushan Resources Group Limited.
We also required all employees to sign a Compliance
Commitment Letter, organized on-site promotional
events and invited compliance advisory experts to
provide hands-on guidance and training. These
efforts aim to upgrade the Group’s compliance
system and enhance its ability to operate within legal
and regulatory standards.

Picture: The Kick-off I\/Ieetmg for the
Compliance Management System

P AREERARB SRS

Rf| EREERRERTE

—ToMENA  AKEEEMB AR EEE
RERTE UEREERAGRERR2EEN
BiR - PN ZARBRERBHETEREA
NRBRETEE ABARGHRBRER F@JJK
g mEl TER(LARLEREEARA
ErHAMEERAERERIR) ﬁﬁ%%
BETIR %(A%EEW”i) BHRGREBEER
BRigHES I}E_E%./:\%E EREREREKZ
HFRESTE  BIF  BOREERAEH
é%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁﬂ%& R AEENREA
®EEN -

Picture: The Promotional Event for the
Compliance Management System

FAREERREESRS

3.3 Business Ethics

The Group strictly observes the Supervision Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Money Laundering
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
and other laws and regulations. In addition, we set
the highest standards of business ethics, continuously
strengthening our integrity framework and corporate
culture. By maintaining a bottom-line mindset and red-
line awareness, we remain committed to fostering a
corporate environment built on honesty and integrity.

3.3 EBEE

AEBEREBET(PEARLMBEE
BOEY (PREARLMBE R EEE) -
(REARANMBRAEEHFE)SE
EREE  BMBRUBRSEEEEEE
BRET FEMBRBRERM
ER e RMBTFEEREMALG
NRITETHEAEENTE REL
E
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE 2K
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @E)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued) 3. EREZ(E)
3.3 Business Ethics (continued) 33 EHEBE(E)

3.3.1 Building a Culture of Integrity 33MNEEXEE

In adherence to the principle of “prevention first,
punishment second”, the Group continuously
strengthens its internal inspection and supervision
mechanisms to firmly combat illegal activities such
as bribery and extortion. In 2024, we conducted
ongoing supervision and inspections across
the Group’s mines, factories, and departments
to identify any violations of laws or internal
regulations. During the reporting period, no major
legal or disciplinary violations, nor any corruption-
related litigation cases, were identified.

Integrity and anti-corruption remain key priorities
in our daily operations. We actively conduct self-
inspections and corrective measures to address
integrity risks. We maintain a zero-tolerance policy
against any breach of the Eight-Point Decision on
Improving Party and Government Conduct issued by
the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China. We have implemented special rectification
measures targeting illegal allowances, misuse of
public funds for personal travel, excessive use
of company vehicles, and non-compliant official
travel. Additionally, we conducted quarterly Party-
building supervision under the “Dajinchuang”
initiative, which evaluates achievements,
challenges, and innovations in our Party-building
activities. Integrity-related discussions were also
held during New Year's Day and the Spring Festival
to reinforce employees' commitment to ethical
conduct. During discussions, we required employees
to adhere to the principle of “fulfilling both the
prescribed duties and integrity responsibilities”
to maintain high ethical standards at all times.
These efforts create a transparent and ethical work
environment, reinforcing the Group’s commitment
to integrity and sustainable growth. In 2024, the
Group strengthened its integrity-building and anti-
corruption efforts. A total of 32 leading cadres
above the manager level signed the Letter of
Commitment for Honest Duty Performance of
Management in Leadership, pledging to uphold
ethical conduct, comply with laws and company
policies, and prevent any form of corruption.
Additionally, 100% of designated employees
signed integrity agreements, underscoring our
firm commitment to a clean, transparent, and

accountable corporate culture.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE g2k
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @)

3. ARE%(&A)

3.3 BERERE(A)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.3 Business Ethics (continued)

3.3.1 Building a Culture of Integrity (continued)

33MEEBXEIEE (4E)

The Group has organized a series of meetings
and educational activities on integrity and anti-
corruption to strengthen employees' awareness and
reinforce ethical standards. These initiatives serve as
a foundation for the Group’s long-term stability and
sustainable growth. During the year under review,
the Company arranged anti-corruption training for
directors and employees, and provided directors with
information on the anti-corruption system to assist
them in formulating and effectively implementing
the corporate anti-corruption framework, thereby
addressing potential corruption vulnerabilities. The
training covered the key provisions of the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance, roles and responsibilities of
various personnel and units, key components of anti-
corruption policies and plans, fundamental elements
of the disciplinary code, assessment and monitoring
of corruption risks, and effective practices for
promoting anti-corruption.

AEEBBAMRIERSH
MERBREIHEES A £
—HMABAEEETINREEEE
#BORASERERERREE
E-FR  ARBLHTESF
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Case: Party Conduct and Integrity Education
Event

In July 2024, the Group organized employees at
all levels, including managerial personnel, mine
directors, plant directors, and Party members below
the section chief level, to visit the Lvliang Integrity
Education Base for a Party conduct and integrity
education program. The activities included visiting
the Fangshan Integrity Culture Park, reaffirming the
Party admission oath, reading the Party members’

P REARBHEEED

—ToMELR AREBHEBTERET - 8
SREBNAEAR - BBEE - EBE - BHEMU
TEESHAERRTREHAE ZMHRRRERK
BEBHEEY - AHATEEL2E S LERK
XEE  ERARER BEEEREAEM
il 2EIZEELETLT EHEBLEH2ES

E s A

B E-TREZELEINREBESH
EEBRE -

code of integrity and self-discipline, and participating
in specialized lectures. Through on-site learning and
experience, the program aimed to further strengthen
employees’ integrity and self-discipline awareness,
and reinforce their ethical foundations.

TI'g80 BRE

Picture: Group Photo from the Party
Conduct and Integrity Education Event

B BEREHEIREBHEF

Picture: On-site Integrity Education Activities

B : RBRHREFEBRS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. OPERATION IN COMPLIANCE (continued)

3.3 Business Ethics (continued)

3.3.2 Whistleblowing Mechanism and Whistleblower

Protection

The Group strictly abides by the Rules for
Handling Complaints by Discipline Inspection
and Supervision Organs and the Provisions of the
Supreme People’s Procuratorate on the Protection
of Citizens’ Whistleblowing Rights. In line with
legal and regulatory updates, we have developed
and regularly updated the Whistleblowing Policy
of Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited to
expand reporting channels, strengthen protections
for whistleblowers, and enhance the overall
whistleblower protection framework.

To ensure transparency and accessibility, the
Group has established multiple whistleblowing
channels, including telephone hotlines, email
addresses, and mailing addresses. All reports are
handled by dedicated personnel, ensuring that
concerns raised through letters, visits, or direct
reports are processed efficiently. We follow a three-
step process, broadening the entry, conducting
strict examinations, and extending the trial for
whistleblowing, to ensure all reports are handled
appropriately in accordance with laws, regulations,
and disciplinary policies. Meanwhile, to protect
whistleblower confidentiality, we enforce strict
non-disclosure policies, prohibiting the release
of any personal information or report details.
Retaliation against whistleblowers is strictly
forbidden, and we take firm measures to safeguard
their legal rights and protect them from any form of
reprisal.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group prioritizes product quality by refining our quality
management systems. Our goal is to build a culture that
values quality, providing customers with high standards
in both products and services. We work closely with our
partners across the supply chain to create a responsible and
sustainable network, driving growth and improvements
throughout the industry.

4.1 Quality Assurance

Product responsibility is a core part of our competitiveness.
The Group provides top-quality products and manage the
entire product lifecycle to ensure a stable coal supply.
We actively explore and apply cutting-edge technologies
to foster innovation and improvements in the coal
industry. By boosting production efficiency and quality
while optimizing capacity, we create a strong foundation
for energy security and support sustainable development
in the sector.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued)
4.1.1 Ensuring Product Supply

Coal is essential to China’s energy security and plays
a vital role in the country’s development. The Group
develops scientific production plans based on real-
world conditions to ensure a balanced supply and
demand of coal. In 2024, we focused on improving
quality, boosting efficiency, and optimizing coal
blending. We strengthened our coal quality
management system, implemented scientifically
structured coal washing processes, and ensured the
smooth operation of our production framework.

4. EmEE(R)

4.1 EERE(E)
4.1.1 EmRA
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Case: The Group’s coal dispatch assurance

In 2024, the Group consistently fulfilled customer
supply plans, ensuring quality and quantity each
month. During the Spring Festival period, priority
was given to coal dispatch to fully meet customer
demand. We cooperated with railway departments
to secure priority for railway shipments, further
stabilizing coal supply channels. Additionally,
we enhanced communication mechanisms with
customers, ensuring that both supply and demand
sides remained updated on the latest production,
demand, and inventory information. This improved
the coordination of supply plans and increased
supply efficiency.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 4,

it
B0
i

£ (#&)
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued) 1 EERE(E)

4.1.2 Product Quality 41 2EREE

The Group abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Product Quality and have
formulated internal management regulations such
as the Regulations on the Quality Management of
Coal Products and the Regulations on Production
Management of Coal Preparation. By refining our
quality management system, we ensure every step,
from raw material procurement to production and
sales—meets rigorous quality standards. We also
set clear performance targets for staff and regularly
evaluate them to maintain product quality. In the

AEBMEBEB(PEARKLER
EmBEZE) tlE T(RERER
LEEERANEEEEETER
EVENTERED - TEREKE
EEEER  BREMEEE .
EEMIMERBEESRGHHF
ARRESZEE - 1IN BB
HEEEART THENERE

IR WEHETTEZ - #E—
TREERES - ®REHA -

AEETBEEEFKIEESTISO

VO EEEBEAERE

reporting period, Xingwu Coal Mine, a subsidiary of
the Group, obtained ISO 9001 Quality Management
System certification.

B6e

REEEARAEES

wanmEn: wowwAzn] sueam enescs]
saxaam: msenann] Sonmne: xusoneE

a

i B

LA IR BRFEAT

SRR A GB/T19001-2016/1503001:2015 47, ERF
FURFR. MRS

e REIATERNEAT
B

iy

S—HARARE: 911400001125203180
EAWAL URESRAOMEE FRELR
SRisE: URESREOREE FRELR

CERTIFICATE

Picture: The Quality Management System (ISO 9001) Certification of Xingwu Coal Mine
CEEREEEERE RSO 9001)RERES
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued)
4.1.2 Product Quality (continued)

The Group has established a whole-process quality
control system, with inspections at every stage of
production, including in-process inspections at coal
preparation plants, pre-shipment inspections before
sales, inspections at the station, and outsourced
inspections. Additionally, we have established a
real-time tracking and feedback system to address
quality concerns quickly. To reinforce quality
responsibility, we conduct monthly performance
reviews for mine and plant leaders, linking product
quality directly to their leadership performance.
This helps ensure the safety and consistency of
our products. In 2024, none of our product was
recalled.

4.1 EERE(E)

412 EmEE (&)

AEEBCHEEERENEGEESE
B BEREIEREEFARRN
BB - MR ERA - Wa
2R A B R IMNIE F & E IR AR
EERETHE - I BART
TREFIRME RS - A ERE
EEMEEEEME - BT HE—
FRICEERME  RAMEHBER
MEBERT AREREZ &
EmEEEBEE NN -
THREMGENLZZ2HIIBE -
“EMF - REAKRBEERA
BIER °

Production e During the production process, we inspect every 30 minutes to ensure quality control at

every stage.

EmEE

o EAEBRERT - BIMASY/EET KR - REREE

-

IR

R EERE -

Pre-shipment

quality control.

Em ik o ERLEE - RPETEEREEO T - BRIE -

e During the pre-shipment process, we conduct random sampling inspections to ensure strict

At the station *  We conduct random inspections on every batch of products at stations to ensure stable

LB quality. o

o TEVARIREN - HMEEB—HANEMBETHEWN  BREMEENRTME -

Picture: Whole-process Coal Quality Management of the Group
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4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 4. EmMEE(E)
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued) 1EERE(E)
4.1.2 Product Quality (continued) 412EmEES(E)

The Group prioritizes quality management by AEBSEEREEEETE

regularly holding specialized training programs to BBTHRRIEEIEE 3

strengthen employees’ quality awareness and their {KE\IEE % ORAE=EER

quality control capabilities. These initiatives support B EERE AT IS

the Group to maintain a competitive edge in the ﬁﬂ}ﬂ{%%%ﬁ\?ﬁﬁﬂu °

market.
Case: Specialized training on coal preparation A BREF TR S EEEIRE
technology and coal quality management
In November 2024, we invited coal preparation —Z—PME+—F  HFEE 7T EILEERE
specialists from Shanxi Coking Coal Xishan Coal HEATHEBMEESENBBRASHETT A
Electricity to conduct a two-day specialized HIf KA A BRI EE S SN HRIFET
training program on coal preparation technology J&E#) - BB - RPMEEEEABM

and coal quality management for production
management and inspection personnel from various
plants. Through this training, our production
management and inspection personnel gained a
more comprehensive and in-depth understanding
of coal preparation technology and coal quality
management, laying a solid foundation for
enhancing the Group’s overall coal preparation
technology and quality management capabilities.

A%ﬁ}\;ﬂ RRMMREEERATER2@E
)\E’]nuuﬁk FJE}I’Z’SE .%EEE’J k%‘?ifh7k
¥ﬂk%’%£ EERNEETREEM -

Picture: Specialized training program on coal preparation technology and coal quality management
B BRI T LR IR IR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued)
4.1.2 Product Quality (continued)

Table: Honors and Awards Received by the
Group

>
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& @)

TR il
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EmEE(E)
1EEREE)
412EMEE (&)

ROAKEESRERBR

Award Recipient

EREE

Award Title
RIFEE

Shanxi Liulin Jinjiazhuang Coal Co., Ltd.
LTI E REREBR AR

2024 Model Collective of Labor in Shanxi
Province

-z _Eﬁﬁﬁuﬁéﬁ*@ﬂfﬁ%ﬁ e

Shanxi Fushan Resources Group Co., Ltd

AR EREBERAE

Pilot Unit for Industrial Reform in Shanxi
Province

7R E B B

First Batch of Industrial Reform Demonstration
Units in Lvliang City

ERAMEIER TSN

Comprehensive Mining Team of Shanxi Liulin
Jinjiazhuang Coal Co., Ltd. and Shanxi Liulin
Zhaiyadi Coal Co., Ltd.

IFAMIMRE KK EBR A F RILFEYIMREER
BEB R D BB

2024 Advanced Collective Model of Shougang
:g_ﬂﬁﬁféfﬂﬁ'ﬁ piie ]
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE g2k
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) =

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 4. EmEFE(E)
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued) A EERE(E)
4.1.3 Capacity Improvement 4.1.3 M BEIEH
The Group upholds the concept of innovation REBRERBRATNES  BE
and consider improving capacity as a key focus in EIRAALCEEZERMNEEMR
our development. Through targeted technology %o BMBBREE BEMAR
upgrades and modernizing equipment, we have HERENE  2HURAERE
significantly boosted coal production efficiency. BEMR - KB EAMLEIEE
Adhering to the refined management philosophy, S BEBELABERE %
we shifted our management focus to the source WIREE  HE RESE2RE
by implementing rigorous coal quality supervision BEHMEREEEEEEHER - [
j:

and management throughout the entire process— —r B PSR AL IR H ROEERRIR S
from production and washing to loading and HERE S MREZNE @ REFE

transportation. At the same time, we enhanced Fﬁuuk%'fé;%fﬁﬂ-
on-site coal quality control at mining sites and

coal preparation plants, intensified performance

evaluations, achieving steady improvements in the

quality of commercial coal.

D)%Ti
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 4., EmEE(E)
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued) 1EERE(E)
4.1.3 Capacity Improvement (continued) 4.1.3 A EELEFH ()
Case: Technological and equipment innovations =f| : BEEHEBRHMELEEREEHITE
at Xingwu Coal Preparation Plant
In 2024, by introducing the X-ray online intelligent =2 — pu4r - SR B3| AX NG LR
ash monitor, Xingwu Coal Preparation Plant reduced 9% » #§ A TIEE(L B SER WA FE
manual coal quality testing from every 30 minutes to  /J\iF— KR E =G/ NEF— )R ©
once an hour.
By introducing advanced coal washing equipment 3| 5 % 69 0 B SR B AR T %’.:.\Ezmiﬁéﬁi
and technology, alongside various upgrades, REFH @ BEIRSHEILEHUE
we enhanced the efficiency of coal washing and
preparation.
By replacing hydrocyclones and adding new @@F e nes - #iNMHEERD B - B
equipment such as teeter bed separators, #  BREBEAKEE NERERE SHE
centrifuges, chain-type weighing coal feeders, and {2 Oﬂmﬁ/ NEFREFFZE300ME, /B 0 BRIET

belt conveyors increased our coal handling capacity
from 250 metric tons per hour to 300 metric tons
per hour. This upgrade lowered transportation costs
and boosted production efficiency.

These technological advancements at Xingwu Coal
Preparation Plant have greatly improved production
efficiency while also promoting resource and energy
conservation, driving industry transformation and
progress.

i

:t
o] 288

RS T EERE -

BEFR— R Al T - BEXRBAE
BARTT T EEME - RS ERERIRE
SEBERFHRRERA I F -

#

Picture: Technological innovations at Xingwu Coal Preparation Plant
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 4,
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued) 4.1 BEERE (&)

4.1.3 Capacity Improvement (continued) 4.1.3 M EELEFH (48 )

Case: Technological and equipment innovations
at Zhaiyadi Coal Preparation Plant

In 2024, the Group upgraded the automation of the
raw coal feeding system at Zhaiyadi Coal Preparation
Plant. By utilizing an idle raw coal silo at the mine,
the plant achieved remote centralized control and
precise coal feeding with a chain-type weighing coal
feeder. From May to October 2024, approximately
750,000 metric tons of raw coal were transported
through this system, making up about 90% of the
total processed coal. This upgrade resulted in a
diesel savings of around 40 tons.

This upgrade not only stabilized the raw coal feeding
process but also improved the consistency of system
parameters and product indicators, boosting the
product qualification rate and clean coal recovery
rate. Additionally, it reduced the labor intensity
for loader operators and minimized dust exposure,
improving employee safety and enhancing overall
economic efficiency.

R REBEAEBEMELEERBEENTH

—ToNF - AEBEHEERAEBRARE E
BESGETTEDERE  FRARBENR
HEE  BRTEBEFEHMBESHEES
BT ELE EF-S_NFRAZT
BER - BERARBBBRZESH ZNEE
EXNETSER  (HABAERKEEMN0% AL
o BEHETELHIEREL40ME -

EBETERE T REGRENFIBE  F
MBETRETERGHN2EREMRER @ 12

= TEMMNERRERBRENE - REETE
HHABNEHRE  BRETHEREHET
SRERNGEE MRS T A KEENS

Picture: Automation upgrade project at Zhaiyadi Coal Preparation Plant
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
4.1 Quality Assurance (continued)
4.1.4 Innovative Research and Development

The Group remain committed to independent
innovation and driving high-quality development
within the Company. In production, we focus on
increasing investment in technology, bringing in
advanced equipment, and conducting research to
improve efficiency and product quality. Culturally,
we promote an innovation-driven mindset across
the Group and encourage employees to actively
participate in technological advancements. To
tackle practical challenges, we introduced the
“Small Improvements and Innovations” initiative,
which motivates employees and fosters a creative,
innovation-oriented culture.

4. EmEE(R)

fET %1% BE ( /lE
4.1.4 B F o %

AEERFEAIBMER FRIFE
BoOBEHILENS LS
- EAEERE  HATEMA
BT RIET B R A - FERR 5|
BRI AR R IE
DME%EE%(T’HEDE\E o fE
MbEERATE RIEEEEE®
ERNRNEBEEIFHIESD - &Fﬁb%
THETRAMEIR - REREER
BAENEREE  RMARET /)
BUNE DE® - LU BE THEIF
BRI - EERFNEIFAE -

Case: “Small Improvements and Innovations”
initiative

In 2024, Jinjiazhuang Coal Preparation Plant
completed the renovation of media pools,
implementing a self-flowing medium addition
system. Following the upgrade, the project not only
effectively reduced energy consumption but also
improved the efficiency and precision of medium
dosing, achieving the goal of enhancing quality and
operational effectiveness. Furthermore, optimized
operational procedures reduced manual intervention
and operational risks, significantly enhancing
production safety and process stability.

Picture: “Small Improvements and Innovations
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

4.1 Quality Assurance (continued)

—E_MEFR

B
B

s

4.1.4 Innovative Research and Development
(continued)

The Group complies with the Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Trademark Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other laws
and regulations. We also place great emphasis
on respecting the intellectual property of others
while strengthening the protection of our own. We
have established an all-round intellectual property
management system and continued to enhance
our intellectual property protection capabilities to
mitigate related risks. In 2024, the Group submitted
applications for 11 patents for utility model
and published 3 professional papers on safety
management.

4.2 Information Security

The Group strictly abides by the Personal Information
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Data Security Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and the Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of
China. To further strengthen privacy protection, we
have implemented internal frameworks such as the
Implementation Rules on Sales Confidentiality.

We have set up strict controls on data access to ensure
that sensitive information, like customer details, to
prevent unauthorized access. At the same time, the
Group explicitly prohibits the leakage or lending of any
sales-related materials and information. Any violation of
the Regulations will be seriously dealt with in accordance
with the law. In 2024, the Group had no customer
privacy leak.

W
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

BiE 2K
ERHE @)

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 4. EmEE(E)
4.3 Customer Service 4.3 BEF R
The Group remains committed to a customer-centric REEBRKBEFEUARE AR L - BH

approach, striving to deliver a high-quality service
experience. We abide by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumers’
Rights and Interests, and have developed the
Management Measures of Customer Information to
regulate our services and ensure customers’ rights are
upheld. We continue to enhance our customer service
system and improve our service processes to better
protect customer interests.

The Group has established a complete customer
complaint handling mechanism to ensure quick
responses to any issues. To enhance employees’
capabilities in handling customer complaints, the
Group conducts regular professional competency
training programs to strengthen staff’s operational
skills. Customer feedback is reviewed and addressed
promptly, and we focus on improving our team’s
ability to handle complaints, ensuring a positive overall
customer experience. Our commercial coal is not
subject to product recall procedures, and any customer
disputes regarding the products are resolved through
consultation as stipulated in the sales contracts. During
the reporting period, we did not have any customer
complaint incidents.

® Record the major
contents of
customers’
complaints in detail.

the complaint is
effective, if the
complaint is
substantiated,

department is
responsible for

® Guarantee the handling it.

Investigate whether

determine which

RREFHEREERFER - NEME
BB T (REARAMBEEE E 2
BmREER)  LHECEPESEEM
E) > RBRBITAR - RAITE TR
EPRBEERBR  BLELEPRBR
B 2NREEPES -

AEECEREENTPIRFEER
B DAREE BB P A R B R A R
- RRERABIEHEFRFN
BRIBEESN  AKRBEHRREFEL
Bl - IR B TR N - YR
AMEFPRE - RATE REALE -
EY HERATEWETIREEHRY
RIGeE D BATFPEER - BN
mENEREREKEF  EFFH
EmNEZ I ZREESROTH
BER - MEMA - RARFLEEM
MEPIRFEM

After investigation,
identify the cause
of the complaint
and propose
solutions.

% HEERAFER
R HIE BRI

Complaint
Received

R ZE

complaint to be
handled and the whole
flow can be tracked.

e 5 =358

Complaint
Identification
REFHAE

Complaint
Handling
KRR

If the complaint is not
substantiated, respond
to the customer in a
timely and appropriate
manner.

Picture: Customer Complaint Handling Procedure

P BEPRRRER

Review the handling
process, draw lessons
from it and make
recommendations for
rectification.
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4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

4.4 Supply Chain Management
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4. EmEE(R)

4.4 HEEEE

The Group is committed to working with our suppliers
to build a high-quality and responsible supply chain
system. We continue to optimize our supply chain
management system and strengthen our supply chain
ESG management and risk response to ensure the shared
interests of the Group and our suppliers.

In accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Bid Invitation and Bidding, the Regulations on
the Implementation of Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Bid Invitation and Bidding, and other laws and
regulations, the Group formulates internal rules and
regulations such as the Regulations on Procurement and
the Measures for the Management of Suppliers as the
basis for managing the entire supplier cooperation cycle.
As of the end of 2024, the Group has had a total of 249
suppliers.

Table: Number of suppliers of the Group

AEEROINEHERARHFEFITE
BEEABEEMNHERER - HAR
BECHEREIERE  TEIRAMH#
JEFEHESGRMEIREE N - Y EKE
SEEfEREHOEXRME -

AEBEEBET(PEARRNBRER
RIBEXPEARAMERERITE
BieEd) EEREHR - RAEHE
(FBEEWEXKHEREERE)E
BR FRHEEZAFANNER
g -HE_T_MOFR - NEEBHK
BAFHER249% -

®IAEEHEEHRE

Indicator 2024 2023 2022
g —E-mE —To=E —E-CF
Total Suppliers 249 201 233
HEREEH
Number of suppliers by region ~ Mainland China 249 201 233
wRinEmE D K R FEIA R
Number of suppliers certificated  Certified by 1SO 9001 124 108 13
HERAZHE HE15150 900135
Certified by ISO 14001 81 74 50
E1BI1S0 140012 &
Certified by ISO 18001 75 68 33

15150 180013 &
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RIE -t
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BB RE

4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 4. EmEFE(E)
4.4 Supply Chain Management (continued) 4.4 HEHEEE (&)
4.4.1 Entry Mechanism, Audit and Assessment 4.4.1 B A 5| BAE LTS

The Group has established the Regulations
on Procurement to strictly govern the supplier
admission process. When selecting new suppliers,
we take a careful approach. The Material Supply
Department is responsible for auditing supplier
information from various angles, such as registered
capital, business scope, qualifications, certifications,
and technical capabilities. This ensures that they
meet the necessary safety standards for coal mine
operations, after which a supplier entry assessment
form is issued.

Registered Capital

Business Scope

Qualifications and Certificates

Technical Level

B MK

Picture: Evaluation Criteria for Supplier Admission

CHEREARD ZEZAR

To maintain the security and stability of our supply chain, we
regularly assess our suppliers to ensure they continue to meet the
required standards. These annual assessments cover qualifications,
certifications, product quality, delivery capabilities, pricing,
technical competency, support services, corporate reputation,
and the status of our ongoing collaboration. Based on the results,
suppliers are classified into three categories: excellent, qualified,
and unqualified. We issue a supplier qualification assessment
report and remove any suppliers that do not meet the standards.
In 2024, we evaluated all suppliers, identifying 167 as excellent
suppliers, 82 as qualified suppliers, and eliminating 10 non-
compliant suppliers.
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BHRE @
4. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 4. EmEX(E)

Environment Protection
BRIERE HIEE

e We require production suppliers to obtain .
occupational health and safety certification.

o HFIERAEER HIERE BADISRERFE

(] 275
LRRGE °

4.4 Supply Chain Management (continued)

4.4.2 Supplier ESG Management

The Group integrates sustainable development
into our supply chain management by considering
suppliers’ ESG governance capabilities in our overall
evaluation criteria. We set clear requirements for
suppliers regarding environmental protection, labor
management, and product quality to minimize
potential ESG risks and ensure a transparent and

stable supply chain.

We require production suppliers to have
environmental  management  system
certifications. For agent and trading
suppliers, we prioritize those with this
certification.
HPIABE R ER e MBS IR
FEBRBRRE  WAEEREREBEEN
BHRHERR  BAZRMLE LR
FIRE TR ARIENMER -

We strictly implement a green
procurement policy and include suppliers
whose products meet national green
standards as well as the green
requirements of our core businesses, and
who can effectively reduce the use of
toxic materials and their post-use
pollution problems in the company's list
of preferred suppliers.
BMBRREEECRBEE  BERF
CERGEEEARRLEESZEE
k- 30 B AESE BOR DB S RME AR &
HER®AAMBENHERS - AARA
BB HEREE -

We conduct on-site audits to assess
suppliers' efforts in energy conservation
and reducing consumption, and set
specific operational requirements based
on the results of these assessments.
BMSHHERRAREMER - RAAT
REIEEAERERE S EMED - WRItER
HABEK -

Picture: Supplier ESG Management Initiatives
B : HERESGE RS

4.4 HEEEE(H)

442 RERESGEE

AEEBAFEEREIRER
AREEERE  SHEBMESG
REENMAGEEZE - HMY
HEHERSRRE  STERE -
EREESTHNRRRELTH
EEFR  BREEEENESGHE
@ LASRTH R B B B ERARE o

Product Quality
EREE

We adhere to technical agreements and
standards during acceptance inspections,
ensuring that suppliers do not substitute
inferior products or provide low-quality
materials at reduced prices.

HPIE BARIR IR T 75 o S AR BRI AEAEA T
Bl - BRI BHER A T RARTTL
BEIRNEREE

We established a multi-level inspection
and acceptance process, involving the
Material Supply Department, specialized
departments, and the mine. Other
materials are inspected by both the
Material Supply Department and the mine.

BMERRELZEHRBHS - EXRRE
REZEME B EHERS - HEARPTEME
77 H R - B A h R i )& (e B e
7RG -

Suppliers are required to respond promptly

to prevent any delays that could affect coal
mine safety production.

BAIERERAHEIREER - #2ER
TN R B T 52 B R M) 22 2 A E ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

WORKPLACE SAFETY

The Group is guided by the brief of “Safety First, Prevention
as Priority, and Holistic Governance.” By improving the
safety management system, enhancing occupational health
safeguards, strengthening workplace safety requirements,
and advancing safety culture development, we are building
an comprehensive, multi-dimensional safety ecosystem that
provides solid assurance for the Group’s stable growth.

5.1 Safety Management System

The Group places high priority on workplace safety
management, having established a Workplace
Safety Committee (WSC) headed by the General
Manager and Deputy General Manager as the
leadership core, with department managers
from workplace safety technical units serving as
members. The Committee has an operational office
under its structure, with the Safety Supervision
Department Manager concurrently serving as Office
Director. This establishes a well-tiered workplace
safety responsibility management mechanism
featuring clearly-defined responsibilities, which
implements safety management affairs through
three dimensions: professional safety management,
contracted mine safety management, and
comprehensive safety supervision. In 2024,
the Group revised the Implementation Plan for
Establishing the workplace Safety Committee,
further enhancing its workplace safety management
standards.

5
]

%)

SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2024

B ek
SRR )

ZEREE

AEBRFE [ Z2F— BERET &6
AR IMER  BEREREEERR X
ERERERE  BLEX2EEZR M
TR ERR  BRE25M - L8
EMRE2ERER  REEREERRER

BEHRE -

501 Z2EEEB R

AEESERIZEEEERETE
BYLEHELZEY  HAKEMZ
BISTR BEERZ L BEEERT#
BEIPICEETIKE  TELZEE
EZEBESTHRPAE  HL2EEI
KERIRAZTET BETEBLY
B RBEENMNZE2EEEIETEK
Bl REELZE2ERE  BPBRLEE
B rHEHZEEE-AHEHRKES
TEEEEEER  —_TUF -
EEBR TR I T EEZE <
WNERAIR) E—TREREXEEEE
EKFE o

mE 1 B m



“TOMFEFR ERBELUEREEABRARF

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RIE -2k
=5 3
B /A

GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) & ()
5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. RE4EE(E)
5.1 Safety Management System (continued) 51 R EHEE(E)

Safety Supervision Department:
Integrated supervision and inspection
of safety management
ZREEH
FEEERBRRXEEIH

Leaders at all levels:
Safeguard
operation safety
BRAE
REXBZZ

Operation sections:
Safety management and
operation guidance
BEBRZE
REEHEXKIEE

Heads at all levels:

The first person responsible for the
safety management of the work site
BEREEA
REEEE-—HEA
EETHRBENZEER

Picture: The Group’s Safety Management Structure
CAREELTEIREE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.1 Safety Management System (continued)

The Group adheres to national laws including the
Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the State Council’s Special Regulations on
Preventing Coal Mine Production Safety Accidents.
We have formulated internal regulatory frameworks
such as the Shanxi Fushan Resources Group Limited
Work Safety Accountability Evaluation Procedures,
the Implementation Measures for Strengthening the
Construction of Safety Supervision Team and the
Implementation Plan for Strengthening Re-supervision of
Workplace Safety Supervision. These frameworks guide
our safety management practices, clarify responsibilities,
and improve safety management efficiency while
strengthening supervision and risk prevention. In 2024,
the Group’s Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine maintained level-1
national workplace safety standardised mine. Xingwu
Coal Mine retained level-2. Zhaiyadi Coal Mine has
passed the level-1 inspection. In addition, we achieved all
safety production targets.

Table: The Group’s Safety Production Goals in 2024

B
B

SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2024

HER

& @)

5. 2L E(E)

51 X2 EHBEZA(EF)

AEEEBET(FEARRANBEZ 2
HEEXBBREARENRELEER
EFROFRIRE)FBEFORRESR -
HETCUARUEREEBRAEE
REEEREENERIENRILLE
BhEROERMEEARIREE
FEEETHBEENERIR)S
AERERGE  REL2EEMRZE
PREEERE ZERAREEEN
B RIcR2EEHRRPEED -
ZENE  AEBSRARBRE
—REELEERE(LEERR  EE
RERIE _RL2EERELERER
A REERBEREBE-RRELER
Blefil o i AEBHEWAA
RELEERBEHEEMN -

R CE_NFAEEZELEERE

Indicator Achieved
oy REER
Eliminate workplace safety-related casualties Yes
HBLZ2HEETETEN BIEK
Eliminate major mechanical and electrical equipment-related accidents Yes
MEEREEREEETSN [mE=359
Eliminate water prevention and control-related accidents Yes
HBYaKEEER R
Eliminate accidents of gas outburst, overrun and spontaneous combustion of coal | Yes

beds BERK
MHBRHTRE - BRMEEEMEETEN

Eliminate unplanned wind and power outage accidents Yes
MHEEAEIRRE FEREEEN w359




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5.
5.1 Safety Management System (continued)

The Workplace Safety Committee (WSC) is the central
authority for safety management in the Group, driving

—TopssE ERELEREEERAR 77

RE ?iﬁ&
EARE @

2EEHE)

W

i

51 2 EHEEAR(E)

LEERZESERAEEREER
MiZOEd - TEHESER2EIE

safety initiatives across the group. By adopting advanced FHEIE  BBSIALENLDER
risk control practices, strengthening supervisory B RBEARCEEETERGE AR
mechanisms, and implementing corrective actions, the FEERNTE BRSEZ2RARE
WSC works to mitigate all safety risks. FBMERE

Table: Main Work of the Workplace Safety R CEBENER2EEZESEY
Committee in 2024 IHERSE

Monitoring the “Three
Violations” activities

BHRR =& &S

Critical Hazard Control
Initiative

BEAKERRERERED

Three-Year Root-Cause
Safety Transformation
Initiative

RELERARNBRBE=FITH

Utilized video surveillance and regulatory measures to reduce “Three
Violations” behaviors (illegal operations, unauthorized command, and
violation of labor discipline), such as not fastening helmet straps. This
approach marked a shift from reactive penalties after incidents to
proactive risk prevention and real-time intervention.
MBRAEENAORER FARL2ETEF (2R IGEEERE - BHE
% BREPLEB)EREAGBIES  BRTHIFREE A FRIPE
MEAGILE JOEE -

Focused on major hazards, including gas, water, fire, roof stability, dust,
and cage drop accident in mine haulage operations, conducted risk
assessments and implemented targeted control measures to prevent,
manage, and minimize these risks.

BRERH -k A TER - HE - BERRESAKENER - 2HEHRAR
BIAR P - WHIEARIERER - RSB REHE RO R
AT - —_HKEF °

Clarified objectives, defined key tasks and requirements, and tracked the
progress of each task and its responsible personnel. This ensured that
every task was clearly assigned and effectively implemented.
RETHERE  BEFEITEEBREX - %Tklﬁfﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\&ﬁﬁ%%
BOERETTIRMHEE - MERBEIEHEEIIA - XEE

s ,E\j:lH
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) ERBE®@®

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R2EE(H)

5.1 Safety Management System (continued) 51 22 EEERA(E)
In 2024, the Group recorded one Category Il work- ZEZF  AEBEBEENFIZETS
related injury accident. Following the incident, we B BWEARE BMAREMRSE
immediately investigated the cause, identified safety B OMERRE  EL2EE -
hazards, and refined operational procedures to prevent HEUEBIEERE HBUHEBSMH
similar incidents from happening again. HIREBE -
Table: Workplace Safety Key Performance in 2024 R ZCEBEOFFAEELTREERE
BN

Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022
EE By —EME —E-= =
Safety incidents Case 0 0 0
LZREW Gs
Employee work-related injuries Case 1 1 3
BT T{EEZR &
Working days lost due to work- Day 0 30 3
related injuries
BITHBEERHK =
Employee work-related fatalities Person 0 0 0
BETHETIRT AZ A
Rate of employee work-related % 0 0 0
fatalities

BTETIRT X %



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)
5.2 Occupational Health and Safety

The Group prioritizes employee health and safety,
continuously enhancing our occupational health checks

—TomEsE EERLEREESRAR 79

R -HER
BRHRE®@®
5. R4 E(E)

5.2 BEREEZE

AEBERETIRELSE  HEHE
BEREREMBERAERENE

and disease prevention systems to protect the well- REZTE RE2BEINRER

being of all employees. We also extend health and safety
oversight to contractors, working closely with business

B UISLE2REEEERI AR
B EFIATEN REMENT

partners to build a zero-accident, healthy, and accident- EIRIE -

free work environment.

5.2.1 Employee Health and Safety

S2D1ETHERELZS

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws
and regulations and has established internal
management systems such as the Regulations on
Coal Mine Safety and the Occupational Disease
Prevention and Control Management Measures. We
have also built a leading group for occupational
disease prevention and control. Our goal is to
prevent and control health risks at the source. We
conduct regular health checks for all employees and
provide personal protective equipment as needed,
ensuring a safe workplace while supporting both
the physical and mental well-being of our teams.

Table: Key Occupational Health and Safety
Initiatives in 2024

AEBBRBTHBERER
BETCRBLZE2RE)  (BX
mHREIEME) T REEE S
B RYBEREEHLAEZ )
M RERSE B TRRD AR IR X R
o HABHBTHETE2ER
o MFBRBTERSEHER
i REEFFBENZ A
BIWH LA -

RO CBECNFETIRERER
2EBIFETHE

Safety systems

Developed detailed implementation and annual plans for the prevention

ZEHIE and control of occupational hazards, clearly defining responsibilities at every

level;

HEFANBREERAER T REFRTE - ARSERABNTIER

B

Installed notice boards to display rules, operating procedures, and
emergency rescue measures for occupational hazards, ensuring timely

communication.

REAER HEBEREBRIENMAENE « BIEFRE  BEXREEFHE

SRERRETAENES -
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) ERBE®@®
5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R24EE(E)
5.2 Occupational Health and Safety (continued) 5.2 BEREHERZZE(E)
5.2.1 Employee Health and Safety (continued) S2IETHRERELZS ()
Table: Key Occupational Health and Safety R CE_NFEIRERER
Initiatives in 2024 (continued) 2EBTETH(E)

Hazard assessment

WA

Protective
equipment
frERA

Created scientific monitoring plans based on the types, frequency, and
intensity of occupational hazards to ensure accurate and traceable data.
BEIESANBEREEEARRER  REXRE @ HIER2NERGE
R BB SR SERE AT 52

Integrated real-time monitoring data with health surveillance records to
assess workplace risks, identify high-risk zones, and implement targeted
control measures.

RERRAERMEIMBERRERERE  HIESANBREEERRET
B AT G - Rl S bR R AR AL - I R AR RE A R B PR ) B

Allocated dedicated funds in the annual budget to purchase and upgrade
protective gear, including clothing, safety helmets, dust masks, waterproof
boots, and trackers to safeguard employee health;
BREFERETERIBALEANIRBED I TIEDEEE - BFEITER -
LZREE -DEAS  PIKIERAREBEAEMEEZVENEAD - UIR
B T2 HER

In 2024, we distributed 20 thousand pairs of dust-proof masks, 200
thousand pieces of dust filter cotton, 10 thousand pairs of earplugs, 2,900
sets of work clothes, 2,900 pairs of rain boots, and 3,200 safety helmets.
—TomE - ARMEOSZ2EMKE  HERR208%ER BEE1EH#

2l - T1EAR2,90064F « F#t2,0006:% « 22 183,20084T8 -
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

SEHE @

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. ZR24EE(E)
5.2 Occupational Health and Safety (continued) 5.2 BEREHERZE(E)
5.2.2 Employee Health and Safety (continued) S2IETHRERELZS ()
Table: Key Occupational Health and Safety R CE_NFEIRERER
Initiatives in 2024 (continued) 2EBFETH(R)

Health Check for
Employees

ET®ER

Safety education

REHE

Maintained detailed occupational health records for employees exposed to
hazards, documenting health checks, diagnoses, treatments, and training
history to track and assess health status;
REBUEBEBREREENZNE TR VAMNBEREEEER - S HB
FRERE  BER2E BEREEIFERES - WERFBHRMFTE
8 TR REEMR

Conducted regular occupational health checks for all employees and pre-
employment checks for those in occupational hazards roles;
BFEBTREIHRBREERR  UEBBELETAZNETETAR
AT R84

Arranged exit health checks for departing employees, provided written
reports, and scheduled follow-ups for abnormal results;
HEEASHERERERS  RRATEREERREERERSH - U
BERBRBEABLH THENGES

In 2024, we provided health checks for a total of 3,776 employees.
“TONE - AR3TI6HRETIRE T RERBRE

Actively participated in government-led occupational health and safety
courses and obtained corresponding certifications;
BE2ERAFRAAREBERNBERREL2RE - WIRGHEEEN
Conducted pre-employment health and safety training, ensuring thorough
content, appropriate duration, and compliance with required cycles;
RRATYH FHEANSBEETREMEEN - BREINET2E - Bl
M7 e  HIERFaREENR

Held regular safety lectures, distributed educational materials, and organized
emergency drills to raise awareness of safety risks and strengthen self-
protection skills;

THRRL2HEE  BEHREEEH  FARESER EeE8IHT2EARE
EHRBKF - R B HIRERL T

Displayed occupational hazard notification cards in high-risk areas, clearly
listing hazards, consequences, and preventive actions to ensure employees
can stay informed and take protective actions;
EFEBXEREENTESH FEXRUBZUERBEREREESAR
ARYILBERAEENES  AIRELENER  EMEESER  UEET
BERE T AR RN ERER ) & 45 bt

In 2024, we organized 6 occupational health training programs with 3,746
employees participating;

“ENF - A FRORNBERERE - BE3, 74688 T -
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)
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5.2 Occupational Health and Safety (continued)
5.2.2 Contractor Health and Safety

The Group prioritizes the safety of contractors and

HER

ERWmE @
5. RRELEE(E)
5.2 BEREEZZ(E)

S22 REUBBERELE

AEEEREAER ﬁﬁﬁﬁ“”

has formulated the Safety Management Regulations
on Outsourced Construction Teams, standardizing
contractor management processes. During the
onboarding process, we strictly review contractors’
safety qualifications and require construction
companies to sign workplace safety responsibility
agreements with project departments. This
approach clarifies safety responsibilities and ensures
that safety practices are fully implemented from
project planning through to execution, protecting
the health and safety of contractor personnel.

Table: The Group’s Occupational Health and
Safety Management Measures for Contractors

B FIECRINE THRRR 2

EHE) %ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%@ﬂﬁﬁffé€%§ﬂ£%$
o EEANBREBREZEAER
MZE2EEEE  YERBIE
UM ARBERMEELREER

TERTEEEHZ  BAEED
TEEBENETER  HENKE
BHREZEmNET—ERETE AL

%Ei%%ﬁl@ IREE A B P
S BRTE

‘U]]D

R OAEEHEAEBERERER
EHNEEER

Safety Training
and Awareness
Enhancement

ZEEIRZTEET

FIRBEFIA

Conduct pre-commencement training sessions on work safety, regulated
construction practices, and occupational health management.
CFRTEREE  XHBET - BEAETEREMHEY

Emphasize safety responsibilities during daily operations, ensuring

employees understand and adhere to safety practices.

EHEIET BIEINZE2IREEE

Hazard
Identification and
Risk Inspection

BHENZ2TEEEREE

‘ﬂﬂ$}

o

Strengthen the management of high-risk operations, such as working at
heights and lifting, and develop detailed emergency response plans.

HREIEXE  PRIEEXEFER

SIERBESRIREVETACER - UHERRNZ

RERNESHEE 2EERIFESR:
B&E Organize technical experts and safety managers to conduct hazard

inspections, analyze identified risks, propose corrective measures, and assign
clear responsibilities for follow-up actions.
HEEMABNEZE2EBABETEBENES XN ERNRBETRAAS
i HIEB S - WAARENEEA -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)
5.2 Occupational Health and Safety (continued)
5.2.2 Contractor Health and Safety (continued)
Table: The Group’s Occupational Health and

Safety Management Measures for Contractors
(continued)

BiE g2k
ERHE @)

5. T4 E(E)
5.2 BEREHZTZE(E)
522 RO BERELZE (E)

R OAEEHEAEBERERER
EHNEERER(E)

Case: Safety Training for Contracted
Construction Teams by Xingwu Coal Mine

In 2024, Xingwu Coal Mine formally integrated
contracted construction teams into its unified
management system. In strict compliance with
the Guidelines for Mine Safety Standard System
Development, the mine conducted targeted
safety training programs and comprehensively
implemented safety production responsibilities
across departments, mining entities, and contractor
personnel. This initiative reinforced the safety-first
development philosophy and enhanced overall mine
safety management standards.

A - BT ESH RSN E TR RE

TEOF - EEEREEZINE T ERNAA
BRA— SRR BRER (BLL2EE
2 ZERIER) Bk  HERINETKFEL
A 2EEEIM - EEEEUARSESMA
BEMZ2HEERT  BtL2ERES  EZA
BILLZEEENKTE -

Picture: Safety Training for Contracted Construction Teams by Xingwu Coal Mine

» RSt MR S G TR R IE

5.3 Workplace Safety Management

The Group strictly adheres to the Work Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China and has developed internal
safety documents, including the Notice on Strengthening
the Supervision of Workplace Safety. To strengthen
safety governance, we have implemented the “One
Ventilation and Three Preventions” 2system, enhanced
our emergency management framework, and promoted
digital transformation in safety risk management. These
initiatives have helped reduce workplace incidents while
ensuring stable and sustainable operations.

2 A coal mine safety production term, referring to mine ventilation, gas
prevention and control, coal dust prevention and control, and fire
prevention.

5.3 L2454 EER

REBEBKEBBPEARLMEZ 2
’_{§52>> BRI A ERE

BITEMNBAN)SELZE2EERIHIE -
BEHRELEZEEETRTIE  THRA
fEl—@B=[2]E1E  EIEE W&
BEE2RRBRERE HFTER - RE
ZEEWNE  BRZ2AENFER
TEEAT °

: RBLEAEEME  BESER - AR - B

JARREE ~ B
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE 2K
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @E)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R4 E(E)

5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued) 5.3 R4 EEE(H)

5.3.1 Management Measures of “One Ventilation 531 —E=F |EZ

and Three Preventions”

The “One Ventilation and Three Preventions”
system is the cornerstone for safe production in the
coal mine. To implement this system effectively,
the Group has established a leadership group
that oversees mine-specific task forces led by
mine directors. The Group also sets standardized
objectives and action plans, refines management
systems, inspects and evaluates progress, and
organizes training for advanced equipment
adoption. The leadership group conducts monthly
progress reviews and leads quarterly specialized
campaigns to ensure the comprehensive
implementation of “One Ventilation and Three

[—B=RRREHLZELEE
MED RRE[—B=/ T
B IR HEHE - RERLT [—B=
PrlTIER8HE AR B REREE
TUNBERBENREE/NAE - AL
EI—B=0IFEEBFREER
FER G ZEHEEESE  <H
THERERBRKRERZ - AEE
I B R R R - R
MESA-XNIEfAgNEGE
E—RONBEBRBEREE 271U
RE[—B= | TEeRAFE

-

Preventions” operations.

Manager
138

Gas Section

FLETRE

Ventilation Section
BRERR

1}
5 B gc O En [ c
= © A R =
c & S S = n ©
= 2> >C = @ '©
¢ = 7 S 2 =
& i cc 2 2= > =

it — @ S R B2 o o]

s B > E 9 S.EB © =
Ke) oS Q i o =
= I8 5 © = AR o 0
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©

Picture: “One Ventilation and Three Preventions” System

[—E=pEEER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE g2k
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R2EE(H)
5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued) 5.3 R4 EETHE(E)
5.3.1 Management Measures of “One Ventilation 531 —B=F /EE (&)

and Three Preventions” (continued)

Table: Responsibility of “One Ventilation and R [—B=IEBHBE

Three Preventions” Management
Mine Director Holds overall responsibility for the implementation of the “One
BEE Ventilation and Three Preventions” system.

[—B=mINE-—BEE HI—B=HIITE2EEE -

Ventilation Director Leads “One Ventilation and Three Preventions” educational initiatives,
BEER conducting regular and diverse training.
[—B=HENE—BEEE  AELEUHRRIVASEOREED -
Chief Engineer and Address technical challenges related to “One Ventilation and Three
Ventilation Director Preventions” and focus on building the capacity of the ventilation
|TERD - BREBER department.
BENEMEABA [ —B= MM E  EEBREEBMPIRMER
(=
Deputy Mine Director Oversee the execution, supervision, and inspection of “One Ventilation
for Production, Deputy and Three Preventions” measures.
Mine Director for DERE [ —B=F EERTHNEERENEEBR

Electromechanics, and
Safety Supervision
Station Chief
EERER - KEEIE
EMZEU K

Functional Departments  Implement “One Ventilation and Three Preventions” measures within
and Mining Crews their scopes.

B ARG ERPIANERIE B BEREREREANN[—B=fIABTITI(E-

In 2024, the Group released the Implementation ZENFE - REEERI—B=

Plan for “One Ventilation and Three Preventions” géﬁigimg: f?}i}fljﬁi& r?;
Management, reinforcing “zero tolerance for gas B B j“@ R R SE
J 9 J RIEIE - ERAR -SRI

overruns” governance. Guided by the “Reliable N T S L/(X%E)%ﬁiiﬁﬁ\

Ventilation, Effective Extraction, Valid Monitoring, {LBEER BigE » BiESEE
and Comprehensive Management” framework and TExR A ZHMEEE%I{/E BH 7
the Coal Mine Safety Standardization Ventilation EERE =ERF B
Guidelines, we focused on refining workflows, BIEARY ﬁ%ﬁ%fiii =
clarifying on-site responsibilities, and enhancing i%i i%%glﬁgﬁgﬁfaﬁgiﬁ

“One Ventilation and Three Preventions”
management capabilities to ensure safe production.
In 2024, we completed hazard inspections and
rectifications, achieving the goal of zero gas over-
limit incidents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND R %ié&
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) EamE &

ZEEEE)
5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued) 5.3 Z24EEE(HE)

%)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.3.1 Management Measures of “One Ventilation 53.1[—B=p |/EZ (&)
and Three Preventions” (continued)

Table: The Group’s Main Work of “One R ZTEBE_NEXREE[-BE=
Ventilation and Three Preventions” System in BFIEETHERE
2024

Mine Ventilation Improved ventilation system efficiency by enabling seamless switching
EHER between primary and backup fans, utilizing adjustable moving blades
and remote control systems for main ventilators, and establishing
power interlock systems with mining faces to ensure continuous, stable
ventilation.
RAGBEZRSUA - TRRKERFHS TEEIE - BEAIARER
2 WERORIEEEREREMYE - BERBREERTE
Optimized ventilation networks by upgrading power-gas interlock systems
in coal preparation plant bunkers and upper belt galleries, replacing
standard interlocks with air cannon interlock systems to reduce the risk of
gas overruns.
@{I:L}—L%Z% HEEBIER R R AR HEEEITRE Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁféﬂ
RERFHBEREEREMAHE - FELETHERRR

Gas Control Strengthened gas geological exploration through down-hole drilling to
Fp 8 B R accurately assess coal seam levels, geological structures, and gas-bearing
conditions, providing a solid foundation for gas control strategies.
ﬂu%ﬁﬁﬁsﬁiﬂz%ﬁéﬁé MAHTEREEEZERERNEFBER - REH
B R R EKIR o
Improved regional gas management by optimizing mining layouts to
coordinate extraction, drainage, and preparation operations. Pre-planned
gas control engineering ensured balance across four production metrics®.
BieEEEADAE - SBLHHREMS - BALKRE - WKE - EEHRE
[=E 1% - IRATREI LA R T8 » 8 (M8 T ] -
Reinforced gas extraction efforts by adhering to the principle of
“extracting all the gas that should be extracted and taking various
measures.” Ensured systematic extraction processes and standardized
construction protocols. Established a compliance system for extraction
performance, ensuring requirements such as “drilling in place, pipes to
the bottom, holes sealed tightly, and water drained” were met.
AC R ETHSRE IR - B4 (RS W E ] BEEALER  ®
RIER IR - ETREL  BYMBRERTESE - 1T [H#IL - F
K - FLEER - KBUB IIRE -
Strengthened management of gas control roadways to ensure effective
regional governance and proactive control measures.
BRERHAESEIR - MRRAAESER - RELGE - Ba16
FE A AT
Achieved remote control for auxiliary fans, optimizing gas monitoring and
fan activation processes to prevent gas overruns due to temporary power
outages.
BERBRERES - BT RARSERDRBENRET - HRBBERE
= BREREEEEHOLATBR -

3 Four production metrics refer to development coal reserves, prepared 3 WEREKEE  EHEEE  BEXRES - WRE
coal reserves, extractable coal reserves, and recoverable coal reserves. ZEE o
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. 2L E(H)
5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued) 5.3 R4 EEE(HE)
5.3.1 Management Measures of “One Ventilation 531 —B=F |EZ (&)
and Three Preventions” (continued)
Table: The Group’s Main Work of “One R ZE-OFEXEE[I-B=
Ventilation and Three Preventions” System in BIEBIERR

2024 (continued)

Fire Management Enhanced fire suppression by deploying nitrogen injection systems in goaf
B K areas, improving firefighting efficiency and operational flexibility.

RIS - RAZADBA RGN RER - REBAHEMEEME
Upgraded early warning systems by installing fiber-optic temperature
monitoring systems in Goaf, allowing for early detection of potential fire
risks.

TERERS  RERLTEXMARES BRAKXGERASER -

Dust Prevention Injected water into coal seams through boreholes to saturate the coal

B 56 5% EE mass, thereby reducing dust generation during mining operations.
BEEEK - RmiBEBALMEREIK - REREE  ROFRBRETOHE
EEo

Applied water spray during drilling processes to suppress dust dispersion
from boreholes.

BIVITIR - FEEBRBRE P mEFUEK - MHMERS -

Installed high-pressure spray systems on shearers, road-headers, conveyor
transfer points, and mine roadways to target dust emission sources.
WERRREE ¢ EERIEM - MREN  EREHE  BSBEPERESEESE
E BEER-
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued)

5.3.1 Management Measures of “One Ventilation

and Three Preventions” (continued)
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5. 24 E(H&)
53 224 EEE (&)

531 —B=F S5 (&)

Case: Comprehensive Utilization of Low-
Concentration Gas at Zhaiyadi Coal Mine

In 2024, Zhaiyadi Coal Mine successfully
implemented a low-concentration gas utilization
project in Liulin County of Lvliang City, Shanxi
Province. The system integrated a 25 Nm3/min
thermal energy island system, 16t/h medium-
pressure waste heat boiler, and 3,000kW
condensing steam turbine generator set. From
January to October, 2024, the project achieved
8.97 million cubic meters of gas extraction, with
7.67 million cubic meters effectively utilized to
generate 23 million kilowatt-hours of electricity.
This represents an 85.5% utilization rate for low-
concentration gas, demonstrating efficient resource
conversion, enhanced energy efficiency, and dual
benefits in environment protection and economic
returns.
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Picture: Comprehensive Utilization of Low-Concentration Gas at Zhaiyadi Coal Mine
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5. ZR24EE(E)

53 R2LEEE(H)

The Group continues to improve our emergency
management measures and the emergency
management system. We also formulated internal
emergency management documents including
the Emergency Rescue Plan for Accidents, the
Guidelines for the Preparation of Emergency Plans
for Production and Safety Accidents in Production
and Operation Units, the Emergency Plan for
Safety Accidents and the Implementation Rules
of Emergency Management. In 2024, we revised
our Production Safety Accident Emergency Plan to
better coordinate and manage emergency rescue
operations. The revision ensures rapid, efficient,
and organized responses to production safety
incidents. Additionally, the Group introduced the
2024 Rainy Season “Three Preventative Measures”
and Geological Hazard Control Implementation
Plan to guide flood control, drainage, and lightning
protection efforts, reducing the risks posed by
extreme weather and enhancing production safety.
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

(Emergency Command Center)

5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued)

5.3.2 Emergency Management (continued)

In 2024, the Group refined our emergency incident
reporting procedures. The dispatch office is now
required to immediately alert the production safety
emergency command center when an incident
occurs. The center then notifies the duty officer,
relevant managers, and safety executives. If the
situation escalates beyond internal response
capacity, duty personnel must promptly inform
the Company’s General Manager. The primary
safety accountability holder from the affected unit
is then responsible for submitting a report to the
Liulin County Emergency Management Bureau and
requesting external assistance within the regulatory
timeframe.

Safety Production

Dispatch Room N
R Emergency Command Center

AEE y RELER

(E2IEES) SIEER L
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Emergency
Management Bureau
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Group Leadership
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Picture: The Group's Step-by-Step Reporting of Emergency Incident
B AEBESFHHER EHRRRE

The Group places great importance on emergency
response operations, ensuring mine safety through
scientific and efficient measures. We classify
incidents based on their urgency levels and establish
corresponding contingency plans. When a Level |
Response is triggered, we immediately activate the
comprehensive emergency plan along with relevant
specialized sub-plans, implementing full-scale
emergency actions to ensure the rapid execution
of all measures. For Level Il Response scenarios, we
promptly initiate targeted contingency plans and
coordinate closely to advance resolution efforts.
The Emergency Command Office monitors rescue
progress in real time. If on-site units encounter
challenges in eliminating or controlling hazards
during operations, we escalate the emergency plan
without delay to ensure a thorough resolution of
the incident.
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ET TR XHETHENTE
o | RMERBELAR B
MEMBERA AR AREIRR
CENETESREE  BRE
hmﬁkﬁéo“ﬂﬂiﬁﬁ
CHMELRRBERRE
%mMéMﬁLﬁﬁlﬁ
R - EREERLAE2RERM
WRER  ERBEMERET
BE B - ERREHR SRS
EREER - RMABAARMEE
SR BMREWZEHER -

%WWHWE%



—ToNFEFR BEEBUERKEEARRARA 91

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE g2k
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R4 E(&)
5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued) 5.3 X244 EEE(H)
5.3.2 Emergency Management (continued) 5322 EHE ()
Table: Emergency Response Workflow R ESEEIERE

1.Cordon and
evacuation

1EMEE

2.Personnel Search and

Rescue

2AEEBR

3.Medical Treatment

3.BENA

4.0n-site Monitoring

4. R IFEE

bl

Conduct on-site security control and isolate hazardous zones, enforce
personnel/vehicle restrictions, manage traffic flow, and maintain clear
rescue access.

FERBRISALRE @ REGRES  HASNEEETES @ BER
B RERERBESGR -

Provide protective guidance and coordinate personnel evacuation/
relocation to ensure unimpeded rescue operations.

BRI EIEE - AR A BRACKER - BRKIRIBRETT -

The Group’s emergency rescue team arrives promptly at the scene and
conducts on-site operations and personnel rescue under the command of
the incident commander, strictly adhering to accident response protocols.
AAERRIERANKIZERSUHELEENEET  BEEREHERE
BRFRARRISEEMABRMINE-

Part-time medical responders from affiliated units rapidly utilize available

resources to administer emergency care to the injured while ensuring

their own safety.

EFMBEARBSHMEARREFL2MRRT @ ARFNBRAERE

REBABETERRER -

All company units maintain medical service agreements with Xingwu

Employee Hospital. In cases of severe injuries, hospital medical staff are

immediately notified to provide professional support.
NEIFFBEASEEER T B R TBRERERZ  fHRAERE

BRE - VANBMBR M EABRMIXBE S -

The mine rescue team from the accident-affected unit conducts

continuous monitoring of toxic/harmful gases and environmental

conditions at the scene, ensuring data accuracy to support evidence-

based emergency decision-making.

%aﬁm%mm EXABHERRSNBESASTRBIRERNETH
EER - REBUREME  REIRBIRMBEKE -
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)
5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued)
5.3.2 Emergency Management (continued)

Table: Emergency Response Workflow

(continued)

R -HER
ERHE @)
5. REEEE)
5.3 R4 EETE(E)
532 BEZEHE (/)

®:ESEBEIERE(E)

5.Technical Support
5. 547 X

6.Emergency
Engineering

6. Li2Rk

7.Environmental
Protection
7. RBRE

Led by the chief engineer and coordinated with relevant departments,
technical teams analyze accident causes based on real-time disaster
dynamics, predict escalation trends, formulate rescue strategies, and
provide immediate guidance for technical challenges.
HARETIZAMZSE - MBABEIFIRRER - KIEKIFBDEDITER
A -~ FRAIERBE  wRLHERRBIERS R - WERE T AR
BRERRESE -

Relevant departments guide and assist the accident unit in engineering
response. If emergency actions pose direct life-threatening risks or may
trigger secondary or derivative accidents, the command center organizes
expert assessments to determine suspension or termination of operations.
HERENFIEEREYRAEHEMFRERIE - F1ERRBERE
PHRARREERBABLER R ENR G BERE  TTEFRNER
EESBEBER RS  RESDEEHKRILEBRITE -

The Infrastructure & Environmental Protection Department oversees
environmental monitoring at the accident site and surrounding areas.
Upon detecting pollution, immediate coordination with specialized units
initiates remediation and restoration.
ERRRFAERMEMNEMREABREENTE  —BERRF TR
BR - A EMEESEETTRIEMIRIE -

The Group actively conducts diversified emergency
management training programs, with a “theory +
practice” method that that combines educational
sessions with scenario-based drills. These initiatives
aim to enhance employees' safety awareness,
strengthen their emergency response skills, and
ensure that every staff member understands and
internalizes their specific emergency responsibilities,
thereby minimizing the impact of incidents. In 2024,
we organized over 60 emergency drills and training
sessions, reaching a total of 2,894 employees.
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5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued)

5.3.2 Emergency Management (continued)
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5. REEE(H)
53 224 EEE(H)

S532EZEE (4E)

Case: Emergency Drill on Mine Power Outage,
Ventilation Failure, and Gas Exceedance

In June 2024, the Group conducted an emergency
drill simulating a scenario in which the monitoring
center triggered alarms for a power outage,
ventilation shutdown, and gas concentration
exceedance. During the exercise, the Work Safety
Emergency Command Center activated emergency
protocols, organized personnel evacuation, and
initiated hazard mitigation operations. This drill
validated the scientific rigor of the contingency plans
and enhanced the workforce’s emergency response
capabilities.

=0 WA FEERAKFHTERESER
—FoMERA ARERRBHEEFEAL
REBRESER  BREZFDOLBELEFEER
B FLETEERRIRE - BART - REEERSIE
BERORBESR  ABASHEEELETRR
RRRE e T RSAROBEMN - =7
TIERABRZREERN °

Picture: Emergency Drill on Mine Power Outage, Ventilation Failure, and Gas Exceedance

B : R E BT N PR R &
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5.3.3 Safety Risk Prevention

Driven by the goal of “protecting corporate
interests, and reducing production risks”, the
Group actively prevents and controls safety
risks. By intensifying hazard inspections across
all risk categories and strengthening risk control
mechanisms, these measures have significantly
reduced safety incidents.

5332 EBE
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued)

& @)

5. 2L E(E)

5.3 24 EEE(E)

5.3.3 Safety Risk Prevention (continued) 533 &2 /EMEH & (E)

Risk Control

Throughout the year, the Group systematically
conducted four-tiered risk identification initiatives
namely annual risk identification, monthly risk
identification, specialized risk identification, and
change-driven risk identification. For each identified
hazard, targeted control measures were developed
to ensure overall risk governance and effective
mitigation across all operational facets.

Table: The Group’s Risk Identification

BB

AEE2FRAGUHBRART FE
ERE - AERREE A
2 B e v % ([ B % 2Bk O AR T
HE)E R 2B TAE - STEBEE D
ME—IHER - GHIET AR
B ERAERRSEEE
ZEERMAGRIES

®IAKERBRBBEIEAR

Framework

Annual Risk Annually organize Deputy General Managers and department heads to

Identification assess safety risk. All mining facilities must complete risk control training

FERBRE for underground personnel within one month and retain training records.
BFABEDERRKEREAEXBHFIRERRFERZRRYHE -
BEEMBEVERABAFABETREZRAREZEI - LEFHEIIR

Monthly Risk Hold monthly operational reviews to evaluate implementation

Identification effectiveness of critical risk control measures, promptly adjusting

B ERRHHE strategies to address identified gaps.

BHEB—XTEIE  BESMEALZRAREEERAEER LS

MR ST ERBRERHREE - MR
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R2EE(H)
5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued) 5.3 X244 EEE(H)
5.3.3 Safety Risk Prevention (continued) 533 &2 /EMEH & (E)

Table: The Group’s Risk Identification R EXEERBRBEIERNE(E)

Framework (continued)
Specialized Risk Conduct targeted assessments before designing new mining levels,
Identification panels, or working faces.
SIEE R XK - FER(B) R - TEMREA > AR —RBELTRBRIH -

Conduct a special risk identification under any of the following
circumstances: occurrence of fatal accidents, near-miss incidents,
detection of major accident hazards, emergence of severe or destructive
accidents in coal mines nationwide, or occurrence of general accidents
within the province where the mine is located.

NABREBEANRCTEY - PREW  HREXFHEBARZEKE
BEBRAETWAMAEENEE —MRBEQRE - ETREEYH -

Change-Driven Risk Execute systematic reviews when major changes occur in production
Identification systems, processes, critical equipment, or hazard profiles.
SR PR BEERS LEIE FERXRERE SAXETRRZLHHEERE L

B AR—XBIEHH -

Require pre-task assessments for high-risk operations including: fire zone
re-entry, gas drainage operations, ventilation reversal drills, working
face advancement through goafs, major equipment replacements, new
technology deployments, and resumption of operations after over 1
month suspension.

EREF AR R - REVES - THEERBZEES(IRER) - BEHRX
BIREETER > ARERER - @& TIEEVEAN EEITEER -
FTETRHIEHH -
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued)

5.3.3 Safety Risk Prevention (continued)

Safety Inspection

The Group issued the Work Plan for Autumn-Winter
Production Safety Inspection and Rectification of
Shanxi Fushan Resource Group Limited, which
clearly defines the responsibilities of working
groups and key inspection points. Based on this
document we established the Key Inspection
Checklist for Autumn-Winter Production Safety
Rectification, which standardized and itemized
inspection and rectification tasks. We adhered
to the principle of “no phased divisions, no
segmented procedures, immediate inspection and
correction, and dynamic clearance.” This approach
ensured swift and continuous risk mitigation. Daily
inspections were carried out by workshop teams,
shift-based checks were conducted by work groups,
and random audits were performed by company
and mine professional departments to ensure
effective implementation. In 2024, we advanced
our safety inspection efforts by conducting 71
specialized inspections. All identified risks were
promptly rectified, achieving a closed-loop
management process.
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)
5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued)
5.3.3 Safety Risk Prevention (continued)
Safety Inspection (continued)

Table: 2024 The Group'’s Safety Inspection

HEgR
& @

IR S5
of ol

U

ZREE(E)
5.3 R4 EEE (&)
533 &2 m M (E)
ZERE(E)

R CECOFFAKEZERE

THEER

Types of Safety Inspection Number
ZE2REER KB
Seasonal Special Inspection 18
FEHURERE
Monthly Comprehensive Safety Inspection 24
RAEZZRBE
Electromechanical Transportation Special Inspection 7
BEEHZERE
Roof Special Inspection 4
BRFIERE

“One Ventilation and Three Preventions” Special Inspection 3
—B=EERE
Geological Survey and Water Hazard Prevention Special Inspection 3
A e K EIBRE
Fire Safety Special Inspection 12

B R E2BIHERE
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued)

5.3.4 Digital Transformation

The Group is committed to achieving “intelligent,
safe, and efficient” operations by deeply integrating
digital and intelligent technologies to create
“intelligent mines and smart mining areas.” To
this end, we formulated the Guidance Manual
for Intelligent Coal Mine Construction in Shanxi
Province. A dedicated intelligent technology task
force was established, holding monthly meetings to
review progress, address challenges and problems
happened during operations, and ensure efficient
collaboration. These sessions focus on overcoming
obstacles and advancing the stable and efficient
construction of intelligent mines through scientific
decision-making and efficient collaboration.

The Group utilized the Fushan Resources newspaper
as a platform to promote and explain policies
related to coal mine intelligence development,
share timely updates on construction progress, and
highlight best practices from industry peers. At the
same time, an efficient information communication
mechanism has been established to facilitate
effective coordination between coal mines and
specialized departments, jointly driving information
technology advancement to new heights. In 2024,
the Group’s three mines were recognized as
entry-level and intermediate intelligent mines in
the provincial coal mine intelligent construction
assessment.
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R2AEE(&A)
5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued) 5.3 X244 EEE(H)
5.3.4 Digital Transformation (continued) 5348 FLBH(E)
Table: The Group’s Key Work on Intelligent R ZCE_NFEXREEBERELLE

Construction in 2024

REHIHE

Intelligent Coal Mining
BRELERE

Thin Coal Seam
Intelligent Mining
IR BB R ERIR

Electronic Safety
Perimeter Installation

REETER

Implemented an intelligent coal mining system featuring “tri-machine
coordinated control,” memory cutting, automatic face following, and
visual video monitoring across the central sections of selected mining
faces at Xingwu, Jinjiazhuang, and Zhaiyadi Coal Mines. This approach
significantly improved working conditions, reduced safety risks, and
ensured safer coal extraction processes.

FEERERE SRERE REERBETIOXEPHERT [=#HRZE
%l - ZRIREE - BEBRE - PIRREEE INE R RERN - BER
ETEXRE  BETZ2AR RS THRENRELZEKF -

For thin coal seam extraction, we tailored solutions based on specific
engineering and geological conditions. We introduced 0.8 meter large-
cutting-depth intelligent equipment. By streamlining production and
adopting a normalized intelligent production mode of “coal cutter
memory cutting + fully automated shield support following”, we achieved
a monthly advance rate of 226.6 meters, setting a new Group record for
mining efficiency.

HESERERR A5 BEBIRE B KRG - IRAIARIERR 70.8KK
BORE R LR RANMBREZINEELL  ERT [REKIER
B+ R DRME NS EREES - AHEEE226.65K @ 8l
T EE O R E TR o

Installed electronic safety perimeters at critical operational points,
including boring machines, transshipment conveyors, belt conveyor
heads, and coal chutes. These systems activate audible-visual alarms
and trigger equipment shutdowns if personnel enter restricted hazard
zones, reducing the risk of mis-operation injuries and enhancing overall
production safety.

FEFRER  EE  KHEHRE  BERSEEESMLTRETER  BHR
ABEACREFSFENEAREYBERIGEE  ARER2T AER
B HBRTEEZR -
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued)

5.3.4 Digital Transformation (continued)
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5. 2L E(E)

5.3 24 EEE(E)

5348 FLEBH(F)

Case: Intelligent Mine Construction Promotion
Meeting of Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine

In August 2024, Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine held a
meeting to advance intelligent mine construction,
and enhance talent cultivation and technological
innovation, as well as safety supervision.
The meeting proposed reinforcing standard
development, policy support, and demonstration
leadership. Through collaborative exchanges and
experience sharing, replicable and scalable models
have been established to elevate intelligent mine
construction standards and achieve digitalization
goals.

P ERFEBWWA SRCEREES

—ToEFENR 2FHRBEREE - BH
B R LA ER - IMAAT RN
AR - RIELZEE - R - SRELEMN
BIRERR - BERXFFARESIE - BBAE
RmERERALE - TR ERERRERN - 2
EIRFTEH B R L RKT - BB F(ER
BENER -

The Group places a strong emphasis on intelligent
technology training, utilizing diverse approaches to
enhance employees’ professional skills and digital
literacy. Our goal is to build an intelligent, high-
performing workforce. In 2024, we successfully
conducted multiple intelligent technology training
programs at our “Three Mines & Three Plants,”*
covering intelligent mine management platforms,
electronic perimeter security systems, hyper-
converged cloud infrastructure, smart mining
face technologies, and coal preparation plant
digital control systems. These initiatives enhanced
employees’ technical competencies and overall
skill sets, with over 200 participants receiving an
average of 1.5 hours of training per person.

Three Mines & Three Plants refer to Xingwu Coal Mine, Zhaiyadi Coal

Mine, and Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine; Xingwu Coal Preparation Plant,
Zhaiyadi Coal Preparation Plant, and Jinjiazhuang Coal Preparation

Plant.
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. R2EE(H)
5.3 Workplace Safety Management (continued) 5.3 X4 EEE(HE)
5.3.4 Digital Transformation (continued) 5348 FLBH(E)
Case: Specialized Training Programs on B BRE - EES R {LEEEI

Intelligent Coal Mining and Tunneling

In June 2024, the Group organized specialized —ZT VI NA @ NEBAL T HERELE
training programs on intelligent coal mining and EIEZHIMIBER L BEEEI - H)NEEE
tunneling. The curriculum covered intelligent EHREMIBILES - T2EIE  BUEDIT ~ #E
mine systems, safety management, data analytics, {R%& - HEHEEANTE » T EEHY G A5
equipment maintenance, and fault diagnosis. B#EBE  BIKE - Ji4EERE - BRIET - BIET
The training targeted mining team leaders, REERIMAE - BBEH - BER T HE
deputy leaders, shift supervisors, maintenance BF#HEERASHTE(ELUERNEREE
technicians, operators, and specialized engineers. 125 7 ®{E A B ¥ H L RIEIRIEKTE - &
These programs increased management's focus on  NEEITHE SR E L EKETE 7EREFERM o
intelligent mine development, enhanced technicians’

operational proficiency with smart equipment, and

laid a solid foundation for building high-efficiency

intelligent teams.

Picture: Specialized Training Programs on Intelligent Coal Mining and Tunneling
R R s EEE
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. ZE24HE(E)
5.4 Developing a Culture of Safety 5.4 T2 NLER

The Group attaches high importance to developing a
strong safety culture, recognizing it as a key factor in
enhancing enterprise safety management and protecting
the lives and property of our employees. Through diverse
and systematic safety education and training programs,
we aim to improve employees' safety awareness and
emergency response skills. In 2024, safety drills and
training sessions recorded a total of 4,994 participations.

Table: The Group’s Progress on Safety Culture
Development in 2024

AEBSEERLE2 X EER  BH
BERAGEZE2EEKE - RES
TEGHELENBEREREG - AEE
AR BBRZEL  ZRHLENLTE2H
EF - 2ERABINEEZEZEN
JESREBEEMHMEEN - — T -F -
BEIREHEEBRREIANRES
4,994 AR o

R AKERZEXLBRRIFEHERE
n

Indicator Unit 2022 2023 2024
ER B T —T-=fF CZEZNF
Employee workplace safety drill and training Participant 4,145 4,561 4,994
BIRPEERRIEI AR

Hours per participant 20 20 15

INCE -1
Employee Occupational Health and Safety Training Participant 4,145 4,225 3,746
BIBXRERAEZ2EI AR

Hours per participant 5 4 4

INZELS
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5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued) 5. 24 E(E&)
5.4 Developing a Culture of Safety (continued) 54 22 NLER(E)
Case: Occupational Safety Training RBI: BELEEFI

At the beginning of 2024, training centers of all mines —Z —PU4E4] - ANEBE S (B FEIH 0 HEt
and plants under the Group organized safety training #H%% 73,6402 2B TH1T 7T 2255 - =2
programs for about 3640 employees, with a focus on EBTHEBE=AHRE BRERBELE - E
three major coal mine regulations, occupational hazard S|Z2*#1t « KE3E - E2MEERNS - 20
prevention and control, quality standardization, disaster £ T7TEIHELZ2 EHBMESERIEE S -
prevention, and emergency response. These initiatives

increased employees’ safety awareness and emergency

response capabilities.

VL]

Picture: Safety Training Site
F R EREVIRS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

5. WORKPLACE SAFETY (continued)

5.4 Developing a Culture of Safety (continued)

BiE 2K
ERHE @)

5. 2L E(E)

54 Z2NALER(E)

Case: Training for Dispatch Professionals

In August 2024, the Dispatch Section of the Group’s
Work Safety Emergency Command Center organized
a two-day training program for dispatch professionals.
External experts were invited to train our dispatch
professionals, dispatch management personnel, on-
duty dispatchers, underground dispatchers, and all staff
of the Work Safety Emergency Command Center. The
training covered two major areas: coal mine dispatch
management and intelligent mining systems. This
program improved the professional skills and work
efficiency of all coal mine dispatch personnel, ensuring
the safety and stability of coal mine production.

A FEERASZI

“ZOMENR  AEBLRERLEERSEETD
DHERMABERT AERRNBAEZEEA
Sl BRETHBERUAREFEZERXA
8§ WHEEEAR - EBIHAEAR HTHE
ABERZEEERSEETLEBABETT
1B o SRR SRR E R TR
DEERBEBRGMAR - BRURF T 2BKER
EABMEEREMTERE - RIE T REE
ENREEEBEN

Picture: Training for Dispatch Professionals
F HEHEEAEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to sustainability, actively reshaping
our industrial practices for a greener future. Through a series
of measures such as actively addressing climate change,
deepening the recycling of residual energy resources, and
carrying out ecosystem restoration, we continuously explore
new ways to reduce our carbon footprint, contributing to
national carbon peaking and carbon neutrality goals.

6.1 Addressing Climate Change

The Group fully recognizes climate change as a shared
global challenge. We implement the national green and
low-carbon development strategy, continuously enhance
our climate change governance framework, actively
address climate risk impacts, and strive to build a greener
and more sustainable industry ecosystem while driving
business growth.

6.1.1 Governance

To strengthen our climate governance, we have
established a structured, three-tier system with
clearly defined roles. This framework, spanning
governance, management, and execution, ensures
accountability and strategic oversight. By deepening
climate change governance and management
efforts, we are better equipped to meet the evolving
challenges of climate change.

5
]

g "2k
SRR @)

REeRRE

AEBBRFAFERRBE  BETBI
HEEXABREEL  BEREEREHSR
RE(C  REBREERLDEANA  FEE
RAGEBES - RINEBE  THERRNE
B BlmEROMEE  RERBER [H
EE WP NIBERERMNE -

6.1 BYRIRE L

AEBERMRRE (LR 2 IRE G K
FIBLE - RPEBEERERGEER
LHREE  FETSREREER
 EREHRERRTE - HRE
HEBEBERORSEZE—EEN&
B AIRETTELR -

6.1.1 8%

BEFARNEERRZ (L8R K
FoRMBRETERBM  #E
RAENRIEAERR  WKEE
EEE-EEE-TEIN=
BEERE ZRERBRE(ER
THE - DA 473t JE ¥ R (% AL B 4
CEERTROTZE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE 2K
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @E)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REBEE(E)
6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued) 6.1 EHRES (&)
6.1.1 Governance (continued) 6.1.1 6% (#&)
Table: The Group’s Climate Governance xR AEERFEAEEE
Framework
Governance Board and Audit e Serves as the highest decision-making body for the
Level Committee Group's climate initiatives.
LR B EEgNEREZES AREBRKEE L TENRSIRKHE

e  Reviews and approves climate strategies, policies, and
targets.

BEESUHEANSERIERE(CBR - BRMBZR

e Holds regular meetings to assess risks, track progress, and
ensure alignment with strategic goals.
EETHABRERE(L R  LEEEEREZ(CERET
it~ BIREXIBERE -

Management ESG Management e Serves as the core management body for the Group’s
Level Group climate change initiatives.
EIRE ESGEIRAE AEBERERECTIENZOERE

. Formulates climate-related strategies, policies, and
targets, tracks implementation progress, and provides
regular reports to the Board and Audit Committee.
BEHERIERSCBBEE BEMBZ - RUAEE B
BRRTHNEREN  WEHREEGREREZEGE
] s

e Works closely with ESG task forces to develop climate
action plans and implement measures to address risks and
opportunities.

BEMPAESCTEARIERIRITEIGTE - WETHAREEH
Pl B SR 5 1 R B B SB BRI U 7 ©

Executive Level ESG Working Group e Manages and executes climate change targets and

HITRE ESGT{E4H initiatives, providing regular progress updates.
BERERARERGE A EERKEREC TIENERER
W7 EHERITEER

e Identifies and assesses climate-related risks and
opportunities, develops response plans, and implements
actionable measures throughout operations.
BEHIFHEREBNRIEE( RIS - GEEE
&l - BrieiaraTTE -
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued)

6.1.2 Strategy

—E_MEFR
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BiE g2k
ERHE @)

6. REBE(HE)
6.1 EHRIRE (&)

6.1.2 F B

The Group recognizes that climate risks directly
impact business growth, and has made climate
adaptation a core part of our long-term strategy.
By advancing low-carbon technologies, refining
energy structures, and improving efficiency, we
are embedding sustainability into every stage of
production. Our goal is to create a green, low-
carbon, and circular industrial ecosystem, one
that balances present needs while protecting
future generations, and delivering economic,
environmental, and social benefits. Through
collaboration with stakeholders, we strive to build a
sustainable future that benefits both society and the
environment.

6.1.3 Risk Management

The Group continues to enhance its climate risk
management processes, systematically conducting
climate risk assessments to identify potential
environmental threats and business impacts,
formulating response measures, while progressively
integrating climate risk management into the
Group’s strategic planning to ensure all decision-
making incorporates the long-term effects of
climate change.

& ER A B BB R SRR L B B

PEEROTE  CHEURIK
BIEMAEERAMKRE &
13 HE R BT A AT SR R R
BCRERAERE - R—ITRERBUKF -
BERERELEFNEELE
MmadiE TE-— e &
B BEROITRER  BRBEE
mEERBRXTBERAN S
MBEREN - EEE  REML
SHEBERER  HEEERE
FHABFHERERK -

6.1.3 E R EE

AEBFETSESRERRBREER
2 ZXHEMBREERRTE
m ﬁﬂ BIERIRIREE HER
W HIEEE R - WA
%i%ﬂMﬁﬁﬂA%@ﬁ%ﬁ
Blzw  MRSEREHYE EE
RIRELHRETE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued)

6.1.3 Risk Management (continued)

Table: Climate Change Risk Identification and

B -

HER

ERHE @)

6. REBEERE(E)

6.1 FE¥iR

&1t (&)

6.1.3EEELE(E)

*®RIRS{CE BRI R EY

Response

Risk Type Risk category Risk Description Response

EEERE  EBRER JeBL B 4 B ik

Physical Acute Risks Risk of extreme e  Pose a threat to the personal ¢  Prepare supplies such as flood

Risks 2R B precipitation, safety of underground sandbags, lightning arrestors

B flood workers. in advance. Each mine/plant is
B PR 7K~ K HTIEEAENZZEZE equipped with a special fire-
EXR HERE - fighting storehouse.

Damage to production and
operational facilities may
result in a risk of deficiency

in mineral production, .
thus further influence

the Group’ s business
continuity.

AERBEIRE  BRE
BEEREK FEOXEL
REE M -

BAREBIADE PR

BMERS IEB%J%&&I/EKTJ
MERRE -

Introduce a digital surveillance
system for real-time
monitoring of production
data to provide timely
warning of safety hazards.
MAB A LEERGEREAR
HESE  MEERIEER
Z R o

Regularly inspect and
maintain key equipment

and facilities and repair any
damage in a timely manner to
avoid wider impacts.

*Hﬁﬂﬁ%fk REEITRE MM
 EREFEERE - @2

%Zéﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ °

Organize employee training
programs on extreme weather
response capabilities, to
strengthen their emergency
management proficiency and
self-rescue competencies.
Hnss B T8 i K SR B FE % B
HEH - ReRsRENE K

ﬁz°
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE g2k
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REERE(ER)
6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued) 6.1 EHRES (&)
6.1.3 Risk Management (continued) 6.1.3EEEE (&)
Table: Climate Change Risk Identification and RIOREELCEAREREY
Response (continued) (#8)
Risk Type Risk category Risk Description Response
e il R B 3 JeBL B 4 EYiEiE
Physical Acute Risks Extreme heat e  Threaten employee health ¢  Provide employees with
Risks S AR and extreme and safety. complete and certified labor
A coldness BTHEEEENTE S protection materials and

equipment, to ensure their

. FREE = %‘% ° . ! .
R BRAR E&,W health in different working
e  Additional temperature environment.

regulation costs of the mine AREETREE2AGAE
and maintenance costs for EHBEIRER mANEE ﬁﬁ
coal production facilities. %f\lﬁt\xﬁ;f’ﬁf&iﬁ—l—%ﬁ
FiE [ B0 2 58 B A RR s o FRIFED MR o
BN R MRG0 - e Formulate detailed emergency

response plans for extreme
weather, to strengthen
operational resilience under
severe meteorological
conditions.
I E RN R ARIESTE
= URAERSRREGT
HIFESEE S ©

e Intensify safety inspections of
power facilities and firefighting
systems to ensure equipment
operations.
s ¥t A 535 P AUE RS AR i Y
ZERE  BERREETE
20

e Integrate weather into new
mining area and equipment
designs, implementing
enhanced protective measures
with routine operational
integrity verifications.
FEF SR [ AR A 2 AR,
B - BIRERE M - I E B
WMEREEITIRE o

e  Establish climate-controlled rest
shelters equipped with cooling
systems across mining zones, to
safeguard employee health and
maintain productivity during
extreme heat events.
EREERHERYE - AR
B %EIh1W§ﬂL
E0HTT - BRERESR

xTE\IfofHIT’ExKTEU?V
@,
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued)

6.1.3 Risk Management (continued)

B -

HER

ERHE @)

6. REBEERE(E)

6.1 FEXISR

&1t (&)

6.1.3EEELE(E)

Table: Climate Change Risk Identification and

Response (continued)

Risk Description
R B 4 3t

®ORBRELCEBRBRREY
(%)

Response

i¥agiyi]

Risk Type Risk category

EERER  EBRER

Physical Chronic Risks Rising sea level e
Risks 18 1% RS ETE LA
B

Damage to existing
transportation facilities.
ERAREEEYEER -
Impact on existing markets
as coastal cities move
towards inland.

%itﬁi?ﬁL%’?Z‘éW@ il

SEFELRE

Execute a full-scale sea level
monitoring program utilizing
advanced technologies for
real-time tracking of oceanic
changes. Establish a high-
precision early warning
system to enable prompt
identification and response to
potential sea level fluctuation
risks.
TEIRE b 2 TH 68 BRI G
g MALEMKRFRERE
e TEHEb - BUSRUEE
MIBE R - LAEHBENE
FHEHE CRRETTEHER R
arE -
Formulate specialized
emergency plans for sea
level change adaptation,
defining multi-level response
procedures, responsibility
matrices, and mitigation
measures. These plans ensure
rapid coordinated actions
during abnormal sea level rise
events.
ﬁélJEFEﬁT/iqzﬁ“{tE’\]%%i‘E
AR RERRIE - B
“I&J"E‘“ﬂﬁﬁﬁ HBIRES T
HEZFA =R RRIITE o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE g2k
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REERE(ER)
6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued) 6.1 B RIREL (&)
6.1.3 Risk Management (continued) 6.1.3EEEE (&)
Table: Climate Change Risk Identification and X KRECLERIBIREY
Response (continued) (#8)
Risk Type Risk category Risk Description Response
R B A 2, B 38 7 R B 4 3t Y ik
Physical Chronic Risks ~ Global warming e  The frequency and intensity e  Develop a climate risk
Risks 12 1 [ B2 AR 0% of heat waves, droughts, management plan, including
BHE R and wildfires are increasing, emergency response
threatening lives and raising measures and long-term
the economic burden of climate adaptation strategies.
facility maintenance. HE RIkE R E RS - B
R - R AR AR fE S TAR TR HIH) SRR B & 3R
SRIZIEN  BBEREEI B o

BINMBEREREEEYE - o Regularly assess and update
climate monitoring systems to
promptly address challenges
posed by climate change.

TE BRRT 14 A0 58T SR Mk BEOBI R
g RNERRIERECHERE

eEK -
Transition  Policy and legal Environment e  Regulatory authorities *  Enhance understanding of
Risks Risks information have heightened their environmental information
B2 A | [ R B RZERE S disclosure requirements for climate disclosure reg.ulatlons. to
. . . ensure compliance with
compliance risks risk management and :
REEERRES carbon emissions, with reguft?’ryjeﬁ}uweme\nts.
RIE S 1 en , WItT IRRYIREE BB AR
R organizations now facing R EAREGAERE
more stringent information SK o
disclosure standards. e  Leverage digital tools to
EEE M E R (RE S B IERM improve the transparency and
R E R ERIES - accessibility of environmental
. oo . data.
P2 & INERIE )15 B IR ERIR e mn
o " AT IARSREHE
pi-

KB AE M AT AR R 1 -

e Conduct regular training
sessions for employees on
environmental information
disclosure to elevate their
operational proficiency in this
area.

EHIHE THETRFEESKRE
g REEIEEERE
7T HEIRIEKT o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE 2K
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @E)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. HBEE(E)

6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued) 6.1 EHRES (&)

6.1.3 Risk Management (continued) 6.1.3EEEE (&)

Table: Climate Change Risk Identification and R RESLERBIREY

Response (continued) (#8)
Risk Type Risk category Risk Description Response
R B A 2, B 38 7 R B 4 3t Y ik
Transition Policy and legal Energy mix e The government has Invest more in renewable
Risks Risks risks introduced multiple energy projects such as solar,
B f BEREEERR iR EER energy policies to drive the wind, and hydrogen power to

restructuring of the energy
sector, to align with evolving
environmental and economic
imperatives.

B & Z I REGE B
BERAEE TR - DUEETEY

IRIBEME RN

reduce reliance on traditional
energy sources and explore
innovative energy solutions.
EIE N KSEE - REE - EaE
ErHERRERNRE R
D EEFBERAKRE - REH
BRERAER T R -

Closely monitor emerging
trends in domestic and
international energy

markets and policies,
preserve heightened market
responsiveness and regulatory
agility, and dynamically adapt
energy strategies and business
development priorities to
ensure sustained competitive
edges in the rapidly
transforming energy sector.
YL B NINER T 5 IR
RRBORHEDME - REFE
BT 5 BRRE M BUR B e
BAPEE FMEREEE
BERAR - BRETE L
BVREIR T 5 R IR A RIS B B
oo
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued)

6.1.3 Risk Management (continued)

& @)

6. REBEERE(E)

6.1 EXfRixEL (&)

6.1.3EEEE(E)

Table: Climate Change Risk Identification and

Response (continued)

®ORBRELCEBRBRREY
(%)

Risk Type Risk category Risk Description Response

e il R B 3 JeBL B 4 EYiEiE

Transition ~ Technology Low-carbon e The growing demand for e  Establish a cost-benefit

Risks risks technology low-carbon technologies has analysis framework to

o A 3 b At &L B costs driven continuous increases evaluate the economic
BRI A AR in investments for R&D and returns of low-carbon

equipment upgrades, while
heightened equipment
replacement frequency has
introduced additional costs.
B & BHE IR B T 75 SR A 45
& EMEMEEET LD
WETEIGM - FRNREE
BIRRM RS K T RSN
DN

technology development and
deployment, to ensure the
rationality of investments.
FEAVADRIN Ca kTl EE 2 Y
Bk B 00T B R 35 R0 B R HE T AR
s BRIRESBIE -

e  Continue to advance low-
carbon technology upgrades,
optimize operational
strategies, and apply digital
solutions to manage carbon
emission profiles.

FEHE RS - Bt
BERE - EBRABF RINE
BHHERUIBMR -
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6.
6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued)
6.1.3 Risk Management (continued)

Table: Climate Change Risk Identification and

& @)

BRERRE(E)
6.1 EXfRixE1L (&)
6.1.3EEELE(E)

®ORBRELCEBRBRREY

Response (continued) (#8)
Risk Type Risk category Risk Description Response
[E B R A B B 38 ) JeBL B 4 3t B ik
Transition Market Risk Change in e Growing client demand e  Expand into new areas such
Risks miZE R market demand for energy-efficient and as green finance and low-
A @ g MHEEREE environmentally-friendly carbon production based

energy solutions is reshaping
the market competitiveness
and profitability of coal
mining products.
% P AT REAIIR R A BE IR R
RARNFBRETT  HEK o
MEEm SRS AN RE
H o

e  Carbon trading market
mechanisms are improving
with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements.
MZSTISEHERLTE
ZRKH BRI ©

on coal mining to promote
sustainable development.
REFRER R ER - BIRER
HeeRNEREESTER
B BRI REEE -
Adopt energy-saving and
consumption-reduction
technologies to develop
low-emission, low-
energy-consumption coal
products that enhance both
environmental and economic
efficiency.

PR ER L P RERAMT - BB HE
R BRI IREmMR - 1'TT
RIR BRI AS B R o
Closely monitor carbon
market policy dynamics and
strictly comply with all carbon
market regulations and
trading protocols.
ROIM T ISR BIRE - BRARE
SPRRTIS R 5 B B IEH

=

IE °
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued)

6.1.3 Risk Management (continued)

Table: Climate Change Risk Identification and

— T JOFFR

B
Bh

ERELEREEMBRARF

115

HEgR
& @

6. REBEERE(E)

6.1 EXfRixEL (&)

6.1.3EEEE(E)

®ORBRELCEBRBRREY

Response (continued) (#8)
Risk Type Risk category Risk Description Response
EEE  EBRER JeB i 4 3t ik
Transition Market Risk Waste disposal e  Domestic demand growth e  Promote emission reduction
Risks T35 @ bR cost risk for solid waste management technologies in production
A E R RESE YRR IR A and ecological restoration and operation sessions
[ B in mining areas is driving up and explore high-efficiency

waste treatment costs.
P 88 05 TR T A
WEN BT R  SBRE
BEYBR I A ©

and cost-effective waste
treatment methods.

A EEE P BRBERA -
RESW - ERANEREYRZ
BITA -

Develop waste recycling

and reusing technologies to
circulate and utilize resources
effectively.
IR ER SR S
ERERSBBREFA -
Incorporate waste treatment
facilities during plant design
and construction phases.
FERR [ BR AT 2 AR A A AN RE B 1)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)
6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued)

6.1.3 Risk Management (continued)

Table: Climate Change Risk Identification and

B -

HER

ERHE @)

6. REBEERE(E)

6.1 FE¥iR

&1t (&)

6.1.3EEELE(E)

®ORBRELCEBRBRREY

Response (continued) (#8)
Risk Type Risk category Risk Description Response
EEER  EERER JeBL B 4 3t P iE i
Transition Reputation Stakeholder e Traditional energy e Assess emission reduction
Risks Risk concerns companies’ carbon performance on a regular
AR R BERR FlzAiBRE 5 E reduction performance has basis and refine future

fallen short of stakeholder
expectations, triggering
adverse publicity and
resulting in revenue losses.

B RtELTOREEAE

MR IR AR = B A s AR RE 07
2 o[HEmER  ERK
ABK - .

Coal mining construction
and operations cause
adverse impacts on
surrounding communities
and environments.
REZRMELY FAEHR
MRBELETNZE o

development strategies based
on operational conditions to
clarify low-carbon transition
trajectories.
FHFEBEFRERIR - I
KEERBABCRREER
R - BAREEIRERHO AR
Assess environmental
impacts during design
planning phases, monitor
pollutant emission rigorously
throughout operational
phases, and execute
ecological remediation
initiatives after mining
project.

R REERETREZE
FHE - EEEERESEAT
FMEERL - FEFRIAE BR1&
FRAERRIEETIE -

Engage stakeholder through
in-depth analysis of their
needs and collect and address
concerns in a timely manner.
Insg ER A ZSARRE T BV B R E S
1B RATHESRFR - Mk
SWREERMEZ -
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REERE(ER)
6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued) 6.1 B RIREL (&)
6.1.3 Risk Management (continued) 6.1.3EBREE (&)
Moreover, we has seized the transformative geah - F AR B AR (T
opportunities presented by climate change, actively R A2 JI% BRERGE
exploring green technologies and clean energy, HitE)5 28R @ TERAB S
continuously enhancing our competitiveness in the Efﬁﬁﬁ}—i&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ'} B ) HE—

low-carbon economy, further strengthening our
comprehensive response capabilities to climate B BEIRNEEHE

change, and achieving a strategic upgrade from B B B 4R -

passive defense to proactive transformation.

Table: Opportunities Brought by Climate

®RIRBICHEB

Tt EREECHES BERE
BxeeEn

Change

Opportunities Description
Technology e Production technologies e  Pioneer technological advancements
iy HERIT# S in the coal industry by researching,

developing, and applying high-
efficiency, environmentally friendly
clean coal utilization technologies.
This initiative enhances resource
efficiency, reduces energy
consumption and emissions, and
lays a solid foundation for our green
transition.

S| R RITE MR - HELE M
B RIROVE OB R AR - 12
FHERFAE - FIKAEFEETER -
RTEENGEEREFREER -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE 2K
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @E)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REXRE(H)
6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued) 6.1 B RIREL (&)
6.1.3 Risk Management (continued) 6.1.3EERERE (1)
Table: Opportunities Brought by Climate ®RIEESEE(E)

Change (continued)

Opportunities Description

e BB
Market e Develop new businesses e leveraging our deep expertise in
% ETE RS the coal industry, we are expanding

into emerging markets through a
diversification strategy. By investing
in clean energy and the circular
economy, we align business growth
with environmental sustainability,
creating mutual benefits.
HERERRKITENEEER - BRR
RMISHEE - BIBZITILEE - &
EBBERRZIFRER - BIREHE
HFEE - BREHIEREARRED

Policy e Industry development e Inline with the "14th Five-Year
B TEBRKS Plan’ for a Modern Energy System,

we are turning policy support into
momentum. By identifying new
growth drivers in the coal industry,
we are accelerating its shift toward
greener, low-carbon, and intelligent
development.

BRERERENE ( [THE] ]
REEREERBFE) 2K HRRED
BlERERD N - BEEIRITERN
BEE - EBITRRAZE  BiR8
BElb T A o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)
6.1 Addressing Climate Change (continued)
6.1.4 Indicators and Targets

The Group is committed to the national dual-carbon
strategy, developing long-term plans to achieve
carbon peaking and neutrality. By systematically
tracking and verifying greenhouse gas emissions at
all levels, we ensure data accuracy and reliability,
laying a strong foundation for setting achievable
decarbonization goals.

Table: The Group’s Greenhouse Gas (GHG)

EWELEREEMBERAT 119

% #HER
A

& @)

BRERRE(E)
6.1 E¥RIx& (&)
6.1.4 5ZHHE

AEEEGERER £ &
B - R0 M BROE I B AR TP A ey
RS 2ERAREEREY
ME RO Bz E TE - BEBUR
MEBEMTEYE  RAKER
MM ES RN B RIRHEER
ENEEXE -

R ZE_NEXEEERERSR

Emissions in 2024 BEMER
Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022
EiZ K} —E-ME —E-=F —E-=
Greenhouse gas®  Scope 1 GHG  tonnes of 503.60 557.20 129.04
B RS emissions® carbon dioxide
BE—RERE  equivalent
B Ee oS tREE
Scope 2 GHG tonnes of 100,951.15 113,016.40 116,528.60
emissions’ carbon dioxide
#E_AERE  equivalent
g’ BoatREE
Total GHG tonnes of 101,454.75 113,573.60 116,657.64
emissions carbon dioxide
mEREYEN equivalent
He BoE(LiREE
GHG emission  tonnes of 22.01 17.37 16.53
density® carbon dioxide
BEREYN equivalent/
LIEE million yuan of

output value
Wi
/BBLER

> The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions is based on the
Guidelines on the GHG Emission Accounting and Reporting for
Other Industrial Enterprises, in which the electricity consumption is
converted with reference to the national grid average emission factor
of 0.5366tCO2/MWh for the year 2024 issued by the General Office
of Ministry of Ecology and Environment.

6 Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1): This mainly consists of direct CO2
emissions from petrol combustion.

7 Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2): This mainly consists of indirect CO2
emissions from purchased electricity.

8 GHG emission density = Total GHG emissions for the year / Business
Revenue of the Group for the year

BERBUEREFERE(EMIELER
TREFRZEFLERESER) ERER
HHAFRERB224FEENHHAEFREAERK
FRRERHABE(CHAREHRE N SR
BMATFHAE) AHHE2BRERFHERET
0.5366tC0O2/MWh ©
BEREEEHENE(BE—) T2ETHR
B e bk EE PR o
BERERNEZESRE(BE ) TEREIIESE
NEER =B iR EHE R -
BEARENEE=FN AR EE/ETF

REEZZWA
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.2 Environment Governance

Annual Report 2024

BiE 2K
ERWmE @

6. REBEERE(E)

6.2 IRIFARE

Driven by our commitment to “green development
and harmonious coexistence”, the Group continues
to refine and innovate our environmental governance
system. Our focus is on building a strong environmental
management framework that prioritizes strict pollution
control, effective emission reduction, and sustainable
production through advanced management practices
and technological innovation.

6.2.1 Environmental Management System

The Group has reinforced our environmental
governance with a structured three-tier
management system, covering strategic oversight,
supervisory control, and operational execution.
This structure clearly defines departmental
roles and responsibilities, ensuring a systematic
and standardized approach to environmental
protection. Through systematic, standardized,
and detailed mechanisms, we enable the efficient
implementation of sustainability initiatives at every
level.

Table: The Group’s Environment Management

AEERFE [HREER - M4
WD ERBEGETETEHRRE
EE O EFIRNEYURR2RREER
ZOBBARMICEBRMRMmAIR - B
BHEE SRR AR EEE SN
RIE - BRAEBEMGEL (KX
1t °

LI REEHERER

AEEERREI2RFEEERE
BRT mEEE-EEEE -4
BT IN=_EEERE  BES
MPERERET W EEREER
A BERTRREEIFENR
g~ REICMBAL - BERT
EREIZE - S HEE -

®RIAKERREERZR

System

Department Duty

! Bige

Department of Infrastructure and Environment  Lead the management of environmental matters
Protection SEERIRFEIE

ERIRRER

Environment Protection Committee
RBERELZES

Environment Protection Section

RIRT

= ARX s
BEEE

Supervise the management of environment work
BIRIETE

Implement daily environment work
HMITHBRRTE
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.2 Environment Governance (continued)

6.2.1 Environmental Management System
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BiE g2k
ERWmE @

6. REBEERE(E)

6.2 IRIFARE(E)

6LIREEERR ()

(continued)

The Group complies with national environmental
regulations including the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and the Solid Waste
Pollution Prevention Law of the People’s Republic
of China. We have developed internal guidelines
such as the Environmental Protection Management
Procedures and the Environmental Performance
Evaluation System, to standardize environmental
compliance requirements. Regular inspections
of pollution control facilities help us maintain
compliance while optimizing resource use. In
2024, we successfully identified and resolved all
54 environmental compliance issues detected,
achieving 100% of our environmental targets on
schedule.

RER B AR B ST (R E AR KME
REREENPEARKME K
BRFRENXPEARAMEE
BEYISARRIAER) FERE
B HECRERIEEERZE)
(RIRREZZEEFE) FAM
EEBIE - RBRERITAIEER
EMHRRREETERETE
Big  HRERSREWESH
MEERSUMNANEEAR -
—ENF KREEZFHAEER
REESAE YR —EZERHE
REN - ARERFHEE
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. ZERE(E)
6.2 Environment Governance (continued) 6.2 IRIFARE(E)
6.2.1 Environmental Management System 621 REEERE (F)
(continued)

Table: Environmental targets for 2024

F-E-NFREAR

Achieved
Environmental targets RIEEE ERER
The mine water treatment stations maintain #&F/KEIEUECOD « &R - BHEBENR Yes
COD, Ammonia Nitrogen, and Total BENFE CoKEAHERIZAE) BiEK
Phosphorus discharge concentrations
in full compliance with the Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standard;
100% compliance rate achieved for TEARYEE B EIE100% Yes
pollutant discharge standards; EEX
100% connectivity rate and data validity INBIEZE B RGH AR Yes
rate attained for water quality online HIEABEE100% EEMX
monitoring systems;
100% reuse rate realized for coal EEAEERKEEEAEEI00% Yes
preparation wastewater; EEK
100% containment rate ensured for product ESFERN - BB EE100% Yes
storage and transportation; EEX
100% proper treatment rate accomplished A EEENEHREEY A BUE B KiE Yes
for hazardous waste generated from 100% EiEMX
production activities;
Plant boundary noise levels strictly R EHITEM60dB(A) Yes
maintained within daytime 60dB(A) and & EI50dB(A) BER

nighttime 50dB(A) thresholds.



—TOMFEFR ENBLUEREEARAF 123
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. RBEREE)
6.2 Environment Governance (continued) 6.2 IRIZERE(H)
6.2.1 Environmental Management System 621 REEERE (F)

(continued)

Xingwu Coal Mine has successfully obtained AEBEEREBECEFSRRER
ISO 14001 Environmental Management System BB X (ISO 14001) BRE » BE
recertification, with certificate validity extending 75&%@;.;4 T RNF o BARAK
through 2026. A periodic surveillance audit was FEETT THEELHEZ -

conducted in 2024.

R E AR R AGEIE D
#iE %
: TN BIREELR

ARUREARE
GRT24001-2016 4 1S014001:2013 450, HMF

WUERIE : 20FATIA =

T | A6R07EBA = '; Y’:,&
BOCHUAL ST M O IR L 101N 4

& R TR TP AR

-m

Picture: The Environmental Management System Certification of Xingwu Coal Mine
B BEAERREERARERSE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)
6.2 Environment Governance (continued)
6.2.2 Pollutant Discharge Management

The Group strictly complies with the Solid Waste
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Environmental
Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic
of China, and formulate the Water Pollution
Emergency Response Plan to standardize incident
management protocols. Additionally, we have
signed binding agreements with accredited third-
party providers, including the Self-Monitoring
Agreement for Pollution Sources, the Comparative
Monitoring Agreement for Online Emission
Monitoring Equipment, and the Operation
and Maintenance Contract for Online Emission
Monitoring Systems. These frameworks ensure the
integrity and accuracy of environmental monitoring
data. Furthermore, wastewater treatment and
gangue disposal operations are entrusted to
licensed third-party contractors, ensuring full
regulatory compliance while improving resource
efficiency and promoting sustainable waste
management.

5
]

6.

B g8k
SRR )
SERE(E)
6.2 IRIZERE(H)

6.2.2)5RYH I EE

AEBEBEBET(PEARLANE
BElREEEMISRIREAE)  (Fh
EARANMBEREZENEL) S
ERERER - HIECKIGRREHE
REFWESFER)  REK5R
EMfEYER YRFE=TAA
BEXEERARNTOSREREAR
TERA RO RRERE DR
BHHERMEROTRRERE
RREEZER) - FEERRBEBE
RSTEM - EHEMN - U AI5KE
BoAAREXRAEAEXEE
E=ARAABRE  RETH
RAEMWEEARE  BERTE
RE PR MEERYNZLER
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. HBEE(E)

6.2 Environment Governance (continued) 6.2 IRIFARE(E)

6.2.2 Pollutant Discharge Management (continued) 6.22 5 RYHEK EFE ()

Table: Pollutant Disposal Measures R SEVHEREERE

Wastewater
treatment

FEKBR IR

The Group’s primary sources of wastewater are domestic sewage and mine water.
We have built a domestic wastewater treatment station and a mine water treatment
station at each operating mine, which is contracted and operated by professional
third parties. In particular, the domestic wastewater treatment station adopts the
advanced AO°+MBR™ method to ensure that all wastewater is reused for dust
prevention, sprinkling and coal preparation. The mine water treatment station
adopts techniques such as flocculation, sedimentation, filtration and ultrafiltration,
allowing all treated water to be reused for dust prevention, sprinkling and

coal washing. The remaining portion undergoes activated carbon filtration and
ultrafiltration treatment to ensure compliance with discharge standards.
REBMELNBEKEIZSRERSTKERAKMALR - HEEMEAREK - RAES
BEERERY T B AE5KEE SR KEIRY, - WEREEE =T
FBEE o EIESKEEMFHASTEMNAO+MBRIGEIETE - REIBEAEKE
BISREIREFA - FTERRIFKBIEBKAMEERK o BH KRR ABBER -
TR BRERERETLS - SRR EATKREKERNH THEBKMERAK -
TR R4 EE M R BB R R B IR - HEREIRBER ©

Emission
treatment

% B 32

The Group’s current emissions are unorganized dust and soot. To effectively
control unorganized dust, we have implemented comprehensive dust suppression
measures, including the installation of raw coal, clean coal, and gangue silos,
enclosed coal storage sheds, enclosed conveyor bridges, and tire washing systems.
For soot, dust collectors have been installed in screening workshops. Compared
with the previous year, we have enhanced dust control by installing dust removal
and gas-washing facilities in the intelligent dry processing workshop at Jinjiazhuang
Coal Mine, as well as new dust removal systems in the intelligent dry processing
workshop at Zhaiyadi Coal Mine.
AEENERFESRBEBHENBESHENE - RANEEREBNHE - &
FMECHETRE  BENTAEE - BEXEEN  HEXEREE Rkl AR E
FRiE - BN AEBME  RMREFSOEMLREK THES - B EFEMEL - &K
HRBE R EER AR THREARRN  RERRBEE L ERRANIERGRE
SRR

AQ: Anaerobic Oxic. In addition to degrading organic pollutants, it
has a certain function of removing nitrogen and phosphorus and is
an improved activated sludge process in which anaerobic hydrolysis is
used as a pre-treatment for activated sludge.

MBR: Membrane Bio-Reactor is a new type of wastewater treatment
system that combines membrane separation technology with
biological treatment technology.

AO: BRETFE TE % (Anaerobic Oxic, AO) * Bk
THEERSLEMEREE I BEBE—TFHH
RBBIINEE - RIS EKBEA R AE TSR
AR - BRMENFESEEL -

MBR : [R-4£ ¥ fE2E (Membrane Bio-Reactor,
MBR) 2 —TERED B ITER Y E B Rl A 4
BHFELBEKEIRRA ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE 2K
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @E)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REERE(ER)
6.2 Environment Governance (continued) 6.2 IRIFRIE(HF)
6.2.2 Pollutant Discharge Management (continued) 6.225RYHEKEFE (HE)
Table: Pollutant Disposal Measures (continued) xR SEMHEREERE(H)
Solid waste The Group’s general solid waste primarily consists of coal gangue from
disposal underground mining operations, while hazardous waste mainly includes waste
EfEEEZEYERIE  engine oil. In solid waste management, we emphasize source control by optimizing

production processes to reduce raw material consumption and minimize waste
generation. Concurrently, we strengthen operational oversight of intelligent

dry separation equipment to minimize coal content in gangue discharge and
actively promote the use of recyclable materials. Following categorized collection
and treatment, all gangue is transported to designated disposal sites for valley
filling and land reclamation, ensuring both efficient resource utilization and
environmental protection.

AEE-REBEZEVETFERGF TARELNRITA  EEEEVNEIEZRER
H e HEBEEYERTE AKREWOREMRES - BEBCEETBRIE &
PRMFERREZRDELE - R - RAINEHEREERENETEE - AR
DA ARRIRR - WEERHEEER A BRABME - B AU R IR A A
F B AEREERRPELENTAZEERETASETEBEEIE @ XA
FIRERNAEN B ERENE BRE ©




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.2 Environment Governance (continued)

6.2.2 Pollutant Discharge Management (continued)

Table: Environmental Pollutant Emissions

Indicator

ER

Atmospheric
pollutant

PNVEES )

Water pollutants
UNSEES7)

Non-hazardous
waste

EEEED

Gas

L

Mine wastewater
PR EEK

CcoD

CEERE

Gangue

el

Non-hazardous waste intensity

EEBRNTE

Hazardous waste Waste engine oil

BEBERY

JE

Hazardous waste intensity

In 2024, the Group revised the measurement units for water pollutant 1

discharge volumes.

In 2024, the Group revised the measurement units for hazardous 12

waste density.

Unit
By

10,000 cubic
meters
B XK

10,000 tonnes
B
10,000 tonnes
B

10,000 tonnes

&

Eip

10,000 tonnes/
million yuan of
output value

B,/ BELEE
tonnes
e

10,000 tonnes/
million yuan of
output value

B,/
ABETLEE

TG FR HRBELEREEERLAT 127
RIE $ié)32
NAN
ERME (&
6. ZERE(E)
6.22)5RYHHEE ()
R CBRESEUHEKRE
2024".12 2023 2022
—E-NE TEC=F —E--F
3,701 4,307 5,273
182 199 79
2.1 2.1 1.9
186 188 167
0.04 0.03 0.02
44 31 49
0.009 0.005 0.007

TﬂkE °

TEILE -

CECEEAREEK SR RENELETT

CECNFEASEHAEEERMEENEMET
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. RBEREE)
6.2 Environment Governance (continued) 6.2 RIFAIE (&)
6.2.2 Pollutant Discharge Management (continued) 6.225RYHEKEFE (HE)
Clean Production JBREE
The Group implements the “74th Five-Year” AEBBGRERE(+TNE|2H
National Cleaner Production Implementation Plan, BREEMTAR) FHI&H
adhering to the production principles of “energy BE - PRFE - RS UM EER
conservation, consumption reduction, pollution S NERZEEASZMR - BIRIE
mitigation, and efficiency enhancement.” With REEHFBALEEEENT
a cleaner production mindset, we integrate IRED - HENBREERERERM B
environmental responsibility into every stage of MER:  BRERIIFIB2ES
our operations by adopting clean energy, using R BERBSMEE - B[RS
eco-friendly materials, and exploring advanced B RBEEERXHEEGERD
processes and high-efficiency equipment. This g T _NFE > EREERE -
approach not only reduces pollution and lowers REERBZEF = THELA
carbon emissions but also enhances operational TEEBEEERSE MBS EAE
efficiency, aligning with the broader goal of B RARBEUEMERMA
ecological sustainability. In 2024, both Jinjiazhuang R o
and Zhaiyadi Coal Mines commissioned third-party
agencies to conduct cleaner production audits,
reinforcing management systems and improving
environmental and resource efficiency.
LIk R EE AL R A W IR R PR E]
MEEEREAE AR

U ENRLN
=¥=mm+zA

Picture: Clean Production Reports of Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine and Zhaiyadi Coal Mine

P ERRRE  RERRBEEREERS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE g2k
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REXRE(H)
6.2 Environment Governance (continued) 6.2 IRIFRIE(HF)
6.2.2 Pollutant Discharge Management (continued) 6.225RYHEKEFE ()

Clean Production (continued) JEREE(E)

Clean Production Measures: BREESRE

e All coal washing process wastewater o HERAEREKEZEHEKE
undergoes closed-loop recycling systems; IR

e Treated mine water is prioritized for reuse o HIEBBREHKEXERIET
in underground dust sprinkling and surface EIK R M TEDE BT A K

firefighting systems;

e Treated domestic wastewater is fully reused o FIBBATEIGKEIMER
after treatment;

e The intelligent dry separation technology o HAEEZETITHEKREMN
has replaced legacy jigging-based gangue RKBAFTE o

separation methods.

6.3 Resource Utilization 6.3 EREH
The Group is committed to sustainable development AEERITHEEREIES BB A
by integrating smart management systems, advancing BEELCEERN  BERERTB AR
renewable energy solutions, and maximizing efficiency ;J? HWRERBEEENRE - &AX1E
in both energy and resource use. These efforts drive our NHIBEREFE - BILERFA » A%
transition toward a greener, more sustainable future Iij’-éﬁféﬁeﬁﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬂagﬁ**

while maintaining high production performance.
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. HBEE(E)
6.3 Resource Utilization (continued) 6.3 BRERH(E)

6.3.1 Energy Management

The Group strictly complies with national laws and
regulations including the Energy Conservation Law
and the Water Law of the People’s Republic of
China. Through digital and intelligent technologies,
we achieve granular energy management,
accelerate the transition towards an optimized
energy consumption structure, and lead the
industry toward a greener and more sustainable
future.

Energy Consumption Management

Through continuous innovation, the Group is
improving energy efficiency and enhancing
precision management. We are advancing digital
transformation initiatives, leveraging its intelligent
power operation and maintenance platform to
achieve comprehensive real-time monitoring and
analysis of energy consumption data. This enables
rapid response to energy consumption anomalies,
driving granular energy management and efficient
resource utilization. With advanced data analytics,
the platform tracks energy consumption patterns,
providing key insights to refine strategies and drive
more effective energy management.

EM%%@%E%EHEQEQZE‘_‘

HI| () gien 2A0E BWE £5 90 i

6.3.168 R EZE

AEBEBEBET(PEARLANE
ENHIBEIRIR) (P E AR KME
NOEIVEBZOERER - BBHE
e - BRERBALERE
MEHEEREREEEBOEAT
A BlETEREMGE - A

FEFE B HE
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HEERH = A B MBI E
B ZMERESHFCELZ
®OKAERENERTARER
HERBEBENZEERER &Y
- BEREREFTARERRE
B RETRRRNBACEEN
BAMA - R HFREFE
REZRBEBEEE KBEZER
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BEREEREIRMA N -
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Picture: Intelligent power operation and maintenance platform
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. HBEE(E)

6.3 ERFERA(E)

6.3 Resource Utilization (continued)

6.3.1 Energy Management (continued) 6.3.1BEFEH (&)

Energy Consumption Management (continued)

FEFEEHE ()

Case: Project on Power Generation and Heating by Gas

Guided by China’s national “Dual Carbon” strategy (carbon
peaking and carbon neutrality goals), the Group actively
responded to the government’s call for emission reduction
and decarbonization. Collaborating with specialized
institutions, we implemented comprehensive and effective
measures to control gas emissions. By launching the project
on power generation and heating by gas, Xingwu Coal
Mine and Zhaiyadi Coal Mine not only upgraded their
energy structures but also achieved remarkable economic
benefits. In 2024, the two coal mines achieved a cost
reduction of RMBO0.46 per kilowatt-hour through gas power
generation, with cumulative annual savings amounting
to RMB23 million. In total, we eliminated approximately
47.8 million cubic meters of pure volume gas annually,
reducing carbon dioxide emissions by about 761,000 metric
tons, thereby contributing to environment protection and
sustainable development.

A BATRBHENHERER

FEER (2] BRH3IET  AEE
BIREEBNRBEREIRE S - BFEE
By HEEHR#ET T 2E S8R
BIREE - BBHITRITREEHEERIG
B BEiE ZEEREBETEERT
BERARBONBLEHL  FELSHERZ L
WS THEEREW - —Z_NF - WiEA
REHTHESEEMLMKA0.467T @ F
EEREHHERSE2,30087T  A5f
R IT A R AT 44,7808 7 » B
SLiR#76. 181 - AIRFRERSF
BERRELTEE -

Case: Deepening Gas Management through
Technological Innovation

The Group focused on gas control in current mining faces
and regional areas. By increasing gas extraction volumes,
we significantly boosted coal mine gas power generation
capacity, thereby reducing reliance on grid electricity.
In 2024, this initiative led to electricity cost savings of
RMB29.07 million, demonstrating our outstanding energy
management performance. Additionally, through technical
upgrades, we transformed the heating system of the
Xiangneng unit in Shipan District into a gas waste heat
utilization system. Successfully operational in November
2024, this project lowered power consumption and
equipment maintenance requirements. It is projected to
save approximately RMB511,200 annually in electricity
and equipment maintenance costs, paving the way for
enhanced energy efficiency, emission reduction, and cost
optimization.

A R EEAE

AEBEERRTFERRIKEIAE E
AR BBRREFARAMXE  BEF
iR TREHTLATEENES - BRRE
THEEBENKE - —T_MF - &
—RERAMHEEE29078T ' R
BT EBEEERE IR o Uho - A&
BB BmMESE - AR EREKA
HARGTT R AR AAREAMEK - ZIBER
R-ZB_ME+—ARERE - £
BB TEIRRE - B T RIGEER]
MK - B FRI A EE MR
ERA51.1287T - RETRERBEERR
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

6.3 Resource Utilization (continued)
6.3.1 Energy Management (continued)
Energy Consumption Management (continued)

Table: The Group’s Energy Use in 2024

Annual Report 2024

R ffiﬁ&
BRWE

6. REBEERE(E)

6.3 ERFEMH(E)

6315 EH (&)

FEFEETE ()

R ZE_NFEAEEERER
&R

Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022
L= B —E-IF —_E_=F —T_—
Energy Gasoline Liter 231,909 240,510 58,498
EEV i 7t
Purchased 10,000 kWh 18,813 19,817 20,433
electricity BT R
HSMNEBE )
Total Tonnes of 23,368.70 24,708.98 25,174.39
comprehensive  standard coal
energy MEAE YR
consumption13
VT = EJ\E%%
SRR
Comprehensive  Tonnes of 5.07 3.78 3.57
energy standard coal/
consumption million yuan
density output value
REBEIR WRIZAES
HERE BETE®E
6.3.2 Water Resources Management 6.3.2 kEREE

The Group is committed to sustainable water
management by strengthening conservation efforts
and optimizing resource use. By upgrading water-
saving facilities and integrating advanced energy-
efficient and emission-reduction technologies,
we have steadily improved our water efficiency.
Through innovative water recycling measures, we
have significantly enhanced the reuse of water
resources.

Energy consumption is calculated based on the conversion factors
of various standard coals as specified in General Principles for
Calculation of Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB/T 2589-
2020).

13

AEEERELEKERATHEE
2 - ORAL K B S ORI A R B
fofm - BAIFEEIRAEKE
e BB AREKERME - BA A
HEETRERPE R RRAU B
—RIKERBREEIOL -
BERITIKERBERMAE -

BEREREERBE(GRAEMETEBAIGBT2589-

2020) B RBIRERBERBGTESH
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6.

14

Table: The Group’s Water Resource
Management Measures

Mine Water
MK

6.3 Resource Utilization (continued)

6.3.2 Water Resources Management (continued)

Domestic Sewage

—TOMFEFR ENBLUEREEARAFA 133

R ffiﬁ&
EAWmE |

BRERRE(E)
6.3 ERFERA(E)
6.3.2kEFEE(4E)

®IAKEKEREERK

We have established a total of 3 mine water treatment plants. In 2024, we
treated approximately 2.63 million cubic meters of mine water, of which
0.87 million cubic meters was reused for production purposes, and the
remaining 1.76 million cubic meters was discharged up to standard.
REELZEBHOKEIBUM3E - —T N AREE B EIREHK49263.00
B K - BRI EAEHAKEEEERLSTE L TTK - #87K49176.008 777
RERRINGE -

We have constructed 6 domestic sewage treatment plants, including 1 at

consumption metrics and implemented corresponding data revisions.

@ HEUREIT TIBF]

HETEIK Xingwu Coal Mine, 2 at Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine, and 3 at Zhaiyadi Coal
Mine. In 2024, a total of 253 thousand cubic meters of domestic sewage
was treated. The treated water was utilized for greening, dust suppression
sprinkling in coal yards and gangue dumps, with all remaining water fully
reused underground.

K%’%#\@ﬁi}ﬁﬁk FRIBUL6RE - BRI R - SRR - 5
EEEEIE - —E - NFARIEEIETKA25.308 50K - RIBEER
IKERRARBEEARAL ~ 5 - I AISEEEK - sk 2HERHAT -

Table: The Group’s Water Resources Use in R ZE_MNFEXEEKERE

2024 RER

Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022

bl B —E_NF —ZE-= —F_—F

Water Municipal water 10,000 cubic 0 0 57

consumption supply meters

KERERE  WEHK &K

Groundwater 10,000 cubic 141 151 25
TR oK meters
B AR
Total water 10,000 cubic 141 155 82
consumption meters
FKkiEE B K
Water 10,000 cubic 0.034 0.024 0.012
consumption meters/million
density yuan of output
FKEE value
BuHKS
BETEEA
In 2024, the Group conducted a comprehensive review of its water 14—~ PUFEFEE/KEREEOTHET T EHH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)
6.3 Resource Utilization (continued)

6.3.3 Green Office

The Group continues to strengthen green office
practices, focusing on four key areas: vehicle
management, energy use, water conservation,
and waste disposal. By implementing targeted
strategies, we are enhancing the environmental BE -

sustainability of our daily operations.

Table: The Group’s Green Office Management

Measures in 2024

Vehicle Management o

HIRERE

Annual Report 2024

BiE 2K
ERHE @)

6. HBEE(E)
6.3 ERFERA(E)
6.3.3BHA

AEEHEREEGERLEER
i BEREERE - EREE
KERE IR - 573G B PO KR 0
iR BT —RIRA MR
EERTMURETHRAESHH
RERME -

R ZE_NEXEEZOHD
EEEE

We implement a unified management and centralized dispatch system
for official vehicles;

AEEEWETH—ER  SHAENABREHE

e Vehicles are allocated under the principle of “priority to production
support, emergency response, and regional needs”, ensuring priority
for major official activities, critical work tasks, and emergency scenarios
such as sudden incidents or major natural disaster responses;
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e  For departmental official travel in the same location or area, one shared
vehicle is allowed; when multiple transportation options are available
for business trips, employees need to select economical and convenient
transportation without vehicle dispatch, provided work efficiency and
safety are not compromised.
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Electricity Management °
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REFRENRABTA -

Electric heaters and rice cookers are prohibited in office buildings and
dormitories;

MAEREERILERAERR - RN

e Multimedia meeting rooms remotely control power sequence controller
switches and real-time switches via the Yiweilian_APP (environment
monitoring software).
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6.

6.3 Resource Utilization (continued)
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6.3.3 Green Office (continued) 6.3.3/CHWAR(4E)
Table: The Group’s Green Office Management kR ZE_NFXEEZKEHRA
Measures in 2024 (continued) EEIEE(E)

Water Management
RKEE

Waste Management
R E R

6.4 Ecological Construction

Restrooms reuse coal washing plant-treated wastewater,
BERERF AR EREIEBAEK
Sensor faucets are installed in restroom sinks.

BT & LR REEKEEA -

Additional waste collection points are added in office areas on each
floor to facilitate centralized waste disposal;
BRI AR ILR N RE - FREPIRIRAERERE

Centralized recycling of obsolete electronic products is implemented;
T ER B B

Kitchen waste is donated to nearby villagers for livestock feeding.

BRI REMORRENS -

6.4 EREER

The Group promotes ecological biodiversity conservation
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations,
including the Regulations on Nature Reserves, the
Water and Soil Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Regulations on Mine Geological
Environmental Protection, and the Environmental
Protection Management Regulations for Construction
Projects. At every stage of project development,
construction, and operation, we conduct thorough
ecological impact assessments and apply scientific
management practices. In 2024, we strengthened our
biodiversity conservation strategy through systematic
planning and innovative technologies, further advancing
ecological protection and restoration efforts.
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6. REERE(ER)
6.4 Ecological Construction (continued) 6.4 £REER(E)
Table: Project full-cycle ecological impact xR BEEZBHARSETEHEERE

assessment and management

Development stage
B 25 P ER

Construction stage
R

Operation stage
EEEER

During the project development stage, we cooperate with qualified third-party
units to carry out assessments on biodiversity impact and environmental impact in
the area surrounding the Group’s proposed plant site and analyze the potential
impacts of project construction on the surrounding ecological environment

(e.g. the status-quo of soil erosion, distribution of water resources, vegetation
coverage and biodiversity).

HEEERERER  BRMABREABEXRELENE=THEAIE  HHEEEER
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During the project construction stage, we follow the “three simultaneous
actions” for environment protection to ensure that environment protection
facilities are designed, constructed and put into use at the same time as the
main facilities, to reduce the impact of production activities on the ecological
environment, and maintain sustainable development.

ETH B 2R R - BRMBSETRBEREN [ZRK] RA - BREFFRERE
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ARRIRIBNEBEETE REEHBNAIFERE -

During the operation stage of the project, based on the results of the
environmental impact assessment, we formulate ecological protection
requirements for each phase of project construction and operation. By identifying
the ecologically sensitive targets and prohibited development areas based on the
ecological red line. We monitor the ecological environment around the project,
and adjust the ecological protection scheme in a timely manner, to ensure a long-
term eco-friendly project.
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6.

6.4 Ecological Construction (continued)
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Mine Land Reclamation

Guided by the principle that “lucid waters and lush
mountains are invaluable assets, the Group prioritizes
ecosystem restoration and land reclamation in mining
areas. Recognizing the unique ecological conditions
of each site, we develop tailored soil reconstruction
strategies to reinforce previous rehabilitation efforts
while exploring new ways to create a greener, more
sustainable landscape. In 2024, the Group completed
off-site vegetation restoration covering 26,056m?2,
planted 2,982 trees, carried out slope greening at
gangue sites covering 25,446m?, and planted 721 trees.
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Case: Caoshi Line Highway Restoration Project =

In 2024, Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine completed the restoration —

of the Caoshi Line highway, which has now resumed traffic,

ensuring the safety of road travel.

£

Picture: Caoshixian Highway Restoration Project
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6. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 6.
6.4 Ecological Construction (continued)

Mine Land Reclamation (continued)

GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) ERHE @
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Case: Ecological Reclamation Project at Zhaiyadi Gangue
Sites

In 2024, after Platforms 3 and 4 of the Zhaiyadi gangue site
reached their closure elevation thresholds, reclamation work
was carried out in accordance with ecological restoration
standards. The process included topsoil restoration,
deep tillage, and soil fertility enhancement, successfully
transforming the site into arable land. The 125,000 square
meter (equivalent to 187 mu) reclamation area significantly
improved regional ecological conditions and promoted the
sustainable utilization of land resources.
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Picture: Ecological Reclamation Project at Zhaiyadi Gangue Sites
C RERMASERERTR
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CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY
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The Group adheres to a people-centric development
philosophy, ensuring employees’ rights and well-being
are protected. By maintaining fair employment practices,
improving compensation and benefits, and providing ample
learning and career growth opportunities, we empower
employees to excel. Our goal is to create a balance between
personal fulfillment and corporate success.

7.1 Employment

The Group complies with laws and regulations including
the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor
Contract of the People’s Republic of China, the Social
Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Regulations on the Prohibition of Child Labor, and formulate
the Recruitment Management Regulations to ensure
compliance throughout the employment lifecycle. We actively
promote local hiring, supporting job creation and regional
economic development.

The Group strictly prohibits child labor and set minimum
hiring ages in our Recruitment Management Regulations.
We conduct thorough age verification during onboarding
to ensure compliance. Additionally, we uphold fair work-
hour policies and firmly oppose forced labor. Employees are
informed of their right to refuse unsafe work, reinforcing
workplace safety and legal protections.
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY
(continued)

7.1 Employment (continued)

The Group is committed to fostering a diverse and
inclusive workplace, where every employee has equal
opportunities to grow. Discrimination or harassment
based on race, ethnicity, religion, gender, age, health
status, nationality, or any other protected characteristic
is strictly prohibited, ensuring employees’ legal rights.

Table: Employees of the Group

5
]

5 HER
A

& @)

7. MELAI(E)

7.1 ETERE(E)

AEBEEZT - FENXE  BfF
RETEERAFHERKS - LM
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BORMGEB T AEHR -

R AKEEIERER

Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022

EE B —E_NEF —E=F —FE-_—F

Employee number by employment type

RERRHEASNEIHE

Regular employee Person 4,105 4,255 4,425

EXET A

Dispatched employee Person 159 182 201

BBIKEET A

Number of regular employees by gender

RUERESHEXEIHE

Male Person 3,609 3,739 3,884

g A

Female Person 496 516 541

g A

Number of regular employees by region

RIS NEXETHE

Chinese Mainland Person 4,105 4,255 4,425

FRIAREEST A

Number of regular employees by age

RFREDHEREIHE

18-28 Person 150 179 293
A

29-40 Person 1,837 1,866 1,931
A

41-49 Person 903 937 999
A

>50 Person 1,215 1,273 1,202

>_
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7.
(continued)

7.1 Employment (continued)

The Group prioritizes employee retention by thoroughly
analyzing turnover factors and refining strategies to
improve job satisfaction and long-term engagement.
In 2024, total employee turnover reached 150, with a
turnover rate of 3.65%.

Table: Employee Turnover of the Group

7.1

ETERE)
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REBSEEREINRE  FAD
WEIRKRRE H WHERZNIEA
BEImEE BEASTRE NZ-Z
ZHFE  BMEREKAEAEIS0A
BETRKLEAR365% °
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2024 2023 2022
—E-ME —E-=F -
Turnover Turnover Turnover
Turnover Percentage Turnover  Percentage Turnover  Percentage
(persons) (%) (persons) (%) (persons) (%)
Divided by REAE  RAEH  REAE RELH  REAE ORELA
E aphid (A) (%) (A) (%) (A) (%)
By gender Male employees 130 3.17 138 3.18 244 5.51
BIERIES FET
Female employees 20 0.49 32 0.74 49 1.1
RET
By region Chinese Mainland 150 3.65 170 3.92 293 6.62
BwEES REAEET
By age 18-28 29 0.71 15 0.35 15 0.34
REREEED
29-40 29 0.71 30 0.69 63 1.42
41-49 34 0.83 7 0.16 14 0.32
>50 58 1.41 118 2.72 201 4.54

The Group is building a competitive compensation
system with effective incentive mechanisms to support
employee well-being. Our Salary Budget and Settlement
Assessment Management Regulations provide a
structured framework for salary administration, and we
continuously refine our compensation processes.

> The Group's 2024 Turnover Rate Calculation Methodology: Turnover 15
Rate = (Number of Departures in Category/Total Number of Regular
Employees) x 100%.

AEBBIRREINEEERFE N
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MEER(E)

(continued)

7.2 Employee Development 7.2 BT#RE

The Group prioritizes the growth and development of
our employees by providing diverse career opportunities
and access to extensive learning resources. Our goal is
to support continuous professional advancement while
fostering a culture of lifelong learning.

7.2.1 Employee Promotion

The Group has established a structured and
transparent promotion pathway to support talent
development. Evaluations are conducted in line with
the Performance Evaluation Management Measures
(Trial) and aligned with strategic priorities. Key
factors such as safety compliance, annual leave
usage, attendance, and non-operational penalties
are integrated into the assessment process. A
dedicated evaluation committee meets monthly to
conduct objective reviews. In 2024, we introduced
a multi-dimensional evaluation system to better
recognize and promote talent.

Our framework is structured, discipline-specific, and
comprehensive, ensuring that all relevant criteria
are considered. To enhance fairness and accuracy,
we standardized the evaluation process, clearly
defining each stage—from data collection and
validation to variance analysis, corrective actions,
and performance improvement. This approach
ensures transparency and consistency across all
assessments.

Monthly Quarterly
Pre-Settlement Assessment Balance Assessment

AEFGZREZR FEFHEEX

AEBESEEREINZHER &
BETRETZTOREKREMEFR
MBEXEREHE - AR - ZAETER
FEIHMBEBERE  TEEENEE
BR BHETHESXRESTEES -

J21ETEH

AEEDBEBRET —EEBW - EH
METEARE  2HREAL
MR - HPURE(ERE R ERE
WEFT)) THEEEEERT
Ko BRE2EEEEH  FHRR
MITIER - BT HEXRMEZEH
SREHAREZMNASHERS
W ARAREZZES® Y
BETE#ETEZMAEMABANTME -1
—EomME - RAPBERTZHEE
MZZHES - BRETENET
RS B B LEFETTHE -

REREMEOZEMERRF
- RZABRT —EEEDE
B DEE 2ERERNEEEZ
BX BEMARESHEMAAR
THEMEZEBE - RE - PR
BEREZRE - EHBEESE
ERERER 820N
i B R HE AR R TT BN B (E IR £
WHETTRERE - REZZH
BRI -

Annual Comprehensive
Final Settlement Assessment

FEGREREER

Picture: Employee Evaluation System
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MEER(E)

(continued)

7.2 Employee Development (continued) 72 ETERE(HE)
7.2.2 Employee Training 7.2.2 BT

The Group has developed a comprehensive and
diverse training system that supports employees
at every stage of their careers. Our programs
cover professional development, operational
management, safety education, and certification/
recertification, ensuring employees have access
to the skills they need for growth. In 2024, we
conducted training programs for a total of 17,029
participants, accumulating 728,367 training
hours—an average of 43 hours per participant—
with a total investment of RMB 7.8669 million.

AEBBETZITNMEEIE
R BEIRHETHREEHIR
FogEEE 22 E KR
BRBELEENNEZIRE -
UmREITRBERRT K -
RZZEZWF - AEBRARE
2 EE17,029 K » BFE7
ERFiE728,367/NEF - FHAY
X RA3NDE - REHRASRE
#786.698 7T °

Case: The Group’s “Eight Core Safety Protocols” =4l :

training

AEE [ REEE] FI

In September 2024, the Group launched a safety training —Z_PNFENA - REBHELZ T — 5t
program for all underground personnel, emphasizing the % FiA NHFABMLZE2EZIES - R
mastery and implementation of the “Eight Core Safety EIIETBRAA [\ (E&EHE ] HE
Protocols”. Knowledge assessments were conducted to FE@M » WA TERUAGRHRE T Y
verify competency. This initiative reinforced employees’ HINARTHEREE - BilgEE—F
compliance awareness and operational discipline, ensuring 278 THZ 2 B4R I/ERE M - &
strict adherence to critical safety requirements among {RE—{7 N A E#BeEARZIBEA L
underground workers. 2ENR o

Picture: “Eight Core Safety Protocols”
AN Sl

Training
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MEER(E)
(continued)

7.2 Employee Development (continued) 72 ETERE(HE)
7.2.2 Employee Training (continued) 7225 T 5 (E
Case: The Group’s compensation design training =G| NEBEFH BRI

In May 2024, the Group organized a training activity titted —Z P4 H A - AEBELE T A (B
“Breaking Through with Compensation Design — Salary  [# ] ®RE—B® T EEEEHTH
Structure Optimization under State-Owned Enterprises’ FENzRET) AE@AEIEE - JEER
Total Wage Control”. The event invited nationally 7 BEANMBEMETRE  £EEBAN
renowned experts to deliver lectures, with participation %EEERKE  SEMEEEFTAR
from all members of the Group’'s Human Resources and # B E 8 4088 A2 00T HREES o ZX
Labor Relations Department, production supervisors JXIBFIIRFAFHINEIEREE - BLEFHMD
from each mine/plant, compensation specialists, and EEXR  HE—FHIPESLSHE -
over 40 personnel. This training enhanced compensation

management capabilities, optimized the salary distribution

system, and further advanced the enterprise’s high-quality

development.

Picture: Compensation design training
B R
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MBEHLA(E)
(continued)

7.2 Employee Development (continued) 72 ETERE(HE)
7.2.2 Employee Training (continued) 7225 T (4%E)

Case: The Group’s monorail crane operator safety =] : XEEEH B IAKNT D BRIELE
training £l

In February 2024, the Group organized a specialized Z—ZE-W&E_ A @ KREEAE T —I55
four-day training program for monorail crane operators, Ef4KHEH B Rl FIE I - HE57F
engaging 80 participants. The curriculum covered 80AX ° IBIANTRE T BT B HIRIE
equipment operation standards, safety protocols, and R&i - Z2BZUREZERIE A - B
emergency response procedures. By combining theories BIE:mEMRETIERERIBEANTR -
and practices, trainees developed a heightened awareness 8 T iSEEEHNRERE T2 FAH
of operational risks and demonstrated measurable 2% 2 ERNEERESIBEER
improvements in safety consciousness and technical Ff o

proficiency.

lllll ‘Il‘llmt ikl

“W“WL g. -!H

Picture: Monorail crane operator safety training
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7.
(continued)
7.2 Employee Development (continued) 72 ETRRE(E)

7.2.2 Employee Training (continued) 7225 T 25 (4E)

B AREEHEERASRERAE

Case: Special operations personnel capability

enhancement training at the Group

In 2024, the Group implemented a Specialized Skills
Upgrading Program for critical position holders across all
subsidiaries, aiming to elevate occupational competencies,
strengthen safety awareness, and reduce workplace
incidents. The training focused on four core modules,
job hazard identification, standard operating procedures
compliance, advanced safety protection systems, and
emergency response and evacuation protocols. Through
comprehensive safety education initiatives, the program
enhanced employees’ practical problem-solving capabilities
in high-risk scenarios, effectively fortifying the Group’s
multi-tiered safety production defense system.

gl

“TOF  AEERRTIIBE B
AREUREARNBERSR LS
B ORIPEEZEEN  FRIFET
FEEREABREREI - RRE
m%mumﬁ;&%u RIERE - Z20
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ﬁi?ﬁlﬁ
h e

¥EoR B TRORERR
EEREEER -
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Picture: Special operatlons personnel capability enhancement training
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MBEHLA(E)
(continued)

7.2 Employee Development (continued) 72 ETERE(HE)
7.2.2 Employee Training (continued) 7225 T (4%E)

Case: New Standardization Framework Training of the 224 : A& @ [#HZEE/L | 53
Group

In November 2024, a standardization training program was —Z PO +—F » HFIEEEE T
conducted for 524 management and technical personnel, Z24ERMEEREAS - SIEREI
including safety production technicians, mine supervisors, 48K F&IE A B IA R & HEZ R R
and standardization department staff. The program ZAE @ BE T FELE(LIE| - 28 A
addressed gaps in daily standardization practices through E{Z5F524 AKX o R IFIIBREFIZE

in-depth analysis of updated criteria. Expert lectures and EVEFARARIE - 5 EMREE( B EEE
interactive workshops were utilized to enhance integrated BIZFHENEEETE @ A HEEEEAN
management competencies. BB - BRRAT2IABNES

RAEBEKFE -

Picture: New Standardization Framework Training
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7.

(continued)

7.2 Employee Development (continued)

7.2.2 Employee Training (continued)

Table: Employees Training of the Group

B
Bh

gHEgR
& @

A5 KA ()

72 ETERRE(HE)

7225 T35 (&

® I AEEEIZIER

Divided by 2024 2023 2022
EpagcRit) —EoNE —T-o=F T
Employee attendance by gender  Male employees 16,007 34,077 36,789
RUERIBI DR IAR S8T
Female employees 1,022 2,175 2,429
ZET
Average training hours by gender Male employees 44 110 120
RIERIE D BT X/ 8L S8T
Female employees 20 70 80
ZET
Employee attendance by category Senior management 77 165 27
RESHREDHFIAR SEET
Middle management 131 280 77
REET
Employees 16,821 35,807 38,173
ERET
Average training hours by category Senior management 37 40 41
RERERESHFHXINEY SEET
Middle management 45 44 50
TEET
Employees 43 110 120

LTEET
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY
(continued)

7.3 Care for Employees

The Group takes a holistic approach to employee well-
being, continuously improving benefits programs,
organizing cultural and sports activities, and providing
targeted support for those in need. We also recognize
and address the unique needs of female employees.

7.3.1 Benefits for Employees

The Group strictly adheres to national laws and
regulations, making complete contributions to
employees’ social insurance and housing funds to
protect their rights. Beyond statutory holidays, we
offer additional welfare leave to promote a healthy
work-life balance.

To support employees’ daily needs, we provide
subsidized, nutritious meals, ensuring access to
high-quality food at affordable prices. During
festive seasons, we celebrate together by offering
generous holiday gifts, fostering a sense of
belonging and community. Furthermore, we have
implemented a Critical lliness Assistance Program
for employees, demonstrating our genuine care
for staff facing hardships. In 2024, we provided
assistance to 27 employees suffering from critical
illnesses, with a cumulative investment exceeding
RMB104,100.

“FEFR ERBLEREEBRAF 149

73 EI@E
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731 5TEU
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MEER(E)
(continued)

7.3 Care for Employees (continued)

7.3.1

Benefits for Employees (continued)

73EITHEE(E)

731 ETHEH (&

Case: Spring Festival care for frontline employees

During the 2024 Spring Festival holiday, the Group’s
Party Committee and trade union jointly organized a
targeted care program for employees in need. They
visited employees’ homes to offer warmth and support,
inspected their living conditions, listened to their concerns,
and took proactive measures to ensure they had a joyful
and comfortable Spring Festival. The senior leadership
visited frontline worksites to extend holiday greetings
to employees who remained on duty. They engaged in
heartfelt conversations, expressed gratitude for their
dedication, and conveyed festive wishes, ensuring
employees felt valued and appreciated by the organization.

=P BHEBA-KET

“TENEEHRY SEEZMNIE
EEAB THRBES ITMNHERARE
B RABTIHRS  XERKERE
HATERE TR - BERFR
WiRGREEEE B NEEE T8 —{E
BEEMER - KRERERIMRAEE
— & HEFTHEUNETETERE
B TR - Rt I =21
o WX EEARRE - EE TR E
EEAREMEE

Picture: Spring Festival Care for Front
CRERE—RET

line Employees
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @)

7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MEER(E)
(continued)

7.3 Care for Employees (continued) 73EIBEE(HE)

7.3.1 Benefits for Employees (continued) 731 5TEU(E

Case: The Group’s Mid-Autumn Festival care program  fl : AEBHNEREED

Prior to the 2024 Mid-Autumn Festival, the Group Z—ZT_PERETAT - AEERBOEHE
prepared and distributed a variety of festival care packages, YW M T ZBEMSHEE R @ AT
extending heartfelt greetings to employees and their K&HZ A#RK—HB50HEN H R E - 18
families. This initiative fostered a festive atmosphere while ¥Rffi HARERSE - 35 —A5% T 4L
demonstrating corporate care, ensuring every employee felt R F| A &) #9580 BRI E -

valued and supported.

P MERES
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE 2K
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @E)

7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MEER(E)
(continued)

7.3 Care for Employees (continued) 7.3ETB@E(E)
7.3.1 Benefits for Employees (continued) 7.3.1 ET{EA (&)
Case: Deliver heat relief in hot summer RO KRB AEFFEE

In the summer of 2024, the Group launched a Cooling —ZT-FEZ= AEBEBGHARE [
Relief Program for frontline workers, distributing heatstroke 5% | J&®) - AERSFIE T{ERAL - EVEE
prevention kits with chilled beverages and medical supplies  T{F3xZ=BE0BIE - HAPTERE TIBRK
to all operational sites. This targeted initiative safequarded & « T2 EEREYE - WHHF K EL
employee health amid extreme heat through systematic {EIRI5 @ MRFEE THE S RIRE THE
resource allocation. FRARRE -

Picture: Deliver heat relief in hot summer
KRB HKBFREH
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MEER(E)
(continued)

7.3 Care for Employees (continued) 7.3ETB@E(E)
7.3.2 Recreational Activity 7.3.2 X 58
The Group organizes diverse recreational activities to AEEBEBARSEXRSY
enrich employees’ daily lives. In 2024, we organized a EEETEHSEN  BLOXIER
series of activities, to allow every employee to enjoy the HIEE) c BEEPIBME TRMWET
beauty of life beyond work. B2t EXHEFEREL o

Case: “Fushan Cup” staff basketball tournament in 4| : ¥I#E B LM | BITERE
Liulin County

In May 2024, the Group hosted the Liulin County “Fushan Z—Z_—PFH A - KEBE RPN T HIHRE
Cup” Staff Basketball Tournament, promoting cultural and  [#f@IU#F | B TEHE = TR T
sports engagement among staff. The event fostered cross- SCEEAVE @ B B AL MMM 1
departmental collaboration, strengthened team cohesion, £ E—F A TAEGK S S FEE
and instilled a sense of collective pride through competitive 452 R o

sportsmanship.

\2 28 1 4 i, 4 ol
E i | » ) A
. =~ A T » = iy .o | -—
m_ ' 2 ot

Picture: “Fushan Cup” staff basketball tournament in Liulin County
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE 2K
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @E)

7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MEER(E)
(continued)

7.3 Care for Employees (continued) 73 ETREE(E)

7.3.2 Recreational Activity (continued) 732X FETE(E)

Case: “Pioneering the New Era: Women in Excellence” R : [FEE2HEA » mEsEFE ]
March 8th Red Banner Award Ceremony ENAEFERETS

In March 2024, during the International Women’s Day, —Z P4 [= ] WL &HHM @ K&
we recognized 66 recipients of the March 8th Red Banner EEHGAMFE T REZEH Y&
Award, selected from across departments and operational F§ - & B FE E 6645 [ = /\AL5E
units. These honorees demonstrated exceptional dedication F | #7177 R EE) - FL [ = )\4LE
and selfless service in their respective roles, embodying the F | & B TIEEA s « &

ethos and commitment of women in the new era. FER  BRTHER MR EHE
% o

P e

IEEFREHE e

Ay

b & &

Picture: “Pioneering the New Era: Women in Excellence” March 8th Red Banner Award Ceremony

D [HREBHEBK - MEENE| = \AEFERZED
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MEER(E)

(continued)

7.3 Care for Employees (continued) 73 ETEE(E

7.3.3 Communication with Employees

73358 TEHF

BB LEREEERLE

155

The Group has established open and transparent
communication channels to ensure employees
have a voice in corporate operations and decision-
making. Through bottom-up mechanisms, we
safeguard employees’ rights to participation, access
to information, and oversight of management
practices. Regular employee representative
congresses provide a platform to address concerns
and encourage open dialogue. To strengthen
employee representation, we continuously refine
election processes, ensuring representatives
genuinely reflect the voices of the broader
workforce. Additionally, anonymous reporting
boxes offer a confidential space for employees to
share feedback and suggestions. In 2024, we held a
human resources policy seminar to assess employee
satisfaction with the Company’s policies.

B AFBIRRAGE

AEBEZTATM ENEBEK
B MABIELELEERE
hR2EE NBERENEEES
ANEMRE - RPEHMEFRBT
REXRE REIEBHFRKEHF
e BHPISEERR TRRE
A BB TEEREE - BRR
THREREREERREASETH
DB g BPIRETRBR

B EREIERREMBERE
o RZTE-MF - RAFEERT
ANEREE#E  THET
HRBGIENREE

Picture: Staff and Workers’ Representative Congress
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MEER(E)

(continued)

7.4 Community Building 7.4 HEHAI

The Group takes an active role in social welfare and
corporate responsibility, working closely with local
communities to support their development. Through
diverse public welfare projects, we contribute to long-
term social progress and community well-being.

7.4.1 Communicating with Communities

We actively engage with local communities,
strengthening mutual trust through regularly
organized community activities. During the
reporting period, we volunteered a total of 1,530
hours.

ER—ZEAHGEMERNEE - K
SEFERFHERNEEE  HBEE
THEEE - RMNBEMHLERZES
5 BEFRSELAZBEBENES -
RHEERBEBMNE -

7.4.1 ¢ EEE

BRMEGEL RETHG AR
TFHAMEREESHFERLE S
METR - REBA - ZMNE
FEAR S A RE R 31,530/ B ©

Case: Resident rights protection in operational zones

In 2024, to address geological hazards and dispute
petitions, we conducted field investigations and
negotiations to resolve land damage compensation issues
in Caojiashan, Liuxi, and other villages. Meanwhile, we
successfully facilitated timely resolutions for the unblocking
and dredging of Shipan Shangguan Well, the renovation
of water facilities in Chenjiawan Village related to Zhaiyadi
Coal Mine, and the parking lot upgrades at Zhaiyadi Coal
Mine. These efforts effectively maintained local social
stability and safeguarded residents’ rights.

Rp| - BEHERERER

—ECNF - pEBREHMELER
B2 RIBEEMRAEERRE - TR T
BRI RSN LHREBEHES
H - [ RAREHEHERT AR E
BMAEERE  REERBESRZER
IKRIEERE  RERRBRESUIES
BH - AHHETEHHERENER
R o

Picture: The unblocking and dredging of Shipan Shangguan Well
AR ARG RE
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7. CREATING A HARMONIOUS COMMUNITY 7. MEHAA(E)
(continued)
7.4 Community Building (continued) 7.4 HEHAI(E)
7.4.2 Charity Donation 7.4.2 Rz 158
The Group upholds the philanthropic mindset of KEBFATRZAMTE - BER
‘giving back to society in gratitude for what we HEINARER HEEFEX
receive,’” supporting public donation initiatives by 15*“ . Fﬁﬁﬁ NEBIEES -

leveraging our industry strengths. In 2024, total RZZE-NF - HMEFFERAR
donations amounted to RMB1.963 million. i §$L196.3,%71: °

Case: “Charity Day Donation” campaign Rl [HE—AB] E
In 2024, the Group proactively fulfilled its social —ZT & - KREBEEKRET Ti‘%‘ﬁ
responsibilities by actively participating in the “Charity {f @ BERZENMNGZEZD [EE

Day Donation” campaign organized by Liulin County. 8| J&&) o %I@%ﬁ’iﬁ%élé}ﬁiﬁ/u

Mobilizing all employees to engage in compassionate 188 - AFEEBHBIEFEE D -
contributions, we channeled collective goodwill to support 878 #H 7 & B A B /Y& 7+ Eﬁgjﬁﬁ‘;ﬁﬁiﬁ
vulnerable communities. These individual acts of kindness HEHEWHWEEMAE @ AEENERES
converged into an ocean of care, spreading warmth EiAE o

throughout society and advancing the building of a

harmonious homeland.

Case: “Golden Autumn Education Support” program 26 [£MBIE | BERHT

In 2024, the “Golden Autumn Education Support” Program — & _E¢ AEBHRRT [
provided financial assistance to 178 employee families, £ | PRBEEE) - LB H T178@EBT
distributing over 312,000 yuan to help alleviate educational = EE - ﬁ{@{Fﬁﬁm}%T—?ﬁtfﬁﬁ’ﬂéﬁﬁz
expenses. This initiative allowed employees to focus on & o HFIFHFFEMENESL31 288 7T

their work without financial concerns while demonstrating
our commitment to supporting them and their children.In
2024, we have cumulatively invested over RMB310,000 in
funding support.

tﬂi/ﬂi%THﬁ&I%Emli%/gE% o

TRESE ML O AT TIEFR - R
HEETHRMEBIREFLZNERE -
RZZE_WE - HMERARAEHE
B31ERETT °
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE 2K
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) EXH|E @)

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE B ER
Location
Subject Areas in this
and Aspects General Disclosures and KPIs Report
IS fE —REERERENEE WEMNE
A. Environmental
A RIE
A1 Emissions General Disclosure P120,
BEAT : By Information on: P124
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RAR IR EE
BREBERVEN - MKRLHHEES BERBEREEVNEESH
(@) BZE: &
(b) BEFHBETABEAZEMNBBEEZLEMNER -
o OBERENEBEERELEY  MEtVREMFEREAZRBEIRENSTLEY -
EEEEMEEARROMRES -
A1.1The types of emissions and respective emissions data. P127
AV BRI E SR AR B HERREUR -
A1.2Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in | P119
tons) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
AM2EE (HBE) kitREE (8E2) BERBEEKRE (UEE) & (1@
B) BE (MWABESEMN - §ERMETE)
A1.3Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate, intensity | P127
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
AMIFEAEEEEYEE (UETE) &k (WER) BE (WS ESE -
BIEFZETE) o
A1.4Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate, | P127
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
AMAFMEEEEREYBE (UEE) & (EA) 2E (WASESEM -
SEFBETE) o
A1.5Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. P122,
A SHFTRTI VN E B E R AERE LB ZMERNTE - P125-
P126
A1.6Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a | P122,
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. P125-
AMGHMRIEEERBEREYN AL MBI HWBEBERAEDEL | P126

BIZFTEREUE TR -
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE (continued) BERXFTiEE (&
Location
Subject Areas in this
and Aspects General Disclosures and KPIs Report
HRERET —REERBRERIER REVE
A2: Use of General Disclosure P121,
Resource Policies on the efficient use of resources (including energy, water and other raw | P130
BHEA2 : BIR{E materials)
A — R
BRERAER (BREER - KREMRME) BBEK -
g BRAUAREE @7 E& - BF  ETREF
A2.1Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) | P132
in total (kWh in’ 000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
A2 NRBRESNERE R SHEEZEER (NE - fdoh) L8 (UTETRE
HHE) REE (MUESESE( - BERBE) -
A2.2Total water consumption and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | P133
per facility).
A22BFREBREE (MASEBEN BRREAE) -
A2.3Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | P130-
them. P131
A2 3T FTRT M W BEIRE A s B R R RERE L B R R P -
A2.4Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for | P132-
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. P133
A2 ARUSKERGE R KR LRI B ERIRERE - ARPREI AR m B R R AESE
LE B IRPEREREY T BR
A2.5Total packaging material used for finished products (in tons) and, if | Not
applicable, with reference to per unit produced. applicable
A2 SEXGBETRBREMBNEE (LEE) k (WER) SEEEMNER - TEA
A3: The General Disclosure P135
Environment and | Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and
Natural Resources | natural resources.
BEA3:RRR | —REE  REFTABRREERAERERNERNTZEHNBEE -
RER
: Lz A3.1Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and | P136-
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. P138

AN RS EBHIRBERRAERNEAZENE KR EEAATENTTH -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE 2K
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) EXH|E @)

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE (continued) BERXFTiEE (&
Location
Subject Areas in this
and Aspects General Disclosures and KPIs Report
Ei IS B g —REERBRERIER HENE
B. Social
BALE
Employment and Labor Standards
BEMALSTERE
B1: Employment General Disclosure P139-
EEB1 : BF Information on: P140
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— R
BAHFMERE  BELEA  TERE - RE - FERES  Zlb - RERNA
N E MRS AR A
(@) BUK: K&
(b) BFHBETABEATENHEERKLROIEER -
B1.1Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-or part-time), | P140
age group and geographical region.
B1.1#RMRI - EEHEE (MERFEE) - Ficdp Mtz DNESEE -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. P141
B1.21zM R - FirRIMRE DERRKLLE -
B2: Health and General Disclosure P76
Safety Information on:
[BTEB2 : EFEH (a) the policies; and
ZE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
— R EE
FRRMZE2TERERREBEEREBEMLEN
(@ BER: &
(b) BFHBITABEATENHMERRAOEER -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three | P78
years including the reporting year.
B21BE=ZF (BEEHRFE) SFRITHMABRRLEE -
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. P78
B22EATIBIBARTERE -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how | P79-
they are implemented and monitored. P83

B2 3 AT R B R IERER 256 - AMBBEATRERTA -
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GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRHRE®@®
HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE (continued) BERXFTiEE (&
Location
Subject Areas in this
and Aspects General Disclosures and KPIs Report
HRERET —REERBRERIER HENE
B3: Development | General Disclosure P142-
and Training Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at | P148
[EMEB3 : HEX work. Description of training activities.
=l — R
AR EEETLIEBE M REREMBUR s EE -
i BIEREEY  AeEREENENRNIMNIRE -
B3.1The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category | P148
(e.g., senior management, middle management).
B3.1RMAREEER (NESRERE  FREEE) EHPNXIEEED -
B3.2The average training hours completed per employee by gender and | P148
employee category.
B3.2 M AI RIEBHEFIED - BREETHRX I FIIRE -
B4: Labor General Disclosure P139
Standards Information on:
[BEB4 : BT % (a) the policies; and
Al (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labor.
— PRI ER
BRI IEE T ka6 TH) :
(@ HxE: M
(b) BFHBEITABEATENHEERKLRADIEER
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and | P139
forced labor.
B4.1 f AR AT B RSB HI M iE AR R B T ko8 HI55 T o
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. P139

B4.2 it B IVE RIS A HR BRI SUATR R P8R -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BiE 2K
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) EXH|E @)

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE (continued) BERXFTiEE (&
Location
Subject Areas in this
and Aspects General Disclosures and KPIs Report
HRERET —REERBRERIER REVE
Operating Practices
EEEN
B5: Supply Chain General Disclosure P71
Management Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
EEBS - — R
HrEg e ERHEENRERTSRARBOR -
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. P71
B5. 1R B DV ERIERE -
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers | P72
where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
BS.2 it ERAIE BRI BN - MEMITAMENNHEREE - ARIEEH
TRERTEA -
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along | P73
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BS.3fut BB RIHEEEEREGHNIRE R SERNED - ARAEBHITRE
BIE o
B5.4Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable | P73

products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

BS.4 Mt A BE HIE R R Z M IRIREMMBRBHERN - UAREFERTRERS
E e
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RE HEEK
GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued) BRI E @)
HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE (continued) B iE R ()
Location
Subject Areas in this
and Aspects General Disclosures and KPIs Report
Ei IS B g —RIFBERBRENER HENE
B6: Product General Disclosure P59
Responsibility Information on:
[ETEB6 : (a) the policies; and
EmEFE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
—MRARER
BRFFREERNRBNRREELZ S - EERLBEEARBRTER
() Bk Kk
(b) BETFEHBITATEAZENEBEZRROINER
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and | P62
health reasons.
B IEEXEEXEMEHRTRL2REFEMMARKKNBE L
B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how they | P70
are dealt with.
B6.2 BN E m R IR AR FE B AR EE % o
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual | P69
property rights.
B6.3 Ml ERAETE KR AR ERER AER -
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. P62
B6. 4l B EinE BIE NEMBKIZSF -
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies and how they | P69

are implemented and monitored.

B6.5 HMUH B H ERMRIE RFLRBEER - UREBRITRERTE -
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SRR )

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE (continued) BRArieZE (&)

Subject Areas
and Aspects

General Disclosures and KPIs

Location
in this
Report

SREER

—REBERBERERER

RENVE

B7: Anti-
corruption
[EHEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) Policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— MR R

BRI IR - $1R - BMFFROARER ¢

(@ B &

(b) BFHETABEATENHBEERLRDIHER -

P56

B7.1Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

B7 I REHRBAHETAXEEERLI EEENETHRDRMTNEE KFDRE
2o

P56

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and
how they are implemented and monitored.
B7.2 P EitE e R RRIZ T - A RABBERITRER % -

P58

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
B73MiimEERE TRHARESHE -

P57

Community

ol

B8: Community
Investment
[EMEBS : #L[@I%

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

—BRE

AR BLER T REEFRELBRBNBRALHEHEE BB ROK

o

;ﬁa

P156-
P157

B8.1Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labor
needs, health, culture, sport).
BS. 1B X HEEE (WHE  REFTHE B ITER - f#FE - b - B5) -

P156-
P157

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

B2 A IEIBAMEMER (MEEHKHE) -

P156-
P157
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BiE 2K
BERHE @)

B Fris R (&)

Location
Subject Areas in this
and Aspects General Disclosures and KPIs Report
HRERET —REERBRERIER REVE
D. Climate Change
DE87 : MIRIERAHEE
Governance P105-
BR P106
Strategy P107
B
Risk Management P107-
[ fe 3 P118
Metrics and Targets P119
EEMBR
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Below are the Directors’ Biographies as of the date of this annual
report:

Mr. Ding Rucai, aged 60, had acted as a deputy general manager
of the Company since August 2014, then was appointed as the
vice chairman of the Board, an Executive Director and managing
director of the Company in September 2014 and was re-
designated as the Chairman from 29 January 2018. Mr. Ding is
also the chairman of each of the Executive Committee and the
Nomination Committee, and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Ding is a senior engineer in professor grade. He graduated
from the School of Metallurgical and Ecological Engineering of
the University of Science and Technology Beijing with a doctoral
degree in ferrous metallurgy, he also studied senior business
administration in the University of Warwick, United Kingdom. Mr.
Ding has extensive experience in management of listed companies,
mergers and acquisitions, production management of steel and
coal industries, project construction management, trading of iron
ore and coking coal resources and shipping management.

Previously, Mr. Ding was an executive director and the deputy
managing director of Shougang Concord International Enterprises
Company Limited (now known as Shoucheng Holdings)
(SEHK:697), a listed company in Hong Kong.

Currently, Mr. Ding is a non-executive director of Mount Gibson
Iron Limited (ASX:MGX), a company listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange Limited. He also holds several senior positions
in the group companies of Shougang Group, including the
positions as a director and deputy managing director of Shougang
Holding.

EE/ENT
W FAREAFHEBOEFEN

T&ARE 605 BT —WFNAETA
RAZBIBRE B HER-_T—mFHH
BEZERESZTSRIEIE HTESHRAQAE
Tl YH_TE—NF—A=-t+ LBk
EEEFE TARENDANABRNITEZEESNES
LZEEGZER RARRETHWERARZES -

TEERBBERASHRIREM - WEBENILRE
RABreEARTIESZR  YREHS LS
B2 RASERBERASHESRT
BER - TEERERLETAR - WEAH -
MEMERECEEEER BHAEIRER &
AMERERES MEEEITEBHAFLE
B e

BE - TEECEEZTELTRARERERE
EERNF CGEMERZER)(SEHK:697) Z #1T
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Z 2 aMount Gibson Iron Limited (ASX:MGX)
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EEEKE -



—E I FFR

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

Mr. Fan Wenli, aged 45, was appointed Executive Director and
managing director of the Company in November 2019. He is also
a member of the Executive Committee and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Fan is a senior mining engineer and a certified safety engineer.
He graduated from Wuhan University of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in mining resources engineering and then
obtained a master’s degree in mining engineering from University
of Science and Technology Beijing.

Previously, Mr. Fan held various senior positions in Mining
Corporation of Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Mining”)
and had been responsible for mining production and operation
safety for a long time. Mr. Fan served as the deputy mine manager
of the iron ore production plants of Shougang Mining, namely
Xingshan Iron Mine (underground mine) and Shuichang Iron
Mine (open-pit mine). He also served as the deputy director and
the director of production division of Shougang Mining during
which he facilitated the commencement of production and the
arrival at mine full production capacity of Xingshan Iron Mine. Mr.
Fan has extensive management experience both in open-pit and
underground mines.

Mr. Chen Zhaoqiang, aged 57, was appointed Executive Director
and deputy managing director of the Company in January 2010.
He is also a member of the Executive Committee and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Chen graduated from Jiaozuo Mining Institute with a bachelor
degree majoring in mining engineering and obtained a master
degree in management science from Huazhong University of
Science & Technology and a finance executive master of business
administration from Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance of
Shanghai Jiao Tong University. He has extensive experience in
coal mining industry including in the areas of production safety
management for coal mining, purchase and logistics management,
mineral resources development and coal trading.

Previously, Mr. Chen had engaged in many important posts in coal
mining enterprises, including in Pingdingshan Coal Co. Ltd., Henan
Pingbao Coal Co. Ltd., and Henan Company for Coal Seam Gas
Development & Application.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

Mr. Wang Dongming, aged 50, was appointed Executive Director
in June 2020 and further appointed as a deputy managing director
of the Company in November 2021. He is also a member of the
Executive Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Wang graduated from the University of Wales with a master
degree in business administration. He has extensive experience in
the fields of trading of mineral resources, investment and capital
operation, and has also been awarded the practicing certificates in
the asset management and securities categories by the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute respectively.

Mr. Wang had been working in Shougang Group for years, during
which he served as the assistant general manager of Shougang
International Mineral Resources Corporation to handle various
overseas acquisition projects in relation to mineral resources. He
had also acted as the assistant general manager of the Company.
Mr. Wang had been the general manager of the investment
department at Shougang Holding prior to his appointment as a
deputy managing director of the Company in 2021.

Ms. Chang Cun, aged 46, was appointed Non-executive Director
of the Company in July 2018, and was appointed member of the
Audit Committee in March 2024.

Ms. Chang is a certified public accountant in China and a certified
internal auditor. She holds a bachelor degree in economics from
Beijing Institute of Business and a master degree in management
from Beijing Technology and Business University. Ms. Chang
has extensive experience in accounting, auditing, financial and
insurance businesses.

Previously, Ms. Chang held various positions in FunDe Sino Life.

Currently, she is the director, deputy general manager and chief
auditor of FunDe Insurance Holdings Co., Ltd, the director and
chief auditor of FunDe Sino Life, the chief auditor of Sino Life
AMC, and also the chief supervisor of The National Trust Co., Ltd
respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

Mr. Shi Yubao, aged 71, was appointed Non-Executive Director
and member of the Remuneration Committee in September 2019,
and was re-designated as Independent Non-executive Director in
March 2024. In May 2024, Mr. Shi was appointed as a member
of the Audit Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee
and the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee respectively.

Mr. Shi is a senior economist and a senior political affairs specialist.
He graduated from Chongging University with a master degree in
business administration. Mr. Shi has extensive experience in the
fields of corporate management, strategic planning and economic.

Previously, Mr. Shi held various senior positions in Chongging
Changan Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. including the chairman of
its board of directors, chairman of its labour union, general
manager, etc. In addition, he served as the factory director of the
automobile manufacturing plants of the Changan Automobile
(Group) Company Limited, the chairman of the board of directors
of Chongqging Changan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and
Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd., a company listed
in Hong Kong, respectively, and the chairman of supervisory
committee of Chongging Changan Automobile Co., Ltd., a
company listed in Shenzhen. Mr. Shi also served as the external
director of Shougang Group. Mr. Shi was a member of the 14th
and 15th executive committee of China National General Labour
Union, a member of the 2nd and 3rd labour union committee of
Chongging General Labour Union and a member of the expert
group jury panel of Chongging Enterprise Management Excellence
Evaluation Committee.

Currently, he is the independent director of Chengdu Haoneng
Technology Co., Ltd. (SSE: 603809), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

Mr. Choi Wai Yin, aged 66, was appointed Independent Non-
executive Director in July 2004 and is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of each of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Choi holds a master degree of science in finance from the
City University of Hong Kong, a bachelor degree in business
administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a bachelor degree in law from the Peking University. He
has extensive experience in the fields of finance and fund
management.

Currently, he serves as a director and a responsible officer of Fargo
Asset Management Limited, an SFC licensed company. Mr. Choi is
also an investment adviser registered under the SFO.

Mr. Chen Jianxiong, aged 66, was appointed Independent
Non-executive Director in June 2020 and is a member of each of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
respectively.

Mr. Chen is a senior economist and a senior human resources
management specialist. He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist
University with a master of science degree in applied accounting
and finance.

Previously, Mr. Chen was an executive director of China Orient
Asset Management Co., Ltd. and had held various senior positions
there including the vice president, the board secretary and the
general manager of human resources department. He also served
sequentially as the chairman of the board of directors of Bangxin
Asset Management Co., Ltd. and Orient Bangxin Finance Holding
Co., Ltd. In addition, he had served as the head of deposits division
and head of personnel and education division of Bank of China
Zhejiang Branch. Mr. Chen has extensive experience in the fields of
corporate management, economic and finance, human resources
and banking.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

Mr. Li Zeping, aged 64, was appointed Independent Non-
executive Director in September 2024 and is a member of each
of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
respectively.

Mr. Li graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist University with
a master of science degree in applied accounting and finance.
He has extensive experience in financial asset management and
corporate governance.

Previously, Mr. Li works at the Bank of China Head Office’s
Oriental Trust and Investment Company (now Bank of China’s
investment management department). He later held several senior
management positions at China Orient Asset Management Co.,
where he was responsible for supervisory management, human
resource management, investment management, and asset
disposal review. Additionally, he has served as a director of Golden
Credit Rating International Co., Ltd., chairman of the supervisors
board at China National Foreign Trade Financial & Leasing Co.,
Ltd., chief supervisor of Bangxin Asset Management Co., Ltd., and
supervisor (General Manager level) of the Comprehensive Planning
and Strategic Coordination Department of China Orient Asset
Management Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has organized the engagement of
accounting firms to conduct audits and due diligence on regulatory
bodies’ boards, accumulating extensive experience of over 10
years in financial asset management and corporate governance.
He has demonstrated exceptional expertise in supervising the
performance of boards and senior management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to safeguard the interests of
all shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG
Code during the year under review.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the Company for
Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year under review.

Employees who are likely to possess inside information in relation
to the Company or its shares are required to prohibit from dealing
in Shares during the black-out period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of 9 (8 male and 1 female)
Directors, being 4 Executive Directors, 1 Non-executive Director
and 4 Independent Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors
is set out in the section headed “Directors’ report” of this annual
report. In addition, an updated list of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company respectively.

The Board is characterised by significant diversity with mixed-
gender and has a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
Directors’ biographical information is set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Biographies” of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition (continued)

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. All Directors are required to disclose to the Company
at the time of their appointment and to provide the number and
the nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments with an indication of the time
involved annually.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” of this annual report, the Board members have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with each other.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is a sufficient independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) are of sufficient number and calibre for their views to

carry weight. The functions of Non-executive Directors include:

o bringing an independent judgement at Board meetings;

taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
. serving on Board committees if invited; and

e scrutinising the Company’'s performance and monitoring
performance reporting.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development of
the Group strategy and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments. They give the Board and the committees
on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent Non-
executive Directors are identified, in all corporate communications
to shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 28 August 2013 which sets out its approach
to achieve diversity on the Board with a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development of the Group.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The board will review the implementation and effectiveness of its
board diversity policy annually.

As of 31 December 2024, the Company had nine Directors, one of
whom was female, representing approximately 11% of the Board.
The Board targets to maintain the existing proportion of female
in the Board to maintain gender diversity and will continue to
increase the proportion of female members in the future if suitable
candidates are available. For more information on the measures
the Company has adopted to evaluate potential candidates to
achieve diversity, please refer to the “Nomination Committee”
section of this report.

As of 31 December 2024, approximately 12.25% of the Group’s
employees were female. For details of gender distribution, please
refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in
this annual report. For the time being, we do not face the issue
of the supply of female personnel in the human resources market
not matching the qualifications, experience and skills required for
positions within the Group. Nonetheless, we are committed to
creating favorable conditions in our working environment to hire
more female staff based on the qualifications, experience and skills
required.
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(continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
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Director Nomination Policy

The Company adopted a director nomination policy (the “Director
Nomination Policy”) on 12 December 2018 which sets out the
criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of
directors of the Company, in order to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company, and ensure the Board continuity and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

According to the selection criteria of the Director Nomination
Policy, the Nomination Committee will carry out evaluation
on candidates by considering their character, professional
qualifications, skills, experience, independence (in case of
Independent Non-executive Directors), gender and time
commitment and then make recommendation to the Board based
on the nomination procedure. The Nomination Committee will
also review the Director Nomination Policy from time to time and
recommend proposed amendments to the Board when necessary
to satisfy the business needs and to ensure its compliance with the
regulatory requirements and maintain good corporate governance
practices.

When an Independent Non-executive Director serving more than
9 years be considered for re-election, the factors considered, the
process and the Board or Nomination Committee’s discussion
in arriving at the determination in the explanation on why
such Independent Non-executive Director is still independent
and should be re-elected would be disclosed in the papers to
shareholders accompanying the relevant resolution. At present,
the Company still considers all the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
operations of the Company to the Executive Committee and the
management within the control and authority framework set
by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Further details of
these committees are set out in this report.
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(continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly and holds at least 4 Board meetings a
year. Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through electronic
means of communication in accordance with the Articles.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up the
agenda of each Board meeting. Draft agenda of each regular
Board meeting will be sent to all Directors for review before the
agenda is issued and all Directors may request for inclusion of
other matters in the agenda. The Chairman will take into account
the matters proposed by the Directors and where appropriate,
approve the inclusion of such matters in the agenda of the Board
meeting. Generally, at least 14-day notice of a regular Board
meeting is given and the Company aims at giving reasonable
notice for all other Board meetings. The Company also aims at
sending the agenda and the accompanying board papers, which
are prepared in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board
to make informed decisions on matters placed before it, to all
Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt and full
responses will be given if possible.

There has been procedure in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon
reasonable request, provide separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them perform their duties to the
Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings and Board committee meetings, draft and final versions
of which would be sent to Directors for comments and records
respectively, within a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes
are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered and
decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or
dissenting views (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings and
Board committees meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
and are open for inspection by any Director/committee member.
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(continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter (including material transaction with connected persons)
which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will
be dealt with by a physical Board meeting, rather than a written
resolution. Independent Non-executive Directors who, and whose
close associates, have no material interest in the transaction should
be present at that Board meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote on
any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or
any other proposal in which he or any of his close associates (or
associates where the transaction or arrangement is a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) has a material
interest nor shall he be counted in the quorum present at the
meeting.

Attendance Records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors
have made active contribution to the affairs of the Group. Subject
to the requirements under the Listing Rules, the Board considered
and approved, among other things, various projects contemplated
by the Group in the form of physical meetings and written
resolutions, and the review and approval of the interim results
and annual results of the Group must be done by way of physical
meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Attendance Records (continued)

Records of the Directors’ attendances at the Board meetings,
Executive Committee meetings, Audit Committee meetings,
Nomination Committee meetings, and Remuneration Committee

meetings in 2024 are as follows:

TRERBWE

(&)

EE2(H)

ij%naﬁ(nﬁ)
EERN T NENEEEESH
& ERZBEegE REZLEE

BegdhFmairmT

&2
==

Number of meeting(s) attended/eligible to attend

HEEERY AEREFERRY

TR8g
&

S

W m9>

Executive Audit Nomination Remuneration

Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
B g8 BTEEE ENEEE REZEE FHEEE
Executive Directors
HITES
Ding Rucai (Chairman) 12/12 3/3 N/ANE 4/4 212
T&A(£E)
Fan Wenli 12/12 3/3 N/AZiE A N/AiE N/ATiE A
BXAH
Chen Zhaogiang 12/12 3/3 N/AT i N/AZ i N/ATR i A
Bk
Wang Dongming 12/12 3/3 N/ANE N/ANE N/ATEF
F£H
Non-executive Director
FHTES
Chang Cun 12/12 N/ATE A 3/3 N/ATNE A N/ATNE A
wF
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Shi Yubao (re-designated as an Independent

Non-executive Director on 30 May 2024) 12/12 N/ATNE A 2/2 2/2 3/3
WEE(R-E_MELA=1HHFLR

BUHHITEE)
Choi Wai Yin 12/12 N/AT 3 3/3 4/4 3/3
£EBE
Japhet Sebastian Law (retired on 30 May 2024) 3/3 N/A3E 11 212 m”n
BXSE(R-—E-—mERA=1HRE)
Chen Jianxiong 12/12 N/AiE A N/AT i 4/4 33
B
Li Zeping (appointed on 24 September 2024) 5/5 N/AZiE A N/AZiE 0/0 0/0

FEYR-F-_MEAA-THARZE)
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(continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Access to Information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and information
by the management to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before it for
approval. The management provides all Board members with
monthly updates which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in sufficient details to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties. Where any Director requires
more information than is volunteered by the management, each
Director has the right to separately and independently access
to the Company’s management to make further enquiries if
necessary.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will give
adequate consideration to the Director Nomination Policy and
Board Diversity Policy, will review the profiles of the candidates,
and will make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re- appointment and nomination of Directors.

According to the Articles, any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy, only until
the next following general meeting of the Company or, in the case
of an addition to their number, until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company, who shall then be eligible for
re-election at such general meeting. Every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation.

None of the existing Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific term, but
they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by
shareholders at annual general meeting pursuant to the Articles.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has appointed 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors and at least one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise, complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The number of Independent Non-executive Directors represents
more than one-third of the Board, complied with Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation regarding the
independence of himself and his immediate family members
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company
ensures independent views and input are available to the Board via
the below mechanisms:

1. The Board composition and the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors should be reviewed
by the Nomination Committee regularly, in particular the
proportion of Independent Non-executive Directors and the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors who
have served for more than nine years;

2. An annual written confirmation should be received by the
Company under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors in relation to his
independence to the Company;

3.  The chairman of the Board should meet with Independent
Non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors at least once annually; and

4. Al members of the Board can seek independent professional
advice when necessary to perform their responsibilities.
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(continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.2.3 of the CG Code, if an
independent non-executive director has served more than 9
years, such director’s further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. The papers to
shareholders accompanying that resolution should state why the
board (or the nomination committee) believes that the director is
still independent and should be re-elected, including the factors
considered, the process and the discussion of the board (or the
nomination committee) in arriving at such determination.

During the year under review, no independent non-executive
directors who have served for over 9 years were required to be re-
elected at the AGM 2024.

Currently, no Independent Non-executive Director concurrently
hold more than six Hong Kong-listed issuers directorships. Each
Independent Non-executive Director has indicated that he is
able to devote sufficient time to the Board’s affairs to fulfil his
responsibilities, and has confirmed that he does not hold any cross
directorship or other significant links with other directors through
involvement in other companies.

Insurance for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers from their
risk exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of
regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practice. Directors are also encouraged to participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company Secretary facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors and the
Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training
for the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

(continued)

All Directors have provided to the Company their records of
training received during the year under review, a summary of

which is as follows:

Continuous professional development

EEg(#)
EERIIREXREE(H)

MEEEEMARAREKENDBEFEARES
EAIMECE: - R

Directors Type (Note |) Subject (Note /i)
B BE (7 A& (i£l)
Ding Rucai A 1,3
% B 1,2,3,4
Fan Wenli A 1,3
SE A B 1,2,3,4
Chen Zhaogiang A 1,3
BRIk 58 B 1,2,3,4
Wang Dongming A 1,3
TR B 1,2,3.4
Chang Cun A 1
FiF B 1,2
Shi Yubao A 1
xS B 1,2
Choi Wai Yin A 1
HEE B 1,2
Japhet Sebastian Law (retired on 30 May 2024) A 1
BXE(R_F_MFRF=—+HRE) B 1,2
Chen Jianxiong A 1
BR32 1 B 1,2
Li Zeping (appointed on 24 September 2024) A 1
PRV _F_FEAH—+PIHEZEE) B 1,2




—E_MEFR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
(continued)

Continuous professional development (continued)

Note I:

A:  Attending seminars, conferences, forums, in-house briefings or in-
house training

B:  Reading newspapers, journals and updates
Note II:

1:  Laws, rules and regulations

2:  Finance, accounting or taxation

3:  Management

4:  Businesses relating to the Group

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of chairman and managing director are separate and
exercised by different individuals to reinforce their independence
and accountability. Mr. Ding Rucai is the Chairman and Mr. Fan
Wenli is the managing director of the Company. The Chairman
provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board
works effectively and performs its responsibilities. The managing
director of the Company has overall chief executive responsibility
for the Group’s business development and day-to-day
management generally. The division of responsibilities between
the Chairman and the managing director of the Company is clearly
established and set out in writing.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
(continued)

The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other
things:

taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established;

ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings, and ensuring that Directors
receive, in a timely manner, adequate information which must
be accurate, clear, complete and reliable;

encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’'s affairs and taking the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of the
Company;

encouraging Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of issues and
ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;

ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communications with shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole; and

promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating
the effective contribution of Non-executive Directors in
particular and ensuring constructive relations between
Executive and Non-executive Directors.

During the year, the Chairman held meeting with the Independent
Non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.
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The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board's responsibilities. All committees have their
own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the committees
will be reported to the Board at the Board meeting where
appropriate.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established in May 2009 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties.

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved for
the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the Group
and has been assigned with the responsibilities to perform the
corporate governance duties as follows:

e to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group’s
employees and Directors;

e to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

e to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in
the constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Executive Committee (continued)

As per the list below, the Executive Committee comprises all
Executive Directors with the Chairman as the chairman of the

committee.

Committee chairman  Ding Rucai

Member Fan Wenli
Member Chen Zhaogiang
Member Wang Dongming

During the year under review, the Executive Committee held
meetings from time to time for the purpose of performing its
corporate governance duties. The major work performed by the
Executive Committee during the year under review included,
among other things, the following:

e reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the

Company;

e managed and overseeing the daily operation of the Group;
and

e  performed corporate governance duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in October 1999 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are posted on the website of the Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst
other things:

e making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and handling any questions of its resignation
or dismissal;

e reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards, and
discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

e reviewing and monitoring integrity of the issuer’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts and interim report,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them;

e reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems;

e ensuring the reporting principles of the ESG report complied
with the requirement of the Listing Rules, and reported the
finding to the Board; and

e  reviewing the arrangements that employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any
activity within its terms of reference and the authority to obtain
outside legal or other independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary. It is given access to and assistance from the employees
and reasonable resources to perform its duties properly.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

As per the list below, the chairman and all members of the Audit
Committee are Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors. None of the members of the Audit Committee
are former partners of the auditor of the Company.

Committee chairman  Choi Wai Yin

Member Japhet Sebastian Law

(retired on 30 May 2024)
Member Chang Cun

(appointed on 13 March 2024)
Member Shi Yubao

(appointed on 30 May 2024)
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The following timeline shows the changes in committee members A THRHEMBTREBEFENCZESKEZE) :
during the year under review:
13 Mar 30 May
3H13H 5H30H
Chang Cun
B
App0|[1tment Japhet Sebastian Law Shi Yubao
2 B BEE
Retirement Appointment
RIE Z=1E
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules requires the Audit Committee to  FM#HBIFE3I21EHTE BEXEZECAERIE
comprise non-executive directors only, with a minimum of three #/TEZ4AK ELBE=ZKE - AR IB7IEH

members with independent non-executive directors in majority and
at least one independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

As announced by the Company on 12 and 19 January 2024, Mr.
Shen Zongbin, Independent Non-executive Director, passed away
on 28 November 2023. Following the passing away of Mr. Shen
Zongbin, the number of members of the Audit Committee was
temporarily below the minimum number as required under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules.

As announced by the Company on 13 March 2024, Ms. Chang
Cun, Non-executive Director, has been appointed as a member of
the Audit Committee with effect from 13 March 2024. Following
the appointment of Ms. Chang Cun as a member of the Audit
Committee, the Company has complied with the requirement of
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The major works performed by the Audit Committee during the
year under review included, amongst other things, the following:

e reviewed the final results and annual financial statements of
the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2023;

. reviewed the interim results and interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2024;

e reviewed the reports on the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group prepared by the internal audit
department;

e oversaw and reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management (including ESG risks) and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance
controls);

e met with the auditor of the Company in the absence of
management, to discuss matters relating to its audit fees,
any issues arising from the audit and any other matters the
auditor may wish to raise;

e provided opinion to the Board regarding the re- appointment
of Company’s auditor; and

e reviewed the ESG report and to ensure the reporting
principles complied with the requirement of the Listing Rules,
and reported the finding to the Board.

During the year under review, the Board had no disagreement
with the Audit Committee’s view on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in May 2009 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are posted on the website of the Company.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

e  reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
and making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board;

e assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;

e making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors; and

e reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and reviewing the
progress on achieving the objectives.

Where vacancies exist at the Board, candidates are proposed and
put forward to the Nomination Committee for consideration.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee made in
accordance to the Director Nomination Policy will then be tendered
to the Board for approval. In considering the nomination of a
new Director, the Nomination Committee will give adequate
consideration to the Board Diversity Policy and take into account
the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates. In determining the
independence of Directors, the Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules.
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(continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain outside independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

As per the list below, the chairman of the Nomination Committee
is the Chairman and the Independent Non-executive Directors
constitute the majority of the Nomination Committee.

Committee chairman  Ding Rucai
Member Choi Wai Yin
Member Chen Jianxiong
Member Japhet Sebastian Law

(retired on 30 May 2024)
Member Shi Yubao

(appointed on 30 May 2024)
Member Li Zeping

(appointed on 24 September 2024)

The following timeline shows the changes in committee members
during the year under review:
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The major works performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year under review included, amongst other things, the
following:

e making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of new Directors;

e assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors;

e  considered and making recommendations to the Board on the
re-election of Directors at the annual general meeting; and

e reviewed the existing Board Diversity Policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in September 2005
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the website of the Company.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

e making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management of the Group;

e reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Company’s goals and
objectives;

e determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of the Directors;

e considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

e reviewing and approving compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management and compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct; and

e ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman and/or
the managing director of the Company about their remuneration
proposals for other Executive Directors. It has explicit authority
to seek any necessary information from the employees within its
scope of duties and the authority to obtain outside independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the
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Directors are market alignment and reward for performance. The
Company reviews the remuneration package annually taking into
consideration of the market practice, competitive market position
and individual performance.

As per the list below, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is an Independent Non-executive Director. The
composition of the remuneration committee has been further
enhanced, changing from a majority of independent non-executive
directors to being entirely comprised of independent non-
executive directors.

Committee chairman  Shi Yubao

(appointed on 30 May 2024)
Member Choi Wai Yin
Member Chen Jianxiong
Member Japhet Sebastian Law

(retired on 30 May 2024)
Member Ding Rucai

(resigned on 29 August 2024)
Member Li Zeping

(appointed on 24 September 2024)

The following timeline shows the changes in committee members
during the year under review:
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The major works performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year under review included, amongst other things, the
following:

e reviewing the performance and the remuneration packages of
the Directors; and

e making recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of the new Director.

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors and senior
management for the year under review are set out in note 15 to
the audited consolidated financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that board policy
and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or
the managing director of the Company on corporate governance
and the implementation of the CG Code. The Company Secretary
is an employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Group's affairs.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the managing
director of the Company. All Directors also have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations,
are followed. The selection, appointment and dismissal of the
Company Secretary are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
under review.
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(continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Internal Control

The Group adopted and implemented the Group’s internal control
system that is appropriate to the Group by making reference
to the Committee of Sponsoring Organisation of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO") Internal Control — Integrated Framework.
The Group’s internal control system is to achieve operations,
reporting, and compliance objectives, implemented within the
Group’s entities, divisions, operating units and functions, through
various internal control components in the areas of control
environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and
communication and monitoring activities. The Group’s internal
control system comprises 17 principles on effective internal
controls as illustrated as follows:
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Internal Control Components — 17 Principles on Effective Internal Controls

AMEZRER - 1788 RAMEEZEFRR

Control Environment

BEIBRE
RIBE WS HBEEE A
WITEBZER

BURE - BREREE
Operations, Reporting and | 4.

1. Demonstrates commitment to integrity and ethical values
2. Exercises oversight responsibility
3. Establishes structure, authority, and responsibility

Demonstrates commitment to competence

HRRAN EARE

Compliance Objectives BORBEREEEEZAL
EREE  ERR 5. Enforces accountability
ARME R H PR 2 B AE R
Risk Assessment
BB
6. Specifies suitable objectives
HEEBEBRZ
7. ldentifies and analyses risk
R R DT RR
8. Assesses fraud risk
ST 4 SRR B

9. Identifies and analyses significant change
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Internal Control (continued)
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Operations, Reporting and
Compliance Objectives
(continued)
ERNBERE)

Internal Control Components — 17 Principles on Effective Internal Controls

(continued)
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Control Activities

BEEIES
10. Selects and develops control activities
BIEREIEHES

11. Selects and develops general controls over technology
BN RE BRI GE A — AR HI
12. Deploys control activities through policies and procedures
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Information and Communication

ENEEE

13. Uses relevant information
ERBEBEAR

14. Communicates internally
NERE R

15. Communicates externally
SR R

Monitoring Activities
EE
16. Conducts ongoing and/or separate evaluations

AN SR L ABIT G

17. Evaluates and communicates deficiencies

At BB B ER R

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system
and for reviewing its appropriateness and effectiveness. The Audit
Committee is authorised to assist the Board to conduct relevant
review. The Group’s internal control system manages, but not
eliminates, risks against the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
and provides a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against

material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Internal Control (continued)

Based on the defined objectives, the management of the Group
identifies and evaluates significant risks, and subsequently
selects, adopts and implements appropriate internal control
procedures. Through continuous monitoring, the management
of the Group maintains an effective internal control system. The
internal audit department of the Group conducts testing on the
internal control system, reports deficiencies, recommends remedy
solutions to the management and follows up implementation of
recommendations.

The Audit Committee monitors, assesses and reviews the findings
of the internal control systems from the management and the
internal audit department of the Group on an ongoing basis, and
regularly reports to the Board.

The Group sets up an internal audit department which directly
reports to the Audit Committee. The staffs of the internal audit
department comprised of qualified and experienced professionals.
Based on the risk-based internal audit plan, the internal audit
department is authorised unrestrictedly to conduct independent
assessment on the Group's business, risk management and internal
control system.

This year, the management of the Group provided a confirmation
to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the internal control
system, including the effectiveness of the issuer’s processes for
financial reporting and “Listing Rules” compliance, and considers
the system is effective and adequate. The Audit Committee
reviewed and reported the results to the Board.

This year, the Audit Committee reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions and satisfied the adequacy of the arrangement.

Risk Management
The structure of the Group’s risk management system is based

on: 1) Risk Governance Structure; and 2) Risk Management
Procedures.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Risk Governance Structure

The Group’s risk governance structure is based on a “Three Lines
of Defense” model, with oversight by the Board on an ongoing
basis and is reviewed by the Audit Committee and subsequently
reported to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management
system.

Under the “Three Lines of Defense” model, major risk
management functions and measures in each line are as follows:
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2nd Line of Defense:
Risk Monitoring Function

EERAR  RREERRE

1st Line of Defense:
Risk Management Function

FERR  BREERRE

3rd Line of Defense:
Independent Assurance Function
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1) Identify and evaluate risks, 1) Monitor design appropriateness | 1)
adopt measures to manage and implementation of risk
risks management procedures

EEAREBRFHRI A

Independent assessment
on the appropriateness
and effectiveness of risk
management system
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2) Self-assessment on the 2) Promote delivery of risk BRI HEITEFE
effectiveness of the measures, management information
adjust timely to mitigate risks IRERREEENAEE
BRREE BRI - B
BT A LR R
Risk Management Procedures B EERERF

The Group adopted and implemented the Group'’s risk
management policy and procedures that is appropriate to
the Group by making reference to the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management Framework.

The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the Group's
risk appetite regarding the nature and magnitude and constructs
risk management procedures allowing a tone at the top-down and
bottom up reporting.

Top-Down Approach

The Board, through the management of the Group, communicates
to entities, divisions, operating units and subsidiaries regarding
potential effects on inherent risks and emerging risks, and defines
standards on the Group’s risk appetite and risk tolerance level.
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(continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Bottom Up Approach

Based on the guidance from the Board and incorporation of annual
operating plan, the Group's entities, divisions, operating units and
subsidiaries identify potential risks that affect the achievement of
objectives. Every potential risk is evaluated based on the impact
and likelihood. Appropriate risk responses, such as accepting,
avoiding, transferring and controlling, are used to manage the
risks based on the assessment results and the risk appetite and risk
tolerance level defined by the Board.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management system
and for reviewing its appropriateness and effectiveness. The Audit
Committee is authorised to assist the Board to conduct relevant
review. The Group’s risk management system manages, but not
eliminates, risks against the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
and provides a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The management monitors the design and implementation
of the risk management procedures on an ongoing basis. The
internal audit department assesses the effectiveness of the
risk management system independently. The Audit Committee
monitors, assesses and reviews the findings of risk management
systems from the management and the internal audit department
of the Group on an ongoing basis, and regularly report to the
Board.

This year, the management of the Group provided a confirmation
to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management system, and considers the system is effective and
adequate. The Audit Committee reviewed and reported the review
to the Board.
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INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company adopted an inside information disclosure policy
(the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) on 21 December 2015
which sets out the procedures for the handling and dissemination
of inside information with a view to preventing uneven,
inadvertent or selective dissemination of inside information and
ensuring shareholders and the public are provided with full,
accurate and timely information about the activities and the
financial condition of the Group. The Inside Information Disclosure
Policy covers the following:

e setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and
escalating potential inside information to the Board;

e  setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information, escalating upwards any
such potential information and cascading down the message
and responsibilities to relevant staff; and

e identifying who are the Company’s authorised spokespersons
and their responsibilities for communications with stakeholders
of the Company.

In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant staff
regarding the implementation of the Inside Information Disclosure
Policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are
effective and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard
the Company and its officers in discharging their disclosure
obligations in respect of inside information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the website of
the Company.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

“TOMFEFR ERBLUEREEARAF 201

TEERRE
()
BB S

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to [EIEEE N E X,/ JE T4 A 511 EA0 9 B &

the auditor of the Company is set out as follows: HHmT -
HK$'000
Services rendered Frie {it BR 7% BT T
Statutory audit services for 2024 ZECFEATET RS 1,700

Non-statutory audit services: IEEETT RS

Review on interim financial report EH A B WmE 350
Other services E AR 280
2,330

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EERMBHRENER

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing §$7¥kw{mffiﬁ7ﬁﬁfﬂ_ﬁfﬁ§q$%.ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬂ: BA
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fairview HEREELEBTEL NI EN AEEBNS
of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and 7 o 735(\£§|J¢J;$&%=4’ku¢l HAsR 4 & 8 8l
in presenting the annual and interim reports and other financial M ERKOEMBEIHERS - EFEHHFE -
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the Directors aim to &M & AR A #h L AR E B MR LETS o
present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the

Group's position and prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, ZAA GBI E TRk E2HMERE T
about its reporting responsibilities on the audited consolidated AREHF 2298 FTFE 2388 B IZHENHEF
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent FFERAAEERZEZESVERENBRE T
Auditor’s Report on pages 229 to 238 of this annual report. EH ERRE o
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board formalised and adopted a dividend policy for the
Company which took effect from 12 December 2018 and it aims
to allow the shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
whilst retaining adequate reserves for the future growth of the
Group.

The Company intends to distribute not less than 40% of its net
profit attributable to the shareholders (not less than dividend
payout ratio of 40%) in each financial year as dividends. However,
the Board will take into account certain factors of the Group when
considering the declaration or recommendation of dividends,
which includes the actual and expected financial performance,
retained earnings and distributable reserves, liquidity position,
general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
businesses and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the businesses or financial performance and position of
the Group, and other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The dividend payout ratio for 2024 was approximately 100%
(2023: approximately 73%).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a shareholders’
Communication Policy reflecting the current practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. Such
policy aims at ensuring the shareholders of the Company are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, in order to
enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner,
and to allow shareholders to engage actively with the Company.
The Board would review the policy regularly.

To foster effective communications with the shareholders,
the Company provides extensive information in its annual
and interim reports and announcements. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
www.shougang-resources.com.hk.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(continued)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Pursuant to code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting and invite
the chairman of other committees to attend. The annual general
meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will make an effort
to attend, external auditor will also be available at the annual
general meeting to address shareholders’ queries. In case of any
general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any other
transaction that is subject to independent shareholders’ approval,
members of the independent Board committee will also make an
effort to attend to address shareholders’ queries.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, attended
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the AGM 2024, while the Directors’ attendances atthe AGM 2024 T ZZE_WMFRFRAFAE  r MESBRZ
and GM 2024 are provided as follows: “HFERFRBEFASM_Z @Eﬂxﬁﬁ/‘\n‘ﬁ
JERCERIT ¢
AGM 2024 GM 2024
—E-NF —EmEF

Directors BEE BREFAE BRAE

Executive Directors HTES

Ding Rucai T&A v/ v

Fan Wenli SBICA v/ v

Chen Zhaogiang BRIKIE v 4

Wang Dongming F X8 v/ v/

Non-executive Director FHITES

Chang Cun BT v v

Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES

Shi Yubao FEE v v

Choi Wai Yin ZEE v/ v

Japhet Sebastian Law (retired on 30 May 2024) ZEX§E (R - ZFE U4 X N/A 35 FA

AHA=1HREF)
Chen Jianxiong PRI 4 4
Li Zeping (appointed on 24 September 2024) TEVT(R-ZZFE-_gFNLA N/A 35 A v/
Z P HEZE)

Note 1: At the time of the AGM 2024, Mr. Ding Rucai served as the i1 R _NERBBRFRNGSLETHE - T x4
Chairman of the Board, the Executive Committee, and the AERTESRS  WITZESRREEZES
Nomination Committee; Mr. Choi Wai Yin served as the Chairman TFEEREELLEETIERTESERE M
of the Audit Committee; and Mr. Japhet Sebastian Law served as BNGREETTHNEZESESF -
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Note 2: At the time of the GM 2024, Mr. Ding Rucai served as the ;72 R-ZT-_NEREBEARASEITE » TuAEt4s
Chairman of the Board, the Executive Committee, and the ERESS  W1TZ E@ REZEEX
Nomination Committee; Mr. Choi Wai Yin continued to serve as & REBEEREER ?E“%I}% il

the Chairman of the Audit Committee, and Mr. Shi Yubao served
as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

FEALREEFMEZERER -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(continued)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

The Company has maintained communications with shareholders
according to the communication strategies set out in the
shareholders’ Communication Policy, where the shareholders
could raise questions to the Directors at the AGM 2024 and
GM 2024. Accordingly, the Board is of the opinion that the
shareholders’ Communication Policy is implemented appropriately
and effectively.

All notices of general meetings dispatched by the Company to
its shareholders for meetings held will be sent for annual general
meeting at least 21 days before the meeting and at least 14 days
for all other general meetings, if any. Separate resolutions will be
proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors, and all resolutions
put to the vote of a general meeting will be taken by way of a
poll. At the general meetings, the chairman of the meetings will
explain the procedures for conducting a poll and answer questions
from shareholders on voting by poll, if any. The results of the poll
will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively. During the year, all general meetings of the
Company were held in accordance to the aforesaid arrangement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convene a General Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote
at general meetings can request the Directors to call a general
meeting pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance.
The request must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the meeting and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
meeting. Such request must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(continued)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Put Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50 shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote at a general meeting can request
the Company to circulate to the shareholders of the Company a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to a matter
mentioned in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt
with at that meeting pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies
Ordinance. The expenses shall be borne by the shareholder(s)
making the request unless the meeting concerned is an annual
general meeting and the statement is received by the Company in
time for sending with the notice of the meeting. The request must
identify the statement to be circulated, and must be authenticated
by the shareholder(s) making it and sent to the Company in hard
copy form or in electronic form for the attention of the Company
Secretary at least 7 days before the meeting to which it relates.

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50 shareholders
who have a right to vote on the resolution at an annual general
meeting can request the Company to give to the shareholders
of the Company notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting pursuant
to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance. The request must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given, and must
be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it and sent to the
Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for the attention
of the Company Secretary no later than 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate, or if later, the time
at which notice of the meeting is given.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the registered
office of the Company or by email to the Company. In addition,
shareholders can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share
registrar of the Company, if they have any enquiries about their
shareholdings and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact
details are set out on page 3 of this annual report.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Articles during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year under
review.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate are set out in
notes 36 and 21 to the audited consolidated financial statements
respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year under review are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 239 to 240 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a policy on the payment of dividends, which is
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend at
the AGM 2025, the dividend payout out ratio for the year under
review is approximately 100%.

DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK21 cents per Share
for the year under review, payable to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on Thursday, 10 July 2025. The proposed final dividend
(HK21 cents per Share) together with the interim dividend (HK9
cents per Share) paid in 2024 will make a total dividend of HK30
cents per Share for the year under review.

Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend
at the AGM 2025, the final dividend is expected to be paid on
Thursday, 24 July 2025. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 10 July
2025 for registration.
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DIRECTORS’' REPORT (continued)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 25 June 2025 to Monday, 30 June 2025 (both days
inclusive) to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM. During such period, no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 24 June 2025 for registration.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year under review is
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 12 to 15 and
pages 16 to 33 of this annual report respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last 5 financial years is set out on page 341 of
this annual report.

BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no borrowings.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the Company’s share capital during
the year under review are set out in note 33 to the audited
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year under
review amounted to approximately HK$2,153,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Ding Rucai

Fan Wenli

Chen Zhaogiang
Wang Dongming

Non-Executive Director
Chang Cun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Shi Yubao

Choi Wai Yin

Japhet Sebastian Law (retired on 30 May 2024)
Chen Jianxiong

Li Zeping (appointed on 24 September 2024)

Mr. Li Zeping, who was appointed as a new director in 2024,
obtained legal advice from a law firm qualified to advise on Hong
Kong law on 19 September 2024 (prior to the effective date of
his appointment). He understands all applicable provisions under
the Listing Rules in relation to his role as a director of a listed
company, as well as the potential consequences of making false
statements or providing false information to the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Li confirms that he understands his responsibilities as a director
of a listed company.

In accordance with article 93 of the Articles, Mr. Li Zeping and any
new directors appointed between the date of this annual report
and the date of the AGM 2025, being additional members of the
Board, shall hold office until that annual general meeting and shall
be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

In accordance with article 102(A) of the Articles, Mr. Fan Wenli,
Mr. Chen Zhaogiang and Ms. Chang Cun will retire at the AGM
2025 by rotation.

All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM 2025. The re-election of each of these retiring
Directors will be individually voted on by shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’' REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year under review and up to the date of this report,
directors of the subsidiaries of the Company include Ding Rucai,
Fan Wenli, Chen Zhaogiang, Wang Dongming, Liu Qingshan, Kang
Jizhong, Song Kaiyong, Gao Xiangdong, Fu Jinghua, Chen Hui,
Wang Liping, Zhang Yanjun#, Yang Jianquan, Wang Ruigang, Mu
Sannu, Tian Fengfa, Yang Jiyou, Kang Jianping, Song Yangping,
Huang Peng, Cheng Zhongjun and Du Xiufeng.

#  As of the date of this report (27 March 2025), that person had ceased
to be director of the subsidiaries of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the Articles, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her
office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officer’s
liability coverage for the directors and officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within 1 year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) BEEESRE@

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS E=XZHIFE

The following are the changes in the information of Directors since A N2 BAARRA G ZF = /0 Hi5R & 73 5 24
the date of the 2024 Interim Report of the Company, which are 7B FHRBIE13.51BOVETFTURBE &=
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing &# &) :

Rules:
Director Date of Changes Details of Changes
E= SEAB SHFHE

Mr. Choi Wai Yan

From 31 August 2024

Resignation: Resigned as a responsible officer of Sino

BREBLE H-ZZE-_MFNA=+—H Financial

BT BHIENEEZAEAER
From 3 December 2024 Appointment: Appointed as a director and a responsible
—ZE_ME+=-A=H officer of Fargo Asset Management Limited, a SFC-

licensed company.
LR BEZAAHEBEE R E A RIFargo Asset
Management LimitedZEERBEAE

Mr. Ding Rucai From 29 August 2024 Resignation: resigned as a member of the Remuneration

T&EA R4 —EZIFENAZ+NH Committee
BHE  BHEFNEEGKE

Mr. Li Zeping From 24 September 2024 Appointment: Appointed as an Independent

FEFESE —E-WEAAZ+MA Non-Executive Director, a member of the Nomination

Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee

ZE  BEARBUFNITES REZESKERFTMH
ZEgXE
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) BEEESRE @

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEERERETHRAERE®D - HER

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, R EEEZERER
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

S B
RTE

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2024 had the R-Z-ME+-A=+—0  EFEER%
following interests in the Shares as at that day as recorded in HEARAT ZROHEEEDAREBZERPE
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or (&8 3521&B P& F 2 &M » siiBE T8
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange HIRIZEXAESTR|BBMARN G MBI 20

pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing Rules: T -
Long Positions in the Shares REATRBZHR
Interests as to %
of the total
number of
Shares in
Number of issue as at
Name of Director Capacity in which interests were held Shares held 31 December 2024
R
R-ZZEZ-WmEF
+=ZA=+—8H
BEZ ERTARKRG
EEHE BEEEZ SR ARARBEE BYvEIL
Chen Zhaogiang Beneficial owner 1,147,000 0.02%
B Jk 58 EnEB A
Choi Wai Yin Beneficial owner 677,421 0.01%
REE EnEEA
Ding Rucai Beneficial owner 550,000 0.01%
TkA EnEBA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the B EXFBEEEN  R_E-—m&E+—8

Company'’s Directors, chief executives or their respective associates =+—B AKAQFTES

CREBITBRABHE

had any other personal, family, corporate and other interests or S m S B A B A A D T SR E A ] MR B
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of st @ (jpom s R HEEMHBEXVIR T2 BE) >
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the  poys  jaEER M K BERBESED ABE LA
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required [ #i &= (& 5| B 352 (6B F B 17 XML IBIE

RIR
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified EEFRERMALATR

Bl <2 P 22 AF fe] E At {8

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model 4 . Kk ATIREMESHIKAE o

Code.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of
its parent company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of
age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its parent
company was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected
entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, at
any time during the year under review or subsisted at the end of
the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year under review, none of the Directors had any
interests in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group which would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.
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HEEEE AR EREBEARS -

EEREFRB 2R

REBEFEAR  BEEEX -HEAKEXK
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DIRECTORS’' REPORT (continued)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2024, according to the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, the following companies
and persons had interests of 5% or more in the Shares and/or
underlying Shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares/Underlying Shares

EEEHRE @

BERBSRBERAATHEZRR

BaERkXR

R-ZZTE-ME+-A=+—8  BEAQFK
FHEMEEEGEI6ER T2 ELMATE - T
MARBRATRARRG R,/ SBERNHEAR
5%k A EAERS - M ARIEES REEEHEXY
EE2REIDEEANQRIFEE

RABRE, ARG ZFR

Interests as to
% of the total
number of Shares

Capacity in which Number of Shares/ in issue as at
Name of shareholder interests were held underlying Shares 31 December 2024 Note
R
R-B-mF
+t=A=+-—H”
NGl S ERITARRS
BRRER,HE KEEZ S H MHERRRGHE BYzAEDH Bt
FunDe Sino Life Beneficial owner 1,444,893,466 28.38% /
EEETAS BEmEAA
Shougang Group Interests of controlled corporations 919,882,984 18.07% Il
EEEL] XELEE R
Shoucheng Holdings Interests of controlled corporations 774,743,327 15.22% 1
BREER REEE En
Notes: Miet

I The data shown in the table is based on the disclosure form dated
18 December 2024 (being the latest disclosure form filed up to 31
December 2024).

Il.  The data shown in the table is based on the disclosure form dated
18 December 2024 (being the latest disclosure form filed up to 31
December 2024). Shougang Group was interested in the Shares
held by its associated companies, namely; (i) Shougang Holding (a
company wholly-owned by Shougang Group, holding 43,754,785
Shares); (ii) King Rich Group Limited (a company wholly-owned by
Shougang Holding, holding 256,128,199 Shares); and (iii) Ultimate
Capital Limited (a company wholly-owned by Shougang Holding,
holding 620,000,000 Shares).

REBRZEE N _ZE-_NF+ A+ B8
BEAE(WABE T -_NF+_/F=+—H
IFBREBEXMBERE)FIRER -

ABRBERZEENR_ZE_WE+_A+N\H
NEBERR(WABZE TS _MF+_A=1+—
ALSEEXNEERR)IREN - &alE®
REBBARMBAZAGIRMPHAER -
ZERARDAANEHMER(FEREE2ER
B 2T - HAEA43,754, 785 A m D) ¢ (i)
King Rich Group Limited( (R EHIEREZEHB
Z AT ¥7H256,128,199 X A% ) + (i)
Ultimate Capital Limited(F &R 2 EH A
Z AT #78620,000,0008 2 7D ©
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
(continued)

Long Positions in the Shares/Underlying Shares
(continued)

Notes:

. The data shown in the table is based on the disclosure form dated
18 December 2024 (being the latest disclosure form filed up to 31
December 2024). Shoucheng Holdings was interested in the Shares
held by its associated companies, namely; (i) Fair Gain Investments
Limited (a company wholly-owned by Shoucheng Holdings, holding
167,815,687 Shares); and (ii) Fine Power Group Limited (a company
wholly-owned by Shoucheng Holdings, holding 606,927,640 Shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Company
has not been notified of any other person (other than the Directors
and chief executives of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the Shares and/or underlying Shares which fell to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no contracts of
significance have been entered into between the Company (or any
of its subsidiaries) and the controlling shareholder (or any of its
subsidiaries) during the year under review.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is a sufficiency
of public float of the Company’s securities as required under the
Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year under
review or subsisted at the end of the year under review.

EEERE@

BERBSRBERGAATHE ZRR

BaRAR (&)
RLOBRE, ARG ZFR (&)

Mzt -

. XREBERZEBENIR-_Z-_NE+-_A+N\BH
BEAER(WAHE T -_NF+_AF=+—H
IFEBEXHNBEERB)MTER - ERERR
EMBARMBAE ARG P HEES %%
N EH BIA) Fair Gain Investments Limited ((
BREERE2EHEEZ AR $4167,815,687%
AR ) ¢ K(ii) Fine Power Group Limited(F
BEERE2EEEZLF - £46606,927,640%

REIRED) -

BREXFBEEEN R_ZT-_NF+ = A
=t—H A2RTEEZETRNEMCAL(ES
AR &ZETBRABRIN BN RRER
NERD N,/ BB RARRMD P ARSI
B MARBESRBAERIEXVHE2RES
DEBEA R R HE o

ERBRRREEXRZ 2

BAFHREMEGAZBREIN  REEFE -
R A (SE AP 8 A A)) I B R BRARR (3
HEEMMBAR)RIZERGHL -

NRWEFRE

REARAMESZARERMRESHAA -
RAFEHRNNERY  ARBZESFTELMR
AIFFREZ RARBIFRERTE

IR 5% 4 84 th =

REBFEARCDEFEERE - KARME
AT 37 377 FE AT ] B R A 68 17 5 1S & K AT B BUR
NRVBEITEAD - HREARNR B ET LA 5
SR EMARAETRD -
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
approximately HK$1,160,834,000 reserves available for
distribution as calculated in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Ordinance, of which approximately
HK$1,069,124,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the
year under review.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the percentage of revenue from sales of
goods of the Group attributable to the largest customer and the
five largest customers in aggregate are 40% and 62% respectively.

For the year under review, the percentage of purchases of the
Group attributable to the largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers in aggregate are 21% and 62% respectively.

Shougang Group, together with its subsidiaries, was the largest
customer of the Group. Save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number
of Company’s issued shares) had an interest in the five major
suppliers or customers of the Group.

ERELEREEERAT 215

REBEFER » ARBREAMERMKERFL
EBEE  LEFBEOARRFERMLTESR °

A 5 7 Ik i

REMBERE  BREBEARKH ZHEEHRE T
AR B AR 2 R #I1,160,834,0007
» EFR#91,069,124,00008 TR B2 & EARIE
FEZRPBKS -

o %

FTEEFRHEER

REBEFEAR  AKRESAEFPRAFEAR
FoplfE A EEEERT MK A40%62% °

REBFERN  AEESAHEFIEFEAXN
HEFDOAIMERNEERBER21%K62% °

BEHEEEREMNBRARRARERARR -
B EES  MEEE  HETHEARL
EARR(BEEMAEEARFCETROH
B5% N EE)VREEARAEBRRIAHERKAKRE
FAEfatEas o
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) BEEESRE@

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RBEBREXZRBEERS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A. Continuing Connected Transactions A BEBRERS
During the year under review, the continuing connected LT AR BT E AN HERE
transactions recorded are summarised as follows: R

Date and Name of the agreement:

CEASE IS ES

31 December 2021 New Master Sale Agreement
B —F+ZA=+—H HHSERH=R

Nature of the transaction:
RPIE

Supply coal products (including the coal by-product produced in the
coking coal washing process) to connected party

AEEATHERRER(BRAERERTELENRKEIEmR)

Parties of the transaction:

(@) The Company and/or its subsidiaries (the “Seller”)

RGEIHET - RARR/ZEMBAR(HET D)
(b) Shanxi International Energy Group Hongguang Power Generation
Co., Ltd. and/or its subsidiaries (the “Purchaser”)
AR REERNAEBERAAIR LEMBAR([EE
1)
Relationship: When the agreement was entered into, the Purchaser was owned as
BAR to 49% by a substantial shareholder of the Company’s subsidiaries,

being a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Purchaser
was an associate of a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.13(3) of the Listing Rules and thus also a connected person of
the Company. The transactions entered into between the Seller and
the Purchaser under the New Master Sale Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

BEHER - ARAETHBRARNEIEZMR(ARFFEAL IS
BE 249% M - Btk - R EWRAFE14A130Q)& - BES Y
ARBBEEANLTZBMEA  BULTARRRBEAL - HEHHEBE
FTIRFHEER AR TR LN SR MR RIE T ARR R AHE
BERS -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) BEEESRE @

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND HEBEBREXZNRBEEXRZ (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

A. Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) A. FEBERXS (&)

| (Continued) (&)

R B

Description and purpose of the transaction:

The Group had been supplying coal products to the Purchaser in its
ordinary and usual course of business since the first quarter of 2019.
Both parties have been satisfied with all completed orders including
the prices, quality, delivery and payment terms, and have intention
to continue the sale transactions in the long run. On 31 December
2021, the Company and the Purchaser entered into the New Master
Sale Agreement to set the annual caps and to regulate the continuing
connected transactions between the Seller and the Purchaser in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

B-ZE-NFEFER FAEE-BHHEHAELR—REBREBBRE
PRBEAHERRER - EHEWEMAD TR E - FJEF‘
®BE - RNMNFRIER - REERBFELETHERS - RZ
——f+=H _-i——EI ZIN/N Téﬁi,ﬁﬁ,\ﬁgﬁ”tmi‘ﬁﬁ\lJZ%ﬁrﬁJi%ﬁ
ﬁﬁ’ﬂ[ HEAREFE LR REEHE T RBETMET 2B
B

Details of the continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the New Master Sale Agreement have been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2021.
MHEERGRE THERERINFBERBAMR T _—F+=
A=Z+—BOARRBRERNERE -

Term: 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024 (both days inclusive)

HAPR - TE I F—A—HEE_NF+_A=+—H(BEEEMH)
Annual Cap: For the year ended 31 December 2022: RMB100,000,000
FELER : BE_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE : AR¥100,000,0007T

For the year ended 31 December 2023: RMB110,000,000
HEZZ-=-F+-A=+—HILFE : AKR#¥110,000,0007T

For the year under review: RMB120,000,000
EREFER : AR#¥120,000,0007T
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) BEEESRE@

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND H(EBEBREXZREBEEXRZ (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

A. Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) A. FEBERXS (&)

| (Continued) (&)

The amount of connected transactions
for the year under review under this
agreement:

WiHEETEBRFEABRERS 2SR

RMB30,856,000 (equivalent to HK$33,842,000)
AR #30,856,0007T (FH&E 433,842,000/ 7T)

Renewal Arrangement Upon Expiry:

R RN R

This agreement expired on 31 December 2024. The Company intends
to continue entering into similar commercial transactions with the
Purchaser from time to time thereafter. Accordingly, on 31 December
2024 (after trading hours), the Company entered into the 2025
Master Sale Agreement with the Purchaser in respect of the sales and
purchases during the period commencing from 1 January 2025 and
ending on 31 December 2027 (both days inclusive).

AR T _MNF+_A=+—HER AR TR BEENEER
Tﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁaﬁﬂﬁ%’ﬂiiﬁw$ﬁ% SETHETZ —REERS -
e RZZB_MOF+A=+—R(XSERE) XRFHEEESCD
MEZE_AF—HA-BRE_ZE_+F+_A=+—BILHH(E
REREMA)NEEFHEIV _T_hFHEERWE -

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, this connected transaction must comply
with the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The relevant announcement
was published on the same day.

EREMBRA - WEBAEXSHTRETLEMRNEI4ATIET 2 H
HAERFEERMARTE  MEBASERRABTE -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) BEEESRE @

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND HEBEBREXZNRBEEXRZ (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

A. Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) A. EEBERS (&)

Date and Name of the agreements:
EASESES

17 May 2021 2021 Master Sales and Purchase Agreement
R -FAATERR_—FREERS

23 September 2022 Supplemental Master Sales and Purchase
Agreement

CECCFEAACtH=-HREEmAmE

Nature of the transaction:
R5ME -

(@) The Group will supply coking coal products (“Fushan Products”)
to Shougang Group and/or its associates; and
AEBEMEMERR REBBAREEREER((RBLUE
ml) &

(b) Shougang Group and/or its associates will supply materials
and services within the scope of Shougang Group’s businesses
(“Shougang Group Products”) to the Group.

BEMEEKR AEBEABAAEERERNEHEEEKEENR
ZHMEARE((EHEEER ] -

Parties of the transaction:

(@) The Company and/or its subsidiaries

RGETNET - AR R HEME R A]
(b) Shougang Group and/or its associates
HMEEK HHBEA
Relationship: Shougang Group, a substantial shareholder of the Company, is a
1z - connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore,

the transactions contemplated under the Supplemental Master
Sales and Purchase Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
BEETHRA ARAFRZEERFEHERARAG 2AEATLT o
bt BB EARANE4AT - REE@ARRE NET IR HEX
KRB FHBEEERS o
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) BEEESRE@

/|

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND H(EBEBREXZREBEEXRZ (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

A. Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) A. FEBEXS (&)

Il (Continued) (%4&)

Description and purpose of the transaction:

R BE R

The Group has been supplying Fushan Products to Shougang Group
and/or its associates since 2010 and purchasing Shougang Group
Products from Shougang Group and/or its associates since 2015 in its
usual and ordinary course of business. As it was expected that such
transactions would become connected transactions of the Company
following the completion of Shoucheng’s Proposed Restructuring,
on 17 May 2021, the Company and Shougang Group entered into
the 2021 Master Sales and Purchase Agreement to regulate the
continuing connected transactions between the Group and Shougang
Group and/or its associates. The 2021 Master Sales and Purchase
Agreement has become effective since 27 January 2022 following the
completion of Shoucheng’s Proposed Restructuring. In view of the
significant increased market prices of the Fushan Products under the
2021 Master Sales and Purchase Agreement, the Board expects that
the original annual caps under the 2021 Master Sales and Purchase
Agreement will be insufficient for the years ending 31 December
2022 and 2023. Therefore, on 23 September 2022, the Company and
Shougang Group entered into the Supplemental Master Sales and
Purchase Agreement to revise the annual caps and to extend the term
for one year ending on 31 December 2024 in order to comply with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
AEBRE—REAEEBBRTA_Z—SFEMEMREER %
HBBEARERLER YA AFEWNEMERR SKHEBHE
ABEERERER BHNBRHREHEX IR EEREZEHFETHETK
BRRARBIZEERS RT_—FHEA++H  ARFEFIH
SRV T _—FHEERBURELAEEREMER R L HE
BAZKHEBERERS T —FHEEBENEEEZREEAER T
KEAB_E__F A ttRER - ER_ZE_—FHREEWHREA
TRILEMITSEREAB LR EFSEH HE_T_—_FK
R+ A=+ HULFE —E_—FHREEHRETZR
FEIRBEERAR - Ak RZTZEZ_Z_FAAZ+=R ARFHA
EMEEIIVREEMARE  WEBITFELR - WHFRHIER—F
EITNFFTA=T—RHIE UAFE ETRAUBUUATETZR
T oo

Details of the continuing connected transactions contemplated under
the 2021 Master Sales and Purchase Agreement and the Supplemental
Master Sales and Purchase Agreement have been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 January 2022 and the
circulars of the Company dated 15 June 2021 and 13 October 2022.
TR FREENENEEERAGRE N IHBERERINFE
ERBHAS A+ EtANARARERBHA=ZZS = —
FRATHEBRZZBZF+AT=HHERREEHANIERE -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) BEEESRE @

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND HEBEBREXZNRBEEXRZ (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

A. Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) A. EEBERS (&)

Il (Continued) (%4&)

Term: 27 January 2022 to 31 December 2024 (both days inclusive)

HAPR T T F— A+t HEE_ENE+ A=+ R(EREEW
H)

Annual Cap: (@) The Group supply the Fushan Products to Shougang Group and/

FELER: or its associates:

AEBEREMEER SHBEAHERLUER

For the period ended 31 December 2022: RMB4,200,000,000
BHE-E-_—_F+-A=+—H1LHMH : AKR%4,200,000,0007T

For the period ended 31 December 2023: RMB5,000,000,000
HE—_T-_ZF+_-_AZ=+—HIHH : AR¥S5,000,000,000
JT

For the year under review: RMB5,400,000,000
CIEFER - AR¥5,400,000,000T

(b) Shougang Group and/or its associates supply Shougang Group
Products to the Group:

HMEEE REBBARAEEHESHEEER -

For the period ended 31 December 2022: RMB100,000,000
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIHH : AR¥100,000,0007C

For the period ended 31 December 2023: RMB110,000,000
HE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HIHH : AR¥110,000,0007T

For the year under review: RMB120,000,000
EIREFER : AR¥120,000,0007T
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) BEEESRE@

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND H(EBEBREXZREBEEXRZ (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

A. Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) A. FEBERXS (&)

Il (Continued) (%4&)

The amount of connected transactions
for the year under review under this
agreement:

tiAETEEFENBHER S S8 ¢

(@) The Group supply the Fushan Products to Shougang Group and/
or its associates:

AEEmEMERN LEBEARERLER

RMB1,887,338,000 (equivalent to HK$2,070,037,000)
AR #1,887,338,000 T (A& 72,070,037,000/% 7T )

(b) Shougang Group and/or its associates supply Shougang Group
Products to the Group:
EMEELR SHEHBZARNASEHREEHNERER

RMB11,496,000 (equivalent to HK$12,608,000)
AR #11,496,0007C (FHE 112,608,000/ 7T)

Renewal Arrangement Upon Expiry:

BB MR EH R

This agreement expired on 31 December 2024. The Company intends
to continue entering into similar commercial transactions with
Shougang Group from time to time thereafter. Accordingly, on 2
December 2024 (after trading hours), the Company entered into the
2025 Master Sale and Purchase Agreement with Shougang Group
in respect of the sales and purchases during the period commencing
from 1 January 2025 and ending on 31 December 2027 (both days
inclusive).

AR T _NF+_A=+—HER AR R BB EBENEER
Tﬁ%ﬁiéfﬂigﬁﬁﬁﬁj%muzﬁﬁ% ZETHRET —REERS -
e RZZF_MF+_AZR(RZKRRIE)  AArHEHESEDH®
B —A—HRE_ZE_tH5+T-_A=1+—HILHHE(BE
BEMB)MEEREI Y _Z_hFREEWHR

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, this connected transaction must
comply with the reporting, announcement, circular, Independent
Shareholders’ approval and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The relevant resolution was passed
by independent Shareholders by way of poll at the GM 2024.
EREMHRA - LEREXSHTRET LMRANBI4AZTIE T 2@
#& NEBE - BYURRERFEFRRTE - ﬁﬁﬁf‘aﬁﬁ&%%‘ﬁaﬁé
-z fﬂliﬂxﬁﬁﬁiﬁgﬁiﬂx%M&m RITAIE R
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EEERE@

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND HEBEBREXZNRBEEXRZ (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

A. Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) A. EEBERS (&)

Date and Name of the agreements:

EEASE IS e

8 December 2023 Financial Services Framework Agreement

TE =+ AN\ BERREIEL R

Nature of the transaction:
RHMHE

(a)

Deposit Services: The Group shall open deposit accounts in
Shougang Finance and deposit funds into the said accounts in
return for interest income;

FRR% - AEBHREMAEHLERFO > $§ESFA LM
P OAMERA S AVEREIR ;

Credit Services: Shougang Finance shall provide credit services to
the Group, including loans, acceptance of bills, bill discounting,
bill pledging, guarantees and other forms of financing
businesses; and

RERY - sV BERARNEERHEERE  BEER R
A RERER - RRER EREEMTEANESRERT
54

Other Financial Services: Shougang Finance shall provide other
financial services, which comprise of settlement services,
consultancy services and other financial services, to the Group.
Hith SRR : EMMBEmASREREEMESRRY - BT
EREERT - EARS R E SRR

Parties of the transaction:

The Company and/or its subsidiaries

RGPS - RRE R,/ REKBRA]
(b) Shougang Group Finance Company Limited (“Shougang
Finance"”)
BMEEVKAER B ([ EMIAH])
Relationship: Shougang Group, a substantial shareholder of the Company, is a
RAZ connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Shougang

Finance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group. Therefore,
the transactions contemplated under the Financial Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BELTRA - ARAZEFERFEREER/SARFNZHEAL - &
MABREMEENLEMBRR - Bt - RELHRAF14AF -
SRRBERGRR THET IR IBRARRZHERERS -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) BEEESRE@

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND H(EBEBREXZREBEEXRZ (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

A. Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) A. FEBERXS (&)

Il (Continued) (#&)

MR B

Description and purpose of the transaction:

Given the transaction history of mutual sales and purchases of coking
coal products and materials between the Group and Shougang
Group and its associates since 2010, a close and mutually beneficial
cooperative long-term relationship between the parties has been
formed which allows the parties to negotiate on good commercial
terms in respect of the transactions contemplated under the Financial
Services Framework Agreement.
ERE2010FAKEHEEHERREBMBACRBEEEERER R
MEORZESE - AINA 2HERKERENN RS ERE - £5]
Zﬁ%%%ﬁﬁi%ﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁ[ RiBZEIA THUETOR HIR R IFH R ERFUE

In respect of the Deposit Services, the deposit interest rate in relation
to the Deposit Services will be not lower than the rates the Group
would receive from major domestic or overseas commercial banks,
which would enable the Group to generate higher interest income
therefrom.

HIEFFREME - BEFFRENERNEZENMERATEE LT ER
WNEBINE ERITHIN AR - SEAEERPESRSFEWA -

In respect of the Credit Services, the interest rate or fee rate provided
by Shougang Finance to the Group will not be higher than the interest
rate or fee rate of the same type of credit services quoted by other
domestic or overseas financial institutions, which would enable the
Group to reduce financing costs.

AEERBEME - aMHBRAREERENFIHERF IS READ
BASENemMEEREAERERBARNESEBE  BEAEE
PRERVEMKA o

As for the provision of the Other Financial Services, since the Company
has maintained a good working relationship with Shougang Group
and its associates over the years and developed a good mutual
understanding in terms of business nature and scope of operations,
higher work efficiency could be better achieved by carrying on the
continuous cooperation between the Group and Shougang Group
compared with other independent third-party institutions.

HEM SRR S - BRARRE) S F R 5 E K& %/\Z’E%
REFTIEBAEFR EHDHRENEBEERKCEHEBEAERATE -
bt BEMBVE=FEEAL  AEERFHERNFESIES %’J
B ERE R TERE o

Details of the continuing connected transactions contemplated under
the Financial Services Framework Agreement have been disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 8 December 2023.
CRRBERGRB T 2 HERERXINFHEENRAMR T _=F
TZRANBBERERERNIERKE -

Term:

HARR -

8 December 2023 to 31 December 2025 (both days inclusive)
—E =+ -_ANBEZE-_AF+-_A=+—H(BEERmA)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) BEEESRE @

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND HEBEBREXXZREBEEXRZ (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

A. Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) A. FEBEERXS (&)

Il (Continued) (#&)

225

Annual Cap: (a) Deposit Services:

FEELR: TF R

For the period from 8 December to 31 December 2023:
Daily Cap RMB560,000,000
—EC=F+_ANBE+TZRA=+—HIHM :

% H ERARK560,000,0007T

For the year under review: Daily Cap RMB560,000,000
CEFER : 80 LRAKY560,000,0007T

For the year ending 31 December 2025:
Daily Cap RMB560,000,000
HE-_T-RAF+-_A=+—HLEFE:
B H FRARK560,000,0007T

(b) Credit Services:
BAERTE

For the period from 8 December to 31 December 2023:
Daily Cap RMB560,000,000

=+ ANREFTZA=+—HILEE

5 A LR ARKS560,000,0007T

For the year under review: Daily Cap RMB560,000,000
CEFER : 80 LRAKY560,000,0007T

For the year ending 31 December 2025:
Daily Cap RMB560,000,000
BHE_Z-_RF+_A=+—HILFE:
&HERARYS560,000,0007T

(c) Other Financial Services:

H it & Bl ARTS -

For the period from 8 December to 31 December 2023:
RMB3,000,000
CEC=F+-ANBEFTZA=+—HIHM :
AR #3,000,0007T

For the year under review: RMB10,000,000
EEFER - AR#¥10,000,0007T

For the year ending 31 December 2025: RMB10,000,000

BE-_ZTZ-_AF+_A=+—HIFE : AR#¥10,000,0007T

(c) Other Financial Services: Nil

Hih o mARS - &

The amount of connected transactions (a) Deposit Services: RMB479,663,000 (equivalent to HK$526,096,000)
for the year under review under this TR « ARM479,663,0007 (FHE 14526,096,00077T)
agreement (b) Credit Servi Nil

WHZEETHRFTFENBEBRER S 28 ¢ -Tedit services: NI

BERS : &
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

B. Connected Transactions

Saved as disclosed above, the Group has no connected
transaction that was subject to the disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules during the year under review.

ANNUAL REVIEW ON CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
PricewaterhouseCoopers has issued an unqualified letter
containing findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in the paragraph
above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-executive Directors reviewed the continuing
connected transactions conducted in the year under review and
confirmed that the transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Group as a whole.

The Company will continue to put in place appropriate internal
controls and mechanisms to monitor the continuing connected
transactions, and the management will review the adequacy of
these internal control procedures and report to the Independent
Non-executive Directors from time to time.

PR EMATEESN  AKRERLEBEFERNSZ
BRRLETRAIZREBEZCRERS -

FEREXRZ 2FEEN

B EMHRAE14A 5615 NAR Z X HEE
ERKESHMEBHBEEESHMASHE
Mz C(EBEBEREBAER) F 30005 (LEET)
[EEZABENBAVBEN CEBITE] - I
2B(EBEHRP) B7405 (KD BARES L
MR BIFT 5 B E R 5 BT R I A%
ErHEEERSHARS - RELMHRAUE
14A561%  BEBKBEHMEBAEHLE
RBER G EFBESEEAEER LXK
BRERBERIERRER -

BIE EHRAE14A550K - BUERITERE
EHEBEFENETZIRERERS  YTHER

AERHTY
(i) RAKEBEER-—REHBES

(i) MEBHEEREBER K

(i) REEARBRRATFRAEANEAKE

=
PREREERE A 2R 2 R RETT o

AARGEERTEENNIEEES - L&
REEUEBRS  ERERBTEELANMBIER
BFEERAATERELIFNTESER -
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DIRECTORS’' REPORT (continued)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in note 39 to
the audited consolidated financial statements. Other than those
disclosed in the section above headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions and Connected Transactions”, all other related party
transactions were exempt from any disclosure and shareholders’
approval requirements, or do not constitute connected or
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 172 to 205 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Code in
Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules for the year under review are
set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 34 to 165 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), PwC has served as the auditor
of the Company for 7 consecutive years. The Board and the Audit
Committee consider that it is an appropriate time to rotate the
auditor of the Company for upholding good corporate governance
and maintaining the independence of the Company’s auditor. On
27 March 2025, the Board has resolved, with the recommendation
of its audit committee, to appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
(“SHINEWING") as the new auditor of the Company following
the retirement of PwC with effect from the conclusion of the
AGM 2025 and until the conclusion of the next AGM, subject
to the approval by the Shareholders at the AGM 2025 and the
completion of SHINEWING's client acceptance procedures .

ERELEREEMBRAT 227
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AUDITOR (continued) % EEn (&)

PwC confirmed that there are no circumstances connected with its B ER K ERRTERL R TAEMELR LA
retirement that it considers should be brought to the attention of EFARRIBRENEEAFETZHIE
the Company’s shareholders and creditors.

The auditor of the Company has not been changed in the past 7Ei8 % = 4 3 8 5 IR R N BAZ E6D o
three years.

By Order of the Board EEEEW
Ding Rucai E
Chairman Tk

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025 B ZE-RAF=RA=++H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e
pwc

To the Members of Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”), which are set out on pages 239 to 340, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

EWELEREEMBRAT 229
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(continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

ﬁ?&ﬁ%ﬁ%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The key audit matter identified in our audit is impairment
assessments of goodwill, mining rights and property, plant and

equipment:

Key Audit Matter

“TOMFEFR ERBLUEREEARAF 231

B RBERE

\
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@ﬁ%ﬁ%lg(nlﬁ)
BPMESTPRINNBAREAFTELBE K

BHREARYE - BB RRERRERTS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RAEETER

BANETNMEEFARETSEE

Impairment assessments of goodwill, mining rights, and property, plant and equipment

BE REEUARDE - BERRENRETS
Refer to Notes 16, 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements
26 MB|KRMEI6 - 19520

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has goodwill,
mining rights and property, plant and equipment of
HK$1,180 million, HK$5,970 million and HK$3,715
million respectively, that were originated from the
acquisitions of Shanxi Liulin Xingwu Coal Co., Limited
("Xingwu"), Shanxi Liulin Jinjiazhuang Coal Co., Limited
("Jinjiazhuang”) and Shanxi Liulin Zhaiyadi Coal Co.,
Limited (“Zhaiyadi”) in 2008. These companies are
engaged in coking coal mining, production and sales of
coking coal products in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC").

RZZE_ME+A=+—H - EBEEEFAXERN
“EENFRBLANHAEERBEEREEA R (T HE
') LA REREAERAR (TR RILE
MIMERERREERAR(IRER])NEE - FREEIN
KM - BB REBHED R A11.80EET - 59.7018E T
K3715@EBTT - ZERRNRPEARKMBE(THE])
REERKFAR  ERERZ EERHEE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessments of goodwill, mining rights and property,
plant and equipment included:

BN EREHHE  RKBEARDE - BE &R
R PTERR P B2 4E ¢

R

—  We obtained an understanding of the management'’s
internal control and assessment process of recoverable
amount of each of the CGU and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity
changes and susceptibility to management bias.

- BATHTEREHSERSELABUNHATRES
BRAA BB S AT AR - WRBE B THEE
|€EE’7$&EV?D,H\@IEH A= (FlanEET - 8
MEMERERRR) KT - STAERERER M
WEARE

—  We evaluated the composition of management’s
future cash flow forecasts used in their value-in-use
calculations, and the process by which they were
prepared. We found that the cash flow forecasts
prepared by management were subject to review by
the directors of the Company and were consistent
with the budgets approved by the Company’s board
of directors.

- BAFGTEERECEAEAEEFEREMANKRK
ReMmEBTBRMBNK - AREBELTEANBIE -
BMBEREEERUENBECRETAANR BERFE
R W BERREFGHENTEE -

— We involved our internal valuation experts in
assessing the appropriateness and consistency of
the methodologies used, and key assumptions and
estimates applied.

- HAERFMAABEEERTEBIENEE LM
—BUME - U RPTER R BERERER MEE -
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Key Audit Matter

ﬁ%&%ﬁlﬁﬁ&%

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BARETEER

BE - RREUARYE - BERREORESE (R

For the purpose of impairment assessments, management
grouped the relevant assets of Xingwu, Jinjiazhuang
and Zhaiyadi at the lowest levels for which there are
three separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or group of assets (cash-generating-unit (“CGU")).
Management determined the recoverable amounts of
each CGU using the value-in-use method, which involved
significant judgement in determining the assumptions
used in the calculations. The key assumptions include
long-term coal prices, discount rates and the license
period of the mining right.

HREFEMS  EREREE  SREREERNNA
BAEEINRZENKTY  HPA=HEAEFHHRMNNRTR
A TELESRBIBUNEMEENEEERN (RS
EXBEM([ReELEBEMDNRERA - ERERER
BEZETEERSELBUNAIKNESRE  ZHEE
EEAEMARRFIELERAE - HREXREERS
BIREA - BAIR R RIRERE AT E AR o

Based on the results of the impairment assessments, no
impairment on goodwill, mining rights and property,
plant and equipment was considered necessary as at 31
December 2024.

BREBERETGNER  BFR_T_NF+_RA=+—
Bt E - SR RYE - BE RRETRME -

BN EFTNMEEFERETSE

Impairment assessments of goodwill, mining rights, and property, plant and equipment (continued)

We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s
key assumptions made in the forecasts. For revenue
growth rate which determined by coal price, we
compared the long-term coal prices used in the
forecasts against the market prices, and assessed
the rate of annual increment by reference to
industry forecasts and market trends. For the
discount rate, we benchmarked the rate used in the
forecast against our research of the discount rates
used by comparable companies in the industry. We
have assessed the reasonableness of the assumption
made by management on the renewal of license
period of the mining rights held by the Group.
BMAAEEEREANFELEEIEZEREREG S
2ot RRERBEETHRREREMS - RS
AREANRARRERETEELER - W2RT
FHRAETISBY  FEFEFELEX - TRER
T HAEAREANL ZREMENTATEL
BRARF AR RN TERETELELE « M
EFZERERER BESEESERBEEFIED
[RATERR 2 AEME -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT BIZEMRSE
(continued) (&)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRETEE BMNESTNAEERAREENSE
Impairment assessments of goodwill, mining rights, and property, plant and equipment (continued)

BE - RREUARYE - BERREORESE (R

We focused on this area due to the significance of the -  We compared the current year actual results with
balances and the estimation of recoverable amount is the amounts included in the prior year cash flow
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty as well forecast to consider the quality of management’s
as significant judgements involved in the election of forecasting, and we checked that management had
assumptions used. considered the current year actual results in the
HZMEIZBERAAEANEEZNN - AFKE 2N preparation of this year's forecasts. We questioned
HHZHSEGAIEEENTE  UREABREE of management to understand the reasons for
BT B O B2 22 ) T the deviation of the actual results for the current

year from the prior year’s forecast, corroborating
management’s explanations to our knowledge
on the market and the Group’s performance in
the current year. We also checked that these
relevant factors had been taken into account in
this year’s forecasts. We also considered whether
the judgements made in selecting the assumptions
and data would give rise to indicators of possible
management bias.

- BMBEAFEERXER I —FERLREBAAH
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRETEE BMNESTNAEERAREENSE
Impairment assessments of goodwill, mining rights, and property, plant and equipment (continued)

BE - RREUARYE - BERREORESE (R

-  We performed testing on the mathematical
accuracy of the discounted cash flow model.

- EMHBURBEeRERBNEMERIEEIT T A
Eit o

— We analysed management’s sensitivities in the
models, and assessed the potential impact of
reasonably possible downside changed in key
assumptions.

- B TEBREBHRAENGRE - Xalh TR
BREAGERBELTHOAIRE TTEBNEELE -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that the risk assessment of the impairment assessments
of goodwill, mining rights and property, plant and
equipment remained appropriate and the methodology
of significant assumptions used by management in
the impairment assessments were supportable by the
available evidence.

BEFAMMTHEF - RMRAEE  KBEREARDE -
B KRB RENENRRTENAEE - WHER
BHEBEMETEANEZRRNDEAFIREER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in Shougang Fushan Resources Group
Limited 2024 Annual Report (the “annual report”) other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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(continued)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
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going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group
as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025

ﬁ?&%&ﬁfﬁﬁ%

BB BT RS M BRRAREDN

EE(E)

REEEZZEQBANER  RMAEETTY
AHEEEMBRRES TENREEZSER -
IR EST FIH - BRIPARIER TR AR
BRELEFAXEBTEANBERT - HMAR
B ARBKBUSTFRAAERHINTIRER
HEEARMBLFEFTENFLE - R TEER
ERTURE  GRIRMASEXBEES T
MY EFR -

HAXBYZBMBENEARBEABARR

==
EN- N

BORKEGMEHAR
L ES -]

FEH —E-_RAF=A=-++H



—ToNEFH EHBUEREEERAR 239

—=

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers REZEF &Y=

GEEaRHEMZERER

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-=F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
kA FET FEIT
6 5,057,000 5,891,068

Cost of sales 8 & BN (2,468,686) (2,425,040)
Gross profit EX 2,588,314 3,466,028
Interest income MBI A 186,780 173,638
Other income and gains, net HEW A R - F58 7 94,942 8,088
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEPAX (110,092) (214,562)
General and administrative expenses —REITHER (208,899) (201,296)
Other operating expenses Hitv&ERE 8 (13,346) (9,934)
Impairment loss on an associate —MHEE R EREEE 21 (9.818) =
Finance costs BT A AN 9 (1,746) (2,921)
Share of loss of an associate JEAE — B & N R E 18 (238) (124)
Profit before income tax BRSBTS R 10 2,525,897 3,218,917
Income tax expense Fri5fi &R 11 (710,922) (917,979)
Profit for the year FERA 1,814,975 2,300,938
Other comprehensive income for the FEHM2EZE
year
Item that may be reclassified subsequently E&rjgeEH DB EIER
to profit or loss: MIEH :
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEB I WK
of financial statements of foreign EECERER
operations (142,023) (372,263)
Item that will not be reclassified to BATFEFHEEER
profit or loss: BIER :
Net fair value (loss)/gain on financial BAVERAEMEE
assets measured at fair value through WM BEE2 A VFE
other comprehensive income (E518),/ W358 (249,077) 20,274
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEBI B HRE
of financial statements of foreign EEZELEZR
operations (25,859) (65,245)
Total comprehensive income for FEXHRZATE
the year 1,398,016 1,883,704
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

mEBERREMEEKER @)

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
“E-EF —F-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hat FET FET
Profit for the year attributable to: RTFATEGMEERA :
Owners of the Company IN/NEIEZZE N 1,494,066 1,889,247
Non-controlling interests FEVERRAE 320,909 411,691
Profit for the year FEBAN 1,814,975 2,300,938
Total comprehensive income for LTATEEFEFEZEKRE
the year attributable to: wEE
Owners of the Company VAN/NEIET 2SN 1,102,966 1,537,258
Non-controlling interests FEE M 2 295,050 346,446
Total comprehensive income for FEZHRZEATE
the year 1,398,016 1,883,704
(Restated)
(&%)
Earnings per share BREF
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EAREECE) 13 30.12 37.55
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2024

ERBELEREEERAT 241

wE BRI R

R-ZFZmFE+=—A=4+—H

2024 2023
—B-NEF —ET-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Brat FET FHET
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKERE 16 3,715,248 3,692,871
Land use rights + b {55 FA 4 17 73,168 70,639
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 18 31,796 36,360
Mining rights FRIERE 19 5,970,133 6,244,972
Goodwill R 20 1,179,551 1,189,466
Interest in an associate R—EBE QR 2R 21 - 9,806
Financial assets measured at fair value BAFEGFAEMBEEREE
through other comprehensive income TG EE 22 439,187 688,264
Deposits, prepayments and other e - TARFRIE R H A B
receivables FIE 23 453,310 388,791
Deferred income tax assets BEFRSHERE 32 84,764 146,360
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 11,947,157 12,467,529
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 24 137,638 125,636
Trade receivables TEWE 5 8R18 25 519,815 530,468
Bills receivables JEWRIR 25 18,089 157,365
Deposits, prepayments and other e - FARRIE R H A ER
receivables A 23 207,695 280,921
Financial assets measured at fair value BAFEFABRZTH
through profit or loss BiE 26 - 43,019
Pledged and restricted bank deposits EEARZREIRITER 27 937,107 941,875
Time deposits with original maturity over REFEZEAEB =7 2 FH
three months N 28 1,505,443 1,392,489
Cash and cash equivalents HeMRESED 28 7,675,879 6,552,242
Total current assets REEERE 11,001,666 10,024,015
Total assets EEZE 22,948,823 22,491,544
LIABILITIES a1
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and bills payables JERTE BRI KB RIE 29 757,521 621,467
Lease liabilities HEBaE 18 12,125 10,317
Other payables and accruals HiENRIBE R EAER 30 1,536,254 1,425,405
Amounts due to non-controlling interests  FEHI /B A & FE 1= i 25
of subsidiaries IR 31 60,466 63,904
Tax payables JE A~ 75 I8 224,669 401,496
Total current liabilities RBEERAE 2,591,035 2,522,589
Net current assets REBEEFE 8,410,631 7,501,426
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

- pm Vv N -
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) AR R (#)
As at 31 December 2024 R-ZEFE-—mFE+=-A=+—H
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FET
Total assets less total current liabilities EEZA BB A A EHEE 20,357,788 19,968,955
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMSHEE 32 1,424,979 1,464,911
Lease liabilities HEBE 18 31,552 33,526
Total non-current liabilities FRBABEHAE 1,456,531 1,498,437
Net assets EEEE 18,901,257 18,470,518
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of ERREEAEBGER
the Company
Share capital A& A 33 15,582,467 15,156,959
Reserves i 34 897,607 1,124,887

Total equity attributable to owners of QA TREE AEGESEE

the Company 16,480,074 16,281,846
Non-controlling interests FERER 2,421,183 2,188,672
Total equity EZEE 18,901,257 18,470,518

The consolidated financial statements on pages 239 to 340 were $239H ZF340B v AWK HED R
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2025 and were —HF=ZA-_++HESFWETRERES
signed on its behalf:

Ding Rucai Wang Dongming
T&F ILH
Director Director

EZE EFE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2024

—E I FFR

GERZEER

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

ERELEREEERAT 243

Non-
controlling Total
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
ALIRAAEGER FehEE EREE
Security
Share  Statutory Other  Retained investment Translation
capital  reserve  reserves profits ~ reserve  reserve Total
RA  tEGE  HbEE  RERN REREGE AERE 45
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
F&r 7 7 71 71 7 7 7T 71
At 1 January 2024 RZE-RE-A-A 15,156,959 451226 569,177 2,702,512 (1,765444)  (832,584) 16,281,846 2,188,672 18,470,518
Profit for the year ERET - - - 1,494,066 - - 1494066 320909 1,814,975
Other comprehensive income for the year:  EEE#2ENE |
- Fxchange differences on translation ~ ~AEENEHEHRFES
of financial statements of foreign JEREE
operations - - - - - (142,023)  (142,023)  (25859)  (167,882)
- Net fair value loss on financial assets ~ —RAFE AL H2ENE
measured at fair value through other B &E ATEER
comprehensive income it - - - - (49,07) - (49,0m) - (49,0m)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £E2EMHLEE - - - 1494066  (249,077)  (142,023) 1,102,966 295,050 1,398,016
Transactions with owners in their capacity  WEBASHEEFAER
35 OWners: 25
Issue of shares under rights issue (note 33) IR I RETR(H33) 425,508 - - - - - 425508 - 425508
2023 final dividend approved (note 1) B#Ez-B-=ERGKE
Wi#1) = - - (886,831) = - (886,831) - (886,831)
2024 interim dividend declared (note 12) 257 ~E-MERHRE
(Wit12) - - - (a3415) - - (a3415) - (a349)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests & FHBA AL RiER 2
of subsidiaries el = = = = = = - (62539)  (62,539)
Appropriations to statutory reserve BREEEREZMe)
(note 34(a)) - 1,229 - (1,229) - - - - -
Appropriations to other reserves (note 34(b) B3 Z £ 4t et i) - - 1913 (21.97) - - - - -
At 31 December 2024 WoRTBETZAZT-R 15562467 452455 U150 28,130 (2014521)  (974607) 16480074 2421183 16,901,257
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HEEREHR@

BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

Non-
controlling Total
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
ALRRENEES FERER  EafH
Security
Share  Statutory Other ~ Retained  investment  Translation
apitll - reserve reserves pofits  reseve  resenve Tota
Br EERE  EtBE  REEN BRRARE  HEER ok
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
dr  TEr  TEr T TEr TEr AT TEr TEn
At 1 January 2023 R-B-zF-H-8 15,156,950 449686 366,693 3041378 (1,785718)  (460,321) 16,768,677 1908542 18,677,219
Profit for the year EEEH = - - 1,889,247 - - 1889247 411691 2,300,938
Other comprehensive income for the year:  EEE2ENE :
- Exchange differences on translation ~ ~BEEHERE KRR
of financial statements of foreign EEvENER
operations - - - - - (372263)  (372,263) (65245 (437,508
- Net fair value gain on financial assets ~ ~RAFE AL 2 ENE
measured at fair value through other ~— B EE 2 ATERE
comprehensive income et - - - - 20,274 - 20,274 5 20,274
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2ERHLE S - - 1,889,247 20274 (372,263) 1537,258 346446 1883704
Transactions with owners in their capacity W% AR EEA AT
as owners; 25
Expiration of obligation to repurchase the B ILEA L& EAR AR
27% equity interest of linshan Energy (1411 1)27%RiENETS
Group Limited (*Jinshan”) REE 5 - 186,138 5 5 - 186,138 - 186,138
Buy-back of shares (note 34(c)) KB 40) - - - (303,028 - - (303,028 - (303,028
202 final dividend approved (note 12) -~ BAEZ -5 —FRERE
(Hit12) - - - (1,414505) - - (1414519) (1414,515)
2023 interim dividend declared (note 12) 2512 ~E-=Fh ks
i) = - - (492,684) - - (492,684) - (492,684)
Dividend paid to non-controling interests of {1 FHBAT b RiER2
subsidiaries ke = = = = = = - (66316)  (66,316)
Appropriations to statutory reserve EREEERENH40)
(note 34(a)) - 1,540 - (1,540) - - - - -
Appropriations to other reserves (note 34(b)) B E i E(fE341)) - - 16346 (16,346) = = = = =
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZETZAZH-B 15156950 451,006 569,177 2,700,512 (1,765444)  (832,584) 16,281846 2,188,672 18,470,518
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS GERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 R T -pNFE—A=1+—HIFFE
2024 2023
g o112 —F=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities RJEEBCHLERE
Profit before income tax % BT 1S8L AlE T 2,525,897 3,218,917
Adjustments for: EAETSIE -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZETE
equipment 16 313,551 451,278
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETS 18(ii) 4,354 6,231
Amortisation of land use rights b {55 AR AR £ 17 2,138 2,080
Amortisation of mining rights PR R Y 19 229,466 241,137
Amortisation of long-term deferred REAFFE B R
expenses 1,408 1,445
Interest income B YA (186,780) (173,638)
Dividend income f% B Ug A 7 (21,510) (21,510)
Finance costs B 75 Ak A 9 1,746 2,921
Share of loss of an associate FE(L —EEE & R R &8 21 238 124
(Gain)/Loss on disposals of property, HEME BMERREREZ
plant and equipment (W) B8 7 (5,060) 348
Impairment loss on an associate Bt N AR EE R 21 9,818 =
Net foreign exchange loss HNESTE 3 1B 58 7 2,810 111,254
Operating profit before working capital LEESEBA 2 EET
changes 2,878,076 3,840,587
Changes in working capital: BB R ¢ i
Increase in inventories FEEM (13,068) (84,759)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables JEULE 5 BR1E & R W 2= ik
NERAN 144,094 2,124,962
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits, e  JENZEEEME
prepayments and other receivables WeskIE (38 00),/ R > (96,866) 11,274
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank BHEABITERRD
deposits (#n) 40,229 (73,501)
Increase in trade and bills payables JEE S ERIE M EN EIE
0 99,714 30,637
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables and  E {th i~ 7038 & fE 5+ & A
accruals 2GR 168,062 (212,882)
Cash generated from operations CEELE RS 3,220,241 5,636,318
Income tax paid EFER (850,367) (1,093,307)
Net cash inflow from operating activities — 4% & 2752 38 & i A FEE 2,369,874 4,543,011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued) HERERERAE)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF
2024 2023
“E-EF —T-=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Hat FET FET

Cash flows from investing activities REEXBZHERE
Payments to acquire property, plant and EEWY¥ - BEREEY

equipment IR (442,328) (489,292)
Payments to acquire land use rights BB TR A (5,373) (17,838)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HE¥WE - BEMKREZ

and equipment Fri8 k18 5,237 138
Proceeds from receivables for transfer of — #:& — KW B A 7D B

minority equity interest of a subsidiary Y JFE Y FR T8 177,682 -
Receipt from financial assets measured ESRAFEFABRZZ

at fair value through profit or loss B & E 39,163 377,240
Increase in restricted bank deposits SRR ISR 1717 FAE hn (43,451) (101,922)
(Increase)/Decrease in time deposits with  RIFREBE=1ER 2 FH

original maturity over three months FaUEm R (112,954) 787,211
Interest received 2 HCFE 178,141 182,264
Dividend received B Ui 8 21,510 21,510

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing K EE#KH ()~
activities TAFEE (182,373) 759,311

Cash flows from financing activities AEEXB2HESRE

Principal elements of lease payments HENRzERES D (719) (5,698)
Interest paid [EENPESS (798) (2,921)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company B AR TESR AZ KR (1,330,204) (1,907,098)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 21 F B A T 3EIERR R 2

of subsidiaries &8 (65,504) (123,485)
Payment on buy-back of shares B i fn 2 SR8 = (303,028)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon rights ftIZ S 3577 AR (7 1S F00A

issue 33 425,508 -
Net cash outflow from financing activities Fi& 272 R &K L /F58 (971,717) (2,342,230)
Net increase in cash and cash RekBREESEYEMFE

equivalents 1,215,784 2,960,692
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January RA—A—HZHREREE

£EY 6,552,242 3,833,923

Effect of foreign exchange rates IEERESFHHESR

changes on cash and cash equivalents BE&ZEY & (92,147) (241,773)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-—A=+—HZHER

31 December HEZEY 28 7,675,879 6,552,242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is 6th Floor,
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, No. 56 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The principal places
of business of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group's subsidiaries comprise
coking coal mining, production and sales of coking coal
products. There were no significant changes in the Group’s
operations during the year. Details of the activities of the
principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 36.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations and
the impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 2.1.1.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
developed by the HKICPA and the requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 (the
“Companies Ordinance”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

EWELEREEMBERAT 247
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 4 e B IS SR R B = o)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T -pNFEf—A=1+—HIFFE
2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. StBEZBAL (&)
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 RREEE(EK)
The consolidated financial statements have been BRETHEREATEFAREMEE
prepared under the historical cost basis except for Wzt & E (M:E22) RIEA A
certain financial instruments classified as financial assets ABms M BEE(ME26) 2 B
measured at fair value through other comprehensive TERAFEFEN  FEUBHRE
income (note 22) and financial assets measured at HRBEFEHRANEERGE - T2
fair value through profit or loss (note 26), which are AEEFMN T X2 EBUR -

measured at fair values. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

2.1.1 Adoption of new or amended standards and 211 RPN —E-WF—-—F—HE£H
interpretations that are effective on 1 January Z AT ABNE T E R R 2 FE
2024
The following new and amended standards and TEEET M EET BRI R BB T
interpretations apply for the first time to the AEER-Z-_MHF—HA—HH
Group's financial reporting period commencing on A2 IERERENER ¢

1 January 2024:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as EneitEl PRERE
Current or Non-current F1R 2B FRnBEE

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities ECERRE Wz EnBEE
with Covenants F1RZER]

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale BRRREE] EREENHEAR
and Leaseback F163 2537

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial BRREELH 25BBRE - EHA

(2020) Statements — (ZB-%f%) HESRERERE

Classification by the RZERERNE

Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains
a Repayment on
Demand Clause

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance BEeHER REBRERH
and HKFRS 7 Arrangements FIRRBBUT

REEHETHR BT

The adoption of these amended standards and R & AE ZT A R & 51 45 3
accounting guideline did not have any impact on HiRTHE R 2 EIL BT M
the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not FE NBEFTEYHE BRI ARRK
expected to significantly affect the current or future BN EARATE -

periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) ar e B IS SR AR B = o)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 R T -pNFE—A=1+—HIFFE
2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. StBE 2B (&)
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 RREEE(EK)
2.1.2 New and amended standards and 2.1.2 B fEfF{E 5 5K £ 34 2 FT AT R A& 15
interpretations that have been issued but are FTERIREFE

not yet effective

The following new and amended standards and AT rRIEE AN EFE BHRKRA
interpretations, which are potentially relevant ZHIIREIETTERREE R
to the Group's financial statements have been B BERARERBEAERLE
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been REHEW ANEBBRAERZ
early adopted by the Group. The Group's current LEFER BREFBER -

intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

TR e ] <

BHHMEN
Amendments to HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
BEGHENE2IRR PRI “Z-nf-A-H

BEMBRERRE 1R BT
Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards - Volume 11 1 January 2026
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10, and HKAS 7
BRMBRERNZ S  BARNE  BAMKBSRUZFERE-FNE —E_RF-A-H
HRBETR  FARBREEY
F9% - BARBRFERF105% R
BB G ERETR 2B

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (New Standard) 1 January 2027
BAR KRG ERF 185 Bk < 25 RS (rEd)) “Z-+f-A-H
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2027
(New Standard)
BRMBREERE 195 FARZFAEAMBAR - RECGHER) “E-+%-A-H
Amendments to Hong Kong Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2027
Interpretation 5 - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause
BRRBESK BT BERBESH2IINBRE - BRAHBERERERENZ —T_+F-A—-H
THERZHE
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and To be determined
and HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture
BERRBHREERF105% R REZRHEBENARSERRAZEELEITE BT

BB EIEAEIH 2 5]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

R ERRME @

BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. SEHE 2B (E)
(continued)

2.1 REEE(E)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 B B {8 5 5K £ 3 2 5T R AR S
FTEBIRZFE(E)

2.1.2 New and amended standards and
interpretations that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

The Group has commenced, but not yet completed, AEEBRREERTHKFITE
an assessment of the impact of the new standards Al REAERTH H L EEMA
and amendments to standards on its results of BN ENTE - KEBE X
operations and financial position. The Group BER N Bt AER] « EREET &
is not yet in a position to state whether these REGEHAKEEERMBMR
new standards, amendments to standards and MELEBATE -

interpretations would have any significant impact

on its results of operations and financial positions.

22 EREHEER

2.2 Material accounting policy information

2.2.1 Property, plant and equipment 2, 19% - BMERRE

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress (“CIP"), are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an asset includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

mE - BEERREBEZIR(HE
FRTAZ DBRON) THR AR REH T
ENRFREBREE BEZ
RABREBEENKEZEFERB
BHEEA 2 -

BEXRAREEABBABABLZ
AREEMDBAIEERALEE
BEEBBEBRAA LA MG E
B T HEGFABEZREESL
EREBEERR(WEE) - &
By 2 REER LTER - F
BHMEECRREEREEES
2 B B R O B 2 R RERR S B
¥
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) mEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2024 R T -pNFE—A=1+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. SEHE 2B (E)
(continued)

nl|

2.2 Material accounting policy information 22 ERETTHEER(E)
(continued)

2.2.1 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 22,1 9% - BMERRZE ()

Other than mining structures, depreciation is MRIEIS AN - FTE TR T

provided to write off the cost net of their estimated FRIREE - NIRE A&

residual values over their estimated useful lives BEHANEGESH G RARE

on a straight-line basis, at the following rates per B KA B

annum:

Buildings and plants The shorter of the lease BFREE HEFHH%
terms or 5% MEZBREE

Mining machinery 10% FiRiges Rk 10%

and equipment
Leasehold improvements The shorter of the lease
terms or 33'3%

Office equipment, 20% to 33'3%
furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles and 10% to 25%

transportation equipment

Depreciation on mining structures is provided to
write off the cost of the mining structures using
the units of production method based on the total
proved and probable reserves of the coal mine as
the depletion base.

The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation
methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

CIP is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost
comprises direct costs of construction as well as
borrowing costs capitalised during the periods
of construction and installation. Capitalisation of
these costs ceases and the CIP is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in
respect of CIP until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

HEMERE THEFEHH3313%
W& BEE
FE/NEE R 20%%33"/3%
BRI RE
AERERRE 10%Z25%

BHEEEM M ERBRBAR
ARAEZRKFEERFERELE
ZEEBMZE  BRESEEYZ

AEGHFBEE  FEHER
{431 1 50 F AN 5 9 5 MK
TR 3B 1R TR
A

£ T2 9% Ak AN BB 1B & 18 51
B BMABRBRZEZEERRAN
EREERTZEKMEERN2E
B - E%?Fkﬁt%ﬁT
ﬁﬁm%ﬁZM R RERE T
CRRERAEELEN - &
%IE%%A%%*@%&&%
ZBEENA BEEERTRER
AR P BEE A& LB AT - AN
ERERTRITETRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

2.2.1 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between
the sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

2.2.2 Intangible assets

HEMBHRRME @

BE—FT-_WFEF+-A=1—HIFE

2. SETBER 2B (E)
2.2 EXEFBEER(H)

2219% - BMERKZE (&)

WEEZREESREMGF K
Ol &5 - A& ERRHUREE A
Yo -

RE—HYME  BMEERERE
Wk ER - EHEMBRA
HEMEARAEZEZR AR
HERNBRER -

222 EFEE

(i)

Goodwill
The excess of the
° consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity; and

e  acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

(i) FE

i

s FEEAE:

s WWBEREMIFE
EEg:: Skt DS

s RIRWBEBSLAZE
fa] B A #E s O WK R B 8B
ZNFE

B B U BB R 8 Bl B R E
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JIRR - WEEM B R R FTEL
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A REFEHHRKIE
L BN A BE R BLE
o RIVE SR % 0 E 1T R E R
A WIRAAR R FH R E B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
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Fe M BRRME @

BE—_FE-_mF+-_A=+—HIFZF

2. EFFBERZBL (&)

2.2 EXEFBEER(H)

2.2.2 Intangible assets (continued) 222 B EE (&)

(i) Goodwill (continued) (i) EEE)
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units BHERewH M ERSELES
for the purpose of impairment testing. The MLAEITRERNS - @D
allocation is made to those cash-generating RS RELEmE
units or groups of cash-generating units that E¥BEHPEECHEESELE
are expected to benefit from the business BB EEEEMMARE
combination in which the goodwill arose. The oo ZEBEMNEMART
units or groups of units are identified at the PABEEMRERFGE
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored SIEE X (B4 & 5 30 (B 5T
for internal management purposes, being the 6))a Al -
operating segments (note 6).

(i) Mining rights (i) FRIERE

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses and are amortised on the units of
production method based on the total proven
and probable reserves of the coal mine.

PR TO 1R AR B R 5 8H
R RFREBEYE - LR
BRI BRI R AT RE 2
EMEEFLOEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

2.2.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2.2.4 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. They are generally due for
settlement within 60 to 90 days and therefore are
all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair
value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See note 25 for further information about the
Group's accounting for trade receivables and note
4.1(b) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

HEMBHRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

2. BETBRER 2B (FE)

2.2 EREFBEEHR (&)

223 R BEEHRE

BEBAEH  ESFETRE
AR REEFHFLRIBR
BB RARELIERER  AIE
REMETRERNR  HHEE
REFHHRKBERE B TE
TE B 7 BE 48 0% W [0 B 2 77 ORU(EDR
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OEeBMREEZAFERKLE
RARFEREEMEZESE °
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MEEXEEMAMN(REELE
) ZBEERA o HEBEZ IEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

2.2.5 Revenue recognition

“TOMFEFR ERBLUEREEAERAR 255

Fe M BRRME @

BE—_FE-_mF+-_A=+—HIFZF

2. SETBERZBEL(E)
2.2 EXSFHBEER(E)

2.2.5 Wz rERR

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the good
or service may be transferred over time or at a point
in time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over
time if the Group's performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

e  creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of
the goods or service.

Ju]
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HNE IR 2 2 HIEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) eSS ESEETE )

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF
2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. SETBER 2B (E)
(continued)
2.2 Material accounting policy information 22 EAEHBKRER (&)
(continued)
2.2.5 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.2.5 Wz e (48)
Sales of goods (continued) HEER(E)
The Group is engaged in coking coal mining, FEBREERRAR  ERE
production and sales of coking coal products. mZEERBE - WHENKE®
Revenue is recognised when the control of the THIREE TEP 2 TR R
products are transferred to the customers at a RHNEMRRXRNTTEFPZE B
point in time, when products are delivered to the ERWENRBETCEARER
customers, and there is no unfulfilled obligation FPHERzBRIK Bm{ENE
that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the EmbERXEEHE E8E®
products. Delivery occurs when the products have B REBERZARERGEER
been shipped to the specified location, the risks REFEERHEEANRBRKE
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred M BRBENXEXRRSIAERSE
to the customers, and either the customers have REEBXRPEFASIARIE
accepted the products in accordance with the sales Ay

contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

A contract liability is recognised when the EEMXNAIEHRER KRR
consideration is received from customers before B ABIAEHNEE -EEMX
the goods are delivered. A receivable is recognised 30 B e 1 - BRI AT B8R WK
when the goods are delivered and accepted as B MRS ERIEIDREXNRE
this is the point in time that the consideration is B2 AAERHMARETR
unconditional because only the passage of time is A —ERRFRERNA] o

required before the payment is due.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(i) Subsidiaries

“TOMFEFR ERBUEREEABRAF 257

Fe M BRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE
3. HMEFBER

3.1 6t R EEEFTEA

(i) HIEA=

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of
financial position respectively.

MEBAREARERRAEHEZ
FMEER(BEABLER) - &
AEBRSEBEREBMAER
BEAZEERZEARKER &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) eSS ESEETE )

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF
3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. Htt &R (E)

3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity 3.1 6Pt RERESFIREA (&)
accounting (continued)

(ii) Associates (i) BBE LA
Associates are all entities over which the Group BERNREMBEASEHERE
has significant influence but not control or joint B OmMEES ERERE
control. This is generally the case where the Group fligcER BEEAEEES
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. 20% E50% 1% 4 2 IR AE o B
Investments in associates are accounted for using NEREN T AR AER » &
the equity method of accounting, after initially NS AN °

being recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the BEE=EE  BREDTUK
investments are initially recognised at cost and R - ERELFARURER
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share PRRANEEERGEIZET 2K
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the BRANNER  MPXREME2E
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share WHNERAEEEEERER
of movements in other comprehensive income JEMEEWEES o BE QT
of the investee in other comprehensive income. RkeghE s 2 ek EKREH
Dividends received or receivable from associates and RAEREREEBEZHR -

joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity- MRRREEELE—BERAERSS
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest FEHECREZEESRNE
in the entity, including any other unsecured long- BERZERB = - BEEMA
term receivables, the Group does not recognise HiamE R RHAEWGKIE - AKX
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or SEEWTERE— DT 2EBE - B
made payments on behalf of the other entity. FERKEMEBEFERLX

30R - RIS ERIE ©

Unrealised gains on transactions between the AEBHEBEARREEDLE
Group and its associates and joint ventures are ZEAZAREBRZIHWHGURE
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in EMEEEE=AR TUHEE -
these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated BRIFBBBBERIRZIPEEL
unless the transaction provides evidence of an BELBRE  TRIRZHREE
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting TTAEE - RARSGEZ
policies of equity accounted investees have been WIREFZEHBREREEE
changed where necessary to ensure consistency B URREREERAZ
with the policies adopted by the Group. B —5 -

The carrying amount of equity-accounted HKABEREEAFECRESR
investments is tested for impairment in accordance B sE2.2 3R 2 R E R EAE

with the policy described in note 2.2.3. TERE R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Fe M BRRME @

BE_E_mE+-_A=+—HIFFEF
3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. HtSstBR (&)

3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity 3.1 aftRERETREA (&)

accounting (continued)

(iii) FrE#E#EzE 221t

(iii) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HKS$, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the statement of profit
or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net
basis within other income and gains, net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

(i)

HEMBHRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE
HiestBE(E)

3.2 ;e

WEER FIHE

EREEER Y BHRERMIIA
BUNZEREEMECIER
BRREZEE(THEEEE )
B - GREMBRRUNETIIR
BILBARRBZY T R H
g% -

(i) XEBREH

IMERZRARZ AR ZERR
BRNEEE BEUSIRFHE
2 TE K e B B 1R A R S B
AECEREERABBIAFRIE
FMEEAZEL W REE—
BRBRAER - HEESER
ZEREREHIRAERERE
B EBHEIER D BINERR
BFE - AR EmAEL -

HEEEHCEL KRG REBEER
BRRAZMBERAFRIR - B
BEMELWm REBERZFEE
ERNGERERANZEMBEKAR
Ygk - FERP IR o

BAFEFEZIIEFEEER
B RAQAFTEETHHZESX
BE BAVEIKRZEEREA
BeBMEZBEDNERAFEKS
HEBRZ —BD IR - Blan - 3k
EREE(MOBRAFEFAR
feR2ERE s 2 REZERN
H b2 E U e AR o



—ToNFEFR BEEBUERKEERRAF 261

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

mEMBHRRME @
BEr—_FE-_mFEF+_-_A=+—HILFE
3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. Hit 23 HE(E)
3.2 MR E(E)

3.2 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Group companies (iii) EE 4 7

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

e income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.
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3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group's
ownership interest in associates that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

3.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
assigned executive directors which assesses the financial
performance and position of the Group, and makes
strategic decisions. The executive directors have been
identified as the chief operating decision maker.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments do not
qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for at
fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using weighted average
method, and in the case of finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
represented the estimated net selling prices in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. HtSstBR(E)

3.8 Investments and other financial assets

3.8 RERHEMMBEE

(i) Classification (i) 7%

The Group classifies its financial assets in the AEEBEMBEESBER/RAT

following measurement categories: FFEHEA -

e those to be measured subsequently at fair s HEEHRAVFEFTFAHMZE
value (either through other comprehensive WSk BRI EE &
income or through profit or loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost. o BB AT ECHMTBERE °

The classification depends on the entity’s business DEDEARBEREEWKEE

model for managing the financial assets and the ZEBEARBEREZENK

contractual terms of the cash flows. FME °

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses MEAFEFEZEEMS K

will either be recorded in profit or loss or other HEREEBIABREKEMEE

comprehensive income. For investments in equity W o IERIEEB2RATA
instruments that are not held for trading, this KEMS &8 ARKEER
will depend on whether the Group has made an N EREEEE T A BE &
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition BERAKERAFE AHAM

to account for the equity investment measured at 2EE °

fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and AEBReREEEEHEREZ

only when its business model for managing those ¥REANER T eEREEE

assets changes. EHOHE -
(i) Recognition and derecognition (ii) BRRARIFER

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. HtSstBR (&)

3.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

3.8 RENHMMBEE (&)

(iii) Measurement (iii) 712

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not measured at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. The Group classifies all of its debt
instruments at amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in “other income and
gains, net” together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group'’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments measured at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see note
4 1(b) for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) HEMBRERMT @

For the year ended 31 December 2024 R T -pNFE—A=1+—HIFFE
3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. HMETBE(E)

3.9 fEEA

3.9 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

3.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. HtSstBR(E)

3.11 Interest income .11 FE WA

Interest income on financial assets measured at
amortised cost and financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

3.12 Dividends income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or
loss when the right to receive payment is established.
This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery
of part of the cost of an investment. In this case, the
dividend is recognised in other comprehensive income
if it relates to an investment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. However, the
investment may need to be tested for impairment as a
consequence.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) mEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2024 B2 —FE-_WFEf—A=+—HILFE

3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3.

3.13 Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares.

e by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares; and

e the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.14 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period.

3.15 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the group will comply with all
attached conditions.
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3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. HtSstBR(E)

3.16 Share capital 3.16 iR A&

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

3.17 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

3.18 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 to 180 days
of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. HtSstBR (&)

3.19 Current and deferred income tax BI9BNHA RIEEFR 5

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment.
The Group measures its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value, depending
on which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or a liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. Htt &R (E)

3.19 Current and deferred income tax BI9BNHARIEREFR S (&)

(continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred income tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
income tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

3.20 Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short-term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.
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3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. HivEstBK (&)

3.20 Employee benefits (continued) 3.200BE &R (&)

(i) Short-term employee benefits (continued) (i) BHESER &)
Employee entitlements to annual leave are EEEZFHRENIDNEESTT
recognised when they accrue to employees. A RERER BERSHHARE
provision is made for the estimated liability for BRMHBRBMEL 2 BT FRE
annual leave as a result of services rendered by BEatiR i -
employees up to the reporting date.
Non-accumulating compensated absences such as RBREDGRAZIEZRFHER
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised HRE AR 5 TRER -
until the time of leave.

(ii) Retirement benefits (ii) EKEF
Retirement benefits to employees are provided BEZRKRENTEBEBEMER
through defined contribution plans. FTEIR M -
The Group operates a defined contribution AEERBRFMEAES ([RFE
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory T DETEEPIBERBEEREBE
Provident Fund (“MPF") Schemes Ordinance, for B2 HEHBESTEZREERLS
all of its Hong Kong employees who are eligible to REHFORARBR S o IR
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are EEFSZADLIEL -
made based on a percentage of the employees’
salaries.
The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which AEBAEPRHSEZHNB AR Z
operate in the PRC are required to participate in BE B B2HEEMTRFRILZ
a central pension scheme operated by the local AR EETE - ZEHEB A A
municipal government. These subsidiaries are BEEHFSKAZEEAED LM
required to contribute a certain percentage of its RRRR S EHEIE R -
payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
Contributions are recognised as an expense in TR EERERBEZFEANE
profit or loss as employees render services during BRTPHEIAR/AX - AEERIE
the year. The Group's obligations under these plans EHECEERREMN EE
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions ERaEdi T
payable.

(iii) Bonus entitlements (iii) ZEEREF

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan
are expected to be settled within twelve months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.

EAKERESEH-RE M AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Leases

Prepaid lease payments are classified as land use rights,
other leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing; and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.
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3. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. HtSstBR (&)

3.21 Leases (continued) 3.21E(E&)

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take
effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an
index or rate took effect, the lease liability is reassessed
and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs; and
e  restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks such
as market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk, which result from both its operating and
investing activities. The Group does not have written
risk management policies and guidelines. However, the
directors meet periodically to analyse and formulate
measures to manage the Group’s exposure to market
risks, including changes in interest rates and currency
exchange rates. Generally, the Group employs a
conservative strategy regarding its risk management.
As the directors consider that the Group’s exposure to
market risk is kept at a minimum level, the Group has not
used any derivatives or other instruments for hedging
purposes. The most significant financial risks to which
the Group is exposed are described below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk
that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group
mainly operates and invests in Hong Kong
and the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$ and Renminbi
("RMB™) respectively. No foreign exchange
risk has been identified for the financial assets
and liabilities in the PRC operations as the
transactions were denominated in RMB, which
is the same as the functional currencies of the
group entities with PRC operation. The Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk primarily
arises from certain financial assets which are
denominated in RMB, United States Dollars
("US$") and Australian Dollars (“AUD").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
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4.1 BEEKREE(E)
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(a) HEEME(E)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i) SMERBR ()
To mitigate the Group's other exposure to = (i =S E = N
foreign exchange risk, cash flows in foreign R INBHREREBRBAE
currencies are monitored in accordance with BrRBEBHREKRETE
the Group’s risk management policies. The e NEUREBER 21
financial assets that are not denominated in BE BRI S B E (R
the functional currency of the Group’s entity, MEXRBESBIT)WOT
translated into HK$ at closing rates, are as
follows:
2024 2023
—E-NE —E--f
Expressed in HK$'000 Expressed in HK$'000
AT BRI AFATLIIT
AUD Uss RMB AUD Us$ RMB
A T ARE AT A ARE

Financial assets measured AT EAL2

at fair value through other ~ Elizs 2 BIBEE

comprehensive income 232,691 - - 481,769 - -
Deposits, prepayments and &4+ NFER

other receivables L bR

- Consideration receivables  — B R ER - - - - - 173,340

~ Interest receivables ~ KB - 12,460 8,136 = 5,174 10,647
Financial assets measured XA TFE AB#EZ

at fair value through UBEE

profit or loss - - - - - 43,019
Time deposit with original ~ BERHBA=AA

maturity over three months 2 EEITF X - 412,843 577,731 - 189,756 774,926
Cash and bank balances ReRRTEH 19 383,910 1,489,139 22 356,257 1,149,626
Qverall net exposure BERBTE 232,710 809,213 2,075,006 481,791 551,187 2,151,558
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As HKS$ is pegged to US$, the Group does
not expect any significant movements in
the US$/HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity
analysis in respect of the Group’s financial
assets denominated in US$ is disclosed as
in the opinion of directors, such sensitivity
analysis does not give additional value in view
of insignificant movement in the US$/HK$
exchange rates as at the reporting date. The
following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s profit for the year and
equity in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the
reporting date.

Increase/
(Decrease)
in foreign
exchange

rates
ExL#/
(TH)

AUD BT +5%
AUD BT -5%
RMB ARE +5%

RMB ARE -5%

HEMBHRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

4. BIERERE(E)

4.1 ¥ EEEEE)

2024
—g-mg

Effect on
profit for
the year
HEERA
28
HK$'000
7.7

1
(1
103,750
(103,750)

(a) THEEE(E)

(i) SMEES (&)
HRABTTEETHE K&
BEMEL,/ BTEXTE
BEREAERES - FELSE
BUETIRZUBEEZ
BREDWILETARE -
DT BB HEINEE - B
HEXET/ BTEENKRE
HBZEBHITEKN - T
BTREEEX(R - AEE
REEAREERRR)2E
BEeEs  AEEFER
MEERZBHES -

2023
—E-=F
Increase/
(Decrease)
in foreign Effect on
Effecton  exchange  profitfor  Effecton
equity rates the year equity
HERE EXLA/ HEEEA HiEs
A7 (TR) EZ bA 7
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
7 TET AT
12,329 +5% 1 23,356
(12,329) -5% (1 (23,356)
- +5% 107,578 -
- -5%  (107,578) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

GEMBHRRME @

BE-F=mE+ A=+ —ALFE
4. MBEREE(HE)
4.1 BEEBREE (E)

(a) HEEME(E)

ERELEREEMBRAT 279

(i) Bz mEFEER

Cash flow interest rate risk relates to the risk
that the cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market
interest rates. The Group’s major exposure to
interest rate risk relates primarily to pledged
and restricted bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and time deposits at banks, the
terms and interest rates are disclosed in notes
27 and 28 respectively.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
profit/loss after income tax for the year to a
change in interest rates of +25 basis points and
-25 basis points (2023: +25 basis points and
-25 basis points). The calculations are based
on the cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 2024 and 2023. All other variables
are held constant.

RemE N =R g E T
B7ReERESHNTEF
RSP MEB RARER -
AEBEFEmMH 2 FXERAR
FERDEFPEZREIBRIT
G RekReEEDU
NBITEMIFRERE - M8
B8 2 R R T 5 Bl A B A
27K 28WEE

TRBLIFEBRBHEZ
wmA L B R R 4258
N 258F(ZE =4
+258 F M -258 T ) 2 BURR
B hER-_ZS-_NFR=
E-=F+-ZA=+—8H2
ReERRSEEWTE - 7
BHMESHEFTTE -

2024 2023
—E-NE —T-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
If interest rates were 25 basis point ﬁﬂitﬂZSEE%
(2023: 25 basis point) higher (ZZ =% : 25%7F)
Profit for the year increased by TR I N 16,992 13,627
If interest rates were 25 basis point fﬁﬂy—l—%%@ﬁ%
(2023: 25 basis point) lower (ZZ=—=%:25%F)
Profit for the year decreased by FERFRD 16,992 13,627
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) eSS ESEETE )

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4. B REREE(EF)

4.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 4.1 BERBEE (&)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) THERE(E)
(ii)  Price risk (iif) 1B 752 bz

This relates to the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices (other than changes in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates). The Group is
exposed to other price risk arising from its
listed equity investments classified as financial
assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (note 22). Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles and consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

For listed equity securities, an average
volatility of 25.58% and 11.57% (2023:
23.11% and 11.19%) was observed in Hang
Seng Index in Hong Kong and All Ordinary
Index in Australia in 2024 respectively. Had
the quoted stock price for these securities
increased or decreased by that amount, the
Group's security investment reserve within
equity would have been increased or decreased
by approximately HK$79,742,000 (2023:
HK$101,641,000) keeping other factors
constant such as the appreciation of currency.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4. BEREMBREE (&)

4.1 ¥ EEEEE)

4.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (b) EEREE
FERBRKREEWVESREERE
WERE - 2e  HaEKkE -
BAFEFABRZYBEE -
EEBRITER - RERHABB
—EAZEBHERUERRE KRR

Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables,
deposits, other receivables, financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss,
pledged bank deposits, time deposits with original
maturity over three months and cash and cash

equivalents. 2EEY -
(i)  Risk management () EREE

REEEERR  AKEE
BREMKY T — BB A
EERBEELETERE
e EBEXEFMHIELZ
Al AEEEERAARER
A EEERPZIERE

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Before accepting
any new customer, the Group uses an internal
credit system to assess the potential customer’s

credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The credit risk on all pledged bank deposits,
time deposits with original maturity over
three months and cash and cash equivalents
of the Group is minimised as the funds
are placed with major banks and financial
institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC
respectively.

BYREFREGFHAEE -
rEEBFEHEPZERAR
RET-RBEZARTHEM
EREFURBARRREZ
it B g R (E 7% o
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T E B R R MY EE ()
BE—FT-_WFEF+-A=1—HIFE
4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4. BiEERERE (&)

4.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 4.1 B EREE (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERE (&)

(i) Impairment of financial assets

(ii) @ EEHE

Trade and bills receivables for sales of goods of
the Group subject to the expected credit loss
model.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables.

For bills receivables, bills are issued by
counterparties at reputable banks and financial
institutions and the credit risk is considered
to be low. Those counterparties do not have
defaults in the past. Therefore, expected credit
loss rate is assessed to be minimal and no
provision was made as at each of the end of
reporting period.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and ageing
profile.

Management considers that full provision
would be made for balances with known
financial difficulties or those not responding
to collection activities, while the expected
credit loss rates of the remaining balances
are determined based on historical credit
losses experienced over the past 3 years and
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information including macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

Impairment losses on receivables are presented
as “net impairment losses on financial assets”
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the
same line item.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4. BEREMBREE (&)

4.1 B mE b EE(F)

4.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b)) CEREE)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii) EHMEENHREGE)

Trade and bills receivables (continued) FEWE SEBLEEKREZE
(%)

The following table presents the gross carrying TREVNEWREZERBEHNE

amount and the provision for impairment BREE RO EEERE
losses in respect of trade receivables:
Lifetime
expected Gross Lifetime Net
credit carrying expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
REBAEE REBMEE
BEx BERmEE BER REFHE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2024 R-Z=F
+=ZA=+-H
Ageing category BRI E
Within 1 year —-£R 6.4% 555,303 (35,488) 519,815
Over 1 year BE-F 100% 147,372 (147,372) -
702,675 (182,860) 519,815
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F
+=RA=+-8
Ageing category ERog
Within 1 year —FR 6.3% 566,204 (35,736) 530,468
Over 1 year HBA—F 100% 148,690 (148,690) -
714,894 (184,426) 530,468
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KRR ERE (&)
4.1 BEEREE(E)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4.
4.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =ERE (&

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (i) £EEEHE (&)
e hHEMEWHIE  BE
& ZRSRITERRIETT

£
e

Deposits and other receivables, pledged and
restricted bank deposits and bank balances

For deposits and other receivables, management e REMERZRER
makes periodic individual assessments on the T EEERESELERD
recoverability of deposits and other receivables BB LEIEERZ
based on historical settlement records, past TFHIHIZS R E M E WA
experience as well as forward looking factors. By A] g B 14 3 1T @A R EE(E o
There has no recent history of default in s BT HR N i 4
relation to these counterparties. The expected 2% o MHAZEEEY A AEKN °
credit loss is immaterial.

For pledged and restricted bank deposits and
bank balances and financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss, there has
no recent history of default in relation to those
financial institutions and reputable banks. The
expected credit loss is immaterial.

e E A R ZR G ERITER
NARTTRE R IR R FEE A
BaRMBEEMS @ ZF
TREB N EBRIFNIRT
TEANY BB K RC 8 o TAERME
EEFEBLTEK -

(c) Liquidity risk (c) nBESER
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed
to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables and its financing obligations, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group's
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of
liquid assets and committed lines of funding to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

mBELRREAKEELET
HMBaEMEBEECZRARE
B AEBHHENE S REAS
BELEMEBESEULERERE
EREMZRDERRR - A&
BzERERBRBEERE S
FEHEFREAENKY - RENMHERE
HEREMRBESTFK -

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully AEBRA B LA EEERE

monitoring expected payments for potential
investments as well as cash-outflows due in day-
to-day business. Liquidity needs are monitored on
a day-to-day basis. Long-term liquidity needs for a
360-day lookout periods are identified on a monthly
basis.

ERERBSRO ZERMNR
NERERBDESFTE - ~&H
RAERERDHESTE - 58
AEERM30RZERMADHE



—TOMFEFR ENBUEREEAERAR 285

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Fe M BRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE
4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4. B EREE(EF)
4.1 BEEREE(E)

4.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) REELEE (&)

The Group maintains mainly cash to meet its
liquidity requirements for up to 30-day periods,
funding for long-term liquidity needs will be
considered when there is any potential investment
identified.

The following tables details the remaining
contractual maturities at the reporting dates of
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payment computed using contractual
rate or, if floating, based on current rates at the
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:

(c)

AEBETEREFRSABMNKRK
REZ0AMEAZRBESHT
THRBREEREREERR

PrRpEeHFEEEES -

TREIFETEVBEBERRS
BHIZRAEHOHR - DREA
WABRRASRE(BEREON
A ER(HARFEE)RHREBH
BTN REFE 2 FIBAF) A KA
SERHERMNRZ&ZF BB

P

Total
Within Between Between contractual
one year or one and two and Over undiscounted Carrying
ondemand  twoyears  fiveyears  fiveyears  cash flow amount
—£R -3 (k] SRR
FREX mEZE ki3] | BENE BEREHE BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FEn FEn FEr FEn FEn
As at 31 December 2024 RZB-mE
t=R=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities: #fF48%EE
Trade and bills payables ENESRERENER 757,521 - - - 757,521 757,521
Leased liabilities HERE 12,297 3,624 10,873 29,999 56,793 43,677
Other payables and accruals EEATEREHER 870,692 - - - 870,692 819,865
Amounts due to non-controlling ERNEAH
interests of subsidiaries RS TE 60,466 = = = 60,466 60,466
1,700,976 3,624 10,873 29,999 1,745,472 1,681,529
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

R ERRME @

BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF
4, BIEEAKRERE (&)
4.1 BEEREE(E)

(c) HEBELEE(E

Total
Within Between Between contractual
one year or one and two and Over  undiscounted Carrying
on demand two years five years five years cash flow amount
—£R — 3 ANRER
FEEL M 2 ik vd RENE ReRELE HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT A7 A7 A7 FHrT
As at 31 December 2023 i
t-B=t-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities: ~ JFfT4BIHEE
Trade and bills payables ENESRERENTE 621,467 S = = 621,467 621,467
Leased liabilities fgaE 10,529 3,659 10,976 33,940 59,104 43,843
Other payables and accruals HiERZARETER 900,021 S S = 900,021 855,044
Amounts due tonon- controling  ERHBAT
interests of subsidiaries FERERSE 63,904 5 s = 63,904 63,904
1,595,921 3,659 10,976 33,940 1,644,496 1,584,258
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(a) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders;

(b) To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and equity holder returns, taking into consideration
the future capital requirements of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability,
projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. Details of the Group’s dividend policy
is disclosed under the heading “Dividend Policy”
in the Corporate Governance Report. Management
regards total equity, including its reserves, as capital
which was amounted to HK$18,901,257,000 (2023:
HK$18,470,518,000) as at 31 December 2024, for
capital management purpose.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of a net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this
purpose, the Group defines net debts as total debt plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less time deposits with
original maturity over three months and cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity and less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the year, the Group’s strategy was to maintain
the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the minimal
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets
to reduce debt. As at 31 December 2024, the Group
does not have any debt (2023: nil) and the Group’s
adjusted cash position (which include cash and cash
equivalents and time deposits with original maturity
over three months less proposed final dividend) is
HK$8,112,198,000 (2023: HK$7,057,900,000).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

o & B A5 R R MY R ()

E_E_FE+-A=+—HIFEF

BERRERE(E)
4.2 EXEE

AEBZEBRERBNR

(a) MARAKEEBEARLNUFER
MG DB RBREMRD R
W AEAL ) & H R &

(b) XBAEEZREMEER K

(0 BRHEESANMBAEEZERE
BEEN ©

REBEER N E MRS RERELEAR
R NWHERESSEEARE RE
BRAAZER  ZEHNAR/AE
BMERCESHEREA N - B
RIERAMESN  FARAKLERESRN

= - JERIE AR KT8 BRI E
o FEAEERBBR ZFBRE
ETRBE REBEBER|—8FEE -
MEAEEMS  RZE_NF+=
A=+—H EHEESEZLE(ERE
HEEEH)SRABEARHK18,901,257,000
BL(ZE =4 :18,470,518,000/8
JC) °

AEBEZEBFRAERBEEN L
RERHEARE - pULWE - £AK
B ERFEREREBERMIER
AHEURAE  RRFRES =/ A
ZERERULRBERREEEY -
RARBABEEmD 2 A AKX
7 W EFFERTBURARE

RERN AEEBZRBEEESZE
WRABRERZ L EREFEREK
FoBTHIFRAERZLE  K£H
%Qﬂ”iﬁ%k%Zkgéﬁ
%ﬁ%k@ MR REEE AR
%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁéumékﬁo
R-ZE-_WE+-_A=+—H &&
BEYEANEE(ZE=-=ZF: &)
PAEEEABRBERR(EFa
HBESRBRSESEYEREZHEE
—EAZEHERREZRBRE)
£8,112,198,000 8 T (T - =4 :
7,057,900,000/8 7T) ©

ARABKEEAHBERARHIZRR
SNEBME AN 2 BARRRTE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T -pNFEf—A=1+—HIFFE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4. BEREBREE (&)

4.3 Fair value estimation 4.3 AV EMF

The following table provides an analysis of financial TREEZAFEINERYE TERE

instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value REEER DN :

hierarchy:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active - F1E: BREEREBGENERT
markets for identical assets and liabilities; 57 RECRIEFAEE) :

-~ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included — FE2E: REBESIABEMEE (A
within Level 1 that are observable for BA%) s (BB %
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. HOT) AR 2 ER @A
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from (TREEFIBME S Z®
prices); and B): &

—  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are — F3E: WIEEEER TS
not based on observable market data EmEBEEESEECE
(unobservable inputs). B A (EEBR2ER

BA) °

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the BENBKEEXAGEABEAZATEAE

financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is B DEREAFEFEEBEK

based on the lowest level of input that is significant to EREREBXIXERBA -

the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value RIFETBERRRANEZAFLETEZ
in the consolidated statement of financial position are HEEERNBEIEIDAUTZAYF
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: BREL
2024
g S -3

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F1E F2E F3E k)

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

Hist FET FET FET FET

Financial assets measured AT EFAHME
at fair value through other Ui 7 BT EE
comprehensive income

- Listed equity securities — FRAES 4.3(a) 439,187 - - 439,187
- Unlisted equity securities ~ —3E iR A& 3% 4.3(b) - - - =

439,187 - - 439,187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) ar e B IS SR AR B = o)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 B2 —FE-_WFEf—A=+—HILFE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4. BEREBREE ()

4.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 4.3 A {EMLF(E)
2023
—E-=fF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E 2 F3E k]
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$000 HK$°000
Hizt FET FET FET FET

Financial assets measured ~ HRAFEFAHMBZ
at fair value through other  EUia 2 SIS EE
comprehensive income
- Listed equity securities — ETRAES 4.3(a) 688,264 - - 688,264
- Unlisted equity securities ~ —3F FTRAES 4.3(b) - = = -

Financial assets measured BRAFEFAERZ
at fair value through NHEE
profit or loss
- Foreign exchange linked  —SMEEHZE

notes 4.3(c) - - 43,019 43,019
688,264 - 43,019 731,283
There were no transfers between levels during both RZMFEABAN - BERZEESER -
years.
The methods and valuation techniques used for ARFFEATFEZFERGEBERNTER
the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged VATE $ 45 HA RS A LE 30 SR D o

compared to previous reporting periods.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Listed equity securities

The listed equity securities are denominated in
AUD and HK$. Fair values have been determined
by reference to their quoted prices at the reporting
date and have been translated using the spot
foreign currency rates at the end of the reporting
period where appropriate.

Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of unlisted equity securities included
in level 3 approximates zero.

Foreign exchange linked notes

The foreign exchange linked notes are categorised
as level 3 fair value measurement. The fair values of
the notes, which are not traded in an active market,
are determined by using valuation techniques.
The specific valuation technique used to value
the foreign exchange linked notes includes using
key unobservable data such as the interbank
forward exchange rate and the volatility of forward
exchange rate.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, bank balances and
cash, trade and bills payables, lease liabilities, other payables
and accruals and amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries.

The fair values of these financial instruments measured at
amortised cost approximate their carrying amounts.

R ERRME @

BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF
4, BIEEAKRERE (&)
4.3 A F{EMGEF(E)

(a) LHRFEH

E RN EE 2 T AR TT OB TTET
B RFENDSERERNHEER
HrzHREMEBETE - LAREHR
ZBREERBE(WER) °

(b) LKA EF

BEEFIBZIFLTRARRZ

APEERE -

(c) SEHHERE

SNERINRIZEI D REIEQFE
AR RERBYRNEETS
B HAVEDLRAGBER
MEE - M AEINE B R IEHE
THENEE/REXRTEREER
RITEEYER MEHE R 2K
BUEFTEIABERE -

+tEE

TEAVEHEZVHTABEREKRES
RENERREE  EMEKER - RITHE
HERE  BNEZREARENRE B
ERAE HENRBAREFERIARE

BLIEPNGE 2SI E

HZERBHEHNATFEZCMBTAEZAFE

EHMREEMES °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experiences and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal to the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

5.1 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impairment on property, plant and
equipment, land use rights and mining rights at each
reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the
Group that may lead to impairment of assets. Where
an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations
performed in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate
a number of key estimates and assumptions about future
events, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially, differ from the actual results. In making
these key estimates and judgements, the directors take
into consideration assumptions that are mainly based
on market condition existing at the reporting dates and
appropriate market and discount rates. These estimates
are regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions entered into by the Group.

ERBELEREEERAT 291

Fe M BRRME @

B=

5.

CECFEf - A=+—HIFFE

CERCERE

ARBREBELRIAGAR(BERE
BEATHEREARAREHZAEBH)F
BRT LA ET R AR -

AEBBRRRELGETFREBEER - BRE
E RAUSLZEHAEIERAERE
RAER - RAUBBHBNT —EHBRFE
HEENABREEFLERIEZMHE
KR - st

5.1 kM BEERE

REREEH  XEEZESFTAILE

HAKEEERBEZBLIEDE
BB Ko R A - L (h M A R BRI A

ZRME - mBERBETR - A EZ
BEZAKNESHE AFETRE S
HMABEEREER  FRRKEME
HERAAHEZERMGHFARBR
HAgtHERERBRERER - ¥
FHLBABERMG RFAEHE  EFZ
BXIERBERB/REAPERTRLE

BMzMERBREELZEBER - B
Bt ENEERTSEHBERAEHE
AV ZERRZBIERLE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND T Rt R S (&)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

5. EE8

5.2 ERE

5.2 Impairment of goodwiill

The Group tests on an annual basis whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy as stated in note 2.2.3. The
recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of judgement and estimates about
future cash flow expected to arise from the CGUs, the
timeframe for the cash flows forecast and the suitable
discount rates in order to calculate the present value. In
the process of estimating expected future cash flows,
management makes assumptions about future revenues
and profits. These assumptions relate to future events
and circumstances. The actual results may vary and may
cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
goodwill within the next financial year. Determining
the appropriate discount rate involves estimating the
appropriate adjustment for market risk and asset specific
risk factors. In addition, since the cash flow projections
are extrapolated beyond 5 years and the remaining
license period of the mining rights held by the Group
ranges from 8 to 18 years, management is of the opinion
that the Group is able to renew the license of the mining
rights from the relevant authority continuously and at
minimal charges. Details of impairment assessment are
set out in note 20.

AEBREME2.23ME 2 85K
R BFIARESSAETMARE-
ReELBEM oA BB TIRER
BEAESZEE - WEFEFTEMR
BHELBRSELBEMNZARE S
nE BREeRERAZERBELA
EARIR KA HE R ARt UG ER
TE EMEW.:HEHH?EPUE%/ME B

EBefRRas g fELRE -
aZ%ﬁ?&E@*X%@&ﬂkﬂﬁ%ﬁ ii]
ERERHE TR - LAIEEHT —
fE R B E P8 2 FREE A (F AR
HE -BEARBEILMRRYRMAEFTT
LRBRAREEFERRARZGER
B oo i - HRE HEE B B5 F
RBREREEN MAKEFHEZ
RugET A ERRHBRN F8E185F
%5 BEERS ANEBERESEIN
?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁ”“%iﬁﬁﬁgﬁéﬂﬂ
72 o BERHE 2 FHIFE RN EE20
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

5.3 Amortisation of mining rights and

—ENFEFER

ERELEREEERAT 293

GEMBHRRME @

BE-F-mE+-A=1—ALEE
5. BEESTHEE R M E (&)

depreciation of mining structures

Mining rights and mining structures are amortised
and depreciated over the estimated total proven and
probable reserves of the coal mines using units of
production method. The Group assesses on an annual
basis the estimated reserve of the coal mine. However,
the remaining license period of the mining rights held
by the Group range from 8 to 18 years which are
shorter than the estimated useful lives of the coal mine
estimated by the Group. Management is of the opinion
that the Group is able to renew the license of the
mining rights from the relevant authority continuously
and at minimal charges. If the expectation differs from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the
amortisation and depreciation charged in the period in
which such estimate is changed.

Engineering estimates of the Group’s coal reserves
involved subjective judgements by engineers in
developing such information and reserves are estimated
in accordance with national standards set by relevant
authorities in the PRC. Estimates of proven and
probable coal reserves involved subjective judgements
and assumption are required for a range of geological,
technical and economic factors, so the proven and
probable coal reserves are only approximate values. The
recent production and technology documents shall be
considered for the estimates of proven and probable coal
reserves which will be updated regularly, the inherent
inaccuracy of technical estimating exists. If the past
estimates change significantly, the amortisation and
depreciation shall be adjusted during future periods.

53 RERBERBEBSEEYIE

REELBSEEMRBEEEE
PRBE AT A RA LA RRFE
FHBERTE -AKESFHMG
RBEzhitHeE - AW XKEBEAHR
FRBEEFIERAHMENFBES
FBRAKEMGEFZRBENERFSH
R ERERR ARBEREEN
%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%%%i%ﬁ%%ﬂﬂ
- MTEHIERRMGE AR ARE
SREGBTHREDHEZEHR

It i‘v%

=i

AEFBRKRFEZ TR P RIRE
MERMZEENBHELZ B A
B mMEEDNDRTEBEEERSITZ
BIRAZ AR o RO A] B8 2 IR
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BERA—FRINME - RMMEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

5.4 Obligations for land reclamation

The estimation of the liabilities for final reclamation
and mine closure involves the estimates of the amount
and timing for the future cash spending as well as
the discount rate used for reflecting current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The Group considers the factors
including development plan of the mines, the geological
structure of the mining regions and reserve volume to
determine the scope, amount and timing of reclamation
and mine closure works to be performed. Determination
of the effect of these factors involves judgements from
the Group and the estimated liabilities may turn out to
be different from the actual expenditure to be incurred.
The discount rate used by the Group may also be altered
to reflect the changes in the market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability,
such as change of the borrowing rate and inflation
rate in the market. As changes in estimates occur (such
as mine plan revisions, changes in estimated costs, or
changes in timing of the performance of reclamation
activities), the revisions to the obligation will be
recognised at the appropriate discount rate.

HEMBHRRME @

BE-E-ME+ - A=+—AILEE
5. EESATTRAE(E)
5.4 BREH
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HAREREAXWSBELRFRARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

6.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1.
Revenue from contracts with customers, which is also the
Group's turnover, represents the sales value of coking coal
products in the ordinary course of businesses which are
recognised at a point in time. Revenue recognised is as
follows:

BEREE

Sales of clean coking coal

ERELEREEERAT 295

Fe M BRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

6. REEFEHNWERIHEHR

AEBZTBXBRMEIRE - REFP
BHOWBETNANEE 2 EXE  BERFE
BHEIANATEBERTHERRER
ZIHEEE - R

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
5,057,000 5,891,068

The executive directors have been identified as the chief
operating decision-maker of the Company. The Group
identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's business
components and their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major product lines. The
Group has identified one reportable segment as coking coal
mining, which represents mining and exploration of coal
resources and production of raw and clean coking coal in the
PRC.

The executive directors regard the Group’s business as a
single operating segment and review financial information
accordingly. Therefore, no segment information is presented.
The executive directors primarily use a measure of profit
before income tax to assess the performance of the operating
segment.

HITESWARNBARAETELERK
EoAEERBEHAATESTHRE AM
BERAEAEEEBKHLAERD ELEH
ZEMFARB2AMBHBEERE D LED
MEEHDBEN - ARTEEFREZR
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AR EERERRIEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 B2 —FE-_WFEf—A=+—HILFEZ

6. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 6.
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets (other than financial instruments and deferred
income tax assets) are divided into the following geographical

REEFEHNER D BER

(%)

AEBERBERE S 2HINEP Y REF
RBEE(MBIAREEMGSREER
ST

areas:
Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets
HIMEF U E FRBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—EoMFE - ZBDNF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET FET
Principal markets FEMSH
PRC Fh 5,057,000 5,891,068 11,422,884 11,628,844
Hong Kong a5 - = 322 4,061

5,057,000

5,891,068 11,423,206 11,632,905

Geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods were delivered whilst geographical
location of non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the assets.

BEPRNIEINEmRZEERE - MIF
RBEEMEVZEEZERMEMET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) ar e B IS SR AR B = o)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 B2 —FE-_WFEf—A=+—HILFE
6. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 6. REEFENUWBERDHBER
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (#8)
(continued)
Revenue from each of the major customers, which accounted KAZSEERFPNWZE (HMMRKERBS
for 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: 10%)EFINT ¢
2024 2023
—E-E T4
HK$'003 % HK$ iOOB %
FET FET
Customer A BEPA 2,006,760 40 2,523,132 43
Customer B ZFB 547,137 11 N/A* N/A*
TEA* TEA
* The corresponding revenue of customer B and other customers * gﬁ?/&%1ﬁﬂ§}52ﬁ@u§zégﬁﬁ{5$;ﬁ
did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the Group. R EBI0% °
7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 7. HEBAR K= - FHE
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividend income SN ON 21,510 21,510
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEWE BB MREREZ MR
equipment 5,060 -
Income from sales of by-products HERIEMZBA 64,652 95,462
Net foreign exchange loss SN [ 518 R 58 (2,.810) (111,254)
Others EAh 6,530 2,370

94,942 8,088
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 4 e B IS SR R B = o)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 B2 —FE-_WFEf—A=+—HILFEZ
8. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 8. Hit&EMX
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Charitable donations BEBN 2,153 2,253
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEYE BEMXEZER
equipment = 348
Others Hi 11,193 7,333
13,346 9,934
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BAEA
2024 2023
—ENF ZEZ=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAEZMERX
(note 18(ii) (Hia£18(ii) 1,746 2,921
No borrowing costs were capitalised for the years ended 31 HE_—_Z-_mMEN_ZT-_=%€£+_—A#
December 2024 and 2023. T+ —HLFE UEEERAEERE

7N o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) mEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2024 B2 —FE-_WFEf—A=+—HILFE
10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BR P18 B B & A
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax is arrived BRET{S R AT R A2 0k -
at after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration ZERANE &
— audit services —ZEARTS 1,700 1,700
— other services — H M AR 7% 450 521
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 2,468,686 2,425,040
Amortisation of: iy -
— land use rights (note 17) — TR (A7) 2,138 2,080
— long-term deferred expenses - REFHER 1,408 1,445
— mining rights (note 19) — R (M5t 19) 229,466 241,137
Depreciation of: e :
— property, plant and equipment (note 16) —W¥ - BEMRE(HE16) 313,551 451,278
— right-of-use assets (note 18(ii)) — PR EE K 1801) 4,354 6,231
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) B T A (B FEEEHE)
(note 14) (K13t 14) 837,770 808,778
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE M. FrEBER
2024 2023
—E-E —E=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax — PRC income tax BVER#R I8 — HR B P 1S A5
— Current year —REE 651,059 985,691
— Under provision in respect of prior years —@BEEERETE 25,887 14,303
Deferred tax (note 32) EERLIA (H5E32)
— Current year —REE 33,976 (82,015)

710,922 917,979
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

HEMBHRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

M. FEHREA(E)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group had no
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for 2024 and 2023.

In accordance with the Income Tax Law of the PRC for
Enterprises with Foreign Investment, the Group’s major
operating subsidiaries, namely Shanxi Liulin Xingwu Coal
Co., Limited (“Xingwu"), Shanxi Liulin Jinjiazhuang Coal Co.,
Limited (“Jinjiazhuang”) and Shanxi Liulin Zhaiyadi Coal Co.,
Limited (“Zhaiyadi”), all established in the PRC, are subject to
25% enterprise income tax in the PRC.

The Group is also subject to withholding tax at the rate of 5%
(2023: 5%) on the distributions of profits generated from the
Group’s major PRC subsidiaries which are directly owned by
the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong.

AR E_NEN—_TE_=FAEBESE
B EELEERRFES  MAERESEH
BHREREEBFN ST EE -

REBEIECXZPBEMBHRE - A%
ERPEKL T ELEMB AR (BNLA
MIMEERBEEREEAR ([HE]) 1L
MRS REREERAB(T2FH D &
WANMRERREZFERAR(REER])
ZHBARERAEHEHR25% -

AEBNERBAEBREREATMA L
MBARBEE#HAE cASE X ZEH K E
RAMEEXZA 9 kaMEBH5% (==
TZF 1 5%)ZTEMB -

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting FEHEREEEAMEFTE 2255 H
profit at applicable tax rates is as follows: FEWT
2024 2023
—E_E —E-=HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax B PT 15 %50 Al 7 A 2,525,897 3,218,917
Tax calculated at the rates applicable to LB RERAERER
the tax jurisdiction concerned HMEFE 2 FIE 614,293 804,945
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAHRAS 2 B2 7,143 4,822
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAERTIMA Z B & (16,111) (16,705)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBM BB B E 5,775 6,338
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on REBEFZERBBEARC
distributable profits of the Group’s major ] %3 & % FI 40 5 % TE I B
PRC subsidiaries s 73,935 104,216
Under provision in respect of prior years BEFERBTR 25,887 14,303
Income tax expense FTiSfiE A 710,922 917,979
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o & B A5 R R MY R ()

ZE-mES - A=+—HILFE

12. DIVIDENDS 12. IR &
2024 2023
—ECME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as distributions RERNERD K2R,
during the year:
2023 final dividend of HK18 cents TEC=FRERBER
(2023: 2022 final dividend of HK28 cents) 3 3@A% 18581l ( =fF:
per ordinary share —EZFREARE28E) 886,831 1,414,515
2024 interim dividend of HK9 cents :%:E¢¢%%§i%
(2023: 2023 interim dividend of HK10 BRIEBIN(ZE_=%F :
cents) per ordinary share :E::i‘? ,Hﬁﬂﬁ,%ﬂ 07l 443,415 492,684
1,330,246 1,907,199

(@) On 23 March 2023, the Board proposed a 2022 final
dividend of HK28 cents per ordinary share totalling
HK$1,414,515,000 to the owners of the Company in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2022. The final
dividend was approved by shareholders at the annual
general meeting held on 31 May 2023 and was paid
on 28 July 2023. The 2022 final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 has been reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 31
December 2023.

(b) On 30 August 2023, the Board declared an 2023 interim
dividend of HK10 cent per ordinary share, totalling
HK$492,684,000 for the six months ended 30 June
2023, which was paid on 9 November 2023.

NR-_E-_=F=ZA_+=BH EFg
BERNARABEAREHEE_Z
ZZHF+ZA=+—RHLFEZ=F
T ZFEREAREFRET A28

4 #£1,414,515,0008 7T ° Z &AM
BEER-_ZE-_=ZFRA=Z+—HE
ZRERBFRE FEREHE TR
TE-=F+LA-FNBXf[ - EHE
—_E-_F+-_A=1+—BHItFEZ
—E - _ERERBEERBMEHEE -
Eo=FF+ A=+ —HLEFEZR
EEI/mﬂJ /)EE ©

RZE-_=ZF#N\A=+H EFeE
KEZ-_E-_=F"A=+TBI1LtAE
AZZ =+ HKRESRLTBR
10781l » & #£492,684,000/8 7¢ » I
RZEBEZ=F+—AhBXft-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

12. DIVIDENDS (continued)

(@)

On 27 March 2024, the Board proposed a 2023 final
dividend of HK18 cents per ordinary share totalling
HK$886,831,000 to the owners of the Company in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2023. The final
dividend was approved by shareholders at the annual
general meeting held on 30 May 2024 and was paid
on 26 July 2024. The 2023 final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023 has been reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 31
December 2024.

On 29 August 2024, the Board declared an 2024 interim
dividend of HK9 cent per ordinary share, totalling
HK$443,415,000 for the six months ended 30 June
2024, which was paid on 7 November 2024.

On 27 March 2025, the Board proposed a 2024 final
dividend of HK21 cents per ordinary share totalling
HK$1,069,124,000 to the owners of the Company
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024. The
final dividend is subject to the shareholder’s approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final
dividend proposed after 31 December 2024 has not been
recognised as a liability as at 31 December 2024.

HEMBHRRME @

BEr—

EomES - A=+—HILFE

12. RE (&)

(c)

RZE-_WMF=ZA=++tH EEg
BERARABEAAREHZ -
T ZFF+_A=Z+—BLFEZ=_F
T FREBREERE®EBR18EN
4 #£886,831,000/8 T ° Z KB B
ER_ZE-_NMERA=Z+HRITZR
RBEFAS LERRIE YR
THE+A-F+ABEEN BHE-Z
T ZF+A=Z=+—BLFEZ=F
—EERHEBREERBREEE-Z
“ME+ A=+ HLEFEZRE
i A DK ©

RZE-_WMFNAZ+NLA  EFE
EREBEEZZT-ZWMFAA= +E¢A
BERAz—TE-_FFHERETRYE

A% 9EAl - & F£443,415,000/8 7T jr
RZEZWF+—BEBEZT -

R-ZE-_RE=A=-++H &g
FEEAARNABEARZEEE_Z
—m¢+—ﬁ:+—5¢¢§2:§
ZFRHARE TR @21
& #£1,069,124,000 7T » 2K HH B
BASRABRT2REBF RS £
REBRRMERFTAEE - RZF
ZWFEF+Z A=+ —BERIRKZRE
BER-ZZE-_NWF+-_A=+—HIL
RERBAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the
following data:

GEMBHRRME @

BEr—

13.

EomE+ A=t —ALEE
BRER

$’Aﬂ%*ﬁj\ﬁgfﬁﬁ§%$&}§&%§ﬂ%
BT BIERE -

2024 2023
—E g —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit used to determine basic and FAEETEREARK
diluted earnings per share BSERA 25 A 1,494,066 1,889,247
‘000 shares ‘000 shares
Fig FHE
Number of shares Hﬁ{ﬁ?& B
Weighted average number of ordinary AEERERNREERR
shares for the purpose of basic and 2 TR NRE 1 g
diluted earnings per share
Issued shares at 1 January R—A—BE%TRHG 4,926,837 5,051,837
Effect of buy-back and cancellation BREINGTHECTE - (34,931)
Effect of rights issue including bonus T BIFEAAFED 2 E
elements (note 33) (K13%33) 34,097 14,236
Weighted average number of shares at R+-—A=+—8z2
31 December & 10 hn#E F 15 &k 4,960,934 5,031,142

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was no share option
outstanding and the Company did not have any dilutive
potential ordinary shares during years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023.

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2023 were restated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issues for the bonus
element due to the rights issue completed on 13 November
2024.

RoE-—MER-_E-_=F+=-A=+—
B YEEFEERITE2BERE  mAQ
AREE_T-_MEFE_F=-_=-F+=H
—t+—HILEFERTETRAETEEY
BhzEBEE -

BHE_Z_=F+_A=+—-HIEFEZ
BREARBEERNCES H URERZ

E_ME+—AtT=BlHRMELDN
AR D BHE BT ABRINE TS EIE
HEAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

14. STAFFS COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

HEMBHRRME @

BE—FT-_WFEF+-A=1—HIFE

MBEIRKN(BREESEHE)

2024 2023

—E-NE —ET—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries, wages and allowances 4 - T& N EEL 770,951 718,900
Provision/(Reversal) for unused annual leaves 518 /(B8 ) K8 FHER 140 (209)
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R {K1E FIET B4 3% 84,511 113,648
855,602 832,339
Less: capitalised in CIP W RERIIERNBTER (17,832) (23,561)
Total staff costs charged in profit or loss REBZAKR L8 TRA 837,770 808,778

During the year ended 31 December 2024, forfeited
contribution of HK$63,000 (2023: nil) under the defined
contribution plans is used to reduce the existing and
future levels of contribution. As at 31 December 2024,
forfeited contribution of HK$63,000 (2023: nil) under the
defined contribution plans is available to offset the future
contributions.

HE-_Z-_NMF+-_A=+—BLFE "
R EREHRETE TR M 5X63,0008 T (=
ToZF E\E) AR REMARAH
FOKFE - -R—_FBE-_WF+_A=+—H "
BAIE%Ef FKETEIT 28 B #5863,000%8
TT(ZZEZ=F : &) AREERRME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were

mMEFH ERBLUEREEAERAF 305

Fe M BRRME @

BE—_FE-_mF+-_A=+—HIFZF

1I5.EENSREEAEMS

EEMNS

ENSENEETZMENT

as follows:
2024 2023
1 i
Retirement Retirement
Salaries, benefits Salaries, benefits
allowances  Discretionary scheme allowances  Discretionary scheme
Fees  and benefits bonuses  contributions Total Fees  and benefits bonuses  contributions Total
HER)- ) RiEA §e 28 RINER
k3 REH  BEBRL  FEMR ] ne KR BEEL REMRX #E
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 77 77 7R 7Er TEL T TEL TET TAT
Executive directors #rEz
Mr. Ding Rucai Th7%E = 3,120 - 18 3,138 - 3120 - 18 3138
Mr. Fan Wenli EXFEE - 2,760 - - 2,760 S 2,760 5 S 2,760
. Chen Zhaogiang Bkt - 260 550 239 3429 = 2640 660 18 3,548
Mr. Wang Dongming TRE%E - 2,400 - 18 2,418 - 2,400 - 18 2418
. Liu Qingshan' B 4s - - - - - 5 1,000 5 75 1,075
Non-executive directors Fufgs
Ms. Chang Cun BERT 40 - - - 40 40 - - - 40
. Shi Yubao? BEEfE 8 - - - 8 0 - - - 0
Independent BUFSfES
non-executive directors
M. Choi Wai Yin ERERE n - - - 0 0 - - - 0
M. Japhet Sebastian Law? iy Ens 174 = - - 174 40 E = S 40
Mr. Chen Jianxiong RRERE 0 - - - 0 0 - - - 0
Mr. Shi Yubao? BIELs 336 - - - 336 = = S = =
M. Li Zeping* FETEE 113 - - - 113 - - - - -
r. Shen Zongbin® RAEE - - - - - 40 - - - 0
1,967 10,920 550 275 13,712 2,520 11,920 660 359 15,459

L retired with effect from 31 May 2023 and since then acted as
deputy general manager of the Company with total emolument
of HK$1,290,000 during the period ended 31 December 2023

c re-designated as an independent non-executive director with
effect from 13 March 2024

: retired with effect from 30 May 2024

& appointed as an independent non-executive director with effect
from 24 September 2024

: deceased on 28 November 2023

2 include compassionate payment of HK$35,000

RIZBE-_=ZFFA=1+—BEME  2%E
TAEAARNBEIRKE BHE-_S-_=F
+ZA=+—HIEHREBE 51,290,000
BT

KRB -_NF=A+=-BATABILIENR
TEE

R-ZZE-_mMFRA=1+RHRE
RZEZNFNAZ+HBEZEABL
FMITES
RZBE_=F+—A=+/\BEt
BIEHEME 35,0007 T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2023: nil).

During the year, no share options were granted to the
directors in respect of their services to the Group (2023: nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 included
four (2023: five) executive directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining one employee the during the year
ended 31 December 2024 is as follows:

Salaries, wages and allowances
Discretionary bonuses E@ 1514
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

HEMBHRRME @

BE—FT-_WFEF+-A=1—HIFE

1I5.EENSREBAEMS (E)

EEME (&)

RERN AEEREREENME  #
ARSIMBHMBAREE 2 BE HIED
BRAEE(ZE_=F  &|) -

RER TELESAAKEREZRS
ARERLBRE(CT_=F: &)

TEEEMEAR

AEEEE_FT_NF+-_A=+—HL
FENRARAFHES 1I}\@%@%(f2\
“ZHECRRIVTESE  REZMECER
BRI EXXH) DA AR o Eizi_7_ﬂi+_
A=Z+—BLEFERNBHT —RBALHH
BT -

2024
—BopmF
HK$°000
TET

e ITENER 1,950

300

RIREFIFT IR 169

Total staff costs charged in profit or loss

RIBz AR Z 88 TR 2,419

Emolument band B < %3 &
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

Number of
individuals
2024
R-ZE-mF
WEAZER

72,000,001 7T & #%2,500,0007T 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) ar e B IS SR AR B = o)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 B2 —FE-_WFEf—A=+—HILFE
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 9% - MERKRE
Mining Office Motor
machinery equipment,  vehicles and
Buildings Mining and  Leasehold  furniture transportation
and plants (P structures equipment improvements and fixtures  equipment Total
iR HENE ROERE AER

BTREE  ERIE WEEED  R3K % GHRRE  E8RG L
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKS'000 HKS000 K000

TAT TEL TR TEL TATL TEL TEL  TEL

At 1 January 2023 R-E-Z%-f-H
Cost WAE 178307 983811 1,687,608 2,049,293 2,965 147,054 59,881 6,713819
Accumulated depreciation 2ihE (872,460) - (5325700 (1,067,704 (2965 (1203%6)  (5103)  (2,647,081)
Accurulated impairment losses ZHEEER (106,991) - (7.320) (39,772) - - - (154,083)
Net carrying amount SEFE 803,756 983811 1,147,718 941,817 - 26,708 8,845 3,912,655
For the year ended R

31 December 2023 tZA=+-AILEE
Opening net carrying amount ENERYE 803,75 983811 1147718 94817 - 26,708 8,845 3,912,655
Exchange differences EiZE (22588) (6764 (8718 (25016) = (901) (174) (104,161)
Additions HE 508 217,605 - 101,645 2,189 13,635 559 336,141
Transfers g% 105885 (231288 102,484 18522 = 4397 = =
Disposals e (48) S = (354) = ] (81) (486)
Depreciation (note 10) e (98,286) - (187351 (149,564 (313) (13319) (2,445) (451,278)
Closing net carrying amount ERERER 78927 93364 1034133 887,050 1876 30517 6704 3692871
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+-5=1-H
Cost A 1837166 3364 1739601 2,107,757 2214 159,984 54009 6844115
Accumulated depreciation ZHIE (943913) - (698351)  (1,182,037) (338)  (129467) (47325 (3,001.431)
Accumulated impaiment losses ~ Z3tiERE (104,026) = 7117 (38670) = = = (149,813)
Net carrying amount EHYE 78927 93364 1034133 887,050 1876 30517 6704 3692871
For the year ended HECEoRE

31 December 2024 TZAZt-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount ENERSE 189,221 943,364 1,034,133 887,050 1,876 30,517 6,704 3,692,871
Exchange differences EREE (4,400) 3,738 (20,052) (11,971) - (513) (1) (33,209)
Additions HE - 13839 - U588 - 14422 615 369,314
Transfers ga 196021  (701992) 446,738 52,597 = 6,505 131 =
Disposals HE (176) - - - - (1) = (1)
Depreciation (note 10) e (59,458) - (103703)  (133,243) (1,876) (13,134) (2,137 (313,551)
Closing net carrying amount EREFEE 21214 383504 1357116 1,010,316 - 37,79 5300 371548
At 31 December 2024 RZEZRETZA=1-H
Cost A 199,65 383504 1844904 2,071,172 2214 178,862 54260 6,531,572
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (972,29) - (480,731)  (1,022514) (2214)  (141,066)  (48.958)  (2,667,781)
Accumulated impairment losses ZHEEER (103,144) - (1,057) (38,342) - - - (148,543)

Net carrying amount FaEE 921,214 383,504 1,357,116 1,010,316 - 37,19 5302 3,715,248
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group is still in the process
of obtaining the building ownership certificates for certain
buildings with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$84,196,000 (2023: HK$94,762,000). In the opinion of
directors of the Company, the Group has obtained the rights

to use the buildings.

17. LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent the prepaid lease payments under operating leases.

HEMBHRRME @

BE—FT-_WFEF+-A=1—HIFE

16. M2 - BB R &RHE (H)

RZZE-_MWMFEF+_A=+—H ~&EBE]
AR TEREEFEELS4,196,0008L(—Z
T =1 194,762,000 ) 2 EFHBREE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂ* KAREERE  AEEBEER
SEBREFERE-

17. L b {E A AE

AREERBEEL R L EREZ S
REEHEX N ZANEERR -

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2023: RZE-_=F—H—H: 57,035

Additions NE 17,838

Amortisation (note 10) BESE (M E10) (2,080)

Exchange differences EHER (2,154)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZZEZ=F+-_A=+—AHK

R-ZZE-_HFE—F—H 70,639

Additions //J\\E 5,373

Amortisation (note 10) B (HaE0) (2,138)

Exchange differences EHER (706)

As 31 December 2024 R-ZZEZNE+=—H=+—H 73,168

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$2,138,000
(2023: HK$2,080,000) has been included in general and

administrative expenses.

RER - #HH5%2,138,0008 T (==
~— =4 :2,080,00080) BEF A— M K AT
BEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following amounts relating to the leases in respect of
lands and office premises:

Fe M BRRME @

BE—_FE-_mF+-_A=+—HIFZF

18. EHEEERHEERE

(i) REEUBRRRERZEH

HAPBRRKRBRATER LR
MRGHEEZ SR8

2024 2023
—BomE T o=

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Right-of-use assets FEREEE
Land and office premises BN NS0 31,796 36,360

Lease liabilities HEAE

Non-current JEnE) 31,552 33,526
Current TE 12,125 10,317
43,677 43,843

No addition to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$18,866,000).

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

BE-_Z_ME+_A=+—HI%F
E - -HBEAEFERAREE(ZZE ==
£ :18,866,000/ 7)) °

(i) REEEEREMEZEKRERE
RZERH

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FAEEEREMEAKERBETIAT
comprehensive income shows the following amounts B i 2 i‘b NIEWHE 2 58 -
relating to the leases in respect of land and office
premises:
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEEREHL10)
(note 10) 4,354 6,231
Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 9) HE & &2 M 2 XX (47579) 1,746 2,921

The total cash outflow for leases during the year
ended 31 December 2024 is HK$1,517,000 (2023:
HK$5,698,000).

HE_Z-_WmWF+-_A=+—H
HtEE BREEZREAHAZ
1,517,000 L (ZF == F :
5,698,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

(iii) The Group's leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases various lands and offices premises.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1
to 34 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

19. MINING RIGHTS

R ERRME @

BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

18. EHEEERBEESRE(A)

(i) AEEBAEFTBHROMAHEA
iR

AREEHEMAZEL R R5H - H
REABENEEHRRIEIMFTE -

MEGFTRENELEER  ABEE
AN RRFR R A& - BREBARFE
MEEEZHMEDI)  HEHEH
ThetEM RE - HEEE TS RAIE
AR

19. SREHE

2024 2023

—E-IE —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 6,244,972 6,661,945
Amortisation (note 10) s (KE10) (229,466) (241,137)
Exchange differences ERER (45,373) (175,836)
Closing net carrying amount FHREREmFE 5,970,133 6,244,972
Gross carrying amount R ARE 10,052,161 10,132,407
Accumulated amortisation SR (3,408,822) (3,214,229)
Accumulated impairment losses KRB (673,206) (673,206)
Net carrying amount R FE 5,970,133 6,244,972

The estimated remaining useful lives of the mining rights
range between 27 years and 37 years based on exploration
reports prepared in accordance with the relevant PRC
standards and disclosed in note 2.2.2(ii).

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$229,466,000
(2023: HK$241,137,000) has been included in cost of sales.

ERBETREBENRE ZBERREN
M EE2.2. 23T 5 - BRAERE 2 st F &
AIERFEHN F27FE374F -

RER - #4559 2229,466,0008 T (=&
T =4 1 241,137,000 7T) B T ASEE AL
Z’K o
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Fe M BRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

20. GOODWILL 20. &
2024 2023
—E-E —E_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Opening net carrying amount FYREFE 1,189,466 1,222,775
Exchange differences ERER (9,915) (33,309)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 1,179,551 1,189,466
Gross carrying amount IREAAE 1,935,965 1,956,366
Accumulated impairment losses ZEHREEE (756,414) (766,900)
Net carrying amount IRERE 1,179,551 1,189,466
Impairment tests for goodwill B E R A

A summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below: MBS R 2BEZMT :
2024 2023
—E-IE —F-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Xingwu EEBES 671,932 677,681
Zhaiyadi EERK 486,908 491,074
Jinshan 21 20,711 20,711
Net carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HB2EE%E 1,179,551 1,189,466

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no impairment
loss was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income (2023: nil).

As described in note 5.2, the recoverable amounts of CGUs
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations,
which are based on certain key assumptions including growth
rates of coal price and discount rate. The recoverable amounts
as at 31 December 2024 were measured by an independent
valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

BRE-F-MF+-A=+—BLFE
B2 R R A 2 E MR N B R
HEFR(ZE-=% : &) -

BT ES 2P c RS EA B Z AT
Bl &R NIEEREBEFEREAETE  ME
BEEDNBEETEERIBEEKRER
BEERBRAEK R -_MF+ A
—t+—BzakE &R EB Y EEMSP
WEBEFTEBERBRARGE  BAE

BREMES

= =
BHE e
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HEMBHRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. & (&)

Impairment tests for goodwill (continued)

To determine the recoverable amounts based on value-in-use
calculations, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of money
and the risk specific to the CGUEs.

Cash flows were projected based on the financial budgets
prepared by management covering a 5-year period, the cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady percentage growth rate below.

The remaining license period of the mining rights held by
the Group range from 8 to 18 years which are shorter than
the estimated useful lives of the coal mines estimated by the
Group, management is of the opinion that the Group is able
to renew the license of the mining rights from the relevant
authority continuously and at minimal charges.

The key assumptions of discounted cash flow models were as
follows:

Growth rates #E X

Discount rate 858 &

7 R (BRI ()

RECHEEFERETUNDERE - H5
ARBRERERABARRRE NS EH S E
FREEBLRGELEUFRERR ZFHZ
BATRRIR R EHIRE -

ReREBNREEEBURRZISFUBRE
EMEAR - SFHREURZREREERT
JIREBDHIEREHE -

AEBFH 2 KRB A E R RHR N T8
E18F  BAKEGEEZRBEMEAEA
FHRE EEERR  NEBEREREN
REERAEHEREERBETAE

RRBREREBUZTERRAOT :

2024 2023
—E-F —E-=F

to to
-2.79% 2% -15.70% 2%
(] = +<Z70 (9} = +2Z7

14.04% 13.34

The annual growth rates applied by management are
consistent with those estimated in the industry reports and
do not exceed the growth rates of long-term coal prices. The
discount rates used by management are the pre-tax interests
rates that are able to reflect the risks specific to the related
asset groups and consolidation of asset groups.

As at 31 December 2024, management believed that
any reasonably foreseeable change in any of above key
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of
goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount.

&I IR 2 O R R AT R R 3
TEER—H L TBBEBERER
BMEE  EEWEEAZHEEREHRLR
FER B A LR R A AR A B 2 BLAT
TER

RZEBE-_WMFE+-_A=+—H EBER

PO EBRHELRAEBRRANKE S
B o
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21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
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Fe M BRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

1. A—EBE AT 2R

2024 2023

—E_NE —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

As at 1 January Rn—A—H 9,806 10,208

Share of loss ity = (238) (124)

Exchange differences EH =R 250 (278)
Impairment loss WIEEE (9.818)

As at 31 December R+—-—BA=+—H - 9,806

Particulars of the associate at 31 December 2024 are as

follows:
Place of Principal
incorporation and activities and

Name kind of legal entity place of operations
FE AR AL it B % TEXBK

£ EEBRER =S

Luliang Jin Yu Cangchu  PRC, limited Provision of coal

Company Limited* liability company storage services

in the PRC
aRBERERERAT HE - BRAA A BRIk
B R

E}{ Hﬁi AK N

L NN T -_mWE+=-A=+—H
ZHBEWAT

Effective interest held
by the Group

Particulars of
registered capital

HMERFEE rEEFRBERES
2024 2023
“E-mE —T-=F
RMB42,000,000 35% 35%

AER#42,000,0007T

* The English translation is unofficial and for identification
purpose only.

2 Registered as state-owned enterprise under the PRC law.

* RXERIIFETT  EHEH -

o REBETEAZEMABEAEREX -
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R ERRME @

BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF
21. A—RBE QLT 2R (E)

AEBBERRZMBERBANT - &
RERRBREEREEZEERE ¢

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summary of financial information of the Group’s associate
as extracted from its unaudited management accounts is as

follows:
2024 2023
—ENF —ZEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
As at 31 December R+t=—HA=+—8
Non-current assets FERBEE 19,703 21,389
Current assets MENEE 2,753 2,776
Non-current liabilities EMBBE = =
Current liabilities REAE (2,146) (2,662)
Net assets BEFE 20,310 21,503
For the year ended 31 December BE+t-A=+—HLEE
Revenue & - -
Loss for the year FEEE (1,045) 354)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2wk (148) 610
Total comprehensive income PHEIWEBEE (1,193) (964)
Dividends received from associate B UrHE = AR 2 IR = =

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR 22. B AFETTAHMEBE W &S 2 B
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BEE
INCOME
2024 2023
—ENE —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Equity securities, at fair value RAFES - BATE
- listed in Australia (note (a)) — RN £ (M aE(a) 232,691 481,768
— listed in Hong Kong (note (b)) —REBLET(HEED)) 206,496 206,496
439,187 688,264
Unlisted equity interest (note (c)) JE AR (A et (c)) - -
439,187 688,264
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Notes:

(a)

This represents an investment in a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange Limited (the “Australian
Securities Exchange”), Mount Gibson Iron Limited (“Mount
Gibson”).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group directly held 13.62%
(2023: 13.49%) interest in Mount Gibson and the fair value of
the investment in Mount Gibson was HK$232,691,000 (2023:
HK$481,768,000) which represented the market value with
reference to its closing price denominated in AUD as at that
day on the Australian Securities Exchange. A fair value loss of
HK$249,077,000 (2023: fair value gain of HK$58,992,000) was
recognised in the security investment reserve during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

This represents an investment in a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, APAC Resources Limited (“APAC").

As at 31 December 2024, the Group directly held 15.86%
(2023: 16.51%) interest in APAC and the fair value of
the investment in APAC was HK$206,496,000 (2023:
HK$206,496,000) which represented the market value with
reference to its closing price denominated in HK$ as at that
day on the Stock Exchange. No fair value gain/loss (2023: fair
value loss of HK$38,718,000) was recognised in the security
investment reserve during the year ended 31 December 2024.

This represents the cost of 7% (2023: 7%) equity investment
in an unlisted company incorporated in the PRC. As the entity
ceased operation during the year ended 31 December 2013,
a fair value loss of approximately HK$8,890,000 was recorded
against the full investment cost in 2013.

The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed and
unlisted equity securities has been measured as described in
note 4.3.

O 3R

ERELEREEERAT 315

Fe M BRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

22. BRAFEFAEMEE RS 28
HEE(E)

Wizt -

(a)

WAERBMNEHFRZAR DA (BN
&R Frl) ™2 R Mount Gibson Iron
Limited([ Mount Gibson]) Z & & -

R-ZE-_NME+-A=+—H0 K&£EH
¥ ¥ A Mount Gibson 13.62% (=& ==
F 1 13.49% ) # 7z - ™M Mount Gibson
WEZRNFEA232,691,0008 T (- F
T =14 : 481,768,000 7T) - BIZBEH
PBMNBLZFABITAHEZ RTEETZ
mE CREBEE-_ET-_NF+_A=+—
HEFECRESREREERATEBIE
249,077,000 L (ZE==F : A FEK
%558,992,000/87T) ©

AR ET AR TAERAR DA
([ZERERDZEE -

RZE_WF+_A=+—H x&EEEH
EEATABRIS.86% (BB -=% :
16.51% ) #Em MR EAREREEZ A
F1{& A206,496,0008 L (Z T - =%F :
206,496,000 7T ) B1 2 88 & B 1B 2 B bA
B EZRTMEETZ2TE - HENE
E-T-_NE+_A=Z+—HLEEESR
EREHBERATFERZ HBE(ZE
—=%F : RAF{EE1E38,718,000/T) °

A —MRPEEMKLZIELTRA
ZI%(ZZEZ=F : 7% ) RAREZK
Ko ARZEERBE_T—=F1+=
A=t—RALFEEFLEB BR_-F
—ZEREBRRENEAHESLATEBEREY
8,890,000/ 7T ©

AEBRETRFLTRAZFLFREZA
FETIZM A MAESE -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) eSS ESEETE )

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23. 1%  ANREREMERRE
RECEIVABLES
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Non-current IR ED
Deposits for a potential mining project AREET 2 IRIETH B R & 149,395 150,673
Long-term deferred expenses — non-current  RERF#EE A — IE R T 112,634 114,532
Prepayments for CIP and property, plant and fEEZIREUANYE BE K&
equipment ® 2 AN A 151,253 83,215
Prepayments for land-use rights T3 A 2 TR RRIE 40,028 40,371
453,310 388,791
Current mE
Consideration receivable for the transfer of  B:E S (1127 % R AN HE %5 49
27% equity interest of Jinshan (Note) FEWRER (A7) = 173,340
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 154,728 83,652
Interest receivables JE W R B 24,676 16,036
Deposits and other receivables Be RE MR WGRIR 26,945 6,515
Long-term deferred expenses — current RAGEHER-TH 1,346 1,378
207,695 280,921

Note: On 30 December 2016, Shougang Resources (Hong Kong)
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with a wholly owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd. for the transfer of
27% equity interest of Jinshan at RMB162,000,000. Such
consideration receivable had been received in February 2024.

Wizt -

RZE—XRE+-A=+H x2F2E
MBAREMER(EE)BRARHEEN
EBERAFZ—HEENBRARGIZE
Eifhik 0 UARK162,000,000tEES
27 % B ANFERS - IR EBRER =

TopE= AlkE



“TOMNFEFR ERBUEREEARAF 317
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Fe M BRRME @

BE—_FE-_mF+-_A=+—HIFZF

24. INVENTORIES 2. &
2024 2023
—EME —E=5F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Spare parts and consumables i (4 K B FE o 41,679 42,735
Coking coal o 95,959 82,901
137,638 125,636

25.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no inventories provision
was recognised.

R-E-_NER-_ZE-_=F+_fA=+—
B BEERTEEE -

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 25. ERESRERERERE
2024 2023
—E_mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEUNE S ERIA 702,675 714,894
Less: Provision for impairment loss JB B ESE R (182,860) (184,426)
519,815 530,468
Bills receivables JE Uk 2= 4 18,089 157,365
537,904 687,833

Trade receivables generally have credit terms ranging from
30 to 90 days (2023: 30 to 90 days) and no interest is
charged. Bills receivables are expiring within one year. As
at 31 December 2024 and 2023, all of the trade and bills
receivables are denominated in RMB.

FEWE SERBEEEHR —MNF30E90H8

“E-=4F :30F90H)BTEAE - B
WEER—FRESH R -_WFR=
E-_=F+-A=+—8 FEEKEZESH
RIERERZEHAAREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, ageing analysis of net trade

R ERRME @

BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

25. EREZRERERREE (F)

receivables, based on the invoice dates, is as follows: BHGREZEKE SEREBFHEZBEE DT
NN

2024 2023

—E-IEF —E-=fF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Up to 90 days Q0HSKIA T 246,421 529,750

91 to 180 days 91£180H 241,417 718

181 to 365 days 1812365H 31,977 -

519,815 530,468

As at 31 December 2024, ageing analysis of bills receivables,

RZZB_MFEF+_A=+—H BREFE

based on the bills receiving dates, is as follows: WERIHEBRE 2 ERBE ZERSITIOT -
2024 2023
—ECOEF —Z2-=
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Up to 90 days 90HKIAT 18,089 59,779
91 to 180 days 91£180H - 97,586
18,089 157,365
Details of pledged bills receivables are as follows: EERRKEEFERT
2024 2023
—E-NEF —ZEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
Pledged bills receivables BRI E R - 68,533
Associated bills payables (note 29) AR RN EE (A17£29) - (64,255)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the bills receivables include
receivables which are transferred to financial institutions or
creditors by discounting or endorsing these receivables on a
full recourse basis. Under these arrangements, the Group has
not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to
these receivables. The Group therefore continues to recognise
the transferred bills receivables in its consolidated statement
of financial position and measure at amortised cost.

The relevant carrying amounts are as follows:

ERELEREEMBRAT 319

Fe M BRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

25. EREZRERERREE (F)

FREENEAEERREMERERER
BRHRRABESETARNTRBEREREA
ERZERYGIR - ERFRHT A%
B KR % E R NARBNEAR
R - Bt AEBEBEESGAY
BMNKERERNRN TR - LR
XA E -

Bills receivables endorsed to creditors with
full recourse:

Transferred bills receivables

Associated other payables (note 30)

EREEEmENT :

2024 2023
—E-F —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

BEMEBREEDIEETERE

A2 FERER -

IR ER 2,749 1,070
TERE E b BN FRIE (M 5E30) (2,749) (1,070)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade and bills receivables. Note 4.1(b)
provides for details about the calculation of the allowance.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case impairment loss is written off against trade and bills
receivables directly.

Movement in the loss allowance of trade receivables is as
follows:

AEBRBEZEVBRELNESRBILX
AERHEEER IMMERKESR
AREEERERAKRERNERERS -
FATRE TR EREBZFE -

AEBY RHZSERFEEMERS -
EREZEBELEBRRBZHERBETE
ABERCE  RELAKEEAZTELZ

WEREE - R BERT - BEBEBER
REWRE 5 BRI & B R s -

EWE SERABBRERZSWT ¢

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January n—A—H 184,426 189,680
Exchange differences ERER (1,566) (5,254)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 182,860 184,426
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Foreign exchange linked notes, at fair value

SINPE IR R4 -

R ERRME @

BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

26. RAFPEHIFABBECUKEE

2024 2023
—EMF —E-=

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

ZNFE - 43,019

For the fair value measurement of financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss, please refer to note 4.3(c).

27. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

ERRATFEMABEZUBEEZATF
B2 @ F2HEMFE4.3(0) -

27. CEARZRHEBITER

2024 2023

—E-mEF ZEZ=F

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FAET

Pledged bank deposits BEMRITFER 477,558 517,787
Restricted bank deposits R B ERITIF K 459,549 424,088
937,107 941,875

As at 31 December 2024, deposits of HK$477,558,000
(2023: HK$517,787,000) was pledged for bills payables
of HK$475,258,000 (2023: HK$254,116,000) (note 29).
The pledged bank deposits were denominated in RMB and
approximate their fair value due to short maturity.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the pledged bank deposits is not materially different from
their carrying amount because of the short maturity period.

Restricted bank deposits are subject to regulatory restrictions
and are therefore not available for general use by the
respective entities within the Group.

R—ZE-_NMF+=-_AF=+—H
477,558,000 T R (Z T = = F
517,787,000 7t ) B 1€ &475,258,0007%
TT(ZZE =4 : 254,116,000/ 7T ) 2 FELS
Z(ME29) 2T - BMMRTERY
MARBE  ARETFTHREERE @ thH
HAFERE -

ARBEZRR  AREEFRITERZ
TFREEE  WEATEREEELIEE
RER -

XREINRITERZDNEERS - BT
REHEASERNERER —RER -
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28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME
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Fe M BRRME @

BE—_FE-_mF+-_A=+—HIFZF

28. RERREFEMURRITESR

DEPOSITS AT BANKS (N
2024 2023
—EE_ME -
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITMAFHERS 5,028,879 3,423,839
Time deposits at banks and RITRE R TEBTER
financial institutions 4,152,443 4,520,892

Bank balances and cash RITHEBERE 9,181,322 7,944,731
Less: Time deposits with original R REREEA=MA 2

maturity over three months TEHIF R (1,505,443) (1,392,489)
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 7,675,879 6,552,242

Cash at banks generates interest at the floating rates based

on the daily bank deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2024, funds of the Group amounting
to HK$5,209,431,000 (2023: HK$4,978,982,000) were
deposited in bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC
where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange

control.

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

RITREBBARTHEARAMEAEZFE
FREUH S, o

R-ZEBE-ME+-_A=+—H8 &£/
E4& 4% 552094310008 (2 -=
& 1 4,978,982,0008 L) F ML A E 2
RITAALZIRITRE  MESEREAER
HNEE B | o

29. ENEZRENRENERE

2024 2023
—F-OF —EC=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Trade payables ERE ZEA 282,263 303,096
Bills payables FERT = 475,258 318,371
757,521 621,467




322 SHOUGANG FUSHAN RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The Group was granted by its suppliers credit period ranging
between 30 to 180 days (2023: 30 to 180 days). As at 31
December 2024 and 2023, all of the trade and bills payables
are denominated in RMB. All bills payables are within 6
months (2023: 6 months).

Based on the invoice dates, ageing analysis of trade payables
as at 31 December 2024 is as follows:

HEMBHRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

29.

BNEZRARENRE (&)

AEEEEEERKZ TN T302180R (=
TE-=F:30R180R ) )Z2fEEH - R ==
“ERZE_ZF+-_A=+—8 " F
EENESEEREMNZESHUARES
B-FTEERNEENERY AEB(ZE
—=%:6fAR) -

REZZEH ENESRER_-FT_M
Frt-A=1T—HZEREIHTWOT :

2024 2023

TENF —E=F

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET

Up to 90 days 90H AR 169,493 200,195
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 64,912 60,671
181 to 365 days 181F365H 16,846 17,542
Over 365 days 3658 & 31,012 24,688
282,263 303,096

As at 31 December 2024, all bills payables (2023:
HK$254,116,000 out of HK$318,371,000) were secured by
the pledged bank deposit (note 27). As at 31 December 2023,
remaining bills payables amounted to HK$64,255,000 were
secured by bills receivables (note 25).

NRZFBE-_ME+=-_A=+—8 ' 2% EN
ER(ZFT =4 318,371,000 T H
254,116,000/ 7T ) LA I R 17 17 X (B
FH27)EE c RZEZ=F+-A=+—
B - % TNEMNZ164,255,00078 T A FE U
SR (P EE25) fE4R R o
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30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
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GEMBHRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

30. Hith BN R EREFHE A

2024 2023

—EME —E=5F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Contract liabilities BHEBE 301,155 200,648
Accrued wages, salaries, bonus and EBETTE - FHe - LRk

staff welfare B TITER 169,998 164,934

Accrued reclamation obligations TEIRERER 146,070 138,247
Payables for property, plant and equipment FEfF#1% W}%&%&ﬁﬁ

and construction TR 176,035 222,404

Payables on endorsed bills receivables FEH“EJEM&%TE 2,749 1,070

Other accruals HEiEETE B 279,125 260,509

Other levy payables HAth FE T AR 245,236 204,780

Other payables H it fE B 211,397 228,285

Amounts due to other parties FETE A A T 5RIE 4,489 4,528

1,536,254 1,425,405

As at 31 December 2024, other payables of HK$2,749,000
(2023: HK$1,070,000) were settled by bills receivables
endorsed to corresponding creditors which do not meet the
de-recognition requirements (note 25).

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2024 that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year amounted to HK$200,648,000 (2023:
HK$255,038,000). The Group expects to deliver the goods
to satisfy the remaining performance obligations of these
contract liabilities within one year or less. The Group applied
the practical expedient and does not disclose the information
relating to the remaining performance obligations that have
original durations of one year or less.

As at 31 December 2024, define contribution plan payables
amounted to HK$199,000 (2023: HK$396,000).

R-ZET-_mWE+-_A=+—H HtE
TERTE 2,749,000 L (ZF = = F
1,070,000 L) EHEE THEGERAZ
ERZEES ZERRZBEIIFTEE
BEUEER 2R E (H5E25) °

HE_Z_NFE+_A=+—HL®F
FRABRBERFDATAAGHNEE
# %8 200,648,000/ T (- & — = &F :

255,038,000 ) o AEBTEH N —F 3k
—FURARNERUNBITZSANEEZ
FHBEHET - AEBERAERZF L
VTAERELARBRA—FX—FUARAZ
FpEANEEHEEZER -

R-ZE-_NME+_-_A=+—H  ENNTEHE
M2 £ % A199,0008 T (ZF ==
£ 396,000/ 7T) °
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31. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balance as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 is
denominated in RMB and is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and their movements during

the year are as follows:

R ERRME @

BE—_F-_mF+_-_A=+—HIFZF
31. B B 2~ B I 1= B A 25 FUIE
RZE-_MER-_FE-_=F+=-_A=+—
Ezﬁ%EMAE%ﬁE BEERE 5
MR BERKERE -
.ELEFEBHEERERE

FERR A BB RN & R 2 BIEF 85
BERASBNT :

Provision
BiE
2024 2023
—E-NE -

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FHET

At 1 January w—A—H 146,360 92,447

Exchange differences fEH =R 827 (4,692)
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss (F0B) st A8z

(note 11) (KiE11) (62,423) 58,605

At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 84,764 146,360
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE—_FE-_mF+-_A=+—HIFZF

32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND R.ELEFEHEERER(EA)
LIABILITIES (continued)
Deferred income tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated FRARGAEVBERRNRER ZETEMERH
statement of financial position and their movements during BELREZEHIT :

the year are as follows:

Property,
plant and
equipment
Withholding and mining Mining
tax rights funds Total
m¥ - BER
FEUR
SEEE] R FRES ko
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(Note)
(Hret)
At 1 January 2023 RZZEZ=%—H—H 129,575 1,358,819 41,469 1,529,863
Exchange differences ERERE (3,538) (36,766) (1,238) (41,542)
(Credited)/Charged to (Gt N)/fkEx
profit or loss (note 11) (ftatr1) (1,463) (24,402) 2,455 (23,410)
At 31 December 2023 and R-BE-_=%+=A8
1 January 2024 =+—-HK
—E-ME—-F—H 124,574 1,297,651 42,686 1,464,911
Exchange differences EHZR (1,539) (9,602) (344) (11,485)
Charged/(Credited) to Mk (GEA) Bz
profit or loss (note 11) (Batr1) 14,523 (42,437) (533) (28,447)
At 31 December 2024 R-BE-_ME
—A=+-H 137,558 1,245,612 41,809 1,424,979
Note: Pursuant to changes in certain regulations of the PRC Kz - RIBFPBBENE TR S8  RNEBEZE
government, the Group is required to set aside the production TERHENE T2 BRHEMAGHRLUME
maintenance fee, safety fund, and other expense of similar ZER(#EREES]) AR EES
nature (collectively the “Mining Funds”). As such amounts are EREERA THREREA M EERE
deductible for tax purpose when they are set aside but are BEATIE  MpEEmns £B8%
expensed for accounting purpose only when they are utilised, a Hry BAReT A ENEE 2 BETEHER
deferred tax liability is recorded for the temporary difference in & o

respect of excess fund set aside for tax purposes.
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32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no deferred income
tax assets has been recognised in respect of the deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses arising from
certain subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and PRC as it
is uncertain whether future taxable profit is available against
which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses
can be utilised. Deferred income tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of the following items:

HEMBHRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

32.

EEFRESHEERAGE(R)

RoE-—mER-_E-_=F+-_fF=+—
H  AXReEBSTHESARRERTSH AT A
ERIN AT R B 2 R A B BRI IEE
B RIWERKREREBSMPEFMAAL
ZETHWBRARIZAMBEREZELAD
ARBEBERECHNESHREE - WER
THSERRELEMBHREE

2024 2023

—E-ME —E-=fF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Deductible temporary differences A HR By = R - -
Tax losses TIEE 18 415,591 409,302
415,591 409,302

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$415,591,000
(2023: HK$409,302,000) are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arise.

AEBBAERPAFEENELEEBRE
ZARZARRERB EF 2 IAEE
#49 415,591,000 L ( = & = = F
409,302,000 7T) ©
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Fe M BRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. KA
Number of shares Amount
BROEE x|
2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-NE —EBC-=F —E-_ME —E-=F
‘000 shares ‘000 shares HK$000 HK$'000
FK Fig FET FET
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHE :
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 4,926,837 5,051,837 15,156,959 15,156,959
Less: Buy-back and cancellation & : Bl B8 & A% 17 51 £
of shares (note 34(c)) (Ht:£34(c)) = (125,000) = =
Add: Issue of shares under o R ST
rights issue (note) &1 (B15E) 164,228 = 425,508 =
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—8” 5,091,065 4,926,837 15,582,467 15,156,959
Note: On 23 September 2024, the Board of Directors proposed to Wi RZTEZMNFENAZ+=0 E5€E3%

R (ZE-mFqF+A=+=H)
BREEZTCORBEROEE —(1)RME
BRA% D (T HEARAR 10 ) 2 EEURIBE SR
A AR 92,608 LiETT HEAR (T #ER% 1) -
BRI ITHR % 164,227,928 B I IR 1D
L EF%4426,993,00058 5T (1B FH X

conduct the rights issue (the “Right Issue”) on the basis of
one (1) rights share (“Rights Share(s)”) for every thirty (30)
existing shares held on the record date of 22 October 2024
at the subscription price of HK$2.60 per Rights Share, to raise
up to approximately HK$426,993,000 before expenses by way
of issuing up to 164,227,928 Rights Shares. On 13 November
2024, the Rights Issue was completed and 164,227,928 Al) c RZZT-ME+—A+=8 - #Kk
Rights Shares were issued. The net proceeds of approximately B - WE1T164,227,928 % 4 Bk I%
HK$425,508,000 were raised from the Rights Issue. 5 o IR ATIS B FEEH £425,508,000
BT °

34. RESERVES 34. #E
(a) S EERE

(a) Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries are required to appropriate
10% of its profit after tax, prepared in accordance with
the accounting regulation in the PRC, to the statutory
reserve fund until the statutory reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. Such reserve may be used
to reduce any losses incurred or for capitalisation as
paid-up capital.

BIEFRBREREEEER  PEHNE
AR ER BP0 AR R R
0% Z2BBHEEFNEECHEES
BEATHREEHRETMEARZ250%
Bk o ZFEEB A BEMRE A BB
BREHER -
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34. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Other reserves

(c)

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Group is
required to transfer production maintenance fee, safety
fund and other expense of similar nature (“production
and maintenance funds”) at fixed rates based on
relevant bases, such as production volume, to a specific
reserve account. The production and maintenance funds
could be utilised when expenses or capital expenditures
on production maintenance and safety measures are
incurred. The amount of production and maintenance
funds utilised would be transferred from the specific
reserve account to retained earnings.

HEMBHRRME @

HE T -pNFEf—A=1+—HIFFE
34. #f& (&)
(b) HthfFEE

REEBPBEER  AREARKE
ESHBEERBATNEREHEBE
ZE2EBERAUMEENEMRA S ([
He EREZERRAER -#EED
AREER LB EELERXHER
XK CHRANEGESESR
BRHERFERRERERERN -

Reserves movement of the Company (c) XABZEEES
Retained
profits Total
RE =R RG]
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—H—H 1,532,930 1,532,930
Profit for the year F 2 A 2,002,217 2,002,217
Buy-back of shares (Note) A& An BI B (B at) (303,028) (303,028)
2022 final dividend approved BHEC T _FRERE (1,414,515) (1,414,515)
2023 interim dividend declared BEERZZZFEZ=FHHEHKE (492,684) (492,684)
At 31 December 2023 and NR-TE-_=F+-HA=+—H
1 January 2024 rZ—ZE-WMF—F—H 1,324,920 1,324,920
Profit for the year FE %A 1,166,160 1,166,160
2023 final dividend approved BHEZ S =FRAKRE (886,831) (886,831)
2024 interim dividend declared BEER ZZ-MEHERE (443,415) (443,415)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_mWE+=-HA=+—H 1,160,834 1,160,834

Note: Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the shareholders of

X

the Company on 12 September 2023, the Company has
bought-back 125,000,000 ordinary shares at the offer
price of HK$2.40 per share and those bought-back shares
were then cancelled on 21 September 2023. Thus, the
number of issued shares was reduced by 125,000,000.
The total consideration of HK$300,000,000 and the
related expense of approximately HK$3,028,000 were
debited the retained profits upon the completion of this

transaction on 21 September 2023.

BEAQRARER_ZT_=ZFAh
A+ZRALEBBHREZER K
RAILEHNESRK240%LEE
125,000,000 £ @K + ZE T
BEORMHER-_ZE-_=FNA
Zt+—HEFEHE Bl BETR
8 B E 4 125,000,000 % - £ R~
300,000,000 7T X MR X 4
3,028,000 TR T -_=F I A
T+ —BHZRSEAERREEF
R ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 R T -pNFE—A=1+—HIFFE
35. HOLDING COMPANY'’S STATEMENT OF 35 AZE-MFE+=ZA=1+—H#E

FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 BRABZEBBARRER
2024 2023
—E-NE ZEZ=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
k2 FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE = -
Interests in subsidiaries A IEUNGIPA: T 36 120,456 120,456
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG ECE] 12,112,013 12,646,167
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 12,232,469 12,766,623
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries PRI B~ 3,410,126 2,967,090
Deposits, prepayments and other 2e fﬁﬁ Iﬁ&ﬁi\fﬂﬂg
receivables W skaE 8,318 6,856
Time deposits with original maturity over J?fmgﬁii@51ﬂ ZF
three months HfF K 496,715 398,450
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 745,705 618,137
Total current assets REBEEH#AE 4,660,864 3,990,533
Total assets EEHE 16,893,333 16,757,156
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST B8 A B F0E 137,391 262,696
Other payables and accruals Eﬁtf@ﬁmlﬁ)&%ﬁ%)ﬂ 12,641 12,581
Total current liabilities RBEEEE 150,032 275,277
Net current assets REBEEFE 4,510,832 3,715,256
Net assets EEZE 16,743,301 16,481,879
EQUITY =
Share capital A& 7 33 15,582,467 15,156,959
Reserves i 34(c) 1,160,834 1,324,920
Total equity ERBE 16,743,301 16,481,879
The statement of financial position of the Company was RABZHMBRRAEER _E_AFE=A4

approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2025 and
was signed on its behalf:

“HEREEFEHETRERES

Ding Rucai Wang Dongming
TF I&H
Director Director

EF EF
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36. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 36. RMtE ARl 2 fE R
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 TEMRBRARR Z_E_MF+_A=+—
are as follows: =A== RN

Particulars of issued

Place of incorporation  Principal activities and share capital/ Effective interest held
Name and kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital by the Group
EMKLER BRTRE/
8 HEERRR IERBRERMY EMEAFHE AREFEERER
2024 2023
“BCmE St
Xingwu" PRC, limited liability Mining, production and RMB250,000,000 88% 88%
company * sales of coal in the PRC
a2 hE - ARARY RPBREFR - £ER AR #250,000,0007
HERRK
Jinjiazhuang" PRC, limited liability Mining, production and RMB374,000,000 65% 65%
company * sales of coal in the PRC
ERH TE - ARDEY RPBREFR  LER AB#374,000,0007
HERR
Zhaiyadi® PRC, limited liability Mining, production and RMB800,000,000 95% 95%
company * sales of coal in the PRC
RER E - ARLEY RABEREFR  LER AR 800,000,000
HERR
Shanxi Fushan Resources Group PRC, limited liability Development and utilisation ~ RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited ** company - of energy resources

and safety operation

management and domestic

corporate management
WERLEREEERAR" PE - ARLE REERRENARZ2EE  ARK10,000,0007

R NRENGEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 R T -pNFE—A=1+—HIFFE

36. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. AMIB AT 2= (1E)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 FTEWNBRAAIR _ZE-_WNF+_A=+—
are as follows: (continued) HZ=FBOT - (&)

Particulars of issued

Place of incorporation  Principal activities and share capital/ Effective interest held
Name and kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital by the Group
EMKLER BRTRE/
8 HEERRR IERBRERMY EMEAFHE AREFEERER
2024 2023
“BCmE St
Jinshan" PRC, limited liability Investment holding, RMB600,000,000 67% 67%
company * production and sales of coal
products in the PRC
£l PE - ARAAY RPEMERARR  £ER  AKH600,000,0007
HERER
Liulin Luenshan Coking Company PRC, limited liability Production and sales of coal  RMB330,000,000 44% 44%
Limited ("Luenshan”) ** company® products in the PRC
LR ARAR(TRL ) =B ERARe RPEHSEERHERER ARM330,000,0007T
Liulin Luenshan GuoliaGou Coal PRC, limited liability Production and sales of coal ~ RMB8,850,000 44% 44%
Company Limited" company® products in the PRC (RMB800,000,000)
MR LR BB AR E - BRAR RAEHELERHERER ARMS 850,000
BRAF" (AR %:800,000,0007C)
Fu Hui Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited Administration and HK$100 100% 100%
liability company investment vehicle of the (100 ordinary shares)
Group in Hong Kong
REREERERAA A BRAA REARRAEEREERR 1008 T(EER100K)
REEH
Fu Hui Jewellery Goldsmith Hong Kong, limited Investment vehicle of the HK$2,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited liability company Group in Hong Kong (2,000,000 ordinary
shares)
REXESTERARA &2 BRAA REBRISERERERRK  2,000,000%7T

(£&MR2,000,000%)
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BHE—F—pNEf—H=+—HILFF
36. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. RMIB AT s ()

FERBARNR -_ZE-_WE+_A=+—
Bz#EWT : (8)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024
are as follows: (continued)

Place of incorporation

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued
share capital/

Effective interest held

Name and kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital by the Group
EMKLER BRTRE/
8 HEERRR IERBRERMY EMERFE AREFEERER
2024 2023
ZECME —To=F
Thechoice Finance (HK) Limited" Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in HK$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
liability company Hong Kong
BE(HB)ERAR FE BRARA REANSRELR 1AT(EERIR)
Worldman Industrial (HK) Limited" Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in HK$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
liability company Hong Kong
ERE(RE)BERAR &% ARAHA REBUEREER AT (ERRIR)
Gumpert Industries (HK) Limited" Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in HKS$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
liability company Hong Kong
RER(BE)RRAR B8 BRAA RERREREER 1ET(ERRIR)
Fushan Resources Group Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in HK$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
Management Limited liability company Hong Kong
BLEREEERERAA F# - BRAR REANSRELR BT (EERR)
Shougang Resources (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in HKS$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
Limited” liability company Hong Kong
EHER(ER)ERAR &% ARAHA REBUEREER AT (ERRIR)
Jade Green Investments Holding BVI, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
EBENHS  ARAE REBUSRELER 1ET(EBRIR)
Thechoice Finance Limited" BV, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
EBRAHE  ARAF REBUERARR 1ET(EERIR)
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BE—FE—pNEf—H=+—HILFF
36. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. RMIB AT s ()

FERBARNR -_ZE-_WME+_A=+—
Bz#EWT : (8)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024
are as follows: (continued)

Particulars of issued

Place of incorporation  Principal activities and share capital/ Effective interest held

Name and kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital by the Group
HMALHHR BRITRE/
8 HEERRR IREBRERLH EMEAFHE AREFEERER
2024 2023
“BC@mE -EocE
Worldman Industrial Limited" BV, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
EBRAHE  BARAF REBUERARR 1ET(EERR)
Gumpert Industries Limited" BVI, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
RERUME  ARAF REBUEREER 1XT(ERRIR)
Fushan Energy Group Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
BLEREBEERAR EERAES  ARAR REBUSREZR 1XT(ERRIR)
Maxease Limited BVI, limited liability Investment vehicle in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
EBRAHE  ARAF REBUERAEE 1ET(EERIR)
True Plus Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
RBRUME  ARAF REBUEREER 1XT(ERRIR)
Benefit Rich Limited Samoa, limited liability Investment holding in US$1 (1 ordinary share) 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
HEBRAA BED  BRAT REBUEREER 1XT(ERRIR)

*

purpose only.

These companies are indirectly held by the Company.
The English translation is unofficial and for identification

2 Registered as sino-foreign entity joint ventures under PRC law.
Registered as wholly foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

e Registered as equity joint venture under PRC Law.

° Registered as wholly owned enterprise under PRC law.

FLERBHARREERE -
WXERAIEETT - EHHF -

RIEPEEREMA/TIEERT -
RBPFEEREIMA/IHBELE -
REFBEZREIMASAERT -
RETFEZREMABEDLE -
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HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 37. FERER

The following table lists out the information relating to
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling
interest (“"NCI"”). The summarised financial information

TRINNEREASEEAE AR ERER
([EERERE D ZMBRARZER - TX
2 ZHBEMR R IEA QR HEEA

presented below represents the amounts before any inter- BEE °
company elimination.
2024 —E-
Jinjiazhuang Xingwu Zhaiyadi
SR i REE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
NCI percentage FEE R L B 35% 12.25% 5%
As at 31 December R+=BA=+—8
Current assets mBEE 3,288,051 850,536 2,548,376
Non-current assets FERBEE 4,397,063 4,112,969 3,531,596
Current liabilities mENBE (748,307) (1,057,056) (2,036,925)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (391,086) (554,811) (373,076)
Net assets BEFE 6,545,722 3,351,638 3,669,971
Carrying amount of NCI R R REE 1,869,656 317,863 28,406
For the year ended 31 December #HZ+=-H=+—H
LFEE

Revenue e 1,979,371 875,507 2,555,483
Profit for the year FERA 787,918 83,797 901,988
Total comprehensive income FHEW=ERE 728,688 53,035 863,633
Profit allocated to NC| DB T IEE R =R A 272,763 9,407 45,129
Dividend paid to NCI A T IR R AR B - - (62,539)
Cash flows from operating activities &KE XK 7R R=E 770,187 503,100 1,126,904
Cash flows from investing activities RE XK ZEERE 54,987 (160,943) (194,846)
Cash flows from financing activities FE XK 2R R=E - (625,997) (1,310,693)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 37.3FEi=pRfEz (&)

2023 —E-=HF
Jinjiazhuang Xingwu Zhaiyadi
KA izt RER
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
NCI percentage FEVERR A 25 L I 35% 12.25% 5%
As at 31 December R+—_A=+—8H
Current assets MBEE 2,391,435 1,382,653 2,894,347
Non-current assets EMBEE 4,496,833 4,164,492 3,651,067
Current liabilities mEAE (665,976) (1,670,080) (2,097,398)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (405,258) (578,463) (390,143)
Net assets BESE 5,817,034 3,298,603 4,057,873
Carrying amount of NCI IR AREE 1,619,645 311,379 45,596
For the year ended 31 December H#z2+—-A=+—H
IEFE
Revenue g 2,078,153 1,716,682 3,398,396
Profit for the year FZ %R 1,367,512 373,545 1,126,278
Total comprehensive income PHEUN 4R %E 1,189,556 287,898 1,012,409
Profit allocated to NCI B T IR A 5 A 314,698 44,377 55,780
Dividend paid to NCI TR P IR IR S IR B - - (66,316)
Cash flows from operating activities RE XK RS K E 1,456,146 1,088,804 2,269,209
Cash flows from investing activities BB XK RS RE 218,496 (241,373) (196,451)
Cash flows from financing activities FIEXBE2RER=E (283,313) (1,032,165) (843,082)

There is a material NCI of 56% (2023: 56%) amounting
to HK$72,760,000 (2023: HK$75,747,000) in Luenshan
during the year. The summarised financial information for
Luenshan is not presented above as Luenshan is not yet to
commence operations and its cash flows and profit or loss
items are minimal to the Group. Luenshan had non-current
assets of HK$256,076,000 (2023: HK$252,138,000) and net
assets of HK$197,914,000 (2023: HK$206,700,000) as of 31
December 2024.

RER - BB L 72,760,000/ T (=
T - =4 : 75,747,000 7T ) Z 56%
(ZEBE =% :56% ) & K EHERHE
meoARBLUMARERER S RE
MEZBEEYHAEEZE B/ 0 B L
W BEERBERAERLEXREY -
RZZE-_WE+=_ARA=+—H ' B
2 EREE E A 256,076,000 5T ( =
T~ = 4 : 252,138,000/ T ) » FE
B /&197,914,0008 T (=& = = F
206,700,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

37.

38.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

There is a material NCI of 33% (2023: 33%) amounting to
HK$135,401,000 (2023: HK$137,856,000) in Jinshan during
the year. The summarised financial information for Jinshan
is not presented above as Jinshan commenced commercial
operations in 2019 and its cash flows and profit or loss items
are insignificant to the Group. Jinshan had non-current
assets of HK$527,114,000 (2023: HK$533,191,000) and net
assets of HK$455,961,000 (2023: HK$460,223,000) as of 31
December 2024.

No dividend was paid by Jinshan and Luenshan to the NCI
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

HEMBHRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

37. FEERER (&)

RERN - A £1L135,401,0008 (=
T - =% : 137,856,000/ ) 233% (=
T4 133%)2ERIEERERE -
HRESLR - ZE—NWFEHNEBELER
HBRSREMBZBEEHAEERHMTR
B oAk LUZHBERBMERERE
XEW R-_ZT-_WNMFE+_A=+—H "
Sz IERSBEE A527,114,0007%8 7T
(ZZT - =4 :533,191,000/8 T) * %
& E /455,961,000 0 (T = =4
460,223,000/87T) °

REBEE_Z_WNER_ZE_=ZF+_7
Z+—BIFER - &L KB LB ERIE
TR RERS SRR S o

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. EAREE
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted for: BB TAIBIEETA
— Acquisition of property, —BAWE - WEREE
plant and equipment 213,675 245,515
— Exploration and design fees for — Al BEETT Z FIRIEE 2
a potential mining project WENRKRTER 7,932 8,000

221,607 253,515




—E I FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the following transactions for the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023 were carried out with related
parties:

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
sold clean coking coal amounted to HK$2,006,760,000
(2023: HK$2,523,132,000) were regarded as connected
transactions under the Listing Rules to Shougang
Group Co., Ltd., being Shougang Holding (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Shougang Holding”)'s ultimate holding
company, and its group companies (collectively referred
to as the “Shougang Group”). Shougang Holding
is a substantial shareholder of Shoucheng Holdings
Limited (“Shoucheng Holdings”). Shougang Holding
and Shoucheng Holdings are also the substantial
shareholders of the Company. As at 31 December
2024, amount due from the Shougang Group was
HK$501,723,000 (2023: HK$528,452,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
purchased raw materials amounted to HK$165,000
(2023: HK$3,005,000) from Shougang Group were
connected transactions. Furthermore, the Group
incurred construction fees and purchase of equipment
amounted to HK$12,010,000 (2023: HK$9,966,000)
payable to Shougang Group were connected
transactions. Also, the Group also incurred repair
and maintenance expenses and inspection expenses
amounted to HK$433,000 (2023: HK$111,000) and
nil (2023: HK$84,000) respectively were connected
transactions, during the year ended 31 December 2024.
As at 31 December 2024, amount due to the Shougang
Group was HK$6,030,000 (2023: HK$7,119,000).

ERELEREEMBRAT 337

GEMBHRRME @

HE-—FT-_F+—A=+—HIFE

39. A LERS

BRaEAMBRREMESTSAREIN - &
ECT_NER_FE_=ZFFT-_A=1—

B 1E 4 22 B By

(i)

(ii)

FATETZRZWT ¢

HE_ZT2-_MNMF+_A=+—H1E
FER AEERElEEERA
A(alER(E8)ARAA([E
fﬂ?‘WHXJ)ZE*mTWHRAT)&/EE.
AR B EWMER]) HEBER
2,006,760,000 8 Lt (Z T = = F :
2,523,132,0008 7t ) ' RE EWR
Bl A ARERS - ailERAER
ERERAR([HERER)ZEE
RE - gilEREaRBERTS A
KA ZETERRE -RZZTZWMF
+-A=+—8 ERENEEZE
£501,723,0008 t(Z &2 ==&
528,452,000/ 7T) °

%Zif;fﬂi-f- H= ‘f’_EJt
FER AEEREREERER
ME 1650008 T (ZF = = F
3,005,000 70) BEAER S © Lo -
AEBELENENEBR 2 EELER

HEHEE12,010,0008 (=

— =4 : 9,966,000/ ) A E
5 RAF  REBTREE-_ZT N

F+_A=Z+—BHBLEFERPRES
e K HEER 433,000 (=%
ZZ=ZF 111,000 ) A ERE
X (ZZT =% :84,00087T)5H
B R _E-_ME+-A=+—
H - B EH# % E K18 46,030,000
T(ZZ-=4:7,119,000/7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
made rental expenses of HK$2,010,000 (2023:
HK$3,443,000) to a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang Holding. As at 31 December 2024, there
were no lease payables with the subsidiary of Shougang
Holding (2023: nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group paid management and consultancy fees of
HK$3,000,000 (2023: HK$3,000,000) to Shougang
Holding.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
placed interest-bearing deposit of RMB459,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$503,432,000)
(2023: RMB400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$433,951,000)) in Shougang Group Finance Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group.

The compensation payable to key management
personnel during the year have been disclosed in note
15.

All the transactions in (i) to (vi) were negotiated with related
parties on normal commercial terms or in accordance with the
agreements governing those transactions.

The transactions in (iv) to (vi) were continuing connected
transactions/connected transactions but were exempt from
any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.

HEMBHRRME @

BE—F—

WEF=ZA=1+—HILFE

39. A LR Z ()

(iv)

(vi)

) BEZT-_NF+A=+—HIHF
ERN AEEREMHZER -—HE2EH
‘“7§ﬁﬁiﬁizmammﬁn
TZT T =4 @ 3,443,000 70) o B
—E-MF+=-ZA=+—8 " H2EHH
TRBARMERNHEHERE(ZZ
Z=F ) o

HE-_Z-_MNMF+-_A=+—HLF
R AREBREMIERSIHERER
Faf &3,000,0008 (=T == :
3,000,000/ 7T) °

HE-_Z-_WNF+_-_A=+—HLHF
ER - AEERERNEBRTEERA
A(EMEE-—EE2EMBRAT )TN
B 1FER AR 459,000,000t (48
B #)503,432,0008 ) (2=
£ AR¥400,000,0007T(HHERLD
433,951,000/ 7)) ©

RER - BNEE
PP RE15HER

EEABZMEE

EVIRPZAERZFHRETERGRK
RIEBRAR S 2 Hha R ALHE -

()

&Eﬁ&

VF 2R TIHERER S HER
ﬁﬁ%x%#?%@fimﬁ%%u
PR Rt
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) mEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2024 R T -pNFE—A=1+—HIFFE
40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. RERIE D2 BEERAER
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY E:d
Set out below is an overview of the carrying amount and fair TREINAEEMBFETKEENAEGBZ
value of financial assets and liabilities held by the Group: FEHERAFERE :
2024 2023
—E g —E-=4F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Financial assets measured at fair value BEATFEFAEMEEYZZ
through other comprehensive income A E 439,187 688,264
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: IZ#E 4K At 8 2 I EE
— Deposits and other receivables — 1R & R EH At JE WK IE 149,395 150,673
588,582 838,937
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets measured at fair value BAFEFABE M BEE
through profit of loss - 43,019
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 1Z#H AN £ 2 BB EE -
— Trade receivables —ERE SRIE 519,815 530,468
— Bills receivables —EKREE 18,089 157,365
— Deposits and other receivables — 1R & R EH At JE WK IE 51,622 195,891
— Pledged and restricted bank deposits —BEEMEXREIRITER 937,107 941,875
— Time deposit with original maturity - RERHABBE=[EA 2
over three months TFEHAITRER 1,505,443 1,392,489
— Cash and cash equivalents —ReEREEEY 7,675,879 6,552,242
10,707,955 9,813,349

Total 4BEE 11,296,537 10,652,286
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R ERRME @
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. REHE P 2B EEREBEHE

LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (continued) (48)
2024 2023
—E_ME —_E-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Current liabilities REERE
Financial liabilities measured at LHHERAGTEZVKAE
amortised cost:
— Trade and bills payables - ENEZRERENRE 757,521 621,467
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 12,125 10,317
- Other payables and accruals —HiEN RN EE B 819,865 855,043
— Amounts due to non-controlling L EPNGIE 22 e
interests of subsidiaries I8 60,466 63,904
1,649,977 1,550,731
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Financial liabilities measured at HHERATEZVKAE
amortised cost:
— Lease liabilities —HHEaE 31,552 33,526
Total Ak 1,681,529 1,584,257
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The financial information contained in this five-year financial
summary does not constitute the Company’s statutory annual
consolidated financial statements for any of the financial years
ended 31 December 2024, 2023, 2022, 2021 and 2020 but
is derived from those published audited consolidated financial
statements and restated upon the adoption of the new or
amended standards and interpretations as appropriate, is set out
below. Further information relating to these statutory financial
statements required to be disclosed in accordance with section 436
of the Companies Ordinance is as follows:

The Company has delivered the consolidated financial statements
for all four years ended 31 December 2023 to the Registrar of
Companies as required by section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of Schedule
6 to, the Companies Ordinance and will deliver the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 in due
course.

The Company’s auditor has reported on these consolidated
financial statements for all five years. The auditor’s reports were
unqualified; did not include a reference to any matters to which
the auditor drew attention by way of emphasis without qualifying
its reports; and did not contain a statement under either sections
406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the Companies Ordinance.

ERELEREEERAT 341

LFUBRE

FAFUBREMBEERZ_"T_NF - =
E_=F B B RZEZ
EF+ A=+ —BLEFEMNMBERLTE
KARBIZEFENEEFRELEEGTHRE
BENREZSEHBE 2 EEZEGTHRE
WRRMFHFT BT R RZE(ER) K
EY o RIFECRAREHE ) FE 4361 BRZE LT
BHREFBEOEMEROT

ARABERBECRTEN ) FE6623) & MK
3EMARFMEERRERBEEZE T -_=F+=
A=+ —BLEFE2FHMEFROEE IR
X UITHREERARIBEEZE T -_NF+=
A=+ —HBLEFEMNGEEVBRE -

RRABHNZBMERZEEENRATBERE
RBRME YRS TERBER - TER
MBI ERRZERESIERBAIB R T LA
FHNARRBEBATITENTMNEE - 18
BHEHIBECRRHEB) 55406(2) ~ 407(2)8K(3)
& VE By PR -

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-ME —T-o=F —E-— —E- % ZZE-FTF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FETT FET FET FET FET
Results E4
Revenue W zs 5,057,000 5,891,068 8,214,719 7,075,818 3,996,951
Profit attributable to VIN/NGTE ¥ =N Y]
owners of the Company Nt 1,494,066 1,889,247 2,715,374 2,538,495 1,080,041
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Total assets BESE 22,948,823 22,491,544 23,463,484 24,779,977 21,433,646
Total liabilities BERE (4,047,566) (4,021,026) (4,786,265) (5,631,759) (4,142,576)
Net assets BEEE 18,901,257 18,470,518 18,677,219 19,148,218 17,291,070
Non-controlling interests  FEIZERRAERS 2,421,183 (2,188,672) (1,908,542) (1,848,135) (1,453,904)
Equity attributable to RARHEE AEG
owners of the Company W 16,480,074 16,281,846 16,768,677 17,300,083 15,837,166
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In this annual report, the following expressions shall have the
following meanings unless the context indicates otherwise.

AGM 2024

AGM 2025

Articles

ASX

Audit Committee

Board

CG Code

Chairman

Companies Ordinance

Company

controlling shareholder

Directors

Executive Committee

Executive Director(s)

the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 May 2024

The forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company

The articles of association of the
Company

Stock Code on the Australian
Securities Exchange Limited

the audit committee of the Board

the board of Directors of the
Company

the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules

the chairman of the Board

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Shougang Fushan Resources Group
Limited (SEHK:639)

has the meaning ascribed to it
under the Listing Rules

the directors of the Company

the executive committee of the
Board

the executive director(s) of the
Company

e O — B

oA 52

ERERRA -
BUTHESE -
“ENFERE
BFEXe
—E_RFRE
BERKE

AR R

ASX

ERRR

BXEREMEN  THFEER

REIER-_ZT-_MFH

ZAN/A
A=THEBTZBERBF
R

=
=

ARBAERITZEREA

FRE

ApmlZz ERAR
BNBESFRZMER A
Bt U35
EEEeBR T E%RZEg

AR

J

FEERE

i3

EHRRAIMERCIPAE Y B

EX- DS

EEEER

BEEEDNE
{51

622F N AE

BHELEREEBERA

F](SEHK : 639)

AR EMARANE T ZHEE

ARBAITES
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GLOSSARY (continued)

FunDe Sino Life

GM 2024

Group

Independent Non-executive

Director(s)

Listing Rules

Nomination Committee

Non-executive Director(s)

Remuneration Committee

SEHK

SFO

Share(s)

Shoucheng Holdings

FunDe Sino Life Insurance Co.,
Ltd., a substantial shareholder of
the Company

a general meeting of the Company
held on 30 December 2024 in
connection with the renewal of
continuing connected transactions
in relation to the 2025 Master Sale
and Purchase Agreement

the Company and its subsidiaries

the independent non-executive
director(s) of the Company

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the nomination committee of the
Board

the non-executive director(s) of the
Company

the remuneration committee of the
Board

Stock Code on the Stock Exchange
Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

ordinary share(s) of the Company
Shoucheng Holdings Limited

(SEHK: 697), a substantial
shareholder of the Company

A= (&)

B MERRAR

AEH

BUFRITES

SEHK

& 7 MR R

G

B
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BREBASRRENE
[RAF  RRABEERR

ARalRZE_mWF+=
A=Z+HREEEHE_F
ThEREEHEIGE
MEXSMARIBEKR

ift

RABREME QT

ARREULIFATES

B2 FTRE 5 L AR A

Bt 32 P A A AR5,

& 75 R B RO (BB AD

#571%)

ZAYN I P33 v

HIZZER AR A (SEHK :
697) * AARBEBRE
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GLOSSARY (continued)

Shoucheng’s Proposed
Restructuring

Shougang Group

Shougang Holding

SSE

Stock Exchange

substantial shareholder

“the year under review"” or
“2024 FY"

the disposal by Shoucheng
Holdings of the entire issued share
capital of Excel Bond Investments
Limited, a company indirectly
holding 600,000,000 Shares
through Ultimate Capital Limited,
to King Rich Group Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang Holding

Shougang Group Co., Ltd., the
holding company of Shougang
Holding

Shougang Holding (Hong Kong)
Limited, a substantial shareholder
of Shoucheng Holdings and a
substantial shareholder of the
Company since 27 January 2022

stock code on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

has the meaning ascribed to it
under the Listing Rules

for the year ended 31 December
2024

A= (&)

EREREMEER

Bk E

B %A

SSE

[EEEFE |5k
[ZZE-_OFE]

EREEREESERER
RAR(—XRFEBUItimate
Capital Limited £ &
600,000,000 A 7] & 19 2
AR ZEEEBITIRAT
REEEARAR(HRE
z2EMBAR)

BEHSEERRAR - BE
ik ey N

BERER(EB)ARAD
Al BERBERZEER
BRERBZ-ZE-_—_F—A

“tEtBERBBARBZE
ELE
EBESFR S BN

BEMARZ BRI

AR EMARRETZRE

BHE_FT-_NWF+= A
=t+—HIFE
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